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important information

(The information in this section is required under the Securities Act 1978.)
Investment decisions are very important. They often have long-term consequences. Read all
documents carefully. Ask questions. Seek advice before committing yourself.

Choosing an investment
When deciding whether to invest, consider carefully the answers to the following questions that can be

found on the pages noted below: Page
What sort of investment is this? 57
Who is involved in providing it for me? 57
How much do I pay? 58
What are the charges? 59
What returns will I get? 59
What are my risks? 61
Can the investment be altered? 64
How do I cash in my investment? 65
Who do I contact with enquiries about my investment? 66
Is there anyone to whom I can complain if I have problems with the investment? 66
What other infermation can I obtain about this investment? 66

In addition to the information in this document, important information can be found in the current
registered Prospectus for the investment. You are entitled to a copy of that Prospectus on request.t®

Choosing an Investment adviser
You have the right to request from any investment adviser a written disclosure staternent stating his or
her experience and qualifications to give advice. That document will tell you:

+ whether the adviser gives advice only about particular types of investments;

¢ whether the advice is limited to the investments offered by one or more particular financial

organisations; and

¢  whether the adviser will receive a commission or other benefit from advising you.
You are strongly encouraged to request that statement. An investment adviser commits an offence if he
or she does not provide you with a written disclosure statement within 5 working days of your request.
You must make the request at the time the advice is given or within 1 month of receiving the advice.

In addition:
e If an investment adviser has any conviction for dishonesty or has been adjudged bankrupt, he
or she must tell you this in writing; and
+ if an investment adviser receives any money or assets on your behalf, he or she must tell you
in writing the methods employed for this purpose.
Tell the adviser what the purpose of your investment is. This is important because different investments
are suitable for different purposes.

Combined document

This Offer Document is for an Offer by Motor Trade Finances Limited of Perpetual Preference Shares with
an aggregate principal amount of $35 million, with the ability to accept over-subscriptions in respect of
Perpetual Preference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up to a further $5 million. This Offer
Document is dated and prepared as at 30 May 2006.

Important notice

This Offer Document is a combined investment statement and prospectus for the purposes of the
Securities Act 1978 and the Securities Regulations 1983. The purpose of the investment statement
section of this Offer Document is to provide certain key information that is likely to assist a prudent but
non-expert person to decide whether or not to subscribe for Perpetual Preference Shares under the
Offer. However, investors should note that other important information about the Perpetual Preference
Shares and the Offer is available in the prospectus section of this Offer Document and at the head office
of Mator Trade Finances Limited.

The Offer of Perpetual Preference Shares contained in this Offer Document is subject to approval by each
class of MTF shareholders by ordinary resolution at a special meeting to be held on 8 June 2006. An
ordinary resolution is a resolution approved by a simple majority of the votes of those shareholders




entitled to vote and voting on the resolution. If the ordinary resolution Is not passed at the special
reeting the Offer will not proceed.

Registration

A copy of this Offer Document duly signed by or on behaif of the Directors, and having attached to it
copies of the documents required by section 41 of the Securities Act 1978 (including the original
auditor's report and consent letter, acknowledgement by NZX (in accordance with Regulation 23(2) of
the Securities Regulations 1983) and any material contracts) was delivered to the Registrar of
Companies for registration in accordance with section 42 of the Securities Act 1978 on the date of this
Offer Document.

Overseas investors

This Offer is limited to within the New Zealand jurisdiction and complies with statutory requirements of
New Zealand. Motor Trade Finances Limited does not intend that this Offer will be made available
outside of New Zealand. This Offer Document may not comply with statutory requirements outside the
New Zealand jurisdiction,

Definitions
Capitalised terms in this Offer Document have a specific meaning and are defined in the glossary on
page 75. All references to $ are to New Zealand dollars unless specified otherwise.

Guarantee

None of MTF’s Directors, its subsidiaries, the Lead Manager nor any of their respective directors, officers
or employees, or any other person guarantees the payment of Dividends or any other amounts due
under the Perpetual Preference Shares or the amount of returns {if any) which investors may receive as
Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares.,

NZDX market listing

Application has been made to NZX for permission to list the Perpetual Preference Shares and all the
requirements of NZX relating thereto that can be complied with on or before the date of the Offer
Document have been duly complied with. However NZX accepts no responsibility for any statement in
this Offer Document.

(1) This Is the wording required by Schedule 3D to the Securities Regulations 1983 which contemplates a separate
investment statement and prospectus. For this Offer the two documents have been combined and accordingly the
prospectus avallable on request is identical to this document.
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Perpetual Preference Shares - key features

Issuer: Motor Trade Finances Limited

Issue Price: NZ$1.00

Maximum Principal Amount: $35 milllon plus up to $5 milllon of over-subscriptions

Term: Perpetual - no flxed redemption date

Initial Dividend Rate:* 9.75% per annum, inclusive of full Imputation Credits,
payable quarterly in arrears until the first Dividend
Reset Date

First Dividend Payment: Payable to original subscriber on the First Dividend
Payment Date

First Dividend Payment Date: 30 September 2006

Subsequent Dividend Payment Dates: 31 December, 31 March, 30 June and 30 September -

In each year and if that day Is not a Business Day, the
next Business Day

Dividend Reset Date: 30 September 2007 and annually thereafter

Dividend Reset Margin:* 240 basls points (2.40%), Including full Imputation
Credits, above the Benchmark Rate

Minlmum Application: $5,000 and thereafter in $1,000 Increments

The Offer of Perpetual Preference Shares contained in this Offer Document is subject to approval by each class
of MTF shareholders by ordinary resolution at a special meeting to be held on 8 June 2006. An ordinary
resolution is a resoclution approved by a simple majority of the votes of those shareholders entitled to vote and
voting on the resolution. If the ordinary resolution is not passed at the special meeting the Offer will not
proceed.

*It is MTF's current intention that the Initial Dividend Rate be paid as detailed although this rate or payment of
any Dividend is not promised or guaranteed. MTF reserves the right to increase the Initial Dividend Rate
and/or Dividend Reset Margin to such greater rate as it might determine and advise to the market during the
Offer period. Any increased rate would apply to all Perpetual Preference Shares, regardless of when they are
allotted.

How to apply

Instructions on how to make an application are contained in the sections of this Offer Document
entitled "application instructions" on pages 79 to 82.

Lead Manager
Forsyth Barr Limited

Offer timetable

Important dates

Opening Date of Offer: 31 May 2006
Exchange Offer Closing Date: 16 June 2006
Priority Pool Closing Date: 16 June 2006
Allotment Date (Priority Pool}: 19 June 2006
Closing Date of Offer:* 28 June 2006
Allotment Date (Exchange Offer): 30 June 2006
Quotation Date: 3 July 2006

Trading will commence on Quotation Date.

Perpetual Preference Shares will be allotted pursuant to the General Offer on a daily basis following
receipt and acceptance of valid applications by MTF.

* This Offer will close on the earlier of 28 June 2006 or the date on which subscriptions are
received and accepted for the maximum aggregate principal amount of the Perpetual Preference

Motor Trade Finances Limited 2
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Shares (including any over-subscriptions). The Exchange Offer and Priority Pool will close on 16
June 2006. MTF in conjunction with the Lead Manager has the right to vary the Opening Date, the
Closing Date, the Exchange Offer and Priority Pool Closing Date (including the right to extend. or
accelerate the Closing Date and Exchange Offer and Priority Pool Closing Date) upon providing
written notice to NZX. This may have a consequential effect on the dates listed above.

Motor Trade Finances Limited 3 @’

~C



five year financial summary - MTF Group

Year ending 30 September 2003 2004 2003 2002 2001
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial performance
Total operating revenues 87,624 80,073 74,160 43,637 45,560
Interest paid 39,172 34,662 32,961 4,287 4,735
Profit before taxation 38,780 36,312 33,642 31,222 32,918
Taxation charge (benefit) 84 174 (42) 113 {53)
Profit after taxation 38,696 36,138 33,684 31,109 32,971
Dividends paid and provided - - - - -
Dividend cents per share - - - - -
Profit { Deficit) retained {5,448) (5,229) 1,904 {1,173) 12,919
Financial position
Total assets 580,421 553,156 519,375 79,230 76,484
Total tangible assets 579,859 552,934 518,901 78,727 75,723
Total liabilities 568,997 536,363 497,155 58,819 54,881
Total shareholders’ equity 11,424 16,793 22,220 20,41 21,603

Net tangible asset backing per

Perpetual Preference Share unit

During the year ended 30 September 2003, the group consolidated MTF Securities Ltd (MTFS).
This is required under Financial Reporting Standard 37 (FRS5-37): Consolidating Investments in
Subsidiaries, which applies to general purpose financial reports covering periods ending on or
after 31 December 2002. Accordingly, the 2002 and 2001 figures exclude the effect of
consolidating MTFS as a subsidiary and therefore also exclude the securitised receivables as an
asset and related funding as a liability. Otherwise, the accounting policies set out under the
heading "Statement of Accounting Policies” on pages 27 to 31 of this Offer Document have
been consistently applied for all financial periods presented.

In preparing the 2005 financial statements set out on pages 25 to 48, certain minor
reclassification changes were made to the 2004 comparative figures. Accordingly, minor
differences arise between the figures presented in the 2004 financial performance and position
as set out above and comparative figures included in the 2005 financial statements on
pages 25 to 48.

Pursuant to Section 8(3)(a)(ix) of the First Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983 the
figures above do not include any amounts derived using the equity method of accounting.

The disclosure of distributions on a cents per share basis is a requirement of Section
B(3)(a)(xii) of the First Schedule to the regulations and is not relevant in the context of
distributions made by MTF to its shareholders.

The net tangible asset backing for the issue of $35 million, plus up to $5 million of over-
subscriptions, of Perpetual Preference Shares, measured on the assumption that all securities
had been allotted prior to 30 September 2005, would be $1.24 per share.

The profits after taxation are distributed each year to the MTF Dealers. Over the five year
pericd of the Summary of Financial Statements the Profit (Deficit) retained, as presented,
fluctuates principally due to the timing of the distributions relative to when the profit after
taxation was reported. In 2001 (when distributions were made six monthly) a Financial
Reporting Standard change meant that a large portion of the distribution relating to the 2001
year was deferred until 2002. The effect was a significant portion of the 2001 Profit was

Motor Trade Finances Limited 4 qgr
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retained. Similar deferments took place in subsequent years., In 2004 and 2005 the reported
distributlons were greater than the Profit after taxation (leading to a Deficit retained) because
of the move to monthly profit distributions.

Motor Trade Finances Limited 5




company highlights

Established leading business

Established in 1970, MTF is one of New Zealand’s largest motor vehicle financiers, operating
through over 700 transacting shareholder ("Dealer") outlets, in all major towns and cities, from
Kaitaia to Invercargil.

MTF is a co-operatlve, with its shares cowned by its Dealers.

A co-operative is a form of company which is owned and operated for the benefit of those using its
services. A key feature of all co-operatives is that their main purpose is mutual support for
members and/or the promotion of a specific purpose or benefit which, in the case of MTF, is dealer
finance.

MTF has a well established brand and reputation both as a supplier of motor vehicle finance and as
an issuer, having issued Capital Bonds listed on the NZDX Market to New Zealand investors since
1994 and commercial paper under its securitisation programme since 1995,

Consistent earnings record

The MTF Group has a consistent earnings history, reporting a net profit before Distribution to
Dealers in every year since incorporation in 1970. For the financial year ending 30 September
2005, net profit avatlable for Distribution was $38.7 million, having grown from $32.9 million in
2001. Throughout its history, MTF has not missed a Dealer Distribution and has always met its
obligations to investors. With this history and recent investments in technology, in the opinion of
the Directors, the MTF Group is well placed to perform in the future as it has in the past.*

Unique and successful operation

MTF is incorporated under the Companies Act 1993 and the Co-operative Companies Act 1996,
with its ordinary shares held by its Dealers. The MTF Group provides its Dealers with economies of
scale through access to the technology, funding, legal and credit resources of a skilled and
experienced finance company, at the Dealer level.

Each Dealer participates in the profits of the business in proportion to the volume of business
written by that Dealer. Accordingly, each Dealer has a compelling financial interest in the quality
of the business written and the future success of the MTF Group.

Sound credit quality and controls

The MTF Group has a unique credit model, with credit risk assumed by individual Dealers for the
business they write. In addition to the primary right of recourse to the securlty provided by the
vehicle, Dealers indemnify the MTF Group against any losses from defaults by their customers.
This indemnity includes the right to seize the shares and profits of any particlpating Dealer.

MTF regularly monitors the credit quality and lending limits of Its Dealers. Those Dealers that do
not satisfy the relevant criteria or maintain appropriate lending standards and performance are
suspended or have their facilities withdrawn permanently.

MTF has a consistent track record of managing Dealer risk, to the extent that Dealer losses in the
last five years have never exceeded 1.5% of profit distributable.

* past performance is not indicative of future performance.

Motor Trade Finances Limited 6 %




Diversified credit exposure

The MTF Group's exposure to any single counterparty Is limited by Its geographical, Dealer and
customer diversity. The MTF Group has over 62,000 loans spread throughout New Zealand, with
an average exposure of approximately $9,000. These loans are spread across over 700 Dealers,
with the maximum exposure to any Dealer capped according to Board monitored prudential
requirements, which Iinclude capltal structure and ratios, personal guarantees and credit
management requirements.

Established and efficient funding capability

The MTF Group’s finance operations are primarily funded by way of a securitisation programme.
This programme was established in 1995 and has a facility limit of $600 million. The commercial
paper issued pursuant to the programme is rated AL+/P-1 (the ability of MTFS to meet its financial
obligations under the commercial paper is extremely strong/superior) by Standard & Poor's/
Moody's and reflects the MTF Group’s strong focus on credit quality and the efficacy of its loan
administration systems. A copy of these credit ratings can be obtalned from MTF on request. For
information regarding the rating criteria used by these rating agencies please refer to their
respective websites: www.standardandpoors.com and www.moodys.com. These ratings do not
apply to the Perpetual Preference Shares offered In this Offer Document.

MTF has committed standby credit facilities of $77 million, provided by four appropriately rated
banks, to ensure ongolng funding.

Leading edge systems and processes

On 1 April 2005, the MTF Group launched MTF Direct, a web-based loan origination system, which
enables the Dealer to process all new business electronically at the dealership. MTF Direct
provides better credit assessment, fewer errors, faster processing and ultimately better credit
quality than traditional manual processing methods, through access to customer, credit agency,
vehicle and security database verification at point of sale.

Through the MTF Direct platform, MTF monitors Dealer credit management on a daily basis and is
able to menitor loan origination as It happens. Together with its best practice financial reporting
and accounting systems, this enables the MTF Group to manage Its credit position and its funding
requirements.

Focussed range of products and services

MTF’s core activity is to provide credit products and back-office support to Dealers. In addition,
MTF Direct provides access to third party payment protection insurance, guaranteed asset
protection insurance, extended warranty, and comprehensive motor vehicle insurance. These
products provide an additional layer of credit support to the credit products sold, and provide
further income opportunities for Dealers.

Strong governance and experienced management

The Board consists of four Dealer Directors, two independent (non-Dealer) Directors and the
Managing Director. The Board has established audit, credit, remuneration and nomination
committees to enhance the Board'’s effectiveness, while preserving overall Board responsibility.

All functional areas of the MTF Group are subject to an annual risk management review, which is
reported to the audit committee and the Board.

Motor Trade Finances Limited 7 %
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chairman'’s letter
Dear Investor

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Motor Trade Finances Limited, I am pleased to present
New Zealand resident investors with an offer to subscribe for Perpetual Preference Shares to be
issued by Motor Trade Finances Limited.

Established in 1970, MTF has a proud history of reliably providing its Dealers and investors with
attractive returns. The MTF Group recently produced a very satisfactory financial result for the
year ending 30 September 2005, with a profit of $38.7 million distributed to Dealers.

The proceeds of this Perpetual Preference Share Offer will be used to refinance the redemption of
existing Capital Bonds and to enable the MTF Group to continue to finance organic growth in its
core activity of offering motor vehicle finance.

The Perpetual Preference Shares being offered are perpetual in nature and it is intended they will
offer an initial gross Dividend return of 9.75% per annum, inclusive of full Imputation Credits, until
the first Dividend Reset Date on 30 September 2007. Thereafter, the new Dividend Rate will be set
annually at a Dividend Reset Margin of 240 basis points, including full Imputation Credits, over the
Benchmark Rate.

As part of the Offer, existing Capital Bondholders will be offered the opportunity to exchange up to
100% of their Capital Bonds for Perpetual Preference Shares, subject to scaling,

The Board of Directors welcomes your participation in this Offer.

Yours sincerely

Roger Bonifant
Chairman
30 May 2006

Motor Trade Finances Limited 8
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main terms of Offer

The following Is a summary of the maln terms of the Offer. Investors should refer to the more
detailed information in the other sections of this Offer Document, including the sections entitled
"answers to important questions” and "terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares".

Issuer
The issuer of the Perpetual Preference Shares Is Motor Trade Finances Limited.

Offer amount

Perpetual Preference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up to $35 million are offered
for subscription. MTF reserves the right to accept over-subscriptions in respect of Perpetual
Preference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up to a further $5 million.

The Offer will include a $15 million Exchange Offer to existing MTF Capital Bondholders (the
"Exchange Offer") whereby Capital Bondholders can apply to exchange up to 100% of the face
value of their Capital Bonds for Perpetual Preference Shares subject to the terms of the Exchange
Offer.

The Offer of Perpetual Preference Shares contained in this Offer Document is subject to approval
by each class of MTF shareholders by ordinary resolution at a special meeting to be held on 8 June
2006. An ordinary resolution is a resolution approved by a simple majority of the votes of those
sharehoiders entitled to vote and voting on the resolution. If the ordinary resolution is not passed
at the special meeting the Offer will not proceed.

Type of instrument

Perpetual Preference Shares are perpetual securities that have no fixed term and will remain In
existence unless and untll they are redeemed for cash by MTF, are purchased by MTF and
cancelled or, in the event of a liquidation of MTF, are redeemed (elther in whole or part). Perpetual
Preference Shareholders have no right to require redemption by MTF.

Perpetual Preference Shares carry no right to vote at meetings of ordinary shareholders of MTF
except in limited circumstances and rank behind all secured and unsecured creditors of MTF but
ahead of holders of other classes of shares of MTF and profit distributable to Dealers.

For further information on the Perpetual Preference Shares refer to the "terms of the Perpetual
Preference Shares" on page 52.

Issue Price

The Issue Price of NZ$1.00 per Perpetual Preference Share must be paid in cash in full on
application under the Offer.

Existing MTF Capital Bondhelders participating in the Exchange Offer will not be required to make a
cash payment for their Perpetual Preference Shares in respect of those Capital Bonds exchanged
for Perpetual Preference Shares. Payment will be effected by directing the face value of their
existing Capital Bonds payable to them by MTF on 30 June 2006 in satisfaction of the Issue Price of
the Perpetual Preference Shares under the Exchange Offer.

Initial Dividend Rate

It is MTF's current intention that from the Allotment Date of the Perpetual Preference Shares until
the first Dividend Reset Date, Dividends will be payable at the gross Initial Dividend Rate of 9.75%
per annum, inclusive of full Imputation Credits, payable quarterly in arrears. MTF reserves the
right to increase the Initial Dividend Rate to such greater rate as it might determine and advise to
the market during the Offer period. Any increased rate would apply to all Perpetual Preference
Shares, regardless of when they are allotted. Dividends are not promised or guaranteed and may
be cancelled as detailed on page 52.

Subsequent Dividend Rates

On the Dividend Reset Date, Dividends on the Perpetual Preference Shares will be reset at the
Dividend Reset Margin of 240 basis points (2.40%), inclusive of full Imputation Credits, above the
Benchmark Rate. MTF reserves the right to increase the Dividend Reset Margin to such greater

Motor Trade Finances Limited 9 %\
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rate as it might determine and advise to the market during the Offer period. Any increased rate
would apply to all Perpetual Preference Shares, regardless of when they are allotted. Dividends
are not promised or guaranteed and may be cancelled as detailed on page 52.

Dividend payments on the Perpetual Preference Shares can be cancelled by the Board of MTF at its
discretion, in accordance with paragraphs 1.6 and 1.7 of the terms of the Perpetual Preference
Shares as detailed on page 52.

Exchange Offer

MTF has reserved a pool of $15 million Perpetual Preference Shares for existing MTF Capital
Bondholders {(43% of the aggregate principal amount of the Offer). Existing Capital Bondholders
will be entitled to apply to exchange up to 100% of the face value of their Capltal Bonds held as at
30 June 2006 for Perpetual Preference Shares. In the event that applications pursuant to the
Exchange Offer exceed $15 million, applications seeking to exchange greater than 50% of their
Capital Bonds for Perpetual Preference Shares may need to be scaled. Scaling will be at the
discretion of MTF in assoclation with the Lead Manager. Any Capital Bonds not exchanged into
Perpetual Preference Shares will be redeemed in cash on 30 June 2006. The closing date for the
Exchange Offer is 16 June 2006.

In addition to receiving Perpetual Preference Shares under the Exchange Offer, Capital
Bondholders participating in the Exchange Offer will receive a cash payment on 30 June 2006
reflecting an interest payment of 10.7% per annum for each $1,000 face value of Capital Bonds
held, representing accrued interest on the Capital Bonds for the six month period from 1 January
2006 up to and including 30 June 2006.

Any application made under the Exchange Offer is irrevocable. Once an application has been made
existing Capltal Bondholders who participate in the Exchange Offer will be unable to subsequently
sell the portion of Capital Bonds in respect of which they have applied to exchange for Perpetual
Preference Shares under the Exchange Offer and will not be entitled to the redemption amount on
the Capital Bonds exchanged on maturity. Existing Capital Bondholders will be entitled to the final
interest payment on all Capital Bonds in respect of the period to 30 June 2006 as detailed above.
Perpetual Preference Shares issued pursuant to the Exchange Offer will be allotted on 30 June
2006.

Capital Bondholders who wish to apply for Perpetual Preference Shares in addition to those applied
for under the Exchange Offer will need to contact their investment adviser and seek a firm
allocation or apply under the Public Pooi,

Firm allocation

Perpetual Preference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up to $15 million (43% of the
aggregate principal amount of the Offer) have been reserved for subscription by clients of NZX
Firms and invited financial institutions on a firm allocation basis. MTF reserves the right to accept
over-subscriptions by way of firm allocation.

Priority Pool

Perpetual Preference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up to $5 million (14% of the
aggregate principal amount of the Offer) have been reserved for Dealers, MTF staff, and Directors
{"Priority Pool"). Perpetual Preference Shares issued pursuant to the Priority Pool will be allotted
on 19 June 2006.

The balance of any Perpetual Preference Shares not taken up pursuant to the Priority Pool will be
reserved for allocation at the discretion of MTF in conjunction with the Lead Manager. In the event
that applicaticns pursuant to the Priority Pool exceed $5 million, applications will be scaled at the
discretion of MTF in association with the Lead Manager.

The closing date for applications made pursuant to the Priority Pool is 16 June 2006,

Public Pool

The residual amount of the Offer not taken up under firm allocation, the Exchange Offer or the
Priority Pool, if any, will be available for subscription by members of the public ("Public Pool"). If
MTF exercises Its right to accept over-subscriptions in respect of Perpetual Preference Shares then

Motor Trade Finances Limited 10
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some or all of those over-subscriptions may aiso be available for subscription by members of the
public,

Reserved allocation

If MTF exercises its right to accept over-subscriptions in respect of Perpetual Preference Shares
then some or all of those over-subscriptions may also be reserved for subscription by clients of
NZX Firms and invited financial institutions by way of firm allocation. As such, 100% of
over-subscriptions may be reserved for firm allocations. The balance of any Perpetual Preference
Shares (if any} will be available by way of the Public Pool.

Use of funds

The funds raised pursuant to the Offer will be used in part to repay $30 million of Capital Bonds
being redeemed by MTF on 30 June 2006. In addition, the proceeds of the Offer will be used to
enable the MTF Group to continue to finance organic growth in its core activity of offering motor
vehicle finance.

Offer period

The Offer will be open from the Opening Date until the Closing Date, or such earlier date as
advised by MTF, or in the case of the Exchange Offer or Priority Pool, until the Exchange Offer and
Priority Pool Closing Date, MTF in conjunction with the Lead Manager has the right to vary any of
these dates upon providing written notice to NZX.

Payment of Dividend

Dividends accrue on a daily basis from the Allotment Date. It is the current intention of MTF that
the first Dividend will be payable on 30 September 2006, however, as this date is not a Business
Day the Dividend will be payable on the next Business Day, being 2 October 2006, and Is payable
to the original subscriber, Irrespective of any transfer of the Perpetual Preference Shares by that
original subscriber prior to the First Dividend Payment Date. It is then proposed that subsequent
Dividends will be payable In equal quarterly instalments in arrears on 31 December, 31 March, 30
June and 30 September in each year, or if that day is not a Business Day, the next Business Day.
Dividends are not promised or guaranteed and may be cancelled as detailed on page 52.

Imputation

bividends will consist of a combination of cash payments and Imputation Credits, to the maximurn
extent permitted by law. Accordingly, any cash payment received will be 67% of the Dividend
Rate, under current legislation and assuming a corporate tax rate of 33%.

Applications

Applications to subscribe for Perpetual Preference Shares under the Offer must be for a minimum
principal amount of $5,000 and thereafter in multiples of $1,000.

Applications under firm allocation or Public Poo! must be made on the Application Form contained
at the back of this Offer Document and must be lodged with the Registrar before 5:00pm on
28 June 2006 or returned to MTF or any Primary Market Participant through which a firm allocation
was obtained or the Lead Manager or any cther channel approved by NZX in time for such
applications to be forwarded to the Registrar by 5:00pm on 28 June 2006.

Applications to subscribe for Perpetual Preference Shares under the Priority Pool by Dealers, MTF
staff, and Directors must be lodged with the Registrar before 5:00pm 16 June 2006 or returned to
MTF or to any Primary Market Participant or the Lead Manager or any other channel approved by
NZX in time for such applications to be forwarded to the Registrar before 5:00pm 16 June 2006.

The aggregate principal amount of the Perpetual Preference Shares for which application is made
must be paid in full on application. Cheques should be made payable to "MTF Preference Share
Offer”, crossed "Not Transferable” and must not be post-dated. MTF may refuse all or any part of
any application without giving a reason.

Additional application instructions including how to apply can be found on pages 79 to 82.
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Applications under the Exchange Offer

A personalised Red Application Form for applying for Perpetual Preference Shares under the
Exchange Offer has been prepared for each Capital Bondholder showing the total aggregate
principal amount of Capital Bonds held as at 25 May 2006. This Red Application Form has been
sent separately to Capital Bondholders.

Capital Bondholders wishing to apply to exchange the aggregate principal amount of their Capital
Bonds for Perpetual Preference Shares must complete the personalised Red Application Form and
lodge It with the Registrar before 5:00pm 16 June 2006 or return it to MTF or any Primary Market
Participant or the Lead Manager or any other channel approved by NZX in time for such
applications to be forwarded to the Registrar before 5:00pm 16 June 2006.

Existing Capital Bondholders participating in the Exchange Offer will not be required to make a
cash payment for the portlon of Capital Bonds exchanged into Perpetual Preference Shares.
Rather, payment will be effected by directing the face value of their existing Capital Bonds
exchanged and payable to them by MTF on 30 June 2006 to the satisfaction of the Issue Price of
the Perpetual Preference Shares allotted under the Exchange Offer.

A holder of Capital Bonds can apply to exchange up to 100% of the aggregate principal amount of
the Capital Bonds held. To the extent applications exceed the $15 million Perpetual Preference
Shares reserved, applications seeking to exchange greater than 50% of their Capita! Bonds for
Perpetual Preference Shares may need to be scaled. Scaling will be at the discretion of MTF in
association with the Lead Manager. Any Capital Bonds not exchanged into Perpetual Preference
Shares will be redeemed in cash on 30 June 2006.

In the event Capital Bondholders wish to apply for Perpetual Preference Shares outside of the
Exchange Offer they will be need to seek a flrm allocation of shares from a NZX Firm or invited
financial institution or apply for Perpetual Preference Shares under the Public Pool and complete
the relevant Application Form.

Allotment

The Offer of the Perpetual Preference Shares Is subject to approval of the Offer by each class of
MTF shareholder by ordinary resolution. If approval is not obtained the Offer will not proceed.

Perpetual Preference Shares will be allotted at the sole discretion of MTF. Perpetual Preference
Shares will be allotted pursuant to the General Offer on a daily basis following receipt and
acceptance of valid applications by MTF,

Existing Capital Bondholders participating in the Exchange Offer will have their Perpetual
Preference Shares allotted on 30 June 2006.

Perpetual Preference Shares issued pursuant to the Priority Pool will be allotted on 19 June 2006,

MTF will advise successful applicants of the allotment of Perpetual Preference Shares to them as
soon as possible after the Allotment Date,

Refund

MTF reserves the right to refuse all or any part of an application without giving a reason. If MTF
accepts an application in part, the balance of the application moneys will be refunded no later than
five Business Days after the Allotment Date of the Perpetual Preference Shares to the applicant.
Any applications received after the Closing Date or Exchange Offer or Priority Pool Closing Dates
may not be accepted. Any application money received for applications that are not accepted will
be refunded to the applicant no later than five Business Days after the Closing Date. No interest
will be paid on refunds for applications that are not accepted.

Brokerage

No brokerage is payable by any subscriber for Perpetual Preference Shares under the Offer,
although brokerage may be payable if Perpetual Preference Shares are bought and sold in the
secondary market. Brokerage is payable by MTF to Primary Market Participants, the Lead Manager
and other approved intermediaries on applications that bear their stamp at the rate of;
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e 1.00% of the principal amount of Perpetual Preference Shares for which valid applications
have been recelved and accepted pursuant to the General Offer and Priority Pool; and

* 0.50% of the principal amount of Perpetual Preference Shares accepted by MTF by way of
over-subscription for which valid applications have been received and accepted pursuant to
a firm allocation.

In addition MTF will pay the Lead Manager brokerage at the rate of 0.75% In respect of the
principal amount of all applications received pursuant to the Exchange Offer, from which the Lead
Manager will be responsible for paying brokerage at the rate of 0.50% to Primary Market
Participants and other approved intermedlaries in respect of valid Exchange Offer applications that
have been received and accepted that bear their stamp.

Underwritten Amount

The Offer has been underwritten by Forsyth Barr Group Limited to a total principal amount of $35
million.

Lead Manager
Forsyth Barr Limited
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business overview

Introduction

MTF was formed in 1970 to enable selected motor vehicle dealers to finance sales of motor
vehicles to the public. From a base of 12 Dunedin Dealers, the MTF Group has grown to become
one of the largest financlers of motor vehicles in New Zealand with more than 700 Dealers, from
Kaitaia to Invercargill.

The MTF Group, through its Dealer network, offers a range of finance products:
« credit contracts;
» finance leases; and
¢ gperating leases.

In addition, the MTF Group offers a range of third party insurance products:

s payment protection insurance, for events affecting repayment, such as illness,
redundancy or death;

¢ guaranteed asset protection, for the shortfall between the insured value and the
outstanding loan;

+ extended warranty; and
s comprehensive motor vehicle insurance.

MTF is incorporated under the Companies Act 1993 and the Co-operative Companies Act 1996,
with its shares held by Its Dealers. Operations are conducted on a co-operative basis with selected
motor vehicle dealers becoming shareholders of MTF, upon approval for access to MTF facilities.
The MTF Group accepts finance receivables entered into by Dealers with their customers and
returns the net profit earned from these financial receilvables to the respective Dealers, by way of
monthly profit Distribution.

MTF employs a total of 55 people, 45 of whom support the Dealer network from the head office in
Dunedin and 10 who provide Dealer support throughout New Zealand.

Funding
The principal source of funding is a securitisation programme set up in 1995.

MTF has set up a special purpose company, MTF Securities Limited ("MTFS”) whose sole purpose is
to purchase qualifying finance receivables from MTF. Upon purchase, MTF transfers all its rights to
MTFS, including recourse to the individual Dealer.

The securitisation programme provides facilities for MTFS to borrow up to an agreed limit
(currently set at $600 million) on the euro commercial paper ("ECP"} market. Registered banks
provide MTFS with standby liquidity facilities which guarantee funding should it not be possible to
roll over the ECP at maturity.

The ECP issued through the securitisation programme is rated Al1+/P-1 (the ability of MTFS to
meet its financial obligations under the commerciai paper is extremely strong/superior) by
Standard & Poor's/Moody's. Unsecured funding is provided to MTFS by MTF in support of the credit
enhancement of the securitisation programme. The ECP holders assume the credit risk on the
balance of securitised receivables. These ratings do not apply to the Perpetual Preference Shares.
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The securitisation programme permits MTFS to apply the subordinated loan by MTF to fund losses
it might incur on any of its purchased securitised receivables. MTF’s exposure to any bad debts
incurred by MTFS is limited to the subordinated loan invested.

To be eligible for securitisation, receivables must arise from finance receivables that are, inter alia:

a) credit contracts, operating leases or finance leases in relation to vehicle assets on a
form approved for acceptance by MTFS;

b) for a term less than 60 months and a payoff amount greater than $1,000; and

c) registered at the Personal Property Securities Register ("PPSR").

Further details on the securitisation programme are set out on page 31 of this Offer Document.

Additional funding is available to MTF, in the form of committed standby credit facilities of
$77 million, provided by four appropriately rated banks, to ensure ongoing funding of
non-securitised finance receivables.

Non-securitised finance receivables currently comprise:

+ finance recelvables which have yet to qualify or that are awaiting the sale process to
MTFS; and

+ finance receivables which are excluded from the eligibility criteria.

The committed standby credit facilities comprise bank loans secured under the following
arrangements:

* $63 million of committed standby credit facilities are secured by a composite debenture
dated 17 May 2001 in favour of Bank of New Zealand over the assets of MTF and MTF
Leasing Limited (MTFL). The security is also over the MTF subordinated loan to MTFS but
not over the underlying assets of MTFS. There is a security sharing arrangement between
MTF, Bank of New Zealand, Westpac Banking Corporation and ANZ National Bank.

* %14 million of committed standby credit facilities are secured by a first ranking fixed
charge over the future interest cash flows from the instaiments outstanding on the
securitised receivables.

The committed standby credit facllities, which have interest maturities up to 30 days, have
facility maturities between May 2007 and March 2008,

Recourse under finance contracts

In the event of any default by the borrower under a MTF Group contract, the MTF Group has
available as securlty the vehicle or goods subject to the contract and a right of action against the
defaulting borrower and any guarantor(s).

The MTF Group requires each Dealer to indemnify the MTF Group against any default by a
borrower from that Dealer. This indemnity includes the right to forfeit the MTF shares and profits
of any Dealer in the event that the Dealer fails to meet its obligations under the terms of the
recourse arrangement. Dealers’ profits accumulate and are paid out monthly, two months in
arrears.

Credit quality

By way of its web-based origination system, MTF Direct, the MTF Group enables Dealers to assess
the credit of each finance applicant on a loan by loan basis, at point of sale. This system has been
developed by the MTF Group based on its 35 years of successful motor vehicle financing.
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In addition to the credit quality of finance applicants, MTF closely monitors the credit quality,
lending limits, performance and financial position of each Dealer to ensure the quality of the
business written meets minimum standards and the Dealer is capable of indemnifying the MTF
Group against any potential losses. Those Dealers that are unable or unwilling to meet the MTF
Group credit and/or indemnity criteria have their facillties with the MTF Group cancelled.

At the date of this Offer Document, all credit measures remain well within target, a reflection of
the Dealer selection process and the ongoing quality of the MTF Group credit management.

Credit management

The MTF Group provides a complete credit management service to the Dealer, through its
web-based origination and management platform, MTF Direct. All internal and statutorily required
notices are generated and mailed by MTF and Dealers are provided with real time access to
customer arrears information. Whilst each Dealer has responsibility to meet MTF collection
standards, MTF monitors arrears on a daily basis and provides technical and legal support to
Dealers throughout the arrears cycle.

The credit status of each Dealer ledger of loans is assessed daily by MTF and profits are withheld if
that status moves beyond agreed prudential levels. Where prudential levels are not restored
within agreed time frames, the facility is suspended or withdrawn.

Because all customer losses are for the account of the Dealer, the credit risk assumed by MTF is to
the individual Dealer and its capacity to meet any customer shortfall. From the year ended
30 September 2001 until the date of this Offer Document, losses due to Dealer failure have not
exceeded $460,000.

Credit risk

The credit risk on securitised receivables is limited to the unsecured funding provided by MTF in
support of the credit enhancement of the securitisation programme to MTFS which as at 31 March
2006 stood at $29,476,087. The balance of the credit risk on the securitised receivables is
assumed by the holders of the ECP, pursuant to the securitisation programme. MTFS is
bankruptcy remote, which from a legal perspective, limits MTF's maximum credit risk, with respect
to securitised receivables, to the amount of the subordinated ioan provided to MTFS.

Non-securitised receivables comprise amounts owing by customers of Dealers and are secured by
a specific charge over each vehicle or goods. Dealers indemnify MTF for any losses from defaults
by their customers. This indemnity includes the right to seize the shares and profits of any Dealer.
MTF regularly monitors the credit quality and lending limits of its Dealers.

The exposure of the underlying finance receivables is mitigated by the limited exposure to larger
customers relative to the total asset base and the high number of individual contracts which
comprise the finance receivables.

Limlts on exposures with counterparties have been set and approved by the trustees for the ECP
holders and are monitored on a regular basis. The MTF Group limits concentration risk with
counterparties and monitors this risk continuously.

Leading edge systems and processes

On 1 April 2005, the MTF Group launched MTF Direct, a web-based loan crigination system, which
enables the Dealer to process all new business electronically at the dealership. MTF Direct
provides better credit assessment, fewer errors, faster processing and ultimately better credit
quality, than traditional manual processing methods, through access to customer, credit agency,
vehicle and security database verification at point of sale.

Through the MTF Direct platform, MTF monitors Dealer credit management on a daily basis and is
able to monitor loan origination as it happens. Together with its best practice financial reporting
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and accounting systems, this enables the MTF Group to manage its credit position and funding
reguirements.

Through its website, MTF provides Dealers with online access to the reports required to
successfully manage individual customer credit exposure,

The MTF Group has been an early adopter of leading edge technology in the finance sector.

Risk management

The Board is responsible for the MTF Group’s system of internal control. The Board regularly
monitors the operational and financial aspects of the MTF Group's activities and, through the audit
committee, considers the recommendations and advice of external auditors.

An annual cycle of internal risk reviews is performed, covering treasury, finance, credit and
information technology.

The Board ensures that recommendations arising from external or internal audits are investigated
and, where considered necessary, suitable action is taken to ensure that the MTF Group has an
appropriate environment in place to manage the risks identified.

The Board requires that management investigates ways of enhancing risk management strategies,
including appropriate segregation of duties and the employment and training of suitably qualified
and experienced personnel.

An asset liability committee consisting of the Managing Director, General Manager - Treasury,
Financial Controller and Manager - Credit, meets regularly to consider balance sheet risk and
management, within the framework of Board approved credit and treasury management policy.

Liquidity management

Liquidity is managed primarily through access to the securitisation programme by which
receivables are sold to MTFS. Within the securitisation programme, revolving standby credit
facilities exist with appropriately rated banks to provide ongoing funding to repay ECP on maturity
should further paper not be able to be issued.

The MTF Group manages non-securitised assets and liabilities to ensure maturities allow an
adequate margin between requirements to fund non-securitised assets and access to funding.

MTF sets a credit limit for each Dealer, which represents the facility it makes available in terms of
receivables financed. Credit limits are based on criteria such as the assessed quality of receivables
introduced by the Dealer and the Dealer’s assessed financial position.

The securitisation programme has a facility limit of $600 million and is subject to credit rating by
Standard & Poor's and Moody's. Other than the facility avallable to sell finance receivables
pursuant to the securitisation programme, MTF has access to committed credit facilities of $77
million.

Commercial paper issued through the securitisation programme is rated A1+/P-1 (the ability of
MTFS to meet its financial obligations under the commercial paper is extremely strong/superior) by
Standard & Poor's/Moody’s, a reflection of the quality of paper written by Dealers and the
continuing focus on credit quality, These ratings do not apply to the Perpetual Preference Shares.

Trading prospects and outlook

The MTF Group has succeeded because it takes a long run, conservative approach to motor vehicle
lending. Annual asset growth Is targeted at 5-10%, depending on economic conditions and the
health of the motor vehicle market.

Market opportunities exist for motor vehicle receivables written by brokers, who do not sell the
vehicle and the MTF Group has been trislling this business with selected brokers over the last two
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years. Because the lending rules remain the same, experience to date suggests that broker
business delivers credit quality that matches that of Dealer generated business. Any expansion In
this area will be closely monitored.

Product opportunities exist in risk management options that enhance the credit quality of finance
receivables. MTF has sold third party risk management products successfully for a number of
vears and has collected a large amount of data on risk and profitability. Currently under
consideration is a payment waiver, for an additional fee, that would be triggered in the event of
iliness, redundancy, bankruptcy or death. Actuarial advice suggests that the risk is manageable
and profitable. The benefits to MTF and its Dealers would be additional income and lower risk. No
decision will be made on this product untll the Board is satisfied that all prudential, legal and
statutory risks and requirements are clearly understood and capable of management.

MTF anticipates some softening in consumer spending, in the 2007 financlal year, driven by
increasing inflation and higher oll prices. This may have the effect of dampening the demand for
new and used motor vehicles and consequently motor vehicle finance. Notwithstanding, for the six
months to 31 March 2006, new loan sales, asset growth and credit quality indicators suggest that
the levels of profitability recorded in respect of the 30 September 2005 financial year will continue
for the full year to 30 September 2006.
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Directors and management

Directors

Roger A Bonifant, MAgSc, MSc, CNZM {Chairman)
Ashburton

Roger Bonifant was appointed to the Board in 1991, by BNZ Finance Limited, a then substantial
provider of MTF funding. In 1994, he was appointed as the Motor Trade Association ("MTA")
representative. He was reappointed as a Director by shareholders in March 2004, at which time he
was elected Chairman. Roger was appointed an independent Director by the Board in February
2006. He is one of two independent Directors.

Roger retired as Managing Director of BNZ Finance Limited in 1995 and is now a full time company
director.

Roger Is Chairman of Ashburton Contracting Limited, Rawlinsons Limited and Deputy Chairman of
Timaru District Holdings Limited. His directorships inciude Barrhill Chertsey Irrigation Limited,
Hobsonville Land Company Limited, Loan and Building Society, Lynn River Limited, Rural Equities
Limited and W Pinckney Limited. He is also a director of MTF Limited and MTF Leasing Limited.

Angus R Bradshaw, BCA, ACA, F Fin, FNZIM (Managing Director)
Dunedin

Angus Bradshaw joined MTF as General Manager in December 1997 and was appointed as a
Director in April 1998. Prior to joining MTF, Angus held a number of senior banking roles at The
Rural Bank and The National Bank of New Zealand. He is a director of MTF Securities Limited, MTF
Leasing Limited, MTF Limited and Wickliffe Limited.

Warwick N Cashmore
Auckland

Warwick Cashmore is Managing Director of Cashmore Motors (Hamilton) Limited, a used vehicle
dealership and MTF shareholder, and has been involved in the motor trade for over 35 years, He
is a director of Waikiwi Holdings Limited. Warwick is one of four Dealer Directors.

Warwick was national president of the Motor Vehicte Dealers Institute from 1991 to 1992 and was
first elected to the Board in 1992.

Graeme D Gibbons, BCom, CA
Lower Hutt

Graeme Gibbons is Chief Executive Officer of The Colonial Motor Company Limited ("CMC"), a
public listed company. CMC is the parent company of a number of Ford dealerships throughout
New Zealand that have been shareholders in MTF since the early 1980's.

Graeme has been a Director since 1990, originally as a nominee of the MTA and elected by
shareholders since 1996. Graeme is one of four Dealer Directors and is chairman of the credit
committee,

Graeme is a director of The Colonial Motor Company Limited and Its subsidiaries.
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Stephen J Higgs, BCom, FCA
Dunedin

Stephen Higgs was appointed by the Board as an independent Director on 1 May 2006. Stephen is
one of two independent Directors. Stephen is a founding partner of Polson Higgs, Chartered
Accountants, with offices in Dunedin and Christchurch.

Stephen is Chairman of Mt Difficulty Wines Limited, Character Animation Technologies Limited and
CAT IP Limited. He Is a director of Citlbus Limited and Cumberland Property Group Limited. He is
also a Director of MTF Limited and MTF Leasing Limited. Stephen is company secretary of
Combined Rural Traders Society Limited and lectures in taxation at the University of Otago.

Lawrance S Saunders
Blenheim

Lawrance Saunders joined the Board in 1991 as an appointee of the Motor Vehicle Dealers
Institute. He was elected by shareholders as a Dealer Director in March 2005. Lawrance is one of
four Dealer Directors.

Lawrance was Managing Director of Mayfield Motors Limited in Blenheim for 38 years to 2003.
Lawrance is a director of Mayfield Motors Limited and Homeaway Rentals Limited.

Kenneth J Cummings
Mosgiel

Ken Cummings was elected by shareholders as a Director in March 2004. Ken is one of four Dealer
Directors.

Ken holds a number of major franchises through his dealerships in Nelson, Christchurch, Dunedin
and Invercargill and has been involved in the motor trade since 1973. Ken is a director of
Southern Motor Group Limited, Southern Motor Holdings Limited, Christchurch Motor Group
Limited, Southern Automotive Limited, Southland Honda Limited, Park Lane Finance Limited and
Christchurch 4WD Limited.

The Directors can be contacted at the address of the registered office of MTF, which is set out in
the Directory on page 86.

Duties of Directors
The Board carries out its responsibilities according to the following principles:

the number of non-executive Directors will be no fewer than five, and no greater than six;

a Director may not simultaneously hold the positions of Managing Director and Chair;

the Directors meet regularly throughout the financial year; and

all available information relating to items to be discussed at a meeting of the Board is
provided to each Director prior to the meeting.

The primary responsibilities of the Directors include:

working with management to create shareholder value;

setting the long-term goals of MTF and the strategic plans to achieve those goals;

approving budgets for the financial performance of the MTF Group, and monitoring results;
managing risk by ensuring that the MTF Group has appropriate systems of internal control;
and

. ensuring preparation of the annual and half-yearly financial statements.

As at the date of delivery of this Offer Document for registration, the Board consisted of four
Dealer Directors, two independent Directors and the Managing Director.
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Board Committees

Committees are used to enhance the Board’s effectiveness, while preserving overall Board
responsibility. Committees are assigned terms of reference by the Board for the roles they
perform, and are required to report to the Board on their deliberations, together with any decisions
requiring Board ratification.

The Board continually reviews the roles, membership and effectiveness of the committees. The
Board has the following committees: audit, remuneration, credit and nominations. Other
committees may be formed for specific purposes and disbanded as required.

Audit: Stephen Higgs (Chair), Roger Bonifant, Kenneth Cummings
The audit committee provides a forum for communication between the Board and the external
auditor. The committee reviews:

« annual and half-yearly financial statements prior to their approval by the Board;
» effectiveness of management information systems and systems of internal control; and
» efficiency, effectiveness and independence of the external audit function.

This committee met twice during the year ended 30 September 2005,

Remuneration: Roger Bonifant (Chair), Graeme Gibbons
The remuneration committee reviews the remuneration packages of Directors and the Managing
Director, annually. The committee met once during the year ended 30 September 2005.

Credit: Graeme Gibbons (Chair), Roger Bonifant, Warwick Cashmore, Lawrance Saunders
The credit committee reviews credit risks, recommends credit policy and approves certain credit
limits. The committee met four times during the year ended 30 September 2005, in addition to
regular approval of large exposures.

Nominations: The committee, consisting of the full Board, is convened when a Board vacancy
occurs. The committee was not required to meet during the year ended 30 September 2005.
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Management

Angus R Bradshaw, BCA, ACA, F Fin, FNZIM (Managing Director)

Angus Bradshaw joined MTF as General Manager in December 1997 and was appointed as a
Director in April 1998. Prior to joining MTF, Angus held a number of senior banking roles at The
Rural Bank and The National Bank of New Zealand. He is a director of MTF Securities Limited, MTF
Leasing Limited, MTF Limited and Wickliffe Limited.

Treasury

Daniel Clarkson, BCom, DipGrad, SA Fin

Daniel Clarkson began hls career with MTF in 1996. He was appointed Financial Controlier in 1999,
Treasurer in 2000 and Chief Financlal Officer/Company Secretary in 2003. Danlel was appointed
General Manager - Treasury/Company Secretary in 2004. Daniel is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants,

Credit

Russell Walker, MBA, BCom, ACA, CMA

Russell was appointed Manager - Credit in 1992. His experience covers chartered accounting,
development banking and finance.

Finance

Glen Todd, BCom, A Fin

Glen joined MTF in 1999 as Financial Accountant and was appointed Financial Controller in May
2003. Glen is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Information technology

Jannat Maqbool, BFA, ASA

Jannat started her career at ING Bank in Sydney in 1997. She joined MTF in 2001 and was
appointed Chief Information Officer in 2005.

Sales

Brent Dunshea

Brent joined MTF as General Manager ~ Sales in 2002. Prior to joining MTF, Brent held senior
positions with a number of leading finance companies.

Dealer support
Simon Hopkins
Simon joined MTF in 2001. He was appointed Manager - Dealer Support in 2006.
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historical financial information

This section of the Offer Document contains histerical financial information in relation to the MTF
Group including MTF, the issuer of Perpetual Preference Shares.

The historical information should be read together with the "business overview" on page 14, the
risk factors set out in the section "What are my risks?" and other information contained in this
Offer Document.

Summary of financial statements

A summary of the recent financial performance of the MTF Group is presented below for the five
consecutive periods ending 30 September 2005.

The historical information is extracted from audited financial statements of the MTF Group for the
periods ended 30 September 2001, 30 September 2002, 30 September 2003, 30 September 2004
and 30 September 2005,

Year ending 30 September 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

' ' $000 - $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial performance
Total operating revenues 87,624 80,073 74,160 43,637 45,560
Interest paid 39,172 34,662 32,961 4,287 4,735
Profit before taxation 38,780 36,312 33,642 31,222 32,918
Taxation charge (benefit) 84 174 (42) 113 {53)
Profit after taxation 38,696 36,138 33,684 31,109 32,971

Dividends paid and provided - - - - -

Dividend cents per share - - - - -

Profit (Deficit) retained (5,448} (5,229) 1,904 {(1,173) 12,919
Financial position

Total assets 580,421 553,156 519,375 79,230 76,484
Total tangible assets 579,859 552,934 218,901 78,727 75,723
Total hiabilities 568,997 536,363 497 155 58,819 54,881
Total shareholders’ equity 11,424 16,793 22,220 20,411 21,603

Net tangible asset backing per

Perpetual Preference Share unit - - - - _

= During the year ended 30 September 2003, the group consolidated MTF Securities Ltd
{MTFS). This is required under Financial Reporting Standard 37 {FRS-37): Consolidating
Investments in Subsidiaries, which applies to general purpose financial reports covering
periods ending on or after 31 December 2002. Accordingly, the 2002 and 2001 figures
exclude the effect of consolidating MTFS as a subsidiary and therefore also exclude the
securitised receivables as an asset and related funding as a liability. Otherwise, the
accounting policies set out under the heading "Statement of Accounting Policies” on
pages 27 to 31 of this Offer Document have been consistently applied for all financiai
periods presented.

« In preparing the 2005 financial statements set out on pages 25 to 48, certain minor
reclassification changes were made to the 2004 comparative figures. Accordingly, minor
differences arise between the figures presented in the 2004 financial performance and
position as set out above and comparative figures included in the 2005 financial statements
on pages 25 to 48.

« Pursuant to Section 8(3)(a)(ix) of the First Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983 the
figures above do nct include any amounts derived using the equity method of accounting.
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The disclosure of distributions on a cents per share basis is a requirement of Section
8(3)(a)(xii) of the First Schedule to the regulations and Is not relevant in the context of
distributions made by MTF toc Its shareholders.

The net tangible asset backing for the issue of $3S million, plus up to $5 milllion of over-
subscriptions, of Perpetual Preference Shares, measured on the assumption that all
securities had been allotted prior to 30 September 2005, would be $1.24 per share.

The profits after taxation are distributed each year to the MTF Dealers. Over the five year
period of the Summary of Financial Statements the Profit (Deficit) retained, as presented,
fluctuates principally due to the timing of the distributions relative to when the profit after
taxation was reported. In 2001 (when distributions were made six monthly) a Financial
Reporting Standard change meant that a large portion of the distribution relating to the
2001 year was deferred until 2002. The effect was a significant portion of the 2001 Profit
was retained. Similar deferments took place in subsequent years. In 2004 and 2005 the
reported distributions were greater than the Profit after taxation (leading to a Deficit
retained) because of the move to monthly profit distributions.
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statement of financial performance
year ended 30 september 2005

group parent
note 2005 2004 2005 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000
Interest income
Securitised receivables 3 75,918 72,288 66,879 65,188
Non-securitised receivables 3 4,234 4,942 4,234 4942
Deposit interest 18 1,890 1,379 - -
32 82,042 78,609 71,113 70,130
Funding costs
Interest 4 39,172 34,662 5218 4,449
Securitisation funding costs 12 - - 23,025 21,734
Capital bond issue expense amortised 23 84 62 84 62
Other 400 355 400 355
39,656 35,079 28,727 26,600
Net interest income 42,386 43,530 42,386 43,530
Fees 32 5,682 1,509 5,682 1,509
Net interest income and fees 47,968 45,039 47,968 45,039
Expense
Staff 4,655 4,167 4,655 4167
Communication and processing 1,622 1,953 1,622 1,953
Depreciation 1,456 1,213 1,456 1,213
Administration 1,236 1,311 1,236 1,311
5 8,969 8,644 8,969 8,644
"Profit before bad debts and provisions 38,999 36,395 38,999 36,395
Bad debts and specific provisions 8 (1) (75) ! (78)
General and contingent debt provisions 6 220 158 220 158
Profit before taxation 38,780 36,312 38,780 36,312
_Taxation expense 7 84 174 84 174
Profit after taxation $38,696 $36,138 $38,696 $36,138
statement of movements in equity
Shareholders' equity at start of year 16,794 22,220 16,794 22,220
Profit after taxation 38,606 36,138 38,696 36,138
Shareholders' contributions 517 442 517 442
Shares redeemed (439) {639) (439) (639)
Distribution to shareholders (44,144) (41,367) {44,144) {41,367)
Shareholders’ equity at end of year $11,424 $16,794 $11,424 $16,794
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group parent
note 2005 2004 2005 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000
Funds employed
Share capital 8 6,877 6,637 6,877 6,637
Retained eamings 1,116 1,131 1,116 1,131
Distribution due to shareholders 14 3,431 9,026 3,431 9,026
Shareholders’ equity 11,424 16,794 11,424 16,794
Liabilities
Bank overdraft 367 {104) 428 {66)
Accounts payable and accnuied expense 13 4,894 4,019 4,690 3,970
Approved distribution due to shareholders 14 3,125 - 3,125 -
Provision for taxation 352 (2) 352 {2)
Advance from MTFS 12 - - 463,752 450,701
Short-term loans - secured 10 36,700 30,400 36,700 30,400
Euro commercial paper - secured 11 493,559 476,944 - -
538,997 511,257 509,047 485,003
Perpetual capital bonds 9 30,000 25,000 30,000 25,000
Total liabilities 568,997 536,257 539,047 510,003
Total funds employed $580,421 $553,051 $550,471 $526,797
Employment of funds
Cash in restricted bank accounts 18 29,807 26,243 - -
Accounts receivable 338 191 111 138
Floorplan advances 15 2,149 2,755 2,149 2,755
Securitised receivables 16 498,198 485,583 408,198 485,583
Non-securitised receivables 17 45,166 35,142 27,551 29,538
Amounts owing by subsidiaries 20 - - 17,214 5,210
Property, plant and equipment 21 4,201 2,915 4,201 2,915
579,859 552,829 549,424 526,139
Deferred taxation 22 416 146 901 582
Intangible asset 23 146 76 146 76
Total assets $580,421 $553,051 $550,471 $526,797

For and on behalf of the board

(N

O e gno
Angus Bradshaw Roger Bonifant
Managing Director Chairman

11 November 2005

@
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notes to financial statements

30 September 2006

note 1: statement of accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1993 and the
Financial Reporting Act 1993. The financial statements are for Motor Trade Finances Ltd (MTF) and its
trading subsidiaries.

(a)

(b)

Basls for preparation

The historical cost method has been followed. The reporting currency is New Zealand dollars (NZD).

Specific accounting policles

The following particular accounting policies which significantly affect the measurement and
reporting of results, cash flows and financial position have been applied:

Q)

(i)

D)

Consolidation of subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include those of the parent company and all entities
controlled by MTF pursuant to FRS-37: Consoclidating Investments in Subsidiaries, accounted
for using the purchase method. All inter-entity transactions, balances and unrealised profits
or losses on transactions between group entities have been eliminated on consolidation.

Securitisation of receivables

MTF funds a major portion of its business by the sale of finance receivables to MTF Securities
Ltd (MTFS), a special purpose company established solely for the purpose of purchasing
finance receivables from MTF and funding the same by access to international credit markets
supported by credit ratings issued by Standard & Poor’s and by Moody’s Investors Service,

Under the securitisation programme a substantial part of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by MTF. MTF has the ability to control the contractual rights that comprise the
financial assets transferred to MTFS.

MTF recognises transactions with MTFS as finance transactions; that is, the expenditure
related to the securitisation programme is recognised as a cost of funding and the securitised
assets and funding from MTFS are recognised respectively as assets and liabilities in the MTF
Parent Statement of Financial Position.

Valuation of assets
Securitised finance receivables

Comprised of finance receivables and finance leases and valued at estimated realisable value.
They have been recorded as the total of instalments due less the unearned interest on the
agreements and provisions for doubtful debts. Known losses are written off or provided for in
the period in which they become evident.

Non-securitised finance recelvables

Comprised of finance receivables and finance leases and valued at estimated realisable value.
They have been recorded as the total of instalments due less the unearned interest on the
agreements and provisions for doubtful debts. Known losses are written off or provided for in
the period in which they become evident.

Finance recelvables ~ conditional purchase agreements

Valued at estimated realisable value. They have been recorded as the total of instalments
due less the unearned interest on the agreements and provisions for doubtful debts. Known
losses are written off or provided for in the period in which they become evident,

Finance leases

Comprised of vehicles on lease which are valued at estimated realisable value. They have
been recorded as the total of instalments due less the unearned interest on the agreements
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and provisions for doubtful debts. The lease vehicles are accounted for under the finance
method as finance leases. Known losses are written off or provided for in the period in which
they become evident.

Floorplan advances

Valued at estimated realisable value. Known losses are written off or provided for in the period in
which they become evident.

Impaired assets and provisions

Impaired assets are principally comprised of non-accrual assets. Such assets are classified as
managed dealers.

Non-accrual assets comprise non-securitised receivables where individual contracts are in
arrears and the company is either unable to obtain, or anticipates future difficulties In
obtaining, recourse from the dealer.

The group generaily does ot hold or recognise restructured assets or other assets inciuding
real estate assets acquired through the enforcement of security., The group does hold past
due assets where contracts are in arrears for 90 days or more and the dealer has not been
placed in the managed dealer category.

Specific provision for non-accrual assets is determined with respect to each managed dealer,
after assessing recoverable contract instalments, security in the vehicles and recoveries from
dealers under recourse arrangements.

Bad and doubtful debts

A general provision is maintained for bad debts which are inherent in the receivables but have
not been specifically identified and provided for. The level of general provision is determined
having regard to asset quality and growth, economic conditions, and other general risk
factors. All bad debts are written off against the provision in the period in which they are
classified as irrecoverable.

The amount necessary to bring the provisions to their assessed levels, after net write offs and
recoveries, is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance,

All receivables are subject to continuous management review,
Property, plant and equipment
Valued at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Other investments
Valued at cost less provision for any impairment,
(iv) Recognition of income
Securitised finance receivables

The interest on finance agreements accepted by the group during the period, adjusted for the
unearned interest at the start and end of the period, is calculated on the actuarial basis.

Non-securitised finance receivables

The interest on finance agreements accepted by the group during the period, adjusted for the
unearned interest at the start and end of the period, is calculated on the actuarial basis.

Finance leases

Recognised on an actuarial basis over the term of the lease.
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Floorplan receivables

Recognised monthly, calculated on the actual level of receivables outstanding during the
month.

Impaired assets

Impaired assets primarily comprise non-accrual assets of managed dealers. When a dealer is
classified as managed, income continues to be recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance on a contract by contract basis to the extent that instalments are assessed as
recoverable from the customer or the dealer via recourse arrangements.

Fees

Fee income, and associated expense, is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
in the period the fee is charged to the receivable.

Securitisation funding cost

The cost of securitisation is recognised as incurred. This cost is represented by the interest
cost (in the form of discount expense) on euro commercial paper (ECP), denominated in
United States dollars (USD), issued to fund the securitisation programme, the net cost of
interest rate swap and foreign exchange contracts to hedge the funding activities with the
cash flows from securitised receivables, and the direct cost of running the securitisation
programme.

Depreciation

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis:
Hardware - 3 years

Software - 3 and 5 years

Office equipment, fixtures & fittings - 5 years

Motor vehicles - 5 years

Intangibie asset

On 19 December 2000 MTF issued $10,000,000 in perpetual capital bonds. Expenditure
associated with this issue is amortised on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Financial
Performance over five years ending 31 December 2005. On 6 December 2004 MTF issued
$5,000,000 in perpetual capital bonds. Expenditure associated with this issue is amortised on
a straight-line basis in the Statement of Financial Performance over five years ending
31 December 2009,

{viii)Recognition of financial instruments

The group enters into various financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk for the primary
purpose of reducing exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.
These derivative financial instruments consisting of interest rate swap agreements and foreign
exchange contracts are primarily used to hedge the cash flows with the associated assets and
liabilities in the securitisation programme. While these financial instruments are subject to risk
that market rates may change subsequent to acquisition, such changes are generally offset by
opposite effects on the items being hedged.

For interest rate swap agreements entered into in connection with the management of
interest rate exposure, the differential to be paid or received is recognised as a net interest
rate swap cost over the life of the agreement.

From time to time the company enters into financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk
for the purposes of hedging exposure to fluctuations in interest rates relating to non-
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securitised funding. The differential to be paid on these interest rate swap contracts is
charged as a component of interest or expense as swap contract cash settlements are made.

All other financial instruments are recognised on balance sheet, with the exception of
contractual commitments in respect of operating leases.

(ix) Taxation

The estimated taxation liability in respect of the profit for the year has been determined after
allowing for any permanent differences. Deferred taxation is calculated using the liability
method applied on a partial basis and represents mainly the timing differences arising from
income on finance leases.

The general provision for doubtful debts recognises bad debts inherent in the loan portfolio,
but which have not been specifically identified. Directors have determined that as the timing
of the eventual utilisation cannot be predicted, future income tax benefits associated with the
general provision should not be recognised as they may not crystallise in the future,

Wwith the exception of non-member income, and certain timing differences on member income,
no taxation is incurred by the group.

In relation to member income, MTF operates as a co-operative and transactions are confined
to shareholders. In accordance with the provisions of Part HF of the Income Tax Act 2004,
the company is permitted a deduction for distribution of profit payable to shareholders within
six months of balance date. Distributed profit is assessable in full to transacting shareholders.

{x) Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using the direct approach, modified by the
netting of certain items.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash reflects the balance of cash and liquid assets used in the day to day management of the
entity.

Netting of cash flows

Certain cash flows have been netted to provide more meaningful disclosure. Short-term loan
cash flows result from the day to day cash management of the entity and involve the rapid
turnover of financial instruments or arrangements not exceeding three months. The turnover
of these cash flows has been netted.

"Investing activities” are those activities involving the acquisition of and proceeds from the
sale of investments and other non-current assets.

"Financing activities" are those activities relating to changes in equity and debt capital
structure and those activities relating to the cost of servicing the equity capital.

"Operating activities" includes finance income which comprises gross interest and net income
cash flows received during the period from securitised and non-securitised receivables and
other transactions that are not investing or financing activities.

(xi) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the reporting currency
using the exchange rate in effect at the transaction date.

Monetary items receivable or payable in a foreign currency, other than those resulting from
short-term transactions covered by forward exchange contracts, are translated at balance
date at the closing rate. For transactions covered by short-term forward exchange contracts,
the rates specified in those contracts are used as the basis for measuring and reporting the
transaction.
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(<)

(d)

Exchange differences on foreign currency balances are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

Changes in accounting policies
There are no material changes in accounting policies.
Comparative information

Certaln comparative figures have been reclassified to be consistent with current period presentation.

note 2: securitisation programme

MTF is party to a securitisation programme with MTFS and other parties, including Commonwealth Bank of
Australia (CBA). The principal components of the programme are:

(1)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Under a loan purchase deed between MTF and MTFS, a revolving loan purchase facility is provided
by MTFS to MTF. Under the contract with the dealer MTF is given a legal assignment by way of
mortgage over the dealer’s rights under the contract and the underlying motor vehicle. Upon
securitisation of these assets MTF transfers all its rights, including recourse to the individual
dealers, to MTFS.

MTFS is a special purpose company whose sole purpose is to purchase motor vehicle and other
related finance receivables from MTF. MTFS is constituted for the specific purpose of purchasing
the finance receivable agreements (securitised receivables) in the form of tranches of receivables
from MTF on a weekly basis.

MTF is contracted to administer the securitised receivables in accordance with an administration
agreement. CBA is contracted to manage the affairs, including the liability and treasury activities, of
MTFS,

MTFS is nominally capitalised, revenue neutral and bankruptcy remote. The shareholders of MTFS
are a discretionary trust, MTFS Holdings Ltd on behalf of certain charities (99%) and the Trustee as
trustee for the beneficiaries under a Security Trust Deed (1%). MTFS has three directors, one each
appointed by MTF and CBA, and an independent director.

MTFS’s constitution restricts the activities of MTFS and these can only be changed with the consent
of all shareholders.

Credit enhancement and liquidity support are provided by appropriately rated banks and MTF. MTF
provides credit enhancement support in the form of a subordinated loan representing seller hold-
backs, being amounts held back by MTFS on the purchase of finance receivables.

At the date of sale, subject to the credit enhancement support, MTF receives the principal portion of
the finance receivables. The interest instalments due to be paid on the finance receivables less the
relevant fixed interest discount payable (MTFS funding costs) represent the purchase price balance
payable to MTF on the purchase of the finance receivables.

The purchase price balance of each loan is pald to MTF progressively when each instalment is paid
to MTFS. If MTFS is not paid, MTF is not paid.

To be eligible for securitisation the receivables must arise from finance receivables that are, inter
alia:

a) hire purchase agreements, chattel security agreements, credit contracts, or finance leases in
relation to vehicle assets on a form approved for acceptance by MTFS;

b) for a term less than 60 months and a payoff amount greater than $1,000;

c) registered at the Personal Property Securities Register (PPSR).
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(x)

(i)

{xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Interest rate swap agreements are entered into with the issuance of the ECP required to fund each
individual tranche of securitised receivables. Under these agreements the quantum and tenor of the
money borrowed from the issuance of ECP is exactly matched in both value and timing to the
aggregate cash flows due to MTFS. The interest cost of borrowing is fixed for the effective life of
each tranche of securitised receivables and is fixed for each securitised receivable agreement that
constitutes the tranche. In this manner the interest rate risk associated with funding fixed rate
receivables with short-term, variabie rate ECP is eliminated.

Foreign exchange forward agreements are entered into with the issuance of the ECP required to
fund each individual tranche of securitised receivables. In this manner the foreign exchange risk
associated with funding NZD denominated receivables with USD denominated ECP is eliminated.

The securitisation programme provides facilities for MTFS to borrow an agreed limit, currently set at
NZD&00,000,000 on the ECP market. Registered banks provide MTFS with standby liquidity
facilities. These standby liquidity facilities guarantee funding should it not be possible to roll over
the ECP at maturity.

MTF is required to lend funds on a continuing basis to MTFS by way of a subordinated loan in
support of the credit enhancement of the securitisation programme. The quantum of the
subordinated debt required equates to 5.66% (2004: 5.67%) of the net finance receivables due to
MTFS. The amount of the subordinated ioan at 30 September 2005 was $29,609,000 (2004:
$28,647,000).The loan made by MTF to MTFS in this manner is subordinated to all other
borrowings of MTFS.

During the year ended 30 September 2005 MTF sold $422,804,000 (2004: $432,516,000) of
securitised receivables to MTFS. These receivables are recognised in the MTF Statement of
Financial Position and no surplus or deficit is recognised as a result of these sales.

The securitisation programme permits MTFS to apply the subordinated loan to fund losses it might
incur on any of its purchased securitised receivables. MTF exposure to any bad debts incurred by
MTFS is limited to the subordinated loan invested.

The subordinated loan referred to in (vi), (xiil) and (xv) is represented by the following in the
Parent Statement of Financial Position:

parent
2005 2004
$000 $000

Securitised receivables - (note 16) 498,198 485,583
add back general provision for doubtful debts 2,657 2,367
less advance from MTFS {463,752) (450,701)

37,103 37,249

less timing differences on collection, recognition and pass through of income

from MTFS to MTF (7,494) {8,602)

29,609 28,647
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group parent
2005 2004 2005 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000

note 3; finance income

From securitised recelvables

Interest eamed- securitised receivables 75,918 72,288 66,879 65,188
$75918 $72,288 $66,879 565,188

From non-securitised recelvables

Interest eamed- finance agreements 3,817 4,295 3,817 4,295
Floorplan advances 349 447 349 447
Non-member income 68 200 68 200

$4,234 $4,942 $4,234 $4,942

Finance income includes Income from:

Non-impaired assets 80,030 76,905 70,991 69,805
Impaired assets 54 125 54 125
Non-member income 68 200 68 200

$80,152 $77,230  $71,113  $70,130

note 4. interest

Perpetual capital bonds 3,082 2,415 3,082 2,415
Short-term loans 1,898 1,752 1,898 1,752
Euro commercial paper 32,945 25,495 - -
Net interest rate swap outflow/{inflow) (1,477) 1,737 - -
Floorplan 238 282 238 282
Securitisation programme costs 2,486 2,981

$39,172 $34,662 $5,218 $4,449

note 5: expense

Includes:

Auditor - statutory audit 106 119 65 75
- other audit services 61 63 61 63
- compliance 108 64 108 64

Depreciation - hardware 478 233 478 233
- software 843 657 843 657
- office equipment, fixtures & fittings 51 226 51 226
- motor vehicles 84 97 84 a7

Directors' fees 206 196 206 196

Rental and lease 202 270 202 270

note 6: bad debt provisions

Specific provision

Opening balance - 7 - 7
Bad debts recovered 1 80 1 80
Transfer from general provision - 150 - 150
Bad debts written off - {162) - (162)
Release to Staternent of Financial Performance (1) (75} (1) (75)
Closing balance - - - -

Bad debts recovered

Non-impaired assets - - - _

Impaired assets - managed dealers 1 80 1 80
$1 $80 $1 $80
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Charge (release) to Statement of Financial Performance
Non-impaired assets

Impaired assets - managed dealers {1) {75) () (75)
($1 {$75) {$1) ($75)

General Provision

Opening balance 2,872 2,864 2,872 2,864

Charge (release) to Statement of Financial Performance {1,024) 158 {1,024) 158

Transfer to specific provision - (150} - (150)

Closing balance $1,848 $2,872 $1,848 $2,872

Contingent debt provision
Opening Balance - -
Charge to Statement of Financial Performance 1,244 - 1,244 -
Closing balance $1,244 - $1,244 -
This note should be read in conjunction with the accounting policy on bad and doubtful debts.

Refer note 1{b)Xiii).

note 7: taxation

Profit before taxation 38,780 36,312 38,780 36,312
Permanent differences
- Profit distributable (38,712) (36,112) (38,712) (36,112)
- Other differences 187 327 187 327
255 527 255 527
Taxation @ 33% 84 174 84 174
Comprised of.
- current taxation 354 (16) 403 43
- deferred taxation (270) 190 {(319) 131
Charge to Statement of Financial Performance $84 $174 $84 $174

note 8: share capital
A ordinary shares:

6,726,000 shares of $1 issued 6,726 6,876 6,726 6,876
270,000 shares surrendered (270) {600} (270) (600)
530,000 shares allotted 530 450 530 450
6,986,000 shares of $1 issued 6,986 6,726 6,986 6,726
uncalled capital (347) (298) (347) (298)
Paid up capital A shares 6,639 6,428 6,639 6,428
B ordinary shares:
500 shares of $1 fully paid (redeemed in 2005) - 1 - 1
C ordinary shares
2,083,550 of $0.10 fully paid 208 188 208 188
57,268 shares surrendered (6) (13) (6) (13)
349,839 shares alloted 36 33 38 33
2,376,121 of $0.10 fully paid 238 208 238 208
Total issued and paid up capital $6,877 $6,637 $6,877 $6,637

The company is registered under the Co-operative Companies Act 1996 and each share has a nominal
value, The A ordinary shares are held by motor vehicle dealers who meet MTF requirements for
participation. These shares confer the right to one vote per share and as a transacting shareholder the
right to share in all profits arising from trading operations. The shares confer the right to payment in full
of the nominal value of each A share upon a liquidation. Each transacting shareholder is required to hold
10,000 A shares. Shares can be redeemed by transacting shareholders in terms of certain criteria

pursuant to the constitution.
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The 500 B shares were held by the Motor Trade Association (Inc). These shares conferred the right to one
vote per share but they had no rights to dividends nor to share in the distribution of surplus assets of the
company upon a liquidation. The B shares were surrendered in August 2005.

The C shares are held by transacting shareholders who have elected to participate in the C share scheme.
The non-voting C shares confer the right to dividends authorised by the Board and the right to share
exclusively in the distribution of surplus assets of the company upon a liquidation after the A shareholders
have received payment in full for the nominal value of their A shares.

note 9: perpetual capital bonds

The capital bonds are unsecured, subordinated, interest bearing perpetual debt securities and are listed on
the New Zealand Stock Exchange. The interest rate is reset annually on 30 June at a margin of 4.50%
above the then one-year government stock yield, Until 30 June 2005 the interest rate was 10.60% p.a.
and for the year ending 30 June 2006 the interest rate is 10.70% p.a. The bonds are subordinated to all
other creditors except share capital, deposits and retained earnings (including distributions due to
participating shareholders). The bonds carry no right of redemption by the holder. MTF may redeem all or
part of the principal amount of the bonds outstanding at 30 June each year,

note 10: short-term loans (secured)

Short-term loans comprise bank lcans secured under the following arrangements:

o $23,700,000 (2004: $17,400,000) Is secured by a composite debenture dated 17 May 2001 in favour
of Bank of New Zealand over the assets of MTF and MTF Leasing Limited (MTFL). The security Iis also
over the MTF subordinated loan (refer note 2) to MTFS but not over the underlying assets of MTFS.
There is a security sharing arrangement between MTF, Bank of New Zealand, Westpac Banking
Corporation and ANZ National Bank.

« $13,000,000 (2004: $13,000,000) is secured by a first ranking fixed charge over the future interest
cash flows from the instalments outstanding on the securitised receivables.

The short-term loans, which have interest maturities up to 90 days, have facility maturities between
30 December 2005 and 17 May 2006. At 30 September 2005 the interest rate was 7.26% (2004: 6.64%).

note 11: euro commercial paper {secured)

ECP denominated in USD with maturity dates between 7 and 28 days from balance date has been issued at
an effective NZD discount rate of 7.02% p.a. (2004: 6.49%).

New notes are issued at the maturity date of each note for periods of up to 90 days.

Borrowings are secured by a registered first charge over the assets of MTFS pursuant to the MTFS Security
Trust Deed. The assets of MTF are not available as security to support the ECP.

note 12: advance from MTFS

The advance from MTFS represents the funding provided by the securitisation programme to MTF. This
advance is represented, in the financial statements of MTFS, by borrowings in the form of ECP,
denominated in USD. The ECP is in turn supported, within the securitisation programme, by credit
enhancements and liquidity support from appropriately rated banks.

The ECP currently has maturity dates between 7 and 28 days and new paper is issued at maturity for
periods of up to 90 days. In the event new ECP cannot be issued the credit enhancements and liquidity
support will be utilised to fund the remainder of the term of the finance receivables within MTFS.
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The maturity profile of the advance from MTFS matches the maturity profile of the securitised receivables
within MTFS.

The interest on the advance from MTFS is represented by the securitisation funding costs. At 30
September 2005 the securitisation funding costs represented an effective interest rate of 5.04% (2004:
5.08%) on the advance from MTFS,

group parent

2005 2004 2005 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000

note 13: accounts payable and accrued expense
Trade creditors 972 899 1,120 899
Sundry creditors & accruals 2,915 2,197 2,710 2,148
Employee entitlements 1,007 923 860 923
$4,894 $4,019 $4,690 $3,970

note 14: distribution due to shareholders

Profit was distributed quarterty up untit 1 December 2004. Since 31 December 2004, profit has been distributed
monthly to participating dealers. Distributions are applied, where applicable, to meet indemnities due from dealers or
to pay amounts due on shares. The balance of the distribution is payable in cash.

On 29 September 2005, the board approved the payment of the August 2005 monthly profit distribution of
$3,125,000. The distribution was paid/applied to participating shareholders on 31 QOctober 2005.

note 15: floorplan advances

Gross advances 2,388 3,081 2,388 3,061
General provision for doubtful debts (239) {306) (239) {306)
$2,149 $2,755 $2,149 $2,755

Fleorplan advances are secured by way of floating debenture and/or mortgage and are receivable within 12 months.

note 16: securitised receivables
Finance recelvables

Gross receivables 503,907 494,934 503,907 494 934
Unearned interest {78,675) {76,575) {78,675) {76,575)
General provision for doubtful debts {2,657) (2,367) {2,657) (2,367)
Net finance receivables 422 575 415,992 422,575 415,992
Receivable within 12 months 214,736 189,114 214,736 189,114
Recelvable beyond 12 months 207,839 226,878 207,839 226,878
- $422,575 $415,992 $422,575 $415,992
Finance leases
Gross receivables 87,254 80,115 87,254 80,115
Uneamed interest (11,631) {10,524) (11,631) (10,524)
Net finance leases 75,623 69,591 75,623 68,591
Receivable within 12 months 31,436 30,853 31,436 30,853
Receivable beyond 12 months 44,187 38,738 44 187 38,738
$75,623 $69,591 $75,623 $69,591
Summary
Finance receivabies 422 575 415,992 422 575 415,992
Finance leases 75,623 69,591 75,623 69,501
$498,198 $485,582 $498,198 $485,582
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_group parent
2005 2004 2005 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000

note 17: non-securitised receivables
Finance receivables
Gross receivables 33,870 37.471 33,870 37471
Uneamed interest (6,123) {7,752) (6,123) (7,752)
General provision for doubtiul debts {196) {181} {196) {181)
Net finance receivables 27,551 29,538 27,551 29,538
Receivable within 12 months 11,550 12,007 11,550 12,007
Receivable beyond 12 months 16,001 17,531 16,001 17,531

$27,551 $29,538 $27,551 $29,538
Finance leases
Gross receivables 20,739 6,698 - -
Uneamed interest (3,124) (1,094) - -
Net finance leases 17,615 5,604 - -
Recsivable within 12 months 7,180 2,015 - -
Recsivable beyond 12 months 10,435 3,589 - -

$17,615 $5,604 - -
Summary
Finance receivables 27,551 20,538 27,551 29,538
Finance leases 17,615 5,604 - -

$45,166 $35,142 $27,551 $29,538

note 18: cash in MTFS bank accounts

Payments received from customers with respect to securitised receivables are receipted into bank accounts
maintained within the securitisation programme and are credited against the applicable securitised
receivable account monthly in accordance with the tranche accounting cycle. The cash in these bank
accounts is a restricted cash asset as the cash may only be applied, initially, to repay ECP borrowings
within the securitisation programme.

Interest income of $1,890,000 (2004: $1,379,000) was earned on cash deposits within the securitisation
programme.

note 19: asset quality disclosures

The group provides for doubtful debts as discussed in Note 1(b)(iii). When management determines that
recovery of a receivable is doubtful, the principal amount and accrued interest are written down to
estimated net realisable value. Interest and charges are no longer taken to profit when their recovery is
considered to be unlikely.

The inclusion of past due loans in the table below does not necessarily indicate that such receivables are
doubtful.
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__group parent

2005 2004 2005 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000
Non-accrual assets - managed dealers
Receivables net of uneamed intarest - opening balance 282 313 282 313
Net movement in non-accrual receivables 1,397 (31) 1,397 (31)
Receivables net of uneamed interest - closing balance 1,679 282 1,679 282
Specific provisions (note 6) - - - -
Balances due to managed dealers available for offset {1,679) (282) (1,679) (282)
Net - - - -
Past due assets
Receivables net of unearned interest - opening balance 566 620 352 434
Net movement in past due receivables (192) (54) {27) {82)
Recseivables net of unearned interest - closing balance 374 566 325 352
Specific provisions (note 6) - - - -
Net 374 566 325 352
Total impaired assets
Receivables net of unearned interest 2,053 848 2,004 634
Specific provisions and balances available for offset (1,679) (282) (1,679) {282)
Net $374 $566 $325 $352

note 20: investment in subsidiaries
Name of entity

Principal activity

Interest held by parent

2005 2004
MTF Leasing Ltd Leasing 100% 100%
MTF Securities Ltd Securitisation - -
Each subsidiary has a balance date of 30 September.
MTFS is a controlled entity of MTF and is consolidated into MTF (note 2).
Amount owing by subsidiaries:
group parent

2005 2004 2005 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000
MTF Leasing Ltd - - 17,214 5210
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_group and parent
Cost Accurmulated Net book
depreciation value
$000 $000 $000
note 21: property, plant and equipment
2005
Hardware 1,731 {977) 754
Software 5,512 (3,076) 2,436
Office equipment, fixtures & fittings 703 (348) 355
Motor vehicles 352 (174) 178
8,298 (4,575) 3,723
Capital work in progress 478 - 478
$8,776 ($4,575) $4,201
2004
Hardware 1,150 (890) 260
Software 4,217 (2,233) 1,984
Office equipment, fixtures & fittings 496 (290) 206
Motor vehicles 396 (145) 251
6,259 (3,558) 2,701
Capital work in progress 214 - 214
$6,473 ($3,558) $2,915
group parent
2005 2004 2005 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000
note 22: deferred taxation
Opening balance 146 336 582 713
Current year timimg differences (note 7) 270 {190) 319 (131)
Closing balance $418 $146 $901 $582
note 23: intangible asset
Capital bond issue and funding facility expense
Opening balance 76 138 76 138
Capitalised during the period 154 - 154 -
Amortised during the period (84) (62) (84) (62)
Closing balance $146 $76 $146 $76

¥
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note 24: related party transactions

All related party transactions have taken place at arm's length.

Directors G D Gibbons, L S Saunders, W N Cashmore and K J Cummings are directors of companies with shareholdings
in MTF that participate in the profit of the company on the same basis as all other transacting shareholders. Profit

distributed to these companies is as follows;

2005 2004

$000 $000

G D Gibbons 3,591 3,675
L S Saunders 61 60
W N Cashmore 7 5
K J Cummings 1,221 1,228
$4,880 $4,968

The Managing Director A R Bradshaw is a director of MTFS. Transactions and balances with MTFS are as follows:

Loans sold to MTFS (442,805)
Securitisation funding costs charged by 23,025
MTFS

Advance from MTFS (463,752)

(432,516)
21,734

(450,701)

A R Bradshaw is a director of Wickliffe Ltd. MTF received director's fees of $17,000 (2004: $14,000). MTF purchases
goods from Wickliffe Ltd under normal trade terms. Purchases totalled $123,000 (2004: $166,000), with $6,000

outstanding at 30 September 2005 (2004: $14,000).

e
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group parent

2005 2004 2005 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000
note 25: aggregate assets and liabilities
Current assets 297,196 263,178 267,737 237,215
Current liabilities 45,438 34,314 253,983 237,117
Receivables beyond 12 months 278,462 286,736 277 486 286,009
Term liabilities & capital bonds 523,559 501,943 285,064 272,886
Property, plant and equipment 4,201 2,915 4,201 2,915
intangible assets 146 76 146 76
Deferred tax 416 146 901 582
note 26: commitments
(a) operating lease commitments {(non-cancellable)
Payable within one year 190 300 190 300
Payable between 1 and 2 years 180 232 180 232
Payable between 2 and 5 years 414 37 414 37

(b) capital commitments - - - -

{c) contingent llabllitles - - - -

The group has provided indemnitios to certain financiers of Dealer members. The exposure to such indemnities is
considered remote and group risk is managed through monitoring the financial position of the Dealers concemed.

note 27: imputation credit

Opening balance 1,145 1,090 802 747
Income tax paid{refund) - - - -

Imputation credits received - 55 - 55
Closing balance imputation credits 1,145 1,145 802 802

note 28: financial instruments
Credit risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the group to credit risk principally consist of cash at bank, cash in
restricted bank accounts, accounts receivable, floorplan advances, securitised receivables and non-securitised
receivables.

Maximum exposures to credit risk are;

_group parent
2005 2004 2005 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000
Cash at bank - 103 - 65
Cash in restricted bank accounts 29,807 26,243 - -
Accounts receivable 338 191 111 138
Floorplan advances 2,149 2,755 2,149 2,755
Securitised receivables credit enhancement 29,609 28,647 29,609 28,647
Non-securitised receivables 45,166 35,142 27,551 29,538

The maximum exposures are after provision for uneamed interest and doubtful debts on these instruments.

The credit risk on securitised receivables is limited to the unsecured funding provided by MTF in support of the credit
enhancement of the securitisation programme to MTFS (refer note 2). The balance of the credit risk on the securitised
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receivables is assumed by the holders of the ECP pursuant to the securitisation programme. As set out in note 2,
securitised receivables have been legally purchased by MTFS. MTFS is bankruptcy remote, which from a legal
perspective, limits MTF's maximum credit risk, with respect to securitised receivables, to the amount of the subordinated
loan provided to MTFS.

In the nomal course of business MTF buys back any impaired receivables from MTFS, although it is not legally required to
do so. Whilst the securitisation programme is operating, MTF group and parent credit risk, in relation to the securitised
receivables, is equal to the carrying value of these assets, $498,198,000 (2004: $485,583,000). The exposure of the
underlying securitised receivables Is also mitigated by the limited exposure to larger customers relative to the total asset
base and the high number of individual contracts which comprise the securitised receivables.

Non-securitised receivables comprise amounts owing by customers of dealer shareholders and are secured by a specific
charge over each vehicle. Participating dealers indemnify any losses from defaults by their customers. This indemnity
includes the right to seize the shares and profits of any participating dealer. MTF regularly monitors the credit quality and
lending limits of its dealer shareholders.

Counterparty credit risk exists to the banking sector in respect of derivative financial instruments entered into for the hedging of
interest rate risk and exchange rate risk within the securitisation programme.

group parent

2005 2004 2005 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000
Forward exchange rate contracts 493,559 476,944 - -
Interest rate swaps 530,629 512,013 - -

Limits on exposures with counterparties have been set and approved by the Trustees for the ECP holders and are
monitored on a regular basis. MTF limits concentration risk with counterparties and monitors this risk continuously.

Concentration of credit risk

In relation to the recourse arrangements with dealer shareholders, the group has a concentration of credit risk to the
New Zealand motor vehicle industry for finance receivables and finance leases administered.

The position is mitigated by the limited exposure to larger customers relative to the total asset base, the high number of
individual contracts which comprise the non-securitised receivables administered and the risk assumed by the holders of
the ECP on the securitised receivables.

At 30 September 2005 gross securitised and non-securitised receivables and floorplan advances were $648,158,000
(group) (2004: $622,279,000) and $627,418,000 (parent) (2004: $615,581,000).

The group's concentrations of credit risk to individual counterparties, including customers, dealers under their recourse
arrangement and financial institutions, that are equal fo or greater than 10% of shareholders’ equity are:

group parent

2005 2004 2005 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000
10% - 19% 1 2 1 2
150% - 158% - 1 - 1
180% - 189% - 1 - 1
200% - 209% 1 - 1 -
280% - 289% 1 - 1 -
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Concentration of funding risk

MTF does not have any concentration of funding risk other than to MTFS for the future sale of finance receivables which
may arise in the event that MTF is unable to meset the terms and conditions of the securitisation programme. At 30
September 2005, MTF complies with ali covenants of the securitisation programme.

Interest rate risk
a) Securitisation programme funding

To hedge the fixed rate income from securitised receivables the group has entered into interest rate swaps to convert the
floating rate interest fiability on ECP into fixed interest cost.

Exposure to early termination of the interest rate swaps is the liability of MTF. Actual losses incurred on early termination
of a loan agreement are able to be passed to the conditional purchaser as part of the settlement process.

group parent
2005 2004 2005 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000
Interest rate swaps 530,629 512,013 - -

ECP denominated in USD has maturity dates between 7 and 28 days from balance date and has been issued at effective
NZD rates of 7.02% (2004: 6.49%) p.a. New notes are issued at the maturity date of each note for periods of up to 90
days.

b) Other funding

Interest rate risk is managed by generally matching maturities on the non-securitised funding facilities with maturities on
the non-securitised receivables. The interest rates on the company's finance facilities are set out in notes 9, 10 and 12.

Management monitors the level of interest rates on an ongoing basis, and from time to time, will lock in fixed rates on the
next floating reset via swap contracts when they consider that interest rates may rise. At 30 September 2005 the bank
overdraft and short-term loans had interest rate maturities of less than 90 days.

Bank overdraft and short-term loans are renegotiated at market rates upon maturity. The interest rate on the capital bonds
is reset annually on 30 June at a margin of 4.50% above the one-year interpolated government stock yield.

¢) Financial assels

Interest rates applicable to finance receivables (securitised and non-securitised) are fixed for the term of the receivable
contracts. The maturity profile {receivable within 12 months and beyond 12 months) of the finance receivables {securitised
and non-securitised) is shown in notes 16 and 17. The weighted average interest rate earned on finance receivables
{securitised and non-securitised) at 30 September 2005 was 14.02% (2004: 14.31%).

Floorplan advances have a maturity profile of less than 12 months. The interest rate maturities applicable to floorplan
advances are less than 30 days. The weighted average interest rate earned on floorplan advances at 30 September 2005
was 11.77% (2004: 12.53%).

Cash at bank and cash in restricted bank accounts are at call with interest rate maturities of less than 30 days. The
weighted average interest rate applicable to cash batances at 30 September 2005 was 6.75% (2004: 6.25%).

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange exposures on ECP borrowings are fully hedged by forward exchange contracts.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is managed primarily through access to the securitisation programme by which receivables are sold to MTFS.
Within the securitisation programme revolving standby credit facilities exist with appropriately rated banks to ensure
ongoing funding to repay ECP on maturity should further paper not be able to be issued.

The group manages non-securitised assets and liabilities to ensure maturities allow an adequate margin between
requirements to fund non-securitised assets and access to funding.

The group sets a credit limit for each dealer which represents the facility it makes available in terms of receivables
financed. Credit limits are based on criteria such as the assessed quality of receivables introduced by the dealer and the
dealer's assessed financial position.

The group manages the aggregate credit limit established for all dealers against the funding lines available.

The securitisation programme has a facility limit of NZD600,000,000 and is subject to credit rating by Standard & Poor's
and Moody's Investors Service. Other than the facility available to sell finance receivables pursuant to the securitisation
programme, the group has access to committed credit faciliies of NZD76,000,000.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments has been determined by market prices or by discounting future contractual cash
flows by the market rate at balance date in respect of each instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are intended to be
held to maturity, and unrealised fair value gains or losses are not expected to be realised.

group parent
2005 2005 2004 2004 2005 2005 2004 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair
amount value amount value amount value amount value
Assets
Cash in restriced bank
accounts 29,807 29,807 26,243 26,243 - - - -
Floorplan advances 2,149 2,149 2,755 2,755 2,149 2,149 2,755 2,755
Securitised receivables 498,198 500,381 485,583 484,055 498,198 500,361 485,683 484,055
Non-securitised receivablas 45,166 45,591 35,142 38,265 27,551 27,693 29,538 31,401
Liabllities
Overdraft facility 367 367 (104) (104) 428 428 (66) {66)
Perpetual capital bonds 30,000 30,690 25,000 26,588 30,000 30,690 25,000 26,588
Short term loans 36,700 36,700 30,400 30,400 36,700 36,700 30,400 30,400
Euro commercial paper 493,559 498,591 476,944 467,239 - - - -
Non-recognised financial Instruments
Forward foreign exchange
contracts 493,559 5,032 476,944 (9,705) - - - -
Interest rate swaps 530,629 784 512,013 232 - - - -

In relation to the non-recognised financial instruments the fair value represents the unrealised gain or (loss).

Note 29: significant events after balance date

On 11 November 2005, the Board approved the payment of the September 2005 monthly profit distribution of
$3,670,000. The distribution will be paid/applied to participating shareholders on 30 November 2005.

Note 30: segment information

The group operates predominantly in one industry, provision of finance facilities, and in one geographical

location, New Zealand.
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Note 31: transition to international financial reporting standards

In December 2002, the New Zealand Accounting Standards Review Board announced that New Zealand
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) would apply to all New Zeaiand
reporting entities for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007, with the option of early
adoption for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. MTF intends to adopt from 1 October 2007.
Accordingly, the adoption of NZ IFRS will be first reflected in the company’s half-year report for the six
month pericd ended 31 March 2008.

MTF will manage the transition to NZ IFRS beginning with an analysis of the key impacts. MTF has begun
evaluating the company’s existing accounting policies and the potential impacts of adopting NZ IFRS, to
ensure the transition occurs within the required timeframes and the company is in a position to calculate
its opening balance sheet effective 1 October 2006.

In the first year of compliance, entities are required to restate comparative financlal statements to reflect the
new standards. The majority of adjustments required on transition to NZ IFRS will be to reserves.

Whilst the implementation of NZ IFRS has no impact on MTF’s underlying economic strength, risk management
practices or cash flows, it may result in key, material differences in the financial statements. Key differences in
accounting policies that are expected from adopting NZ IFRS include the recognition of derivative financial
instruments, the calculation of deferred tax, the calculation of provisions, the recognition of fee income, and the
classification of co-operative share capital. At this stage the impact on the financial statements, had they been
prepared using NZ IFRS, has not been determined or quantified.

During the transition project, where the financial impact of NZ IFRS can be reliably estimated and will have a
material impact, disclosure will be made in subsequent financlal reports. The actual impact of adopting NZ IFRS
may vary from the information presented and this variation may be material.

Note 32: total income group parent

2005 2004 2005 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000
Intarast from securitised receivables 75,918 72,288 66,879 65,188
Interest from non-securitised receivables 4,234 4,942 4,234 4,942
Deposit interest 1,890 1,379 - -
Fees 5,582 1,509 5,582 1,509
Total income $87,624 $80,118 $76,695 $71,639
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statement of cash flows
year ended 30 september 2005
_group parent
2005 2004 2005 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash was provided from:
Finance income 83,953 76,762 74,913 69,662
Other income 17 120 17 120
Interest income from deposits 1,890 1,379 - -
85,860 78,261 74,930 69,782
Cash was applied to:
Funding costs 39,468 34,776 5141 4,508
Securitisation costs - - 23,397 21,789
Operating expenses 7.523 8,019 7.523 8,019
46,991 42 795 36,061 34,316
Net cash flows from operating activitias 38,869 35,466 38,869 35.466
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash was provided from:
Finance receivable instalments 367,301 420,960 321,892 381,299
Proceeds received from realisation of investment - 20 - 20
Sale of property, plant and equipment 32 36 32 36
367,333 421,016 321,924 381,355
Cash was applied to:
Finance receivable advances 389,360 452,856 325,911 392,331
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2,193 1,142 2,193 1,142
Payment of finance lease 112 - 112 -
391,665 453,998 328,216 393,473
Net cash flows from investing activities (24,332) (32,982) {6,292) (12,118)
Cash flows from financing activites
Cash was provided from:
Short-term loans - net 6,300 - 6,360 -
Issue of capital bonds 5,000 - 5,000 -
Euro commercial paper - net 16,615 47,290 - -
Advance from MTFS - - 13,051 45,768
27,915 47,290 24,351 45,768
Cash was applied to:
Repay share capital and dealership deposits 34 432 34 432
Short-term loans - net - 7,700 - 7,700
Issue costs 154 - 1654 -
Loans tp subsidiaries - - 18,063 20,083
Profit distributed to shareholders 39,170 40,368 39,170 40,368
39,358 48,500 57,421 69,383
Net cash flows from financing activitles (11,443} {1,210) (33,070) {23,815)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 3,004 1,274 (493) {267)
Add cash on hand at beginning of period 26,346 25,072 65 332
Cash on hand at end of period $29,440 $26,346 $(428) $65
Represented by:
Cash at bank (overdraft) (367} 103 (428) 65
Cash in restricted bank accounts 29,807 26,243 - -
$29,440 $26,346 $(428) $65
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statement of cash flows
year ended 30 september 2005

group parent
2005 2004 2005 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000
Reconcliiation of group profit after taxation to net cash flows
from operating activities
Reported group profit after taxation 38,696 36,138 38,696 36,138
Non-cash items
- arrears fees capitalised (1,981) {1,464} (1,981) (1,464)
- loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 5 73 ] 73
- depreciation 1,456 1,213 1,456 1,213
- amortised expense 84 62 84 62
- bad debts/provisions - net 219 83 219 83
38,479 36,105 38,479 36,105
Movemnents in other items
Deferred taxation (270) 180 (319) 131
Provision for taxation 354 {14) 354 (14)
Accounts payable & accrued expenses 875 {491) 720 {300)
Accounts receivables (147) 183 27 {34)
812 (132) 782 (217)
Movement in working capital items classified
as investing or financing activitigs (422) (507) {392) (422)
Net cash surplus from operatins_; activities 38,869 35,466 38,869 35,466
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appendix to financial statements

Additional disclosures pursuant to Securities Regulations:

Liquidity table
0-6 6-12 12-24 24 -60 Over 60
months months months months months
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Monetary assots
Floomlan advances 2,149
Securitised receivables 125,856 120,316 145,801 106,225
Non-securitised receivables 9,027 9,703 11,028 15,408
Other assets 30,145
165,028 132,168 156,829 121,633 -
Monetary liabilities
Approved distribution due to shareholders 3,125
Short-term loans (secured} 36,700
Euro commercial paper (secured) 493,559
Perpetual capital bonds 30,000
QOther liabilities 5613
568,997 - - - -

Of the monetary assets receivable:
« 0.09% have repayments in excess of 3 months in armears; and
+ 9.26% is owed by the company's 6 largest debtors.

The Euro commercial paper is refinanced monthly pursuant to facilities available under the Securitisation Programme. Euro
commercial paper of $345,000,000 USD (2004: $311,500,000 USD) was converted to NZD using an average forward rate of

6990 (2004: .6531).

Update to subsequent events

MTF has announced its intention to redeem the permpetual capital bonds on 30 June 2006. The perpetual capital bonds will be
refinanced upon redemption by Perpetual Preference Shares issued pursuant to a prospectus dated 30 May 2006.
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481 Moray Place

PO Box 1245, Dunedin
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The Directors

Motor Trade Finances Limited
P O Box 885

DUNEDIN

Dear Directors
AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR INCLUSION IN PROSPECTUS

As auditors of Motor Trade Finances Limited (the ‘Company’) and subsidiaries (the ‘Group’)
we have prepared this report pursuant to clause 42 of the First Schedule of the Securities
Regulations 1983 for inclusion in a prospectus to be dated 30 May 2006 for the issue of fully
imputed Perpetual Preference Shares in Motor Trade Finances Limited.

We have audited the financial statements of the Company and Group set out at pages 25 to 48.
The financial statements provide information about the past financial performance and cash
flows of the Company and Group for the year ended 30 September 2005 and its financial
position as at that date. This information is stated in accordance with the accounting policies
set out on pages 27 to 31.

We report on the summary of financial statements of the Group set out on pages 23 to 24.
The summary of financial statements has been taken from the audited financial statements for
the financial years ended 30 September 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001.

Board of Directors’ Responsibilities

The board of directors (the ‘directors’) are responsible for the preparation of:

(a) the financial statements as required by clauses 23 to 38 of the First Schedule of the
Securities Regulations 1983, that comply with the regulations; and subject to the
regulations comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 September 2005 and
its financial performance and cash flows for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b) the summary of financial statements of the Group for the financial years ended 30
September 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001, as required by clauses 8(2) and 8(3) of
the First Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983; and

(c) the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Motor Trade Finances Limited, the parent company of the Group, as at 30 September
2005 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date which
are provided by the directors for investors’ information.

A member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, a Swiss Verein, its member firms, and their respective subsidiaries
and affiliates. As a Swiss Verein (assodiation}, neither Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu nor any of its member firms has any liability

for each other's acts or omissions, Each of the member firms is a separate and independent legal entity operating under
the names "Deloitte,” "Deloitte & Touche,” “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,” or other related names. Services are provided by ¥
1

the member firms or their subsidiaries or affiliates and not by the Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Verein,
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Auditors’ Responsibilities

It is our responsibility to:

(a) express an independent opinion on the financial statements of the Company and the
Group as at 30 September 2005 and for the year ended on that date, prepared and
presented by the directors, and report our opinion in accordance with clause 42(1) of the
First Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983; and

(b) report in accordance with clause 42(1)(g) of the First Schedule of the Securities
Regulations 1983 on the amounts included in the summary of financial statements for
the financial years ended 30 September 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001 presented by
the directors.

This report has been prepared for inclusion in the prospectus for the purpose of meeting the
requirements of clause 42 of the First Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983. We
disclaim any assumptions of responsibility for reliance on this report or the amounts included
in the financial statements or the summary financial statements, for any purpose other than
that for which they were prepared. In addition, we take no responsibility for, nor do we report
on, any part of the prospectus not specifically mentioned in this report.

Basis of Opinion on the Financial Statements

An audit of the financial statements, for the year ended 30 September 2005, includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes assessing:

. the significant estimates and judgements made by the Board of Directors in the
preparation of the financial statements; and

. whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company and Group
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We conducted our audit in accordance with New Zealand Auditing Standards. We planned
and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to obtain reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatements, whether caused
by fraud or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements.

Basis of Opinion on the Summary of Financial Statements

We have undertaken procedures to provide reasonable assurance that the amounts set out in
the summary of financial statements on pages 23 and 24 of this prospectus, pursuant to
clauses 8(2) and 8(3) of the First Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983, have been
correctly taken from the audited financial statements of the Group for the financial years
ended 30 September 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001 as modified by the changes in
accounting policies described at page 23. For a better understanding of the financial position
and results of the Group’s operations for the financial period the summary financial
information should be read in conjunction with the related annual financial statements.

Other than in our capacity as auditor and provision of tax and other assurance advice, we have
no relationship with or interests in Motor Trade Finances Limited or any of its subsidiaries.

L
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Unqualified Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion:

. proper accounting records have been kept by the Group as far as appears from our
examination of those records; and

. the financial statements of the Group on pages 25 to 48 of this prospectus, as required
by clauses 23 to 38 of the First Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983, and that are
required to be audited, have been drawn up to:

- comply with the Securities Regulations 1983, and

- subject to these Regulations, comply with generally accepted accounting practice
in New Zealand; and

- give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 September
2005 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the financial year ended
on that date; and

. the financial statements of the Company on pages 25 to 48 of this prospectus, give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 September 2005 and
the results of its operations and cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.

Our audit of the financial statements on pages 25 to 47 was completed on 11 November 20035
and our unqualified opinion is expressed as at that date.

Unqualified Opinion on the Summary of Financial Statements

In our opinion, the amounts set out in the summary of financial statements, on pages 23 to 24
of this prospectus, as required by clauses 8(2) and 8(3) of the First Schedule of the Securities
Regulations 1983, have been correctly taken from the audited financial statements of the
Group for the financial years ended 30 September 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001 from
which they were extracted.

In terms of Regulations 7(1){b)(ii) of the Securities Regulations 1983 we hereby give our
consent to the inclusion in the above mentioned prospectus of this report in the form in which

it is included. We also confirm that we have not, before delivery of this prospectus for
registration, withdrawn our consent to the issue thereof.

Yours faithfully

Deloitte
Chartered Accountants
Dunedin, New Zealand
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terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares

The terms of the Perpetual Preference Share Issue are set out below.

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Perpetual Preference Shares
Dividend

The Perpetual Preference Shares carry the right to a Dividend, payable in accordance with
paragraph 1.4 in pricrity to other Distributions, in respect of each Dividend Period equal to
the Dividend Amount for that Dividend Period.

Dividend to be Fully Imputed

All Dividend Amounts shall be Fully Imputed. The only consequence of, or remedy for, a
Dividend not being Fully Imputed shall be the payment of an amount referred to in
paragraph 1.3. The Imputation Credits will be sourced from the tax paid on the pre-tax
profits required to be retained to pay the Dividends on the Perpetual Preference Shares.

Imputation credit shortfall

If all or any part of a Dividend Amount is not Fully Imputed MTF shall pay to each Holder
an amount equal to the shortfall in Imputation Credits of which Holders would otherwise
have had the benefit. The amount payable under this paragraph 1.3:

(a) is due on the Dividend Payment Date of the Dividend Amount and, to the extent
paid, substitutes for or replaces the corresponding obligation of MTF under
paragraph 1.2; and

(b} shall be regarded as a variation in the rate at which Dividends are calculated.

To the extent that a Dividend is not Fully Imputed, resident withholding tax will be required
to be deducted at the rate of 33% unless Holders have provided a certificate of exemption.
Non-resident withholding tax ("NRWT") will be required to be deducted from Dividends paid
to residents of foreign countries. The rate of NRWT is 15% to the extent the Dividend is
Fully Imputed or if the Holder Is resident in a country with which New Zealand has a
Double Taxation Agreement; otherwise it will be 30%.

Dividend Payment Date

If a Dividend ts paid in respect of any Dividend Period, it shall be paid on the Dividend
Payment Date on which that Dividend Period ends.

Dividends to have priority

Dividends shall rank for payment in priority to the rights in respect of dividends or other
Distributions of all holders of other classes of shares of MTF.

Cancellation of Dividends

Subject to paragraph 1.7, the Directors may, by notice sent to Holders not later than five
Business Days after the end of a Dividend Period ("Dividend Cancellation Notice"), cancel
the payment of Dividends in respect of that Dividend Period and all subsequent Dividend
Periods, until such time as the Board gives a Dividend Resumption Notice.

Reasons for cancellation
The Board may give a Dividend Cancellation Notice if:

(a) the Board is satisfied on reasonable grounds that, immediately after making the
payment, MTF would or could become insolvent, breach any covenant in relation to
its bank debt, or breach any other legal obligation; or
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1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

(b} the Board has for any other reason determined in its sole discretion that a Dividend,
or Dividends generally, should not be paid.

Dividend Resumption Notice

If the Board has given a Dividend Cancellation Notice, the Board may at any time
thereafter send notice to Holders to the effect that Dividends should again be paid. If such
a notice is given, Dividends shall again be payable as from and including the first Dividend
Period commencing after the giving of that notice, unless and until a further Dividend
Cancellation Notice is given.

Effect of cancellation

If a Dividend Cancellation Notice Is given, any obligation of MTF to pay, and any right of
Holders to receive, the Dividends referred to in paragraph 1.1 shall be cancelled absolutely.
Dividends on the Perpetual Preference Shares are not cumulative.

Suspension period

If a Dividend Cancellation Notice is given, then for the period from the date of that
Dividend Cancellation Notlce until MTF has paid the next full Dividend payment, MTF shall
not make any Distribution, including profit distributable to Dealers, other than payment of
Dividends.

Rights in a liquidation

Each Holder shall have the right in a liquidation of MTF to payment, in priority to the
holders of other classes of shares of MTF, and profit distributable to Dealers, of the Issue
Price of the Perpetual Preference Shares held by that Holder and (subject to paragraph
1.6) Dividends payable on those Perpetual Preference Shares at the date of
commencement of liquidation calculated on a daily basis from the end of the most recent
Dividend Period to the date of commencement of liquidation.

Perpetual Preference Shares will rank equally in all respects and without preference among
themselves, but behind the claims of all secured and unsecured creditors of MTF.

Voting

Holders shall have no right to recelve notice of, or vote at meetings of shareholders of MTF,
other than meetings pertaining to the amendment of the terms of the Perpetual Preference
Shares,

Transfer
A Holder may transfer any Perpetual Preference Share:

(a) under a system of transfer approved under section 7 of the Securities Transfer Act
1991 which Is applicable to MTF; and

(b} by an instrument of transfer which complies with the Constitution.
Systems of transfer

A Perpetual Preference Share which is disposed of in a transaction which complies with the
requirements of a system of transfer authorised under paragraph 1.13{a) may be
transferred in accordance with the requirements of that system. Where an instrument of
transfer executed by a transferor outside New Zealand would have complied with the
provisions of the Securities Transfer Act 1991, if it had been executed in New Zealand, it
may nevertheless be registered by MTF if it is executed in a manner acceptable to MTF or
the Registrar.
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1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

Instrument requirements

An instrument of transfer of Perpetual Preference Shares to which the provisions of
paragraph 1.13 are not applicable shall:

(a) be in any common form or any other form approved by MTF or the Registrar; and
(b) be signed or executed by or on behalf of the transferor.
Delivery of instrument

An instrument transferring Perpetual Preference Shares must be delivered to MTF or to the
Registrar, together with such evidence (if any) as MTF or the Registrar reasonably requires
to prove the title of the transferor to, or right of the transferor to transfer, the Perpetual
Preference Shares.

Refusal to register

Subject to section 84 of the Act (which imposes certain procedural requirements on a
Board}, the Board may refuse to register a transfer of any Perpetual Preference Share if:

(a) MTF has a lien on the Perpetual Preference Share;

(b) the transferor fails to produce such evidence as MTF or the Registrar reasonably
requires to prove the title of the transferor to, or right of the transferor to transfer,
the Perpetual Preference Share; or

(c) registration of the transfer, together with registration of any further transfer or
transfers then held by MTF and awaiting registration, would result in less than 5,000
Perpetual Preference Shares held in the name of the transferee,

provided that the Board resolves to exercise its power under this paragraph within
30 Business Days after receipt of the relevant transfer and notice of the resolution is sent
to the transferor and to the transferee within five Business Days of the resolution being
passed by the Board.

Transferor to remain Holder until registration

A transferor of a Perpetual Preference Share is deemed to remain the Holder of the
Perpetual Preference Share until the name of the transferee is entered in the register in
respect of the share.

MTF to retain instruments
If MTF registers an instrument of transfer it shall retain the instrument,
Compulsory redemption

Subject to paragraph 1.21, MTF may redeem or repurchase Perpetual Preference Shares by
glving a Redemption Notice to all Holders requiring Holders to transfer their Perpetual
Preference Shares to MTF. A Redemption Notice shall take effect, and the Redemption
Price shall be paid, on the day specified in the Redemption Notice, being not less than
30 days, after the date on which the notice is given, Perpetual Preference Shareholders
have no right to require redemption by MTF.

Timing of a Redemption Notice
A Redemption Notice may only be given:
{(a) two years or more after the Closing Date; or

(b) at any earlier time if there has occurred any change in law, including any law
relating to taxation, or in the interpretation or application thereof by any Court or
governmental authority, or in any directive, regulation, request or requirement of a
regulatory authority or other governmental agency, including a change to financial

Motor Trade Finances Limited 54 @




-

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

reporting standards, which materially adversely affects the value of the Perpetual
Preference Shares to MTF.

Effect of Redemption Notice
If MTF gives a Redemption Notice then:

(a) each Holder shall be deemed, on the day on which MTF pays to that Holder the
Redemption Price, to transfer that Holder's Perpetual Preference Shares to MTF, and
MTF shall on that day enter the name of MTF on the Register as the Holder of those
Perpetual Preference Shares; and

(b} each Holder shall be deemed to have authorised MTF to act on behalf of that Holder
in respect of the transfer of that Holder's Perpetual Preference Shares to MTF, and
to sign any document necessary to effect or record that transfer.

Partial redemption

MTF may give a Redemption Notice in respect of a specified proportion of the Perpetual
Preference Shares held by each Holder In accordance with paragraph 1.21, If MTF does so,
paragraphs 1.20 to 1.22 shall apply modified so as to refer to that proportion of each
Holder's Perpetual Preference Shares. MTF may give notice of the nature referred to in this
paragraph on more than ane occasion.

Ability to hold as treasury stock

Where MTF repurchases Perpetual Preference Shares in accordance with paragraph 1.20, or
acquires Perpetual Preference Shares on-market in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, MTF may hold those Perpetual Preference Shares as treasury stock pursuant to Its
Constitution,

Pursuant to section 67A(1)(c) of the Act, the number of shares acquired, when aggregated
with shares in the same class held by MTF at the time of purchase, must not exceed 5% of
the shares of that class previously issued by MTF (excluding any shares in that class which
have previously been cancelled). MTF may subsequently cancel or reissue shares held as
treasury stock.

Pursuant to section 67B of the Act if 2 company holds a share in itself, MTF shall not:
{(a) exercise any voting rights attached to that share; or

(b) make or receive any Distribution authorised or payable in respect of that share.
Amendment

The rights, privileges, limitations and conditions attaching to the Perpetual Preference
Shares may be amended with the approval of:

(a) the Board; and
{b) aspecial resolution of Hoiders.

A meeting of Holders for the purposes referred to in paragraph (b) may be convened by
the Board.

Conduct of meetings

A meeting of Holders to consider a resolution of the nature referred to in paragraph 1.25
shall be convened and held in accordance with the first schedule to the Act and clause 15
of the Constitution. At any such meeting:

(a)  where voting is by show of hands or by voice every Holder present in person or by
representative has one vote; and
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1.27

1.28

1.29

1.30

(b) on a poll every Holder present in person or by representative has one vote In
respect of each Perpetual Preference Share held by that Holder.

Deductions

MTF may make from Dividends any deduction or withholding on account of tax or on any
other account which MTF is required by law to make.

Supplementary Dividend
If MTF at any time;

(a) pays a Dividend (as defined in section LE 2(1) of the Tax Act and in section OB 1 of
that Act for the purposes of Part LE of that Act) to a Holder who is not resident in
New Zealand for tax purposes at that time; and

{b)  MTF attaches an Imputation Credit to such Dividend pursuant to section ME 6 of the
Tax Act.

then MTF may pay a single supplementary Dividend (as deflned in section OB 1 of the Tax
Act) to that person.

Method of payment

A Dividend payable in cash may be paid in such manner as the Board thinks fit to the
entitled shareholders or, in the case of joint shareholders, to the shareholder named first in
the register, or to such other person and in such manner as the shareholder or joint
shareholders may in writing direct. Any one of two or more joint shareholders may give a
receipt for any payment In respect of the shares held by them as joint shareholders.

Notices

All notices shall be served and issued pursuant to the provisions of the Constitution of MTF.
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answers to important questions

What sort of investment is this?

MTF is offering for subscription Perpetual Preference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of
up to $35 million. MTF reserves the right to accept over-subscriptions in respect of Perpetual
Preference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up to a further $5 million.

The Offer of Perpetual Preference Shares contained in this Offer Document is subject to approval
by each class of MTF shareholders by ordinary resolution at a special meeting to be held on 8
June 2006. An ordinary resolution is a resolution approved by a simple majority of the votes of
those shareholders entitled to vote and voting on the resolution. If the ordinary resolution is not
passed at the special meeting the Offer will not proceed.

Dividend: The Perpetual Preference Shares carry the right to a Dividend payable quarterly in
arrears. The aggregate of cash Dividends pald, and Imputation Credits, and/or withholding tax
deductions wiil equal the Dividend Rate. MTF has the right to cancel the payment of a Dividend or
Dividends at Its discretion. Such Dlvidend payments are not cumulative, Whilst Dividends are
cancelled, MTF will not pay any Distribution on its ordinary shares or any instrument which ranks
in subordination to the Perpetual Preference Shares including profit distributable to Dealers.

The Perpetual Preference Shares do not benefit from any capital growth In the ordinary shares of
MTF and Perpetual Preference Shareholders will not participate in any dividend payable on those
shares, or in any bonus issue, rights issue or other Distribution made in respect of those shares.

Perpetual: The Perpetual Preference Shares have no fixed term and will remain in existence
unless and until they are redeemed or repurchased for cash and cancelied (unless held as
treasury stock in accordance with paragraph 1.24 of the terms of the Perpetual Preference
Shares) or MTF goes into liquidation. Perpetual Preference Shareholders have no right to require
redemption by MTF.

Rights Iin liquidation: The Perpetual Preference Shares rank behind all secured and unsecured
creditors of MTF but ahead of holders of other classes of shares of MTF and profit distributable to
Dealers. In a liguidation of MTF, a Holder of Perpetual Preference Shares will be entitled to
receive, in priority to the rights of other shareholders of MTF, the Issue Price of the Perpetual
Preference Shares held by that Holder and Dividends payable on those Perpetual Preference
Shares at the time of commencement of liquidation, but will not be entitled to participate further
in the assets of MTF. The Perpetual Preference Shares will rank equally in all respects and without
preference among themselves, but behind the claims of all secured and unsecured creditors of
MTF.

Voting: The Perpetual Preference Shares have no voting rights other than the right to attend and
vote at meetings of Perpetual Preference Shareholders.

Compulsory redemption: MTF has the right to repurchase or redeem all or part of the Perpetual
Preference Shares at the expiration of 30 days' notice in certain circumstances as detailed in
paragraphs 1.20 and 1.23 of the terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares.

The above is a simplified and general description of some of the rights and obligations of Holders
of Perpetual Preference Shares. The full terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares are set out on
page 52.

Who is involved in providing it for me?

Motor Trade Finances Limited (registered number 148074) is the issuer of the Perpetual
Preference Shares. MTF was incorporated in New Zealand on 24 July 1970 under the Companies
Act 1955 and was reregistered to become a company under the Companies Act 1993 on
3 February 1997, MTF is a co-operative company for the purposes of the Co-operative Companies
Act 1996 with in excess of 700 motor vehicle dealers as shareholder Dealers. MTF can be
contacted at its registered office, which is located at 193 Princes Street, Dunedin.

Motor Trade Finances Limited 57




MTF was formed In 1970 to enable selected motor vehicle dealers to finance sales of motor
vehicles to the public. Since that time, the MTF Group has grown to become one of the largest
financiers of motor vehicles in New Zealand, administering advances to in excess of 62,000
borrowers.

From Its inception, MTF has concentrated primarily on motor vehicle finance. Operations are
conducted on a co-operative basis with selected dealers becoming shareholders of MTF upon
approval for access to MTF's facilities. MTF accepts finance agreements entered into by Dealers
with their customers and distributes the net profit earned from these financial activities to the
respective Dealers by way of monthly profit Distribution. The principal source of funds for the
financing of finance agreements is by securitisation.

For a more extensive overview of MTF's business, see the section of this Offer Document entitled
"business overview".

How much do I pay?

The Issue Price of each Perpetual Preference Share is $1.00, which must be paid in full by
applicants at the time of application. Cheques should be made payable to "MTF Preference Share
Offer”, crossed "Not Transferable" and must not be post-dated. Applications to subscribe for
Perpetual Preference Shares must be for a minimum principal amount of $5,000 and thereafter in
multiples of $1,000.

Existing MTF Capital Bondholders participating in the Exchange Offer will not be required to make
a cash payment for the portion of Capital Bonds exchanged into Perpetual Preference Shares.
Payment will be effected by directing the face value of their existing Capital Bonds exchanged and
payable to them by MTF on 30 June 2006 to the satisfaction of the Issue Price of the Perpetual
Preference Shares allotted under the Exchange Offer,

General Offer and Priority Pool applications must be made on the Application Form contained at
the back of this Offer Document while applications made pursuant to the Exchange Offer must be
made on the personalised Red Application Form sent separately to Capital Bondholders.
Applications must be lodged with the Registrar, or returned to MTF, or the Lead Manager {at the
following addresses) or any Primary Market Participant through which a firm allocation was
obtained, or any other channel approved by NZX, in time for such applications to be forwarded to
the Registrar by 5:00pm on 28 June 2006, or 16 June 2006 in the case of the applications made
under the Priority Pool or the Exchange Offer.

The Registrar The Lead Manager Motor Trade Finances Limited
Link Market Services Forsyth Barr Limited 193 Princes Street
138 Tancred Street Level 6, Forsyth Barr House PO Box 885
PO Box 384 Cnr Lambton Quay and Dunedin
Ashburton Johnston Street
PO Box 5266
Wellington

MTF reserves the right to vary the Opening Date, the Closing Date, and the Exchange Offer and
Priority Pool Closing Dates, on giving notice to NZX, and to refuse all or any part of any
application without providing a reason.

Perpetual Preference Shares will be allotted at MTF's sole discretion. MTF will advise successful
applicants of the allotment of Perpetual Preference Shares as soon as possible after the Allotment
Date.

Perpetual Preference Shares allotted in accordance with this Offer may be subject to scaling at
MTF’s discretion.

Further information on how to apply for Perpetual Preference Shares is set out in the section of
this Offer Document entitled "application instructions - General Offer and Priority Pool” and
"application instructions - Exchange Offer”.
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There is no cooling off period in respect of the Perpetual Preference Shares in which an applicant
for the Perpetual Preference Shares may cancel the application for Perpetual Preference Shares.

Applications made under the Exchange Offer are irrevocable.
What are the charges?

Subscribers of Perpetual Preference Shares are not required to pay any charges to MTF, the
Registrar or any other person In relation to the Offer, other than the Issue Price of $1.00 for each
Perpetual Preference Share allotted to them or, in the case of the Exchange Offer, by directing the
face value of their existing Capital Bonds exchanged and payable to them by MTF on 30 June
2006 to the satisfaction of the Issue Price of the Perpetual Preference Shares allotted under the
Exchange Offer.

Any fees or expenses payable to the Registrar and all the expenses of the Offer are to be paid by
MTF.

Details of the fees and expenses incurred in respect of the Offer and payable by MTF are set out
in the section of this Offer Document entitled "statutory information". Those expenses are
estimated to be approximately $980,000, based on the Offer amount of $35 million.

No brokerage is payable by any subscriber for Perpetual Preference Shares under the Offer,
although brokerage may be payable if Perpetual Preference Shares are bought and sold in the
secondary market.

Brokerage is payable by MTF to Primary Market Participants, the Lead Manager and other
approved intermediaries on applications that bear their stamp at the rate of:

. 1.00% of the principal amount of Perpetual Preference Shares for which valid applications
have been received and accepted pursuant to the General Offer and Priority Pool; and

. 0.50% of the principal amount of Perpetual Preference Shares accepted by MTF by way of
over-subscription for which valid applications have been received and accepted pursuant to
a firm aliocation.

In addition, MTF will pay the Lead Manager brokerage at the rate of 0.75% in respect of the
principal amount of all applications received pursuant to the Exchange Offer, from which the Lead
Manager will be responsible for paying brokerage at the rate of 0.50% to Primary Market
Participants and other approved intermedlaries on valld applications that have been received and
accepted that bear their stamp,

What returns will I get?

The information set out in this section shouid be read in conjunction with the information set out
in the section of this Offer Document entitled "What are my risks?". Certain events could reduce
or eliminate the returns intended to be derived from holding the Perpetual Preference Shares.

The returns to Perpetual Preference Shareholders are in the form of Dividend payments, if any, on
the Perpetual Preference Shares held.

The key factors that will determine the returns to Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares are:
s the Dividend Rate paid;

+ the performance by MTF of its obligations as the issuer of the Perpetual Preference Shares
including whether Dividends are paid on the Dividend Payment Dates;

» If Perpetual Preference Shareholders choose to sell their Perpetual Preference Shares, the
effect of market interest rates and other factors on the price at which Perpetual Preference
Shares may be sold; and

« each Perpetual Preference Shareholder's individual circumstances for tax purposes.
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Dividend Rate

The entity legally liable to pay Dividends on the Perpetual Preference Shares to Perpetual
Preference Shareholders is Motor Trade Finances Limited.

It Is the current intention of MTF that, from the Allotment Date of the Perpetual Preference Shares
until the first Dividend Reset Date, Dividends will be payable at the Initial Dividend Rate of 9.75%
per annum, inclusive of full Imputation Credits, payable quarterly in arrears.

On each Dividend Reset Date, Dividends will be reset and payable at the Dividend Reset Margin of
240 basis points, inclusive of full Imputation Credits, above the Benchmark Rate.

MTF reserves the right to increase the Initlal Dividend Rate and Dividend Reset Margin to such
greater rate as it might determine and advise to the market during the Offer period. Any
Iincreased rate will apply to all Perpetual Preference Shares, regardless of when they are allotted.

The first Dividend Payment Date will be 30 September 2006, however, as this date is not a
Business Day the Dividend will be payable on the next Business Day being 2 October 2006 to the
original subscriber of the Perpetual Preference Shares, irrespective of any transfer of the
Perpetual Preference Shares by that original subscriber prior to the first Dividend Payment Date,
on the daily rate basis from the Allotment Date,

Subsequent Dividend payments will be made quarterly in arrears on each Dividend Payment Date
thereafter (being each 31 December, 31 March, 30 June and 30 September) to registered
Perpetual Preference Shareholders on the record date for determining entitlement to Dividend
payments. Except for the first Dividend due on 30 September 2006, Dividends will be paid in four
equal amounts per year on the dates referred to above with the period between Dividend
Payment Dates deemed to be exactly one quarter of one year.

MTF is entitled to cancel payments of Dividends if:

» the Board is satisfied on reasonable grounds that, as a result of making the payment, MTF
would or could become insolvent, breach any covenant in relation to its bank debt or breach
any other legal cbligation; or

» the Board has for any other reason determined, in its discretion, that a Dividend, or Dividends
generally, should not be pald.

As a result of MTF's ability to cancel payments of Dividends, no Dividend is promised or
guaranteed. Dividends that are cancelled are not cumulative. Whilst Dividends are cancelled MTF
will not pay any Distribution on shares or any instruments which rank subordinated to the
Perpetual Preference Shares, including profit distributable to Dealers.

MTF may make from any Dividends any reduction or withholding on account of tax or on any
other account which MTF is required by law to make.

Sale of Perpetual Preference Shares

Perpetual Preference Shareholders are entitled to, and, in certain circumstances, can be required
to (see "terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares™), sell their Perpetual Preference Shares at any
time subject to applicable securities laws and regulations. For further information, see the section
of this Offer Document entitled "How do I cash in my investment?".

Taxation
General

The following statements are of a general nature. The statements are based on New Zealand tax
legislation and interpretations of tax legislation current at the date of this Offer Document. The
statements are not intended to deal with all relevant considerations or possible cases. No other
taxation considerations are discussed. Prospective investors, including existing MTF Capital
Bondholders who participate in the Exchange Offer, should seek their own advice in relation to
their personal taxation position.
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New Zealand resident shareholders

MTF will assume that Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares are New Zealand tax residents,
unless it is satisfied to the contrary, and will act accordingly. Any liability for taxation is the
responsibility of the Holder of Perpetual Preference Shares.

Dividends distributed to residents

Under New Zealand’s dividend imputation system, corporate tax paid by a New Zealand tax
resident company gives rise to tax credits (known as Imputation Credits), which can be attached
to Dividends paid by MTF to its shareholders. Imputation Credits can be used by shareholders to
offset their own personal income tax fiability.

Dividends paid by MTF under the Offer will consist of a combination of cash payments and
Imputation Credits. All Dividends paid under this Offer by MTF will be Fully Imputed. In the
event MTF has Insufficlent Imputation Credits available it will pay an amount equal to the shortfall
in Imputation Credits of which Holders would otherwise have had the benefit.

Dividends paid to New Zealand tax resident shareholders are ordinarily subject to resident
withholding tax. As MTF intends to fully impute all Dividends, no resident withholding tax will be
deducted. To the extent that a Dividend is not Fully Imputed, resident withholding tax will be
required to be deducted at the rate of 33% unless Holders have provided a certificate of
exemption.

Guarantee

None of MTF’s Directors, the Lead Manager, any of their respective officers or employees, nor any
other person guarantees the Perpetual Preference Shares or the returns that Perpetual Preference
Shareholders may receive as Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares.

What are my risks?

The principal risks for Perpetual Preference Shareholders in the Perpetual Preference Shares are
that:

» they may not receive timely, or any, Dividend payments on the Perpetual Preference Shares;
or

+ they may be unable to recoup their original investment amount.

This could happen for a number of reasons, including if:

¢ MTF cancels Dividend payments for any reason (for more information see the section of this
Offer Document entitled "What returns will I get?");

» the price at which Perpetual Preference Shareholders are able to sell their Perpetual
Preference Shares Is less than the price they have paid for them due to interest rate
movements, supply and demand, the market or for other reasons;

» Perpetual Preference Shareholders are unable to sell their Perpetual Preference Shares at all
due to lack of demand; or

s MTF becomes insolvent, or otherwise unable to pay Dividends due on, or other amounts in
respect of, the Perpetual Preference Shares.

Specific risks relating to the Offer

The Perpetual Preference Shares are perpetual, and have no fixed term. The only way in which a
Holder of Perpetual Preference Shares can crystallise that Holder's Investment is to sell the
Perpetual Preference Shares. The price a Holder obtains will depend on the market for Perpetual
Preference Shares, at the time of sale.

There is no guarantee that a liquid market will develop for the Perpetual Preference Shares.

A Holder of Perpetual Preference Shares may sell that Holder's Perpetual Preference Shares for
less than the Issue Price. In the event of a liquidation of MTF, where there were insufficient funds
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to repay the Perpetual Preference Shares, it is reasonably possible that the Holder would recelve
less than the Issue Price.

Dividends payable in respect of the Perpetual Preference Shares may be cancelled at the
discretion of the Board,

No Perpetual Preference Shareholder will be Hable to pay any further amounts to MTF or any other
person in respect of their Perpetual Preference Shares if MTF becomes insolvent.

In the event of a liquidation of MTF, the claims of any secured and unsecured creditors of MTF
(including, without limitation, facllities with Commonwealth Bank of Australla, Bank of
New Zealand, ANZ National Bank and Westpac Banking Corporation, legal and IRD expenses)
would rank ahead of the claims of Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares. This means that no
payment will be made to Perpetual Preference Shareholders until all other debts of MTF in this
regard are paid in full.

Once all debts of MTF owing to secured and unsecured creditors have been paid, MTF is required
to pay Perpetual Preference Shareholders the Issue Price of the Perpetual Preference Shares held
by each Holder and, subject to paragraph 1.6 of the terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares,
Dividends payable on those Perpetual Preference Shares as at the date of commencement of
liguidation. The clalms of Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares will rank equally amongst
themselves. The Perpetual Preference Shares rank ahead of other shareholders of MTF and profit
distributable to Dealers.

MTF Kkey risks

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that market interest rates will change and impact on MTF’s financial
results by affecting the interest margin between interest earning assets and interest bearing
liabllitles. MTF monitors market interest rates on a daily basls and regularly reviews interest rate
exposure. Management alms to limit interest rate risk by constantly monitoring the interest rate
maturity profiles of finance borrowings and finance receivables.

Credit risk

Given that the MTF Group’s core business is providing lending facilities to customers, there is a
credit risk associated with customers not meeting their obligations under such iending facilities.
These activities have an element of risk associated with counterparties either not meeting their
obligations, or transactions deteriorating in credit quality to the extent that the likellhood of
default increases. In the event of default, the financial performance of the MTF Group could be
adversely impacted. Credit risk associated with debtors' advances is limited due to the large
number of individual contracts held and the geographic distribution of loans throughout
New Zealand.

Loans are managed within established credit policies. The MTF Group has formal provisioning
policies that are monitored and reviewed by both management and the Board. The credit
committee reviews credit risks, recommends credit policy and approves certain credit limits. The
committee met four times during the year ended 30 September 2005, in addition to regular
approval of large exposures.

In addition to the credit quality of finance applicants, the MTF Group requires each Dealer to
indemnify the MTF Group against any default by a borrower from that Dealer. This indemnity
includes the right to forfeit the shares and profits of the Dealer in the event that the Dealer fails
to meet the obligations under the terms of the recourse arrangement. Dealers’ profits accumulate
and are paid out two monthly in arrears. Pre-acceptance examinations and ongoing reviews are
conducted in relation to each Dealer’s suitability to utilise the MTF Group’s finance facllities.

MTF closely monitors the credit quality, lending limits, performance and financial position of
Dealers to ensure the quality of the business written Is up to standard and the Dealer is capable
of indemnifying the MTF Group against any potential looses. Dealers who are unable or unwilling
to meet MTF credit and/or equity criteria have their facilities with the MTF Group cancelled.
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Concentration of credit risk

In relation to the recourse arrangements with Dealers, the MTF Group has a concentration of
credit risk to the New Zealand motor vehicle industry for finance receivables and finance leases
administered.

Concentration is mitigated by the geographical distribution of customers throughout New Zealand,
limited exposure to larger customers relative to the total asset base, the high number of
individual contracts which comprise non-securitised recelvables administered and the risk
assumed by the holders of the ECP on securltised receivables. The average size of a MTF Group
loan is approximately $9,000 and, excluding an exposure to Honda New Zealand Limited which as
at 30 Aprll 2006 accounted for approximately 8.9% of outstanding receivables, the MTF Group’s
exposure to any individual customer is low, with the next largest customer accounting for
approximately 0.4% of outstanding receivables.

Loss of key personnel

MTF believes it has assembled a high quality Board of Directors and management team. MTF has
spent considerable time and effort in bringing together individuals who have the skills, experience
and ability to work together effectively to achieve superior results. In the normal course of
business, MTF faces the risk of the loss of one or more of those individuals for a variety of
reasons.

The risk is mitigated by the depth of experience of the Board of Directors and management team,
and by having a team structure within MTF to reduce exposure to any individual.

Economic downturn

The MTF Group ts exposed to the risk of an economic downturn affecting customers’ ability or
wlllingness to borrow funds from the MTF Group and also the abllity of those that have borrowed
funds from the MTF Group to service their loan obligations. An economic downturn may adversely
impact upon the ability of certain borrowers of funds from the MTF Group to realise certain assets
from which to repay those loans. An economic downturn may have a negative impact on MTFS'
credit rating which may adversely affect MTF's ability to utilise cost efficient funding provided by
MTFS' securitisation programme.

MTF anticipates some softening in consumer spending, in the 2007 financial year, driven by
increasing inflation and higher oil prices. This may have the effect of dampening the demand for
new and used motor vehicles and consequently motor vehicle finance. Notwithstanding, for the
six months to 31 March 2006, new loan sales, asset growth, and credit quality indicators suggest
that the levels of profitabllity recorded in respect of the 30 September 2005 financial year will
continue for the full year to 30 September 2006.

Liquldity risk and funding risk

Liquidity risk arises If the MTF Group is unable to generate or obtaln sufficient funds at a
reasonable price to meet its daily financial commitments. The MTF Group’s financial performance
may then be adversely impacted.

Liquidity is managed primarily through access to the securitisation programme by which
receivables are sold to MTFS. Within the securitisation programme, revolving standby credit
facilities exist with appropriately rated banks to ensure ongoing funding to repay ECP on maturity
should further commercial paper not be able to be issued.

MTF manages non-securitised assets and liabilities to ensure maturities allow an adequate margin
between requirements to fund non-securitised assets and access to funding.

Currency risk

The MTF Group is potentially exposed to the risk that any material depreciation in the value of the
New Zealand dollar may increase the prices of new and second hand cars, causing a fall in the
demand for vehicles and a corresponding fall in the demand for motor vehicle finance.

The MTF Group's foreign exchange exposures on ECP borrowing are fully hedged by forward
exchange contracts.
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Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from external events or inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, Including fraud, caused by any factor other than
credit, liquidity or market risk.

The Board is responsible for MTF's system of internal control. The Board regularly monitors the
operational and financlal aspects of the MTF Group’s activities and, through the audit committee,
considers the recommendations and advice of external auditors.

An annual cycle of internal risk reviews is performed, covering the treasury, finance, information
technology and credit functions.

The Board ensures that recommendations arising from external audits or internal risk reviews are
investigated and, where considered necessary, suitable action is taken to ensure that the MTF
Group has an appropriate environment in place to manage the risks identified.

The Board requires that management investigates ways of enhancing risk management
strategies, including appropriate segregation of duties and the employment and training of
suitably qualified and experienced personnel.

Other operational and event risks

Demand for the MTF Group’s products and services is partially dependent upon the performance
of the New Zealand and world economies. Reduced or negative growth in these economies, or
reduced demand for financial products and services, could have a material adverse effect on the
financial results of the MTF Group.

Competition in the finance industry

The MTF Group faces competition from both existing financial service providers and new entrants.
Dealers and customers are able to choose from a large number of providers in all of the areas of
financial services provided by the MTF Group. Risks that may affect the MTF Group’s ability to
obtain new and retain existing Dealers and customers, thereby affecting the profitability of the
MTF Group, include, but are not limited to, the relative position of the MTF Group against its
competitors in the:

+ pricing and performance of products and services;
+« convenience and ease of access to products and services;
+ level and efficiency of service provided; and

« ability to develop new products and service to meet the changing needs of customers.

The MTF Group is committed to providing superior customer service to new and existing Dealers,
and customers, and is a recognised leader in this area.

Legal and regulatory environment

While the legal and regulatory framework governing finance companies in New Zealand is fairly
well established, it is subject to change from time to time. Any such change has the potential to
adversely impact on the MTF Group's financial performance.

While the MTF Group takes steps to mitigate the above risks, these risks cannot be eliminated.
Can the investment be altered?

The full terms of the Offer are set out in this Offer Document. Those terms and the terms and
conditions on which applicants may apply for the Perpetual Preference Shares may be altered by
an amendment to this Offer Document. Detalls of any such amendment must be filed with the
Companies Office.

The Offer of Perpetual Preference Shares contained in this Offer Document is subject to approval
by each class of MTF sharehoiders by ordinary resolution at a special meeting to be held on 8
June 2006. An ordinary resolution is a resolution approved by a simple majority of the votes of
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those shareholders entitled to vote and voting on the resolution. If the ordinary resolution is not
passed at the special meeting the Offer will not proceed.

The rights attached to the Perpetual Preference Shares are governed by the Constitution and by
the terms of issue specified in this Offer Document. Any amendment to the terms which affect
the rights attaching to the Perpetual Preference Shares require the approval of the Board, and the
approval by the Holders by way of a special resolution. Amendment of the Constitution requires
approval of the ordinary shareholders of MTF, by way of a Special Resolution.

Dividends may be cancelled as detailed on page 52.
How do I cash in my investment?

Perpetual Preference Shareholders are entitled to sell or transfer their Perpetual Preference
Shares at any time subject to MTF's Constitution, applicable securities laws and regulations. The
Perpetual Preference Shareholders have limited rights of repayment and redemption.

Perpetual Preference Shareholders may sell their Perpetual Preference Shares at any time prior to
redemption provided a buyer can be found. No charges are payable to MTF on such sale. MTF
may redeem or repurchase the Perpetual Preference Shares in certain circumstances. For further
information see the "Compulsory redemption” section under the "terms of Perpetual Preference
Shares" on page 54.

Application has been made to NZX for permission to list the Perpetual Preference Shares and all
the requirements of NZX relating thereto that can be complied with on or before the date of the
Offer Document have been duly complied with. However, NZX accepts no responsibility for any
statement in this Offer Document.

If permission is granted by NZX to list the Perpetual Preference Shares, and on the basis that they
remain listed, MTF believes there will be an established market for the Perpetual Preference
Shares on compietion of the Offer. At the date of this Offer, in MTF's opinion, there is no
established market for the Perpetual Preference Shares.

The Perpetual Preference Shares are expected to be quoted on the NZDX Market shortly after the
Closing Date of the Offer. If you wish to sell your Perpetual Preference Shares you should contact
your usual Primary Market Participant.

Perpetual Preference Shares may be transferred using a transfer document in the form prescribed
by or otherwise approved by MTF or by any method to transfer securities which Is not contrary to
any law and which may be in accordance with the NZSX and NZDX Listing Rules,

MTF may refuse to register a transfer which would result in less than 5,000 Perpetual Preference
Shares being held or if MTF has a lien on the Perpetual Preference Shares or the transferor has
failed to produce such evidence as MTF or the Registrar reasonably requires.

MTF has the ability to purchase and hold Perpetual Preference Shares as treasury stock which
may subsequently be cancelled or reissuved subject to the 5% limit outlined on page 55. Sales of
Perpetual Preference Shares may be subject to brokerage charges.

Applicants should not attempt to sell Perpetual Preference Shares until they know whether, and, if
so, how many, Perpetual Preference Shares have been allotted to them. None of the MTF Group,
the Lead Manager or any of their respective officers and employees or any other person accepts
any liability or responsibility should any applicant for Perpetual Preference Shares attempt to sell
or otherwise deal with Perpetual Preference Shares before receiving a statement recording the
number of Perpetual Preference Shares allotted to that applicant.

The amount a Perpetual Preference Shareholder receives from the sale of Perpetual Preference
Shares may differ from what was paid for them. This is because changes in market interest rates
after the date of purchase can affect their value. For instance, if market interest rates rise (fall)
the value of the Perpetual Preference Shares can fall (rise). The proximity of the selling date to
the next Dividend Payment Date or Dividend Reset Date can also affect the value of the Perpetual
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Preference Shares. MTF will not compensate Perpetual Preference Shareholders for any loss they
may Incur if they sell thelr Perpetual Preference Shares,

MTF may make from Dividends any deduction or withholding on account of tax or on any other
account which MTF is required by law to make.

Who do I contact with enquiries about my investment?

Any enquiries about Perpetual Preference Shares should be directed to:

The Registrar Motor Trade Finances Limited
Link Market Services Attn: Daniel Clarkson
138 Tancred Street General Manager — Treasury
PO Box 384 PO Box 885
Ashburton 193 Princes Street
Dunedin
Telephone: 0800 377 388
Facsimile: 03 308 1311 Telephone: 03 474 6386
Email; Info@linkmarketservices.com Facsimile: 03 471 7737
Email: dclarkson@mtf.co.nz
Website: www.mtf.co.nz

Is there anyone to whom I can complain if I have problems with the
investment?

Any complaints about Perpetual Preference Shares can be directed to:

Motor Trade Finances Limited
Attn: Daniel Clarkson
General Manager - Treasury
PO Box 885

193 Princes Street

Dunedin

Telephone; 03 474 6386
Facsimile: 03 471 7737

Email: dclarkson@mtf.co.nz
Website: www.mtf.co.nz

There is no ombudsman for this type of investment and therefore complaints about the Perpetual
Preference Shares are not able to be made to an ombudsman.

What other information can I obtain about this investment?

Other information about Perpetual Preference Shares and MTF Is contained or referred to in this
Offer Document and in the MTF Group’s most recent financial statements.

You may obtain coples of this Offer Document, the MTF Group’s most recent financial statements
and other documents of, or relating to, MTF (including MTF’s Constitution) without charge during
normal business hours at MTF’s registered office at 193 Princes Street, Dunedin. These
documents are also filed on a public register with the Companies Office, Ministry of Economic
Development. They are available for inspection on the Companies Office website at
www.companies.govt.nz. Where relevant documents are not available on the website, a request
for the documents can be made by contacting the Companies Office Contact Centre on 0508 266
726. A prescribed fee may be payable.

At any time until the Closing Date, you can also obtain copies of this Offer Document without
charge on request in writing, or by telephone, from the Lead Manager or the Registrar.

Perpetual Preference Shareholders will be sent annuaily a copy of the MTF Group’s annual report.
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On request information
You may receive copies of:

this Offer Document;
the most recent annual report of the MTF Group;

the most recently published financial statements of the MTF Group (together with all
documents that are required to be registered with those financial statements);

the Constitution of MTF;

any other information that may be requested under regulation 23A of the Securities
Regulations 1983 or the NZSX and NZDX Listing Rules; and

credlt ratings reports on the ECP issued by MTFS;

at any time free of charge, by contacting Motor Trade Finances Limited by email mtf@mtf.co.nz or
by calling on 03 477 0530 or at the above address.

MTF will issue annual and half yearly reports to Perpetua! Preference Shareholders at the same
time as annual and half yearly reports are issued to ordinary shareholders of MTF.
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statutory information

The following additional information is included in accordance with the requirements of the First
Schedule to the Securities Regulations 1983,

1

Main terms of the Offer

The Issuer of the Perpetual Preference Shares is Motor Trade Finances Limited, which has
its registered office at 193 Princes Street Dunedin.

A description of the Perpetual Preference Shares, including the maximum amount being
offered and the price to be paid for the Perpetual Preference Shares, is set out In the
section of this Offer Document entitled "maln terms of the Offer” on page 9.

Name and address of offeror

Motor Trade Finances Limited
PO Box 885

193 Princes Street

Dunedin

www.mtf.co.nz

The Offer by MTF of Perpetual Preference Shares is an aggregate principal amount of
$35 million, with the ability to accept over-subscriptions with an aggregate principal
amount of up to a further $5 million,

Details of incorporation of issuer

Motor Trade Finances Limited was incorporated on 24 July 1970 under the Companies Act
1955 and was registered to become a company under the Companies Act 1993 on
3 February 1997. Its registered number is 148074. MTF was registered on 3 February
1997 as a co-operative company for the purposes of the Co-operative Companies Act
1996.

The public file relating to the incorporation and registration of MTF can be viewed on the
Companies Office website www.companies.govt.nz. Where relevant documents are not
avallable on the website, a request for the documents can be made by contacting the
Companies Office Contact Centre on 0508 266 726. A prescribed fee may be payable.

Principal subsidiaries of issuer

MTFL and MTFS are the only subsidiaries with total tangible assets exceeding 5% of the
amount of total tangible assets of the MTF Group. The proportion of the issued capital held
by members of MTF in MTFL is 100%. MTFS is not wholly owned by MTF but is a subsidiary
by virtue of the financial reporting standards.

Directorate and advisers

The names, technical or professional qualifications {if any), and place of residence of each
Director of MTF is set out in the section of this Offer Document entitled "Directors and
management” on page 19. The address at which each Director can be contacted is, for the
purposes of this Offer Document, the registered office of MTF, which is set out in the
Directory on page 86 of this Offer Document.

No Director has been adjudged bankrupt during the five years preceding the date of this
Offer Document.

Angus Bradshaw, a Director of MTF, is also an employee holding the position of Managing
Director.

The names of MTF’s auditor, Registrar, sharebrokers and solicitors who have been involved
in the preparation of this Offer Document are set out in the Directory on page 86 of this
Offer Document.
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The Offer Is being underwritten by Forsyth Barr Group Limited. The underwriter's address
is set out in the Directory on page 86 of this Offer Document.

Restrictions on Directors’ powers

The principal modifications, exceptions or limitations on the powers of the Board imposed
by the Act and MTF’'s Constitution are that the Board may not cause MTF to:

(a) issue, buy back or redeem shares, except in the circumstances permitted by the Act
and MTF’s Constitution;

(b} enter Into a major transaction, as defined in the Act, or alter shareholders’ rights,
except in the clrcumstances permitted by the Act and MTF’s Constitution.

The Act contains a number of other provisions that could have the effect, in certain
circumstances, of imposing modifications, exceptions or limitations on the powers of the
Board. These provisions apply to any company registered under the Act.

Substantial equity security holders of issuer

As all shareholders in MTF hold an equal 10,000 shares as at the date of delivery of this
Offer Document for registration, it is not appropriate to detail the 10 largest holdings of
equity securities in MTF,

No shareholder of MTF or any other person undertakes any liability in respect of the
Perpetual Preference Shares being offered.

Description of activities of the issuing group

During the flve years preceding the date of this Offer Document, the MTF Group’s principal
activities comprised providing motor vehicle finance. Further information about the
activities of the MTF Group is set out in the section of this Offer Document entitled
"business overview" on page 14,

The only principal fixed assets held by members of the MTF Group are motor vehicles
owned and leased to customers in the ordinary course of its business by MTFL.
Summary of financial statements

Financial statements, in summary form, for the MTF Group in respect of each of the five
consecutive accounting periods ended 30 September 2005 are set out In the sectlon of this
Offer Document entitled “five year financial summary - MTF Group" on pages 4 and 23,

The information contained in the summary of financial statements for the five consecutive
accounting periods ended 30 September 2005 has been taken from the audited financial
statements of the MTF Group for each accounting period. The auditor's report was not
qualified in any respect.

Prospects and forecasts

A statement as to the trading prospects (including a description of all special trade factors
and risks) of the MTF Group are set out under the heading "Trading prospects and outlcok"
in the section of this Offer Document entitled "business overview" on page 14 and under
the heading "What are my risks?" on page 61.

Provisions relfating to initial flotations

This is hot the first offer of equity securities of MTF to the public.

Acquisition of business or subsidiary

No business, subsidiary or body corporate has been acguired or formed in the two years
preceding the date of delivery of this Offer Document for registration.

Securities paid up otherwise than in cash
Since the date of incorporation of MTF, the MTF Group has not allotted any equity or
participatory securities as fully or partly paid up otherwise than in cash.
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Options to subscribe for securities of issuing group

There are no optlons to subscribe for securities of the MTF Group that have been granted
to or are proposed to be granted to anyone by or on behalf of the MTF Group.

Appointment and retirement of Directors

In accordance with MTF's Constitution, there must not be less than five Directors or more
than six Directors on the Board at any one time. A Managing Director may be appointed in
addition to the maximum number of Directors permitted on the Board. Ordinary
shareholders may change the minimum and/or the maximum number of Directors by
ordinary resolution.

Pursuant to clause 16.2 of the Constitution, the Board has the power to appoint two
Directors and the Managing Director. The remainder of the Board is to be appointed by
ordinary resolution passed by Dealers who are holders of class A shares. The Constitution
permits any of the following persons to be appointed by holders of class A shares:

. a Director of a Dealer;

. a current retailer of MTF;

. a trustee of a trust that owns or holds the majority of the voting shares in a current
retailer of MTF;

. a holder of the majority of the voting shares in a current retailer of MTF; and

. a senior executive of a current retaifer of MTF.

The Board may appoint a person to be a Director to fill a casual vacancy in respect of the
Directors appointed by holders of class A shares provided that person qualifles under the
above criteria. Any person appointed to fill a casual vacancy is required to retire at the
next annual meeting of MTF and shall be eligible for reappointment.

Any Director or Managing Director appointed by the Board may be removed from office by
resolution of the Board (provided that the Director or Managing Director in question may
not vote on such resolution), or by an ordinary resolution of the holders of class A Shares.
Any Director appointed by the holders of class A Shares may be removed by ordinary
resolution of those shareholders.

The office of Director is deemed to be automatically vacated when a person holding office
turns 70. The vacation of office is deemed to apply from the next annual meeting following
that age being attained.

All Directors appointed by the Board pursuant to the terms of the Constitution have the
right to vote on the election of other Directors of MTF,

Roger Bonlifant and Stephen Higgs have been appointed as independent Directors by the
Board under clause 16.2(a)(i) of the Constitution.

Directors' interests
Directors are not entitled to remuneration from MTF other than by way of Directors' fees.

There are no contracts or other provisions relating to retirement benefits or compensation
for loss of office for Directors.

No material transactions have been entered into at any time in the five years preceding the
date of delivery of this Offer Document for registration between MTF and any of the
persons named in clause 15(4) of the First Schedule to the Securities Regulations 1983,

Promoters’ interests
There is no promoter of the securities being offered.
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Material contracts

The following material contracts have been entered into during the two years preceding the
date of delivery of this Offer Document for registration:

. Underwriting Agreement dated 30 May 2006 between MTF and Forsyth Barr Group
Limited.
. Third Supplemental Deed dated 30 November 2004, between MTF and Trustees

Executors Limited (the Trustee).

Pending proceedings

There are no legal proceedings or arbitrations pending at the date of delivery of this Offer
Document for registration that may have a material adverse effect on the MTF Group.

Preliminary and issue expenses

Issue expenses, including underwriting fees, brokerage, issue management fees, legal and
accounting fees, printing, advertising, distribution and other costs incurred by MTF in
making the Offer are estimated to be $980,000, based on an Issue size of $35 million.

This estimate includes:

(a) Dbrokerage payable to Primary Market Participants, the Lead Manager and other
approved financial intermediaries at the rate of 1.00% of the principal amount of
Perpetual Preference Shares in respect of valid applications received and accepted
pursuant to the General Offer and the Priority Pool which bear their stamp;

(b} brokerage payable to the Lead Manager in respect of all applications made pursuant
to the Exchange Offer at the rate of 0.75% out of which the Lead Manager will pay
brokerage at the rate of 0.50% to Primary Market Participants and other approved
financial intermediaries In respect of valid Exchange Offer applications received and
accepted which bear their stamp;

{c) in relation to any over-subscriptions accepted by MTF, brokerage payable to Primary
Market Participants, the Lead Manager and other approved financial intermediaries
at the rate of 0.50% pursuant to valid firm applications received and accepted which
bear their stamp;

{(d) a lead management fee payable to the Lead Manager at the rate of 0.50% of the
principal amount of Perpetual Preference Shares allotted under the Offer; and

(e) an underwriting fee of 1.00% on the Underwritten Amount payable to Forsyth Barr
Group Limited.

Restrictions on the MTF Group

The terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares provide that if Dividends on the Perpetual
Preference Shares are cancelled MTF shall not make any Distribution to ordinary
shareholders including profit distributable to MTF Dealers, from the date that the Dividends
on the Perpetual Preference Shares are cancelled until MTF has pald the next full Dividend
payment.

MTFS has entered into a securitisation programme with MTF and other parties. Under a
loan purchase deed between MTF and MTFS dated 25 September 1995 (Loan Purchase
Deed), MTFS purchases qualifying finance receivables from MTF. As a special purpose
company set up to acquire, hold and administer such loans under the securitisation
programme, MTFS is only permitted to borrow funds in accordance with, and as
contemplated by, the transaction documents relating to the securitisation programme
{Transaction Documents) and is restricted from berrowing funds for any other purpose. It
is also restricted in certain circumstances (as described below) from making any payments
or distributions to shareholders by way of return of paid up capital or dividends.
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By way of a security trust deed entered Into between MTFS and Trustees Executors Limited
(the Trustee) on 27 September 1995 (Security Trust Deed), MTFS has expressly
covenanted that it will not:

(a) incur any other indebtedness except as permitted under or contemplated by any
Transaction Document;

(b) glve any guarantee in respect of the obligations of any other person;

(<) create or attempt to create any charge or security interest over any part of its
present and future property (except where permitted by any Transaction Document); or

(d) as long as any moneys secured by the Security Trust Deed remaln outstanding, vary
its issued or paid up share capital or make any payments or distributions to shareholders
by way of return of paid up capital or dividends, unless the Trustee has given its prior
consent.

By way of a debenture trust deed entered into between MTF and the Bank of New Zealand
on 17 May 2001, MTF agreed to comply with certain financial and other covenants, in
consideration for 2 credit facility from debenture holders. The financial covenants provide
that MTF will ensure that on the last day of each financial quarter:

(a) total adjusted capital funds will not be less than 15% of adjusted total tangible
assets; and

(b) EBIT will not be less than 1.5 times interest and financing costs.

MTF have expressly covenanted in the debenture trust deed that they will not make a
Distribution, without the consent of Bank of New Zealand, where to do so would result in a
breach of these financial covenants. In addition, MTF is restricted from borrowing if to do
so would result in a breach of the above financial covenants.

There are no other restrictions on the MTF Group's ability to borrow,

Other terms of Offer and securities

There are no other terms of the Offer, or the Perpetual Preference Shares, which are not
set out elsewhere in this Offer Document other than those:

{(a) implied by law; or

(b)  which are set out in a document that has been registered with a public official, is
available for public inspection and is referred to in this Offer Document.

22-38 Financial statements

39

40

The financial statements of the MTF Group required by clauses 22 to 38 of the First
Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983 are set out in the section of this Offer
Document entitled "historical financial information".

Places of Inspection of documents

MTF's Constitution and, where relevant, any material contract may be viewed on the
Companies Office website at www.companies.govt.nz for a nominal fee, or free of charge
at the registered office of MTF, as detailed in the Directory on page 86, during normal
business hours. Where relevant documents are not available on the Companies Office
website a request for the documents can be made by contacting the Companies Office
Contact Centre on 0508 266 726. A prescribed fee may be payable,

Other material matters

NZX Regulation has ruled that the Perpetual Preference Shares are debt securities as that
term is defined in the NZSX and NZDX Listing Rules.

The Offer of Perpetual Preference Shares contained Iin this Offer Document is subject to
approval by each class of MTF shareholders by ordinary resolution at a special meeting to
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be heid on 8 June 2006. An cordinary resolution is a resolution approved by a simple
majority of the votes of those shareholders entitled to vote and voting on the resolution. If
the ordinary resclution is not passed at the special meeting the Offer will not proceed.

There are no other material matters relating to the Offer, other than matters disclosed
elsewhere in this Offer Document and in contracts entered into in the ordinary course of
business of the MTF Group.

Directors’ statement

The Directors, after due inquiry by them in relation to the period between 30 September
2005 and the date of delivery of this Offer Document for registration, are of the opinlon
that no circumstances have arisen that materially adversely affect:

(a) the trading or profitability of the MTF Group;
(b) the value of the MTF Group's assets; or
(c) the ability of the MTF Group to pay its liabilities due within the next 12 months.

Auditor’'s report

The auditor’s report required by clause 36 of the First Schedule of the Securities
Regulations 1983 is set out on page 49.

This Offer Document has been signed by each Director of MTF (by their agent authorised in
writing, Angus R Bradshaw) and MTF by:

Angus R Bradshaw
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index for Securities Regulations 1983

For the purposes of Regulation 5(6) of the Securities Regulations 1983, the matters required to be
stated or contained in this Offer Document by virtue of the First Schedule to the Securities
Regulations 1983 are:

Matter Page No.
1 Main terms of Offer 9, 68
2 Name and address of offeror 68
3. Details of incorporation of issuer 68
4 Principal subslidiaries of issuer 68
5 Directorate and advisers 19, 68, 86
5A. Restrictions on Director's powers 69
6. Substantial equity security holders of issuer 69
7. Description of activities of issuing group 14, 69
8. Summary of financial statements 4,23, 69
9. Prospects and forecasts | 17, 61, 69
10. Provisions relating to initial flotations 69
11. Acquisition of business or subsidiary 69
12. Securities paid up otherwise than in cash 69
13, Options to subscribe for securities of issuing group 70
14. Appointment and retirement of Directors 70
15. Directors' interests 70
16. Promoters' interests 70
17. Material contracts 71
18. Pending proceedings 71
16. Preliminary and issue expenses 71
20, Restrictions on the MTF Group 71
21, Other terms of Offer and securities 72
22.-38. Financial statements 25-48, 72
39. Places of inspection of documents 72,86
40. Other material matters 72
41, Directors' statement 73
42. Auditor's report 49, 73
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glossary
Act means Companies Act 1993

Alfotment Date In respect of a Perpetual Preference Share, means the date on which the
application for that Perpetual Preference Share is allotted under this Offer Document;

Application Form means the application form contained in this Offer Document;

Benchmark Rate on any day means the rate per annum expressed on a percentage yield basis,
and rounded up to the nearest two decimal places, which is:

{(a) the average of the bid and offered swap rate displayed at or about 11am on that day on
page FISSWAP (or any successor page) of the Reuters monitor screen for an interest rate
swap with a one year term; or

(b} if a rate is unable to be determined in accordance with paragraph (a), or if MTF forms the
view that the rate so determined is not an accurate reflection of market rates, the average
of the bld and offered swap rates quoted by three registered banks in New Zealand at or
about 11am on that day for an interest rate swap with a one year term;

Board means the board of Directors of MTF;

Business Day means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a statutory public holiday in
Wellington, New Zealand;

Capital Bond means a capital bond issued by MTF;
Capital Bondholder means a holder of Capital Bonds;

Closing Date means 28 June 2006 or the date on which subscriptions are received and accepted
for the maximum aggregate principal amount of the Perpetual Preference Shares (including any
over-subscriptions) or such other date as MTF determines;

Constitution means the constitution of MTF;

Dealer means transacting shareholder;

Directors means the directors of MTF,

Directory means the directory set out in the section of this Offer Document entitled "Directory";

Distribution has the meaning set out in section 2(1) of the Act and includes any profit
distributable to Dealers;

Dividend means any dividend on the Perpetual Preference Shares payable pursuant to
paragraph 1.1 of the terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares;

Dividend Amount in respect of a Dividend Peried means a sum in respect of each Perpetual
Preference Share calculated in accordance with the following formula:

Dividend Rate %
4

Issue Price x

Where:
Dividend Rate is:

(a) in respect of each Dividend Period commencing after 30 September 2007, the Benchmark
Rate on the Relevant Reset Date plus the Dividend Reset Margin;

(b) in respect of each Dividend Period ending on or before 30 September 2007, 9.75%. MTF
reserves the right to increase the Initial Dividend Rate to such greater rate as it might
determine and advise to the market during the Offer period. Any increased rate would
apply to all Perpetual Preference Shares, regardless of when they are allotted,
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provided that the Dividend Amount in respect of the first Dividend Period shall be an amount
calculated in accordance with the following formula:

Y

Xx——
91.25

where:
X is an amount calculated in accordance with the first formula set out in this definition.

Y is the period in days from and including the Allotment Date to but excluding 30 September
2006.

The Dividend amounts so calculated are inclusive of Imputation Credits.

Dividend Cancellation Notice means a notice given by the Board pursuant to paragraph 1.6 of the
terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares;

Dividend Payment Date means 31 December, 31 March, 30 June and 30 September in each year
and if that day Iis not a Business Day, the next Business Day;

Dividend Period means each period commencing on and including a Dividend Payment Date and
ending on but excluding the next Dividend Payment Date, or, in respect of the first Dividend
Period, the period from and including the Allotment Date to but excluding 30 September 2006;

Dividend Rate means, in respect of the period until the first Dividend Reset Date, 9.75%, and in
respect of the period after the first Dividend Reset Date, the Benchmark Rate on the Relevant
Reset Dates plus the Dividend Reset Margin;

Dividend Reset Dates means 30 September 2007 and 30 September annually thereafter;

Dividend Reset Margin means 240 basis points, including full Imputation Credits above the
Benchmark Rate;

Dividend Resurnption Notice means a notice given pursuant to paragraph 1.8 of the terms of the
Perpetual Preference Shares;

EBIT means earnings before interest and tax. EBIT is an indicator of a company's financial
performance calculated as revenue less expenses excluding interest and tax;

ECP means commercial paper issued on the euro commercial paper market pursuant to the MTFS
securitisation programme;

Exchange Offer means the $15 million exchange offer being made to existing MTF Capital
Bondholders as set out in this Offer Document;

Exchange Offer Closing Date means 16 June 2006 or such other date as MTF determines;

First Dividend Payment Date means 30 September 2006, or if not a Business Day, the next
Business Day;

Fully Imputed means in relation to a Dividend, that Imputation Credits are validly attached to the
Dividend, so that the imputation ratio of the Dividend is the maximum imputation ratio permitted
by law;

General Offer means the offer being made to clients of NZX firms and invited financial institutions
by way of firm allocation and the Public Pool;

Holder in respect of a Perpetual Preference Share means a person whose name is entered in the
Register as the holder for the time being of that Perpetual Preference Share;

Initial Dividend Rate means the gross Dividend rate of 9.75% per annum payable from the
Allotment Date of the Perpetual Preference Shares until the first Dividend Reset Date inclusive of
full Imputation Credits, payable quarterly in arrears;
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Imputation Credit means an imputation credit as defined in section OB 1 of the Tax Act;
Issue Price means $1.00 in respect of each Perpetual Preference Share;
Lead Manager means Forsyth Barr Limited;

Minimum Holding means a holding of a parcel of Perpetual Preference Shares with a face value of
$5,000;

MTF means Motor Trade Finances Limited;

MTF Group means Motor Trade Finances Limited and any wholly owned subsidlary together with
MTF Securities Limited, which is a subsidiary for accounting purposes only;

MTFS means MTF Securities Limited;

MTFL means MTF Leasing Limited;

NZX means the New Zealand Exchange;

Offer means the offer of Perpetual Preference Shares under this Offer Document;

Offer Document means this combined investment statement and prospectus dated 30 May 2006;
Opening Date means 31 May 2006;

Organising Participant means Forsyth Barr Limited;

Perpetual Preference Shareholders means the Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares;

Perpetual Preference Shares means the Perpetual Preference Shares offered for subscription
under the Offer Document;

Primary Market Participant has the meaning given to It in the NZX Participant Rules;

Priority Pool means the pool of $5 million Perpetual Preference Shares reserved for Dealers, MTF
staff, and Directors;

Public Pool means those Perpetual Preference Shares available for subscription by members of the
public (if any), at MTF's absolute discretion;

Priority Pool Closing Date means 16 June 2006 or such other date as MTF determines;

Red Application Form means the personalised red application form sent separately to MTF Capital
Bondholders upon which an application to subscribe for Perpetual Preference Shares under the
Exchange Offer must be made;

Redemption Notice is a notice issued in accordance with paragraph 1.20 of the terms of the
Perpetual Preference Shares;

Redemption Price in respect of each Perpetual Preference Share at any date means the aggregate
of:

(a) the Issue Price; and

(b} subject to paragraph 1.6 of the terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares, Dividends
payable on that Perpetual Preference Share as at that date calculated on a daily basis frorm
the end of the most recent Dividend Period to that date:

Register means the register kept by MTF of the Perpetual Reference Shares;

Registrar means Link Market Services an agent appointed by MTF to keep the Register of the
Perpetual Preference Shares;

Relevant Reset Date means in respect of a Dividend Period, if that Dividend Period begins on a
Reset Date, that Reset Date, and if that Dividend Period does not begin on a Reset Date, the
Reset Date immediately preceding that Dividend Period;
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Reset Date means 30 September 2007 and each 30 September (or the next Business Day)
thereafter;

Special Resolution means a resolution approved by a majority of 75% of the votes of those
shareholders entitled to vote and voting on the question;

Tax Act means the Income Tax Act 2004;
Underwritten Amount means $35 million;
$ or NZ$ means New Zealand dollars.

Where there is a reference to a date in this Offer Document, and that date ts not a Business Day,
the reference shall be deemed to be to the next day which is a Business Day.
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application instructions: General Offer and Priority Pool

Insert details

Insert full name(s), address and telephone numbers. Applications must be in the name(s) of
natural persons, companies or other legal entities, up to a maximum of three names per
application. At least one full given name and surname is required for each natural person.
Applications in the name of a minor, fund, estate, business, firm or partnership, club or other
unincorperated body cannot be accepted. In those cases, applications must be made In the
individual name(s) of the persons(s) who is (are) the legal guardian(s), trustee(s), proprietor(s),
partner(s), or office bearer(s) (as appropriate).

Insert the principal amount of Perpetual Preference Shares you wish to apply for. The application
must be for a minimum of $5,000 and thereafter in multiples of $1,000.

Insert your IRD number.

If you have been allocated & holder number by the Registrar or have been allocated a Common
Shareholder Number ("CSN"), please provide.

If you are applying pursuant to the Priority Pool, tick the appropriate box to indicate your
eligibility.

Read the Application Form and this Offer Document carefully and sign and date the form. It must
be signed by the applicant(s) personally, or by two directors of a company, or one director if there
is only one director, or by an attorney. If your Application Form is signed by an attorney, the
power of attorney document is not required to be lodged, but the attorney must complete the
certificate below. Joint applicants must each sign the Application Form.

Payment

Payment of the application amount in full must accompany the Application Form. Payment must
be in New Zealand dollars and for immediate value. Cheques must be drawn on a registered
New Zealand bank.

Cheques must be made out in favour of "MTF Preference Share Offer", crossed "Not Transferable”
and must not be post-dated.

Closing dates

General Offer: Application Forms must be received by the Registrar by 5:00pm on 28 June 2006
or MTF or any Primary Market Participant through which a firm allocation was obtained or the
Lead Manager or any other channel approved by NZX in time to be forwarded to the Registrar by
28 June 2006.

Priority Pool: Application Forms must be received by the Registrar by 5:00pm on 16 June 2006 or
MTF or any Primary Market Participant or the Lead Manager or any cther channel approved by
NZX in time to be forwarded to the Registrar by 16 June 2006.

Delivery
Applications cannot be revoked or withdrawn,

Application Forms and your payment may be mailed or delivered to the Registrar, or MTF, or to
any Primary Market Participant through which a firm allocation was obtained, or the Lead Manager
or any other channel approved by NZX in time to be forwarded to the Registrar by the applicable
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date. MTF is not obliged to accept applications which are received by the Registrar after the
Closing Date or the Priority Pool Closing Date.

Link Market Services

138 Tancred Street

PO Box 384 Ashburton

Telephone: 0800 377 388

Facsimile: 03 308 1311

Email: info@linkmarketservices.com
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application instructions: Exchange Offer

Holders of Capital Bonds who wish to exchange up to 100% of the aggregate principal amount of
their holding of Capital Bonds into an equivalent amount of Perpetual Preference Shares should
follow the Instructions below.

Each holder of Capital Bonds will receive a personalised Red Application Form separate from this
Cffer Document which shows their name and the aggregate principal amount of Capital Bonds
held by them. You should check that the details contained in the personalised Red Application
Form are correct and amend where necessary. This Red Application Form can only be used by the
exact legal entity which holds the Capital Bonds for up to the maximum specified in this Red
Application Form.

A holder of Capital Bonds can apply to exchange up to 100% of the aggregate principal amount of
the Capital Bonds held. To the extent applications exceed the $15 million Perpetual Preference
Shares reserved, applications seeking to exchange greater than 50% of thelr Capital Bonds for
Perpetual Preference Shares many need to be scaled. Scaling will be at the discretion of MTF in
association with the Lead Manager. Any Capital Bonds not exchanged into Perpetual Preference
Shares will be redeemed in cash on 30 June 2006.

Any holder of Capital Bonds who wishes to apply for Perpetual Preference Shares with an
aggregate principal amount which is greater than the aggregate principal amount of Capital Bonds
being exchanged by that holder must complete and lodge a separate Application Form for those
additional Perpetual Preference Shares (see "application instructions: General Offer and Priority
Pool" on page 79 of the Offer Document).

Holders of Capital Bonds should be aware that those who elect to exchange all, or part, of their
holding for new Perpetual Preference Shares under the Exchange Offer will not be disadvantaged
by electing to do so, as those holders will continue to receive interest at a rate of 10.7% per
annum applicable to the Capital Bonds until 30 June 2006 (being the redemption date applicable
to the Capltal Bonds), at which time the Initlal Dividend Rate on the Perpetual Preference Shares
allotted under the Exchange Offer will apply.

Once an application has been made to exchange some or all of a holder's Capital Bonds under the
Exchange Offer, the Capital Bonds to which the application relates will be unable to be transferred
to another party.

For further information regarding the Exchange Offer please refer to the "main terms of the
Offer" on page 9.

Insert details

Insert the aggregate principal amount of Capital Bonds to be exchanged into Perpetual Preference
Shares in the relevant box on the personalised Red Application Form.

An application for Perpetual Preference Shares must be for a principal amount of a minimum of
$5,000 and in multiplies of $1,000 thereafter.

Insert your address and other details.
Insert your Common Shareholder Number {CSN) and your IRD number.

If you hold a current Resident Withholding Tax Exemption Cenrtificate, tick the relevant box and
attach a copy of the certificate.

Select the payment method by which you wish to receive Dividend payments in relation to the
Perpetual Preference Shares.

If you select payment to your bank account, tick the appropriate box and insert the bank account
into which you wish Dividend payments to be deposited.
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If you select payment to Cash Management Account, tick the appropriate box, insert the name of
the NZX Firm where your Cash Management Account is held and provide your Cash Management
Client Account Number.

Read the Red Application Form and this Offer Document carefully and sign and date the form. It
must be signed by the applicant(s) personally, or by two directors of a company, or one director if
there is only one director, or by an attorney. If your Red Application Form is signed by an
attorney, the power of attorney document is not required to be lodged, but the attorney must
complete the certificate below. Joint applicants must each sign the Red Application Form.

Payment
No payment is required under the Exchange Offer.

Closing dates

Application Forms pursuant to the Exchange Offer must be received by the Registrar by 5:00pm
on 16 June 2006 or MTF or any Primary Market Participant or the Lead Manager or any other
channel approved by NZX In time to be forwarded to the Registrar by 16 June 2006.

Delivery
Applications cannot be revoked or withdrawn.

Red Application Forms may be mailed or dellvered to the Registrar, or MTF, or any Primary Market
Participant, or the Lead Manager or any other channel approved by NZX in time to be forwarded
to the Registrar by 16 June 2006. MTF is not obliged to accept applications which are recelved by
the Registrar after the Exchange Offer Closing Date.

Link Market Services

PO Box 384 Ashburton

138 Tancred Street

Ashburton

Telephone: 0800 377 388

Facsimile: 03 308 1311

Emaif: info@linkmarketservices.com
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BROKER'S STAMP
Motor Trade Finances Limited

Application Form: General Offer and Priority
Pool

This Application Form Is issued with the combined Prospectus and Investment Statement ("Offer Document™) prepared as at 30 May 2006,
issued by Motor Trade Finances Limited ("MTF"). Please attach your cheque to this application and return It to the Registrar, or MTF, or any
Primary Market Participant through which a firm allocation was obtained, or the Lead Manager or any other channel approved by NZX In time
for it to be forwarded to the Registrar by 28 June 2006 in the case of General Offer applications or 16 June 2006 in the case of applications
made pursuant to the Priority Pool.

BROKER'S CODE

1. Applicant(s) to complete, block letters please
Please enter name(s) in full {including all first names)

Title Legal First Name(s) Legal Famlly Name IRD Number

Corporate Name

D If you hold a current Resident Withhoiding Tax Exemption Certificate, please tick this box and attach a copy of the certificate.

I:I If you wish to recelve annual and interim reports by email only please tick this box and provide your emall address below.
Postal Address (including post code)

Ph - Home: ( )
Ph-Work: ()

Postcode: Emall (optional):

If you have a CSN number, please Insert it here:

2. Application - important

. Cheques should be made payable to "MTF Preference Share Offer” and crossed “Not Transferable”.

. MTF may refuse to accept applications it recelves after 5:00pm on the Closing Date or Priority Pocl Closing Date or any other
application at its discretion.

» The mintmum Investment amount Is $5,000 and in multiples of $1,000 thereafter.

Principal amount of Perpetual Preference Shares applied for: Cheque Attached for: $

3. Dividend payment Instruction options (please complete only one option):

D Option 1! Payment to my nominated bank account

D Option 2: Paymant to my Cash Management Account with an NZX Flrm
For option 1, my nominated bank account is:

Account Name{s):

Bank Branch Account Number Suffix

BN W || il

The account nominated above will be used for all payments of Dividends and principal when they become payable.

For optlon 2, the detalls of my Cash Management Account are as follows:

Name of NZX Firm where Cash Management Account Held:

Cash Management Cllent Account Number:

4, Priority Pool
D Please tick the box If you are:
A MTF staff member or Director.
I: Please enter your Dealer number In the box if you are a MTF Dealer.

If you are one or both of the above, your application will be included in the reserved allocation for the Priority Pool of $5 mlllion.
where applications under the Priority Pool exceed $5 milllon applications will be subject to scaling.
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5. Signature(s) of applicant(s)
1/We have read the Offer Document and hereby apply for the Perpetual Preference Shares as set out above subject to the terms and
conditions of the Offer Document as Issued by MTF and on the reverse of this form. I/We agree to accept the investments as applied
for or any lesser amount that may be issued to me, Pleaase read the back of this Application Form before signing.

Slanature of Applicant: Date;
Slanatyre of Aoplicant: —Date;
Slanature of Applicant: Date:
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Application instructions: General Offer and Priority Pool

1. Complete details.
. Insert your full name(s), IRD number(s), address(es), telephone number(s) and email address(es) {optional).
. Applications must be In the name(s) of natural persons, companies or other legal entitles.

. Applications by a minor, trust, fund, estate, business, firm or partnership, club or other unincorporated body cannot be accepted
unless they are made in the individual name(s) of the person(s) whao Is (are) the legal guardlan{s), trustes(s), proprietor(s),
partner(s} or office bearer(s) (as appropriate}.

. If you hold a current Resident Withholding Tax Exemption Certificate, tick the relevant box and attach a copy of the certificate.

. An application for Perpetual Preference Shares must be for a principal amount of a minimum of $5,000 and In multiplies of $1,000
thereafter.

. Select the payment method by which you wish to recelve payments In relation to the Perpetual Preference Shares.

. If you select payment to your bank account, tick the appropriate box and Insert the bank account Inte which you wish Dividend
payments to be deposited.

. If you select payment te Cash Management Account, tick the appropriate box, Insert the name of the NZX Firm where your Cash

Management Account Is held and provide your Cash Management Client Account Number.
. If you are applying pursuant to the Priority Pool indicate the basis of your ellgibility by ticking the appropriate box.
2. Signing

. Read the Application Form carefully and sign (and date) the form.

. The form must be signed by the applicank(s) personally, or by two directors of a company or one director if there is only one
director or under company seal, or by an attormey.

. If the Application Form Is signed by an attorney, an original or certified copy of the relevant Power of Attorney Is not required to be

lodged with the Application Form; however, the attorney must complete the certificate of non-revocation below.
. Joint applicants must each sign the Application Form.
3. Payment

. Payment of the total application amount in full must accompany the Application Form.

. Payment must be made in New Zealand dollars for Immedlate value, with a cheque drawn on a New Zealand bank.

. Where an application is for Perpetual Preference Shares of a principal amount of $500,000 or more, payment must be made by
bank cheque or such method of payment agreed as acceptable to the Lead Manager.

. Cheques must be made out in favour of "MTF Preference Share Offer”, and crossed "Not Transferable™.

4, Closing dates

. Closing Date is 5:00pm on 28 June 2006, or such earlier or later date as the Issuer may determine.

. Priority Poot Closing Date Is 5:00pm on 16 June 2006, or such earlier or later date as the Issuer may determine,

5. Delivery

. Applications cannot be revoked or withdrawn.

. Application Forms may be mailed or dellvered to the Registrar, or MTF or any Primary Market Participant through which a firm
allocation was obtained, or the Lead Manager or any other channel approved by NZX In time for them to be malled to the Registrar
by the Closing Date or the Priority Pool Closing Date,

. MTF may refuse to accept applications it recelves after the Closing Date or the Priority Pool Closing Date or any other application it
receives at its discretion. MTF wlll refuse to accept applications for less than the minimum amount.

Please read this before signing

I/We agree to be bound by the provisions of this Offer Document dated 30 May 2006.

I/We have read and understood this Offer Document. I/We have taken this Application Form from that document.

I/We agree that the information 1/we have disclosed in this form may be used by MTF and the Lead Manager for the purposes of
processing this application and sending me/us information relating to the Perpetual Preference Shares.

I/We agree that MTF and the Lead Manager may disclose this Information te third parties, only when such disclosure Is necessary for the
above purposes. If requested, I/we will be provided with details of such third parties.

The information received from me/us will be held securely by MTF, the Lead Manager. I/We may request access to the Information, and
I/we may also reqguest that it be corrected.

If signed under Power of Attorney, the attorney hereby certifies that no notice or information has been received of revocation by death or
ctherwise of that power. I/We certify that, where Information is provided by me/us In this form about another person, I am/we are
authorised by such person to disclose the information to you and to give authorisation.

In the case of joint applications, the joint applicants agree that, unless otherwise expressly Indicated In this Application Form, the
Perpetual Preference Shares wlll be held jointly as joInt tenants.

Cartificate of non-revocation of power of attorney
Complete this section If you are acting on behalf of someone for whom you hold Powar of Attorney.

L, oot eeareecestn et e AR R SRR RS SRS RS R AR SRR KR SA TR RRe R AR {Name of Attormey)

OF crrercrerseerre e s s e s e e e e WADANESS aNd Occupation of Attorney)
Hereby certify

1. That as Attorney of ........cccomcemvenrincescnnnnnn UNAEr @ deed dated ... e

givent to me by him/her/MTF. Day Month Year

2. That I have executed the applicatlon for Perpetual Preference Shares on the face hereof as Attomey under the sald Power of Attormey
and pursuant to the powers hereby conferred on me.

3. That at the date hereof I have not recelved any notice of information of the revocation of the said Power of Attorney by death or
otherwise.

SIgNed @b —————————————————

Day Month Year
SIGNALUNE ...oooev ittt s
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Directory

Directors Lead Manager
Roger A Bonifant, MAgSc, MSc, CNZM (Chairman) Forsyth Barr Limited
Angus R Bradshaw, BCA, ACA, F Fin, FNZIM Forsyth Barr House
{Managing Director) Level 6
Warwick N Cashmore Cnr Lambton Quay & Johnston Street
Graeme D Gibbons, BCom, CA PO Box 5266
Stephen ) Higgs, BCom, FCA Wellington
Lawrance S Saunders telephone: 0800 367 277
Kenneth J Cummings facsimile: 04 49% 7466
Registered Office of MTF Underwriter
193 Princes Street Forsyth Barr Group Limited
PO Box 885 Forsyth Barr House
Dunedin Level 6
telephone: 03 477 0530 Cnr Lambton Quay & Johnston Street
email: mtf@mtf.co.nz PO Box 5266
Wellington
telephone: 0800 367 277
Registrar facsimile: 04 499 7466

Link Market Services
138 Tancred Street

PO Box 384 Auditor
Ashburton Deloitte
telephone: 0800 377 388 Otago House
facsimile: 03 308 1311 481 Moray Place
PO Box 1245
Dunedin

Legal Advisers to the Offer
Phillips Fox

Tower Building

7th Floor

50-64 Customhouse Quay
PO Box 2791

Wellington
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BROKER'S STAMP

Motor Trade Finances Limited

Application Form: Exchange Offer

BROKER'S CODE

For the exchange of Capital Bonds for Perpetual Preference Shares

This Red Application Form Is issued with the combined Prospectus and Investment Statement ("Offer Document™) prepared as 2t 30 May
2006 issued by Motor Trade Finances Limited {"MTF").

This Red Application Form constitutes an offer to subscribe under the Exchange Offer for Perpetual Preference Shares issued by MTF as
described further below.

This Red Application Form Is only to be used by the holders of MTF Capital Bonds originally issued under a prospectus dated 31 May 1994,
21 July 1995, 30 Novemnber 2000 and 30 November 2004 who wish to apply to exchange any amount up to 100% of the aggregate principal
amount of thelr Capital Bonds into an equivalent aggregate principa! amount of Perpetual Preference Shares under the Exchange Offer.

Applications under the Exchange Offer must be recelved by the Registrar by 5:00pm, 16 June 2006. Applications under the Exchange Offer
will not be accepted after this time unless MTF determines otherwise. No money is payable by a holder of Capital Bonds applying to
exchange Capital Bonds for Perpetual Preference Shares.

If holders of Capital Bonds wish to apply for more Perpetual Preference Shares than they can exchange under the Exchange Offer, those
holders must complete a separate Application Form.

For further details see "main terms of the Offer” on page 9 of the Offer Document and the reverse side of this form. For Instructions on how
to complete and deliver this Red Application Form, see the "application instructions: Exchange Offer” on page 81 of the Offer Document.

1. Bondholder details

Bondholder name:

Bondholder number:

Aggregate principal amount of Capltal Bonds held:

2. Applicant detalls - important - applicants to complete:

Total amount of Capital Bonds to be exchanged for Perpetual Preference Shares:

. MTF may refuse to accept applications It recelves after 5:00pm on the Exchange Offer Closing Date or any other application at Its
discretion.

. MTF may scale applications at Its discretion.

Postal Address (inciuding post code)

Ph - Home: ( )
Ph - Work: ( )

Postcode: Emaill:

Please Insert your IRD number:
D If you hold a current Resident Withhelding Tax Exemption Certificate, please tick this box and attach a copy of the certificate.

D If you wish to recelve annual and interim reports by emaif only, please tick this box and provide your emall address below.

LII' you have a CSN number, please Insert it here:

3. Dividend payment Instruction options {please complete only one optlon):
I:I Optlon 1: Payment to my nominated bank account
I:I Optlon 2! Payment to my Cash Management Account with an NZX Firm

For option 1, my nominated bank account Is:

Account Name(s):

Bank Branch Account Number Suffix

B B I

The account nominated above will be used for all payments of Dividends and principal when they become payable.

For option 2, the detalls of my Cash Management Account are as follows:

Name of NZX Flrm where Cash Management Account Held:

Cash Management Client Account Number:

4, Signature(s) of applicant(s)
I/We have read the Offer Document and hereby apply for the Perpetual Preference Shares under the Exchange Offer as set out above
subject to the terms and conditions of the Offer Document as issued by MTF and on the reverse of this form. I/We agree to accept the
investments as applied for or any lesser amount that may be Issued to me. I/We hereby irrevocably appoint MTF as my/our attomey
for the purposes of completing all documentation necessary to be completed on my/our behalf to give effect to my/our application for
Perpetual Preference Shares under this Offer. Please read the back of this Red Application Form before signing.

Slgnature of Applicant: Date;







MOTOR TRADE FINANCES LIMITED

Application instructions: Exchange Offer

1. Complete detalis.

. Each holder of Capital Bonds has received a personalised Red Application Form with the Offer Document which
shows their name and the aggregate principal amount of Capital Bonds held by them, You should check that the
detalls contained in the personalised Application Form are correct and amend where necessary.

. This Red Application Form can only be used by the exact legal entity which holds the Capital Bonds for the
maximum specified in this Red Applicatlon Form for the Exchange Offer, If the name of the applicant does no
match exactly the name of the hoider of Caplital Bonds the application for Perpetual Preference Shares will not be

accepted.

. Insert the aggregate principal amount of Caplital Bonds you wish to exchange Into Perpetual Preference Shares In
the relevant box on the personalised Red Application Form.

. An application for Perpetuat Preference Shares must be for a principal amount of a minimum of $5,000 and in

multiplies of $1,000 thereafter.
. If you hold a current Resldent Withholding Tax Exemption Certificate, tick the relevant box and attach a copy of

the certificate.

. Select the payment method by which you wish to receive Dividend payments In relation to the Perpetual
Preference Shares.

. If you select payment to your bank account, tick the appropriate box and insert the bank account into which you

wish Dividend payments to be deposited.

. If you select payment to Cash Management Account, tick the appropriate box, Insert the name of the NZX Firm
where your Cash Management Account is held and provide your Cash Management Client Account Number.

2, Signing

. Read the Red Application Form carefully and sign and date the form.

. The form must be signed by the applicant{s) perscnally, or by two directors of a company or one director If there
is only one director or under company seal, or by an attorney.

. If the Red Applicatlon Form Is signed by an attorney, an original or certified copy of the relevant Power of

Attorney Is not required to be lodged with the Red Application Form however, the attorney must complete the
certificate of non-revocation below.

. Joint applicants must each sign the Red Application Form.
3. Payment

. No payment Is required under the Exchange Offer.

4, Closing date

. Exchange Offer Closing Date Is 5:00pm on 16 June 2006, or such earlier or later date as the issuer may
determine.

5. Delivery

. Applications cannot be revoked or withdrawn.

. Red Application Forms may be malled or delivered to the Registrar, or MTF, or any Primary Market Participant, or

the Lead Manager or any other channel approved by NZX In time for them to be recelved by the Registrar by the
Exchange Offer Closing Date.

. MTF may refuse to accept applications It recelves after the Exchange Offer Closing Date or any other application
It receives at its discretion. MTF will refuse to accept applications for less than the minimum amount.

. MTF may scale applications at lIts discretion.

Please read this before signing

1/We apply to exchange the aggregate principal amount of Capital Bonds shown above Inte the equivalent value of
Perpetual Preference Shares on the terms and conditions set out in the Offer Document dated 30 May 2006 and this
Red Application Form.

I/We acknowledge that I/we will not receive any redemption moneys In respect of the Capltal Bonds but will instead
receive an equivalent amount of Perpetual Preference Shares.

I/We acknowledge that I/we will receive a cash payment reflecting a final Interest payment of 10.7% per annum for
each $1,000 face value of Capital Bonds held, representing accrued interest on the Capital Bonds for the period from
1 January up to (and including) 30 June 2006.

I/We agree to be bound by the provisions of this Offer Document dated 30 May 2006.

I/We have read and understood this Offer Documment. I/We recelved this Red Application Form together with that
document.

I/We agree that the information I/we have disclosed in this form may be used by MTF or its related companles and the
Lead Manager for the purposes of processing this application and sending me/us information relating to the Perpetual
Preference Shares,

I/We agree that MTF and the Lead Manager may disclose this information to third parties, only when such disclosure Is
necessary for the above purposes. If requested, I/we will be provided with details of such third partles.

The Information recelved from me/us will be held securely by MTF, the Lead Manager. I/We may request access to the
information, and I/we may also request that it be corrected.

If signed under Power of Attorney, the attorney hereby certifies that no notlce or Information has been received of
revocation by death or ctherwise of that power. I/we certify that, where Information is provided by me/us in this form
about another person, I am/we are authorised by such person to disclose the Information to you and to give
authorisation.

In the case of joint applications, the joint applicants agree that, unless otherwise expressly Indicated In this Red
Application Form, the Perpetual Preference Shares will be heid jointly as joint tenants.

Certificate of non-revocation of power of attorney
Complete this section If you are acting on behalf of someone for whom you hold Power of Attorney.




MOTOR TRADE FINANCES LIMITED

) RN et re b bre (Name of Attorney)

of ... rersrearranrr st sy eeas ok d et sremennarbraene s (Address and Occupation of Attorney)
Hereby certify

1. That as Attorney of ... under a deed dated ...

given to me by him/her/MTF. Day Month Year

2. That I have executed the application for Perpetual Preference Shares on the face hereof as Attorney under the sald
Power of Attorney and pursuant to the powers hereby conferred on me.

3. That at the date hereof I have not recelved any notice of Information of the revocation of the sald Power of
Attorney by death or otherwise.

Signed at...... e e et brnrn et e .

Day Month Year
SIGNATUNE ..ottt rasr e ae




Motor Trade Finances Limited

Appointment of agent and authority to sign Prospectus
(Securities Act, Section 41(b))

|, Roger Anthony Banifant, being a director of Motor Trade Finances Limited hereby authorise
Angus Rochfort Bradshaw to sign on my behalf as agent the:

¢ Investment Statement and Prospectus for the issue of Perpetual Preference Shares in
Motor Trade Finances Limited intended to be dated 29 May 2006.

BUSINESS & REGISTRIES
BRANCH, AUCKLAND.
atel: 10 May 2006
ﬁ‘@\\ iy 30 MAY 2005
v
— RECEIVED

............................................................ Roger Anthony Bonifant

115399676 \ 0400768 \ TMSD1




11 MAY 2008

Motor Trade Finances Limited

Appointment of agent and authority to sign Prospectus
(Securities Act, Section 41(b))

I, Warwick Norman Cashmore, being a director of Motor Trade Finances Limited hereby
authorise Angus Rochfort Bradshaw to sign on my behalf as agent the:

s Investment Statement and Prospectus for the issue of Perpetual Preference Shares in
Motor Trade Finances Limited intended to be dated 29 May 2006.

10 May 2006

arwick Norman Cashmore

115399676 \ 0400768 \ TMSO1
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Motor Trade Finances Limited

Appointment of agent and authority to sign Prospectus
(Securities Act, Section 41(b))

1, Graeme Durrad Gibbons, being a director of Motor Trade Finances Limited hereby
authorise Angus Rochfort Bradshaw to sign on my behalf as agent the:

s Investment Statement and Prospectus for the issue of Perpetual Preference Shares in
Motor Trade Finances Limited intended to be dated 29 May 2006.

Dated: 10 May 2006

Graeme Durrad Gibbons

115399676 \ 0400768 \ TMSO1
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Motor Trade Finances Limited

Appointment of agent and authority to sign Prospectus
(Securities Act, Section 41(b))

|, Stephen James Higgs, being a director of Motor Trade Finances Limited hereby authorise
Angus Rochfort Bradshaw to sign on my behalf as agent the:

s Investment Statement and Prospectus for the issue of Perpetual Preference Shares in
Motor Trade Finances Limited intended to be dated 29 May 2006.

Dated: 10 May 2006

200 Y . VU Stephen James Higgs

J
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Motor Trade Finances Limited

Appointment of agent and authority to sign Prospectus
(Securities Act, Section 41(b))

|, Lawrance Sturrock Saunders, being a director of Motor Trade Finances Limited hereby
authorise Angus Rochfort Bradshaw to sign on my behalf as agent the:

s Investment Statement and Prospectus for the issue of Perpetual Preference Shares in
Motor Trade Finances Limited intended tc be dated 29 May 2006.

Dated: 10 May 2006

rance Sturrock Saunders

115399676 \ 0400768 \ TMS01
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11 MAY 2006

Motor Trade Finances Limited

Appointment of agent and authority to sign Prospectus
{Securities Act, Section 41{b))

I, Kenneth John Cummings, being a director of Motor Trade Finances Limited hereby
authorise Angus Rochfort Bradshaw to sign on my behalf as agent the:

s Investment Statement and Prospectus for the issue of Perpetual Preference Shares in
Motor Trade Finances Limited intended to be dated 29 May 2006.

Dated: 10 May 2006

Kenneth John Cummings |

115399676 \ 0400768 \ TMSO1
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REGULATION
25 May 2006

The Registrar of Companties
Private Bag 92061

Auckland Mail Centre
AUCKLAND

Dear Sir
Motor Trade Finances Limited - Perpetual Preference Shares

New Zealand Exchange Limited (“NZX”) hereby confirms that in terms of Regulation
23(2) of the Securities Regulations 1983, application has been made w NZX for
permission to st the above securities the subject of the Prospectus and Investment
Statement, and all the requirements of NZX relating thercto that can be complied with
on or before the date of distribution of this Prospectus and Investment Statement have
been duly complied with. However, NZX accepts no responsibility for any statement in
this Prospectus and Investment Statement.

Yours sincerely

Edward Bro
Solicitor

Page 10t 1




“L

Tel +84 4 472 6289
Fax +54 44727429

www.philipefox.com

i

BUSINESS & REGISTRIES
BRANCH, AUCKLAND.

Porth
Auckiand
Wellington

Sydney
Hanal
Ho Chi Minh Clty

o
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Third Supplemehtal Deed Relating to an Issue of Further

Capital Bonds
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Third Supplemental Deed Refating to an Issue of Further Capilal Bonds

Parties
Motor Trade Finances Limited (Company)

Trustees Executors Limited (Trustee)

Background

A This Supplemental Deed is supplemental to a Trust Deed (Trust Deed) dated
20 May 1994 between the Company and the Trustee as varied by Deed of
Modification between them dated 1 November 1986, as amended from time to time,
under which the Company presently has on issue capital bonds having an aggregate
principal amount of $25,000,000.

B By clause 2.2 of the Trust Deed power was resewved to the Company to create and
issue Further Capital Bonds, in accordance with the provisions of the Trust deed, to
be constituted.by. a deed supplemental fo the Trust Deed. .

c The Company has resolved to issue Further Capital Bonds having an aggregate
principal amount of $5,000,000.

D The Company has requested the Trustee to confirm that it accepts appointment as
: trustee in respect of such Further Capital Bonds, which the Trustee does by executing
this Supplemental Deed.

Operative provisions

1 The Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue)

Constitution of the Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue)

1.1 The Further Capital Bonds (2004 issue) shall be constituted by this Supplemental
Deed and clause 2.2 of the Trust Deed as Further Capital Bonds, which are intended
to, and shall, rank In point of priority and right of payment and ali other respects pari
passu with the MTF 1994 Capital Bonds, the Further Capital Bonds (1995 lssue) and
the Further Capital Bonds (2000 issue). The Company may create and issue Further
Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) of an aggregate principal amount not exceeding
$5,000,000.

Conditions of issue

1.2 The Conditions applicable to the Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) shall be the MTF
1994 Capital Bonds Conditions as amended by this Supplemental Deed and may be
modified from fime to time in accordance with the Trust Deed.

Certificates

1.3 Subject to clause 1.4, the Company will issue to each Bondholder of the Further
Capital Bonds (2004 issue) a Further Capital Bonds (2004 issue) Certificate in

V'

114537713 10371465\ TMCO2
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1.4

Status

~21.

respect of that Bondhalders Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue). This certificate shall
take the form set out in Schedule 1 of the Trust Deed.

The MTF 1994 Capital Bonds, the Further Capital Bonds (1995 Issue) and the Further
Capital Bonds (2000 Issue) are securities quoted on the New Zealand Stock
Exchange approved for transfer by electronic means, and the Company is exempted
from the provisions of Section 54 of the Securities Act 1978, and in particular the
requirement to issue certificates for these securities. So long as the Further Capital
Bonds (2004 Issue) are securiiies so quoted and approved then the Trustee will
accept the issue of a FASTER statement in accordance with the rules and the
regulations of the New Zealand Stock Exchange as an approved Certificate for the
MTF 1994 Capital Bonds, the Further Capital Bonds (1995 (ssue), the Further Capital
Bonds (2000 1ssue) and the Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue).

Subordination and status of the Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue)

All Further-Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) shall rank pari passu and without priority or - -
preference amongst themselves and with the MTF 1994 Capital Bonds, the Further
Capital Bonds (1995 Issue) and the Further Capital Bonds (2000 Issue).

Subordination

2.2

In respect of the Further Capital Bonds (2004 issue) all the obligations of the
Company to the Bondholders, or the Trustee on behalf of a Bondholder (in relation to
payment of the principal, interest and any sums payable) under the Further Capital
Bonds (2004 Issue) and the rights of the Bondholder os the Trustee on behalf of a
Bondholder against the Company In respect of such payment or repayment shall, at
all times (including without limitation on a Winding Up of the Company) be
subordinated in point of priority and right of payment as provided for, and in all other
respects the Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) shall be subject to Condition 2 and
Section 4 of the Trust Deed as if references therein to the MTF 1994 Capital Bonds
included a reference to the Further Capital Bonds (2004 1ssue).

Ranking of securities

2.3

24

As recorded in the Trust Deed and in a deed referred to in Schedule 2 of the Trust
Deed and subsequently executed and dated 20 May 1994, the MTF 1994 Capital
Bonds rank behind certain subordinated loans of the Company and are senior to
other subordinated loans of the Company. Algo as recorded in Deeds of
Acknowiedgement of Subordination between the Company, AMP Perpetual Trustee
Company NZ Limited and the Trustee dated 19 July 1995 and 30 November 2000 the
Further Capital Bonds (1995 Issue) and Further Capital Bonds (2000 Issue) rank pari
passu with the MTF 1994 Capital Bonds, behind certain subordinated loans of the
Company and are senior to the other subordinated loans of the Company.

The Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) rank pati passu with the MTF 1994 Capital
Bonds, the Further Capita! Bonds (1935 Issue) and the Further Capital Bonds (2000)

Issue.

114637713\ 0371465\ TMCO02
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3 Warranties

3.1 The Campany represents and warrants to the Trustee that the representations,
warranties and covenants contained in clauses 6.1 and 6.2 respectively of the Trust
Deed are frue and comect and have been duly performed, as the case may be as at
the date of this Supplemental Deed.

4 Deed supplemental

4.1 This supplemental deed is supplemental fo the Trust Deed (and shall together with
the Trust Deed by read and construed as one deed), notice of this deed shall be
endorsed on the Trust Deed and the words 'this Deed’ in the Trust Deed shall extend
to and include this Supplemental Deed.

5 Governing law

5.1 This Supplemental Deed is governed by the laws of New Zealand.

6 Definitions and interpretation

Definitions

6.1 in this Supplemental Deed (including the Schedules to this Supplemental Deed)

uniess the context otherwise requires:

Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) means the Capital Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of $56,000,000 as are constituted by this Supplemental Deed, and
offered by the Company by way of public offering, which are for the time being
outstanding.

Further Capital Bonds (2004 issue) Certificate means the certificate issued by the
Company in, or substantially in, the form set outin Schedule 1 of the Trust Deed
having the MTF 1894 Capital Bonds Conditions endorsed thereon and evidencing the
entitiement of the persons therein as a Bondholder of the Further Capital Bonds
(2004 issue) specified therein.

Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) Conditions means the terms and conditions
applicable to the Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) being in, or substantially in, the
form referred to in Schedule 2 of this Supplemental Deed or such other form as the
Trustee may approve (as modified from fime to time in accordance with the Trust
Deed) and any reference in this Supplemental Deed or in the Trust Deedto a
particutar numbered condition applicable o the Further Capital Bonds (2004 issue)
shall be construed as a reference to the corresponding numbered condition in
Schedule 1 of the Trust Deed as applied to the MTF 1684 Capital Bonds and as
modified in the manner set out in Schedule 2 of this Suppiemental Deed.

1145377431 0371485 \ TMCO2 ' /w
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interpretation

62 All words and expressions defined in the Trust Deed shall, unless the context
otherwise requires, have the same meaning in this Supplemental Deed (including in
the Schedules to this Supplemental Deed).

O

|

&

144537713\ 0371485 \ TMCO2



. ' phulbps
_|1] Third Supplemental Deed Relating to an Issue of Further Capital Bonds In?nx’

-§
JI Execution and date

Executed as a deed.

Date: 30 November 2004 MWW

Signed by ) Angus Bradshaw

Motor Trade Finance Limited ) Director o

inthe " ' .

in the presence of ; mck{/m—‘ P D Gl

hegehi

Witness signature; ? w o
Winess name: ?au,\&c RCM 004

’\ Occupation: R \ Sczcc;'c_-‘a-fj

Address:

Signed by

Trustees Executors Limited
under its common seal

Auﬁﬁnvg Authorised signatory
Witness sigmmﬁﬂﬂﬂ_] Witness signature: 'W
Witness name; R i Mapesrs ==

cusiness Manage Witness nam
mgton
Occupation: Wallington Occupation: Wellnglo

‘ :} Address: Address:
l 3

.2 (riz)

1146377131\ 0371465 \ TMC02
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Third Supplemental Deed Relating to an Issue of Further Capital Bonds

Schedule 1
Form of Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) Certificate

(Clause 1.3 and 1.4)

The Form shall be as for the MTF 1994 Capital Bond Certificate as set outin Schedule 1 of the
Trust Deed.

References to the Trust Deed shall be fo the Trust Deed as incorporating the terms of the Deed
of Modification dated 1 November 1996, the first Supplemental Deed dated 19 July 1995 the
second Supplemental Deed dated 30 November 2000 and this Supplemental Deed.

References to MTF 1994 Capital Bonds shall be deemed to be reference to Further Capital
Bonds (2004 Issue).

114537713 \ 0371465\ TMCO2
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Third Supplemental Deed Relating to an Issue of Further Capital Bonds

Schedule 2

Conditions of the Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue)

Clause 1.2

1 Appilcable conditions

11 The Conditions applicable to the Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue) shall be the
same conditions as from time to time apply to the MTF 19984 Capital Bonds, being at
the date of this Supplemental Deed in the form set out in Schedule 1 of the Trust
Deed, as if such were set out in full herein, but so that:

1.1.4 Any reference to MTF 1994 Capital Bonds shall be construed as a
reference to 'Further Capital Bonds (2004 Issue).

11.2 The first sentence of Condition 3.1(a) is substituted by:

Each Capital Bond bears interest from 17 December 2004
at the rate appiicable to MTF 1994 Capital Bonds as reset
on 30 June 2005, namely 10.6%.

1.1.3 The first interest Period Is the period to 30 June 2005.
1.14 The Capital Bonds may be transferred in multiples of $500. No transfer

shall be allowed which would result in the transferor or iransferee hoiding
Capital Bands having an aggregate Principat Amount of less than $2,500.

O

114837713\ 0371485\ TMCO2



32852088  13:39
16—JAN-1996 ©02:48 FROM

S0 2000 1o —_— TO 044951327 P.B2-742

BUSINESS & REGISTRIES
BRANCH, AUCKLAND.
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Underwriting Agreement

reiating to

the propossad offsr and issue ofup to NZ$35 million (with over-
subscriptions of up to NZ85 million) of fully imputed Perpetual
Preference Shares in Motor Trade Finances Limited

Forsyth Barr Group Limited
Underwriter

and

Motor Trade Finances Limited
Company

Date

ety ( &

Wiltngion PO Bow 1201 Tal 44 4 &137TI7 Fanfid & 423 30a5 @




38-05.2006 13:39
Jle-JAN-199¢ @2:48 FRoM

g

TG B44951327 P.B3-42

Contents

2- und‘m’[ﬂﬂg 4 I TR L LR DL L LS » radte ...u......u--.a

3- mr BT RY T PESITE e vy (S EEIN R TR L nwd AR IR I RA AP LI FORN I RA o0 o L] smsasaenaptaBiniUEl ErpaNImSy

4. Due diligence obligations of Company . S R |
5. Announcaments and advertisements e esssmsssenessesmsmsensecssssssansssopesrversetsarsenssssrassnsas 11

s. Bmﬂoﬂ of oﬁﬂr atsanspeniag LTI 12

7. Treatment of applications............ccmmmemennns senssmersessantreasear ey saREe R sR iR SRR |-
a- Und.mrmr" oh"galio“ 0" Shoﬂfa“ PTOTTT T IYY T Pl I TR DL Lottt n-n-nnn--lnno"-lnll.lcnoll13

g- Dumion o' u“demdmr‘s ﬂh“gﬂ“oﬂs Prrrrerrere PRI TYITTL I TEIRI SR AL LS ER AL L Ll Rttty ooﬁ.oolnu-.uuu-1‘

10.  Underwriting Foo o iestisrassecssternsscesonnerens SR—— VPRI, |
11. Final responslhility of Campany SRS |

12. warmﬂties L 1LL] 4 » rus nn""uu."n---‘-----.ounuunu.u.'ls

13. Conditlons ......cieremrisrcincnceens P — comsaes S RSP |
14. No competing offers .........ccomirmirmiosionnes SEUP PR, ¥ §
15. Costs of Offer......comeeceereens SO OT PR ER O e—- . .|
16.  Indemnity......ccocnneee CSob e rmereretare RS LI SR aenrneERA OO LS PE P SR s nme e R 1A P4 AN RO v nnaon B

17, Guods aﬂd Smices tax ----------- S U0 D4APER vIRRIAS IEEssaniuASSRVARLS SV AV SIRA LT TTT S nl‘luu-unul.nu-ucunoczs

18. Assignment and sub-underwriting .. nirininrense, “ )

19. "Otlcﬁs AgpsensgeannsaBERD P T Ll T T L L e F P T L L T A ELL ] * e bR ...-u.onao

20. Remedigs and waivars.. nsrsetnasrenstssanstersaneians rvreemesniane tecovnsanisasasssres a1

21. Miscellaneous .....co-cuinvicnnn ssessreomTsserErs vaeransesrasrenaes eenttasousnann w31

Annexure A: Draft Offor DDCUIMIBIS ..«..cccaisniirmmte i usosast sorsrassinns treeeus rateen sare vonsvte soas i ewn

Underweiing Agreement raialing (o the propaged oTer and Issus of NZE35 million of Parpatuat Prefirance Snenes \9, i

by Motor Trace Finances Limnilad




30-65 2006 13:39

167 :
AN-1996 @2:48 FROM TO Bd44951327 P.84-42

This Underwriting Agreament is made on 2006
botwoon (1) Forsyth Barr Group Limited (Underwriter)

and (2} Motor Trada Finances Limitad (Company)

introduction

A The Company praposes lo issue and affer for subscription up ia 35 miillon perpetual
preforance shares bearing a fixad-rate dividend of, Initially, 8.78% per annum at an Offer
Prica of $1.00 per share to investors in New Zealand (Inclyding holdars of capital bonds
issued by tha Company who wil have a preferential entitisment to subscribe for Offer

Shares) (the Offer).
B. The Gompany proposes to seek the ilsting and quotation of the Offer Shares on the NZDX.
C. The Company has requesied that the Undenwriter underwrite the offer of the Offer Shares,

and the Underwriter has agreed to do 30, on the terms set out in this Agresment.
itis agreed
1. interpratation

1.1 Definitions
in this Agreement, urtass the context otherwise raquires:
Advarticament has the meaning specified in saction 2A of the Securltles Act;

Application Form means the application form for Offer Shares attached to or accampanying
each copy of the Investment Statement and required to b executed by parsons wighing to
subscribe for Offer Shares under the Offer;

Banchmark Rate on any day means the rate per annum expressed on a percentaga yield
basis, and rounded up 10 the nearest bwo decimal places, which is:

{2) the averaga of the bid and affered swap rate displaved at or about 11,00 a.m. on that
day on page FISSWAP (or any successor page) of the Reuters menitor screan for an
intarest rate swap with a one yaar term; or

(b) ¥ arats is unable to be deisrmined in accordance with paragraph (a), or if the
Undarwriter forms the view that the rate so determined is not an accurate reflaction of
market ratss, the avarage of the blg and offered swap rates quotad by the Referance
Fanks al or about 11.00 a.m. on that day for an interest rate swap with 8 one year
arm;

Clasing Date means 28 June 2006 or such gther date as the Company and the Undenwritar
may agree,

Companles Act means ihe Companles Acl 1893,

Daebt Security has the meaning specified in section 2{1) of the Securities Act;

Debt-Linked Sscurity maans: @ .
%
)
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(a) an option issusd by any pereon that entities the haider to call for the isaue of Dabt
Securilise by a campany or that Is otherwise convartibie into, exchangeable for, of
redeemable by, the issue of Debt Securilies of a company;

(b] a debt or alher obligation of any person that may be convartible into, exchangaable for,
or redesmabyie by, the Issue of Debt Securities of a company;

(c) arightof pre-emption or of first rafugal in respect of 3 Debt Securily of a company;
{(d) asecurity interest over ab or part of a Dabt Security of a company;

(8) an agreemant to sell or purchase a Debt Security of a company;

(N = security that is substantially similar to a Dabt Security; and

{g) aright, powsr, agreement or amangamant that, when axarcisad or enforced, would be
a Debi-Linked Security within the meaning of paragraphs (a) to (1) of this definitior:

Defauit Rate means 7.65% per annum,;

Dividend Ruts means 9.75% per annum ar auch ather rals a3 may be fixed in accordance
with ciause 3.9;

Dividend Margin means 240 basis points above the Banchmark Rate;

Due Dillgence Investigations has tha meaning given lo that term in clauge 4.1;
Equity Security has the meaning epecified In section 2{1) of tha Securities Act;
Equlity-Linked Security means:

{a) an option issued by any persan that entities the holder to call for tha issua of Equity
Securities by 8 company or that is vtharwige convertible into, exchangeable far, or
redeamabie by, the issue of Equity Securities of a company,

(b)  a debt or other abiigation of any persan that may be convertible into, exchangeable for,
or radesmable by, the issue of Equity Sacurities of a company;

{c) a right of pre-emption or of firgl rafusal in respect of an Equity Security of a company;
{d) asecurity intarast over il or part of an Equity Security of a company;

(8) an agreemant to sell or purchase an Equity Sacunty of a company,

(D a security that is substantially simifar to an Equity Securlty; and

(@)  aright, pawer, agreement or arrangement that, when exercised or enforced, would be
an Equiy-Linked Security within the meaning of paragraphs (a) to (f) of this definition;

Falr Trading Act means tha Fair Trading Act 1986;
Group means the Company and its subsidiaries and, where the contaxt requiras, any ona or
maore of those campanies;
Group Company means any company that is a member of the Group; \
r
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GST means goods and senvicas tax as defined in the Gaods and Services Tax Act 1985:
indemnifled Person means:

(a) the Undenwriter;

(b)  esch subsidiary and ather Ralated Company of tive Underwrlter;

{(¢) each Sub-underwriter (if any); and

(d) any person who Is, or has been, a diractar, pariner, officar, sharaholder, agent,
employes or adviser of the Underwriter or any Sub-underwritar {if any};

Investmant Statemant means the Investment atatement in retation to the Offer, a draft of
which is annexad to this Agreement;

Listing Rules means the NZEX and NZDX isting ruies, as amendad from tima to time;

Mandate Letter means the letier dated 20 March 2006 from the Undarwriter to the Company
setting out the terms of engagement of the Underwriter in relaiion to the Offer;

Naterial Adverse Event means an event ar series of events, or any matter or information,
including any breach of @ Warranly or covenant of the Company under this Agraement, which
has or & kaly to have a material adverse affect on:

{8) 1iha Offer, the Offer Documents ar the sub-underwriting of the Offer;

(b} the Gompany's current er future financial condtion or operations ar on the currant or
future consolidated financial condition or aperations of the Company or its subsidiaries;

(¢} ihe abillty of tha Company to Issue the Offar Sharas at the Offar Price;

{d) gla ability of the Undarwriter to procure subscribers of the Offer Shares at the Offer
rice;

Maximum Resat Margin means 265 basis polms;

NZ GAAP means generally accepted accounting practice s defined in saction 3 of the
Financlal Reporting Act 1893;

NZDX maans the debt security market operaied by NZX;
NZSX means the main board equity Security markel operated by NZX;
NZX means New Zesland Exchange Limited;

Offer means the Invitation to investors In New Zealand (including halders of capital bonds
Ismd zg the Company) to subscribe for Offer Shares as set out In paragraph A of the
in uction;

Ofsr Date meens the date of the Offer Documents;

Offer Dacuments means:

{8) tha Prospectus; %
Unsawilng Agreamast relaling 10 Te prapated oFor and leawe of NZS3S miiton of Pargatias Prafarence Snares &9 3 @
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(b} the inveatment Statement,

(c) eachamendmant o the Prospaciua and/or the Invastment Stetement mada in
accordance with clause 3.2 or clause 3.6; and

(o)  all documents that accompany, or are distributad with, the Prospectus or the
' inveshment Statemant {including the Application Farm); and

(e) all matariat issued by, or with the authority of. the Company intanded to promote tha
Offer including any Advertisement in relation lo the Offer:

Offar Price means $1.00 per Offer Share;

Offer Shares means the perpetual preference shares bearing the Dividend Rate ta be
offered or issued under the Offer;

Prospuectus means the prospactus (as defined in saclion 2(1) of tho Securities Act) in
ralation to the Offer, a draft of which is annexed to this Agreemant;

Reference Banks means ANZ National Bank Limited, Bank of New Zeaiand and Weslpaic
Banking Corporation;

Rogistrar of Companies means the Registrar of Companies appolnted in acogrdance with
the Companiles Act,

Raglistration Date means the date of reglelration of the Prospactus with the Ragistrar of
Companies, which will bs no later than 1 June 2006 (or such other date as tha Company and
tha Linderwriter agree);

Regulations means the Securities Regufations 1883;

Related Campany has the meaning specified in section 2(3) of the Companies Act 1883 as
# that seclion appiled to companies incorporated In and outside New Zeatand and Raetated
Gompanles has a correaponding meaning:

Related Party means any Relsted Company of the Company and any directar of the
Company or of any of its Relatad Comgpantes;

Ralevant Laws means all laws applicable in New Zealand, including all legislation.
raguiationa, orders-in-council and by-aws;

Roest Margin meens 240 basis poinis, heing the number of basis points t ha added o the
Benchmark Rate as at each date on which the Dividend Rate on the Offar Shares is reset in
accordancs with the terms of the Offer Shares. or such other number of basis points as may
be fixad In accordance with clause 3.9;

Securities Act means the Securities Act 1978,

Shortfail means the dofiar value that constitutes tne differencs betwsen the Undarwrittan
Amount and the aggregate dollar value of Valid Applications recelived by the Company;

Shortfall Notica has the meaning given 1o thal term in clause 8.1;

Shortfall Shares means the Offer Shares in ba subscribed for by tha Underwriter, of
parsons procured by the Underwriter, in the avant 3 Shortfall undar and In aceordanc
clauses B.2 and 8.3

Lindmrwiting Agresment reiasng io the orogoncd offer and iseue of NZ5S milon of Fampetus! Praforoncs Sharex
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Sub-underwriter means any person with whom the Underwriter entars into an agreement or
arrangement for the sub-undenwriting of ail or part of the Underwriter's underwriling
commitments under this Agreament,

@

(b}

(c)

. Termination Date means the garlier of:

the dats on which the Company recalvas Vaiid Applications for ail of the Offer Shares
without recourse 10 the undsrwriting obligations of the Underwriter under this

" Agreement;

the date on which the Undsnwitsr discharges its payment abligations under clause 8.2
with raapect {o the Shortfall Shares; and

the dats on which this Agreament is terminated pursuant 10 tiause 12.3 or clause 13.3;

Underwriting Fae means such amount as is equal to ons per cent. of the Undarwritten
Amount;

Underwrttian Amount means $35,000,000;

Underweftton Rate means the aggregate of the Dividend Rale plus 25 bagis points;

Valid Appilcation means an application to subscriba far Offer Shares under the Offer that is
recaived by or on behalf of the Company at such place as is specified In Ihe Offer
Documents on or prior to £.00 p.m. on the Closing Date Ihat:

(a)

{v)

(v)

is made on an Application Form that has besn properly completed, exacuted and
lodged in accordance with the appiication instructions printed on the Application Form
ar contalned in ane or mere of the Offer Documents and accompanied by such
dacuments as may be required under those application instructions to accompany an
application for Offer Shares under the Offer,

is agcompaniad by 8 cheque or ather payment permitied by the Instructions on the
Applicstion Form or contalred in one or more of the Offar Documents for the full
amount of the Offar Price payabis for the number of Offer Shares applied for {(and,
whara paymant is mede by chequa, that chaque has not bean dishanaurad on or
he:]ors the date (hat the Company gives notice to the Underwriter under clause 8.1);
an

is lawdul, under New Zaaland law and the laws of any other ralevant jurisdietion, for the
Company to accept; and

Warranty means a reprasenlation and warranty given by the Company to the Underwriter
under clause 12 and Warranties has a correcponding maaning.

Construction of certain refaerences

Im this Agreemant, ynlesa the context atharwise raquires:

(a)

(b}

an agresmant includes a contract, desd, icenca, undertaking and other document or
legally enforceable arrangement (In @ach case, whether or nof In writing, gresent and
futura) and includes that document as amanded, assigned, novated or substitulad

from time 1o time,
s !

Vvl

an authorisation includes;
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(e}

(d)

(e)

{9}

(h}
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0

(k)

m
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() anyconsent, suthorisation, registration, filing. agreement, notarisation,
cerificale, permission, livence, approval, autherity or xemption from, by or with
a governmanial agency; or

w n relation ia anything that wii be proscribed or restriclad in wheis o part by law
if a government agency intervanas of acts in any way within a specified period
aftar isdgement, filing, registration or notification, the expiry of that periad
withaut such intervention or action;

2 busineas day means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which registered
banks are cpen for general banking business in Wellington and, whera paymant is
required in foreign curmancy, banks are open for business in the required place of
paymant;

a conaent includes an approval, suthorisation, exemption, filing, licenca, ocder, pammil,
recording and regietration;

costs incurred by a person include alf commissions, charges, losags, expenses
(Inciuding legal fees on @ solicitor and own chent Basis) and taxes incurred by that

persan;

financlal statementa has the meaning specified in section 6(1) of the Financlal
Repariing Act 1893;

the liquidation of a person inciudes the dissolution, winding-up and bankruptcy of that
persan and any analogous protedura Under tne lew of any jurisdiction in which that
person Is incorporated, domiciled, carries on business or has property;

lnas includes loss of profit and loss ¢f margin;

a parson includes an individual, body corparats, an assaciation of parsons (whether
carporate or not). a trust, a afaie, an agency of a alate and any other entity (in each
casa, whather ¢r nat having saparate legel personalily):

property inciudes the whole and any part of the refavant person’s business, assets,
undanaking, revenuss and rights {in aach case, present and future), and reference lo
any praparty includes any legal or equitablse intergst in it

a subsidiary of a porson includes:
() & subsldiary a3 defined In sections § and 6 of the Companies Ack; and

(i}  asubsidiary in tarms of any finencial reparting standard issued from time to tima
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Naw Zealand;

and subsldiaries has a carresponding meaning;
a sacurily intarast includes:

()  amarigage, pladge, chargs, lien, hypothecation, ancumbrance, deferred
purchase, title retention, finance (ease, contractuai right of set-off, flawad asset
srrangement, sale-and-repurchase and cala-and-aaseback arrangement, order
gn:d other a;rangamam of any kind, tha econamic affect of which I8 1o secure 3

itor, an

by Malor Trads Findrias Limived

(1)  a“security Interast” as defined in section 17(1)(a) of the Personal Prop
Securities Act 1398 In respect of which the relevant person is the deb
6 i

Underwriiing Agrsarnant reladng fa tha prapasad offer and lasus of NZSI5 milian of Porpatual Prafarsnce Sharoe \}




3B-05/2006

1.3

1.4

1.5

LUindanwiiting Agrasmun ralpting 1o he pronasad offer and asus oF NZEIT mition of Parpetuni Profgmice Shams
by Mator Trode Fasscas Limind

13:41

but does not include:
() a len arising solely by operation of law: or

(v}  a securlly interest taken in collateral by a sefer lo the axtent that it securas the
obiigation o pay abl or part of the purchase prioe of that collateral, whars that
oollalaral is purchased in the ordinary course of business of the buyer and the
purchase price is paid within 60 days of supply; or

(v) aneting or set-off arrangemant entared into in the ordinary courss of a persan's

banking arangemants for the purpose af netting debit and credit balances;

(m) tax{es)inciudes any lax, lsvy, impost, stamp or other duty and any othar charge,

deduction or withhakiing of a simitar nature (Including any penally or interest payable in

connaciion with any fallure to pay or eny delay in paying any of the same); and

(n) writing includes a facsimlie transmission, an amail communication and any means of
reproducing words In a tangitie and permanently visible form:

Gensaral References
RafErences to:

(a) a perty, clause, schedule or snnaxure is a reference 1o a party ta, clause of,
scheduls to or ennaxure to, this Agraamant,

(b}  thaword include in any form is not a word of iimitation;

(¢}  anagreamant, representation or undsrtaking given by a party in favour of two or
mare porsons is far the benefit of tham ointly and aach of tham severally;

(d) 3 gender inciudes each othar gendar;
(&) the slagular includea the plural and viea versa;

(h  where a word or phrasa is defined, its other grammatical ferms have a corresponding
. meaning;

{g) dollars or § are refersnces 1o New Zealand currency,
(h} time of day are refarencas to New Zeatand time; and

(d  any document {hawever described) ingludes references to that document as modifiad,
novated, supplemantad, varied or replaced from time to time.

Statutes

Any leglslatian includes a madification and re-anactment of, legisiation anzcted in
subatitution for, and a regulation, erder-in-council and other Instrument from time ta time
igsuad or made under, that lepisiation.

Parties

A reference (o any parly 1o this Agresment or another agreement includes, as far as is
consistent with the provisians of this Agregment, that pasty's successors and s Ittad
assigness and transfaraes.

— 16TIAN-1996 @2:59  FROM TO 844951327 P. 18,42
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1.6 Headings
Headings and the table of contants are to be ignared In canstruing this Agreemant.

2. Underwriting

{a) The Underwritar agrees to underwrita, in the manner provided for in clause 8, the Offer
up 1o the Underwnition Amaunt, subject to the provislons of ihis Agreemant.

(b) The Underwriter warrants that il hae all necessary corporate and reguistory spprovals
and authorisations ta anter into, and parform Its ohligations under this Agreement and
to ba issued and 10 hold the Shortfall Shares.

3. Offer

3.1 Offer

(a) The Company will invite applicationa for the subssription of Offer Sharea by mambers
of the publla and other Investors in New Zealand (including holdars of capita) bonds
issued by the Company who are to have a prafarentlal antitement to subscribe for
Offer Shares under tha Dffar) by making the Offer, and distributing the Offer
Documents, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreemant.

{5) The Company must ensure that the Offar and the Offer Documants complyin all
reapects with ail Ralavant Laws, Including without fimitation:

()  the Sacurlties Act, the Regulations, tha Companies Act and the Listing Rules;
and

() the Falr Trading Act,

subject to any written waivars or exsmptions fram any such requirements obtained by
the Company from NZX or the Securities Cammission and ratified by the Company in
writing to the Undarwriter.

{c) The Offer is nol lo ke made, and the Offer Documents are not to be made gvailabie, to
persons outside New Zagland.

3.2 Offer Price and Torms of Offer Shares
(a}) Each Offer Shara is to be affared by the Company at the Offer Price.

(b)  Each Offer Share is to bear tha Dividend Rals and is to be offered and issued on the
terms and conditions set cut in the Offer Documents annexad fo thig Agreement as
Annaxurs A

33 Form of Offer Documents

(a) When distributed, the Offer Documents must be in the form annexed to this
Agreament as Annexure A, with only such amendments:

{iy  as are approved in wriling by the Underwriter; of
()  es are requirad hy the Registrar of Companias, or by NZX for the Purpose
the Llsting Rules, under clauge 3.4.

wmnnmmumumnnummmammdmmmdﬁmmmsum
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(b}  The Underwriter may nat unreasonably or arbitrarily withhold or delay Its approval i
any amendmant rescnably required for the Offer and the Offtar Documants o comply
with clause 3.1(b) or any chenge reasonably required by the Company.

(c) Naither this ciauss 3.3, nor tha making of any amendment io the Offer Documents
pursuant to it fwhether ar not that amendment is approvad by the Undarwriter) wil
_ affect the intarpretation of, or prejudice the righs of, tha Underwriter under clauces 8
or 11.

34  Approval and registration of Offer Documents
The Company must pracura, by no later than 1 Juna 2006, that:
{a) the Offer Documaents are approvad by the Regisirar of Companias and by NZX (for the
purposes of the Listing Rules), and the constitution of the Company and any
Agmumar;t in relation to the Offar are approved by NZX (for the purposes of the
L Rules);

(b) all requiremsnts of N2X raiating to quotation of the Offar Shares that can be complied
with on or before the date of the Offer Documents have been compfied with; and

{¢) the Prospectus is ragistered in accordance with the Securities Act.

35 Quotation and tisting
The Company shali usa its best andeavowrs 10

(a) abtsin the quotation of the Offer Shares on the N2DX on or befors ihe fourth business
day aftar the Cloging Data;

()  ensure that all consents, dacumantation, information, solicitors’ gpinions and monsys
requirad by the Registrar of Companias or NZX to ablain approval of the Offer
Documents and registration of the Frospectus, as refermed 10 in clause 3.4, and 1o
oblain quotation of the Offer Shares on the NZDX in acoardance with this clause, are
provided to the relevant parson;

(c) comply at ali imea with the Listing Ruies; and

{0}  maintain the quotatian of the Offer Shares on tha NZOX for six months after the
complation af the Offer.

3.6  Printing and delivery
Tha Company must, at ite expense, arrange for:

{a) the proofing and subsequant printing of euch numbar of copies of the Offer Documents
as the Underwriter may reasonshly require; and

{b) tha distribulion and dalivery prior tc 5.00 p.m. 8 June 2006:
(I} tothe Undarwriter; and
() to such athar persons as tha Underwritar may nominats,

of s-.:ch number of coples of the Offer Documents as the Underwritar mayQaibly
raguira, '

Undenwnung Agreement safating 1o (e 0ropezed offer and lasve of N2$35 millien of Perpeius! Prefamncs Shamd
Ty Molor Trade Finamoes Limitad




§
,,: 16@;&5:29&6 13:42
P B IAN-1996  B2:51 FROM TO 844951327 P.13/42

37 Amended Offer Documents

(@ The Company must not amend the Prospacius or the invastment Statement after the
Progpecius has been registared with tha Ragstrar of Companies without the prior
writtan appraval of the Undenwriter.

(b) The Undarwritar may not unraasonably withhold or delay its approval 1o any such
amendment if such amsndmant ls reasonably required for tha Offer and the Offer
Qocumens to comply with clause 3.1(b)-

3.8 Sub-underwriting

Without limiting the Undenwriter’s liablity under ciause 2 the Company confirms that it has
duly authorissd the Underwriter: .

(a) toobtsin, in accordance with Relevent Laws and subjact to the obiaining of apprapriate
confidentiality undenakings (in a form equivatent to that contained in clause 21.10),
sub-undenwriting cammitments {n respect of the Offer;

(b} tosllocate, In accardance with Relevant Laws, (but subject ta the preferential
antilement of capital bond haidera of the Company and Company doalera and
employeas ta subscribe for Offer Sharas under tha Offer up to 8 maximum amount of
$20 miilion), certain of the Otfer Shares on a firm allacatian basis to Sub-undenwriters,
institutions, brokers, persons autharised to undertake trading activities by NZX and any
othar persons selected by the Underwriter, and

{¢) to distributs, in accordance with Relevant Laws, copies of tha draft Offer Documents
and alhar material and information In connaction with the Offer for the purpose of
oblalning sub-underwriting commitments in raspect of the Offer.

3.9 Dividend Rats and Reset Margin

The Undarwriter reservas tha right, with the agresmant of the Company {which agreement i
not to be unragsanably withhetd or delayad), W require the Company 1o ingrease the Dividend
Rate for the Dftar Sharas up to the Underwrittan Rate, and/or increass the Respt Margin up
1o 1he Maximum Reset Margin. at any time up to and inciuding the Glosing Date, # such
increase is advisable, in the Underwriter's sole opinion, 1o enswre ihal the Offar Is successful.

4. Due diligence obligations of Company

4.1 Oue diligence

The Company shall, until the Termination Dats, make, and continue to make, all reasonable
enquiries, lake all reasonable precautions and exaralse al reasonable due diiigence to
ensure that

(a) there are no material arissions from the Offer Dacuments; and
(b} the statements includad in the Otfer Documents:

(i)  aretrus and camplets in all material respects and are not migleading or
deceptive in any material respact; and

{ do :g:t bacame untrue, inaccurate, mislsading or decepfive n any material
respect,

Unasniing Agresmant relafing ' ha proposed oTer Ind Issus of NZ533 milfign of Porpriunl Prefarsnce Snares &(&
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{all such activitios being referred o as the Due Diligence Investigations).

Due diligence commitiss
(a) The Campanywill procure that the Due Diiigenca Investigations are carriéd out thraugh
: an eppropriatety constituted due diligence commities on which the Company is
raprasanted.

{5} The Underwritar may attand and participate io mastings of the due diligence
committee but will not In any circumatances be 5able 1o the Company or any other
person far Infarmation and/or advice provided by the Lindanwriler to the due diligance
commitlee.

Duwe diligences report

The Company will:

{a) pravide a fina) copy of the due diligence repart praparet for the Company with raspet
to the Due Diligence investigations to the Underwriter at ieast two businass days prior
10 the Offer Date; and

(t) procure that the Underwriter is entitied ta rely on that report and it legal and
scgounting ?lgn-offa and/or opinians contsmplated by that report (a8 contemplated by
clause 13.1(1)).

Notification of significant change
Withaut limiting clause 13, If at any tme the Company disgovers or Ia notified that:

{(a) there i3 a materal change affacting any information containad in the Ofisr Documents;
or

(b) amatter has arisen that, if it had cccurred when the Offer Cocuments werg baing
preparad, wauld reasonably have been required lo have been disclosed,

the Campany must notify the Underwriter immaaiately of that change or matter. in this evant,
the parties are 1o consul! inmed!ataly on the most approgriate caurse of aclion to be taken in
connaclion with that change or matter.

Announcemants and advertisaments

T0 B44551327 P.14742

5.1

Lindarwiiting Agrsames retating 15 the proposed offar and Istys 6f NZ§35 miflion of Perpeiual Preforance Shares
by Siokor Trege Flnantes Limited

Approval of announcements

The Company undertakes that it will not, and will pracure that no Related Parly or agent of
the Company’s Related Party will, withaut the priar writien approval of the Underwriter (which
approval is not to be unreasonably withheld or datayad), make ar cause or parmiRt any
announcement to be made, or any information to be disseminsted, that is or may be
inconsisiant with or materisl io, or doss ar may malerially affect, the Offer or the Offer
Documents,

{(a) The Underwriter will hot unreasonably withheld or delay its approval to any such
annourcement or dissemination of information.
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52  Approval of advertisaments

The Campany undertakes fhat it will not, and will procure thet none of its Related Parties nor
any agent of tha Company of any of its Reiated Parties will, without the pricr written agproval
of the Undenwriter (which approvat (s nat to be unreasanably withheld or delaryed), publish or
cause or parmit 1o be published any Advarisement or advertising material that:

(a) s or may be material lo, or Inconaistent with, the Offer or the Offer Documents: or

(b) is. or may be considerad to be, caiculatad to raise public awareness of the Campany
or the Offer,

53 Promotional actlvitias
The Company musl, at is expenes, cause:

{(a) such promotional activities (including the making of presentations to brokers, Sub-
underwriters, institutiona! invesiars and the media) to occur; and

{b) such Advertisaments, advertising materiel, annauncements and information to be
published and disgseminatad,

betwaen the data of this Agresmem and the Closing Date that the Linderwriter and the
Company agree are resscnably hacessary or desirable 10 succeasfully market the Offer and
{0 encuurage the making of apphcations lo subseribe for the Offer Shares pursuant to the
Offer. The Company s {o ansure that oll auch promotionat activiies comply in all matarial
raspacts with all Relevant Laws,

6.4 Advertising costs

Withouwt limiling its obligations under clause 5.3, the Company will ensure that up n a
maximnum of $50,000 Is spant by it on such promational activities and on the publication and
dissemination of such Adverliaements, advartising material, announcements and information
in relation lo the Offar hetwaen tha date of this Agreamant and ths Closing Date as the
Underwritar may roasanably require.

B. Duration of Offer

6.1 QOffer opens

The Company will open the Offer for the receipt of applications at 3:00 a.m, on the Offer Date
or any later lime agreed by the Campany and the Undorwriter.

6.2 Offar closes

{s) Tha Company will close the Offer at 5:00 p.m. on the Clasing Dale or gadier, with the
approval of the Undepwriter, If Valld Appilcations for all of the Offer Shares have heen
raceived before the Closing Dale.

{b) The Underwriter may not unressonably withhold or delsy its approval {0 any change in
the Qffar Data or Clasing Date requested by the Company.

Undarrting Agreement niaung & na prapoasd offar and lasus of NZEAS millen of Porpolutl Praferenca Bharss \9\ 1
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8.3 Election not to praceed

Notwithstending clauses 6.1 and 6.2, the Company shall ba entitied to give notica to the
Underwritar that it has slected not io praceed with tha Offer.

7. Treatment of applications

7.1 Acceptance of Valid Applications

(2] The Companyis in accept afl Valid Applications {except to tha extent of any nocessary
scaling) uniess the prior approval of the Underwriter has been abtained.

(b) The Campany must, in the event af over-application, scale appiications for Offer
Sharas under the Offer.

(c}  Incetormining which appiications to scals, and the methed of scaling, the Company

must consult with, and give due and proper cangideration la the reasonable views of,
ihe Ungarwriter.

72  Norequirement to take up Shortfall If Valld Application refused

if any refusal by the Gompany to accept any Valid Appiication for Offer Sharas results ina
Shortfall, the Underwriter witl not be obliged to lake up that amount of the Shortfail that is
aftributable to the refusal by the Company to accept any Valid Applicatien.

7.3 Issue of Offor Shares
The Company is 1o issue the Offer Sharas withia five husiness days of tha Closing Date lo

applicants whose Vaiid Applications have hesn accepted (whather in full or In part anly) by
the Company.

8. Underwriter's obligation on Shortfall

8.1 Notice to the Underwriter of shortfall

if Valid Applicalions are not raceved ty the Company In respact of ail of the Offer Shares by
5:00 p.m. on the Closing Date, the Company will be entilled, within two business days
following tha Clasing Dale, to give notics (Shartfall Notice) In writing to the Underwriter:

(a) datalling the dolier vaiua of Offer Shares for which Valid Applications have not bean
received at the Offer Prica, but excluding any Offer Sharea for which Valid Appiications
have not been received a3 a result of 2 failure by the Company o comply with the
Listing Rules ar any Relavant Law in relation to the Offer or a refusal by the Company
that falls within clause 7.2; and

{b) rsohqulring the Underwriter io procure applications for, or to apply itself for, the Shortfall
ares.

8.2 Appllcations for Shortfull Shares

(3) Within four busineas days of tha date of recalpt of 2 Shorifall Notice, or within auch
sxanded time {if any) as that notice may spacify, the Underwriter must;

Urngarwriing Agrearmians 1eiasing I (o pTpesed offer 300 11600 of NESI5 miion of Parpeius! Frefesence Sharea \D,
ty Mator Trwde Firancos Linsiad
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(i}  procura that applications are made ta the Gempany o apply itseif for the
Sharifall Sharas; and

(i)  make or pracurs the paymant, in full, of the issua price for the number of
Sharttall Eharas that is caloutated in scoordancs with clause 8.2{c).

() The Shortfall Shares for which tha Underwriter is to apply, or cause appfications to be
mads, are;

(i) 1o be denominated in dollars,

() torank pard passu with, and hove the same Dividend Rate 88, the other Offer
Shares; and .

{ii) o belssued at an Iseue prica reflecting a yleld, from the data of issua of the
Shortfall Shares to the first dividend reset date of the Offer Shares, equal 1o tha
Underwrilten Rate,

(¢) The number of Shorifall Shares to ba Issued 1o the Undarwriter (including Shortfall
Shares Igsued to the applicants pracured by the Undemwriter for the purposss of this
clause B) is to be calculated by tha Underwriter such that the aggregale issus price for
such Shorifall Sharas equals the amount of the Shortfall.

lsgue of Shortfall Shares

Tha Company must Immadiaiely lasue ihe Shorfall Shares to the applicants for which
applications and payment hava been made undar clause 8.2 immadiately on recaipt of those
applications and payments.

Duration of Underwriter's obligations

10.

The obligations of the Underwritar under this Agresment commenog on the date of this
Agreament and continus until the eariiest of.

{a) the Termination Date;

(b) 5.00 p.m. on the Jdafs twa business days afer the Closing Date if the Company does
not give a Shortfall Notica by the time specified in clause 8.1;

(c) the date on which the parties agree that the obligations of the Underwriter under this
Agreemant should terminate,

at which tima the Underwriter’s abligatfons under this Agreement wil tarmirats without need
for further notice ar gction.

Underwriting Fee

10.1

Underwriting Fee

(2)  inconslderation of the Underwriter agreeing to underwrite the Offer, the Company Is to
pay the Underwriling Fee o the Linderwritar as follows:

60 garcant of the Underwriting Fem is fo be peid on tha date of fhis Agraement; Q
an

UndarwiilUng Agradmant relating 1 1hd proposad offer And tagua of NZS35 mition of Purpeiusal Profersncs Shatas & .
by Motor Tradn Firencen Limited %
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(i)  the remaining 50 percent af the Underwriting Foe Is to be paid:

(A) if thers is no Shorifak, on the dete of issue of the Offer Shares under the
Offar; or

(B} Ifthare is a Shonfal, onthe dale of tho Isaue of the Shorifall Shares.

(v) The Underwriter is respansible for paying all sub-underwrifing fees payable lc Sub-
underwriters by the Underwritar In connection with the Offer. The Campany has no
respongiblity or ltabiiity for any amounts payable to Sub-underwriters.

Qther fess

The Underwriting Fee payable by the Company to the Underwriter under clause 10.1 will be
exclusive of any lead managemaent fee, co-fead managemant fas, co-management,
organising participant fee, lead brokerage, firm brokerage, brokerage, stamping or other fees
payabia by or on bohalf of the Company to the Underwriter in cannaction with financiat or
other advice or services rendetad by the Linderwriter to the Company i relalion to the Offer
or otherwise as sel outin the Mandate Lettor.

interest

i any moneya payable by a party to this Agreement to any other party pursuant to this
Agreement are not paid by the due date for paymert, the firat-mentioned party ls to pay to
that other party interest on the overdue amount calculated from its due dale lo the date of ite
recaipt by that other party in full at a rate squal to the Default Rate calculated dally on the
unpaid amount from and Including the due date for payment but excluding the date that
paymem ls made i full.

Final responsibility of Company

11.1

11.2

Offer Documents and promotional activities
Although the Underwriter may assist tha Company In gannacilon with:
(a) the preparation of the Offer Documants; and

{(b) the promatianal activities to be undertaken and advertising materlal {including
Advertisemants), announcamants and information to be published and disseminaled,
in relation to the Offer,

the Company agrees and acknowlsd&; that it is the rasponsibliity of the Campany and ts
board of directors to ensurs that the Qffer Documents and all such promational activities,
advariising material (including Adverlisaments), anncuncements and infaermation comply with
all Relevant Laws, including without limitation,

{¢) the Securities Act, the Regulations, the Companies Act and the Listing Rules; and
{d) the Fair Trading Act
Decision to proceed

The Company remains sclely responsibla for the underlying business decisian 1o proceed

L A R S e e ey

with the Offer.
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Warranties

12.4

Wamntlla

The Company reprasents and warrants to the Undenwriter and any Sub-underwriter (with the
intant that the Underwriter and any Sub-underwriter shouid rely on uch represontations and
warranties in entaring Inte this Agreement and any sub-underwriting agreement or
arrangement batween the Underwriter and any Sub-underwriter) that:

(a)

(&)

(=)

Rostraint on Offer

{)  noaction has baen laken, and

() no proceeding or pracess has been commenced or thraalaned or {s pending,
against tha Company 1o restraln or challenge fts right, power or ability:

(ili)  te offer and lssue the Offer Shares or 10 publish and issue the Offer Documents,
of any othar documant offering the Offer Shares; or

(iv) D enter into or perfarm this Agraament ar any other agraement to which it (s or
wil be a party In relation to the Offer or the Offer Ducuments or that Is otherwise
referred fo in the Offer Documants;

Offar Documents complete

iy the Offer Documants wil be true, complets (including there being no material
amigsions of any facts or (nformation the omlasion of which would make any
gtatemant In the Offer Documants Lintrue, incamplets, inaccurate, misleading or
deceptive in any matarial respect) and accurate and portaln or fully refiect all
infarmation raguired by the Securities Act, the Reguiations, he Ligling Rules
and any othar Retavant Laws In ralation to the Offer subject to ary writien
walvers or exemptiona from any such raquirements obtained by the Company
from NZX or the Securities Commisaion and notified by the Company to the
Underwriler in wriling:

(1}  the informatian contained in the Offer Documents will not he misleading of
deceptive (including by reason of falling 10 refar to, or giva proper emphasis o,
adveree circumstances) and will not be unirue (as that term s defined in section
55 of the Securities Act);

(i)  all slatements as to the trading prospects of and outiook for the Company and
the Group contained in the Offar Documents:

(A} have been includad after due and praper consideration by the Company;
and

(B) are based an regsonable asaumptions.
Btatutory compliance

the execution, delivery and perfarmanca of this Agreement, (he Offer Documeris, the
circumsatancas of thair publication, the Offer and the issue of the Offer Shares by the
Company under tha Offer compiles with all Relevant Laws, including but not limited to:

by Motor Yrgde Finances Limiled

N thadSacuriﬁls Act, the Ragulations, the Companies Act and the Listin Ru& g
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. (§) the Fair Trading Act,
' subjoct to any writtan waivers of axgmptions from any such requiremants obtained by

{he Company from N2X or the Securiiies Commission and notified by the Company %
the Underwriter it writing,

(d) Expert statomants
any stalament by an expert thal i6 Included in the Offer Documents:

() s made by an expert that the Company, having made afl reasonable enquiries,
considers is compsiant to make the statement:

() s included n the Offer Documents with the prior written approval of the expert
as to the form snd contexd in which the siatsment Is included; and

() complies in @i respects with the requirements of \he Securities Act;
() Exiracts

any statement inclugad in the Offer Cocuments thal in @ copy of, an extract from, of &
summary of, anather dogument /3 a carrect and fair copy. exiract of summary, as the
case may ba, of that document;

(f} Advortisements

all announcements and disclosuras {including any Advertiaement) issued by or
approved for release for and an behail of the Company cenceming the Ofter:

{)  complyin ull respects with the Listing Rules, tha Companies Act, the Securities
Act, the Regulations, the Falr Trading Act and all other Relavant Laws:

()  will be trua, compietn and accurale; and
(i)  will net be misteading or decaptive or likely to misiead or deceive;
{g) Authorisation and consents

() the Company and each member of the Group is duly incarporated and Is validly
existing under the laws of its incorporation;

()  the Companyand aach member of the Group has obtained any necessary
corpurate of constitutioral authorisation to enable it

(A) 1oownits assets;

(B} 1o conduct its business as it is now baing conducted and as it s proposed
to be conducted aftar the Closing Dats; and

(C) o exucute, deliver and perform the transactions contamplated in this
Agresment and any other agreement to which i I3 or will be a party in
reletion to the Offer or the Offer Documenis or that is atherwise refarred
ta in the Offer Documaents;

(i) it has lakan or will take all necessary action to register and distribute the Offer
Documents and o issua and allat the Offer Shares;

by Mator Trags Fingncas Limited
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() all congents, authorisations, licances or permits of any governmantal or ather
autharity have basn duly and unconditionally abtained and are in full force and
offoct that are required ta permit the Company and each member of the Group:

(A} toown its assats;

(B) tocnndudusnuslnmasltisrwaaIngmndumdmdasnhpmpusad
1o be conducied afisr tha Closing Dats; and

(C) toexscuta, deliver and perform the transactions cantempiated in this
Agreament and any ather agreement to which # is or will ba 4 pasty in
relation to the GOffer oy the Qffer Documents or that is otherwise referred
ta in the Offer Documsnts; and

thera is no matter or thing that may adversely affect that ownership, canduct of
business, exaculion, dallvery ar parfarmancs, that is not generally known to the public;

(v} Na contravention

(h  the execution and dalivary by it of titis Agreemant and any other agreement to
which It is or will be & party In refation to the GCtfer or the Offer Docurnents or that
is ctherwise referved lo in the Offer Doguments:

(i) ihe regiatration and diatribution of the Offer Documents; and

(i)  the lasue and afiotmant of tha Offer Shares o parsons in New Zealand who
have made or will make vakd applications; and

(v) the performance of any of the transactions contemplaled by any of those
agraements of the Offer Posuments,

will not:

(v) conlravena of constitute a braach or default under any law, statule, regutation,
order, judgment, parmit or consent by which the Company or any membar of the
Group of any of its respective businesses, o assats is bound or affected or any
agreement, dacumant, arrangemant, obligation, or duty to which itis a party, or
by which its asseis may be hound; ar

(vi) imposa or cause lo ba axcgeded any limitation on the Company or any member
of tha Group or on the pawers of tha directors of the Company of any member
of the Graup, which is Imposed by ar axpressed in any agreement lo which the
Company or any member of the Group is a party or any document that contains
or establishes its constitution;

(3 Duaauthorization

() the exacution and dellvery by it of this Agreement and any other agresment to ,
which it is or will ba @ party In relation to the Offer or the Offer Documents or that
is otharwise referrad 1o in the Offer Dacuments,

(i)  fhe publication of the Offer Documants; and

(iiy the performance of any of the transactions contemplated by any of those
agreements or tha Offer Documents,

8 in accordance with the Company's constituent gocumants and has been guly
authorised hy all raquisite corporate, statutory gnd other action, and thers &:ﬂ'9 te
1
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no qualificatians or imitations affecting such authorisations that have not been or wiil
not be notified to the Underwriters;

i) NoiRrigation
other than as discloged in the Offer Documents:

()  nelther the Company nor any Group Gampany s inveived in any ftigation,
arbitration or administrative proceedings, official inquiry or investigation that s or
s Hkely to ba 3 Material Adverse Event in ths context of the Offer and the issue
of the Offer Shares; and

i} the Company has no knowledge of any such \tigation, arbitration or
administrative proceedinge that ia or is fikely to be & Material Adverse Event in
tha context of the Offer that is pending or threatensd;

(k) Solvency

tha Company and each Group Company is scivent and no avent ar circumstanca has
arisen, or is expacted by tho Comgany (0 arige, as @ result of which the Gompany ar
any Group Company may cease 1o be solvent or cease to be abie to pay its debis
falling due within 12 months of the date of the Offer Cocuments;

iy Valldly lssued
tha Ofer Shares:
()  wii be valigly ssued and allotted and wilt be issued fully paid;
{iy  will remain vaildly exiating after isaue; and

(i)  will have the rights described, and wil be issued on the terms and condifions set
out In, the Qffer Documents;

(m) Materlal Advorse Events

na Material Adversa Event has cceurred since tha date of its moat recent audited
financtal statements;

(] Binding agreement
aach of this Agreamant and any other agreament to which & is or will be a party in
relation 1o the Offar or the Offer Documents ar that is ctherwise referrad to in tha Offer

Documents, has been or will ba duly executed and delivered by it and is or will be its
valid and binding agraement anfarceabla in accardance with ils terms; and

(o) Information compiste and true

()  the Companyhas provided to tha Underwriter all information known to @ that is
matarial to the Offer; and

()  al Infarmation that haa been given ta the Undarwrker by or on behalf of the
Company or gny of its Related Companles or its advisers for the purposes of or
in cannection with the Offar Dacumants or the Offer is:

{A) true, complete and accurale; and \ '
Undarwriting Agroament relaling 10 the proposo offer end Itaus of N28534 milion of Porpetus! Praference Sharea : 1%
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(8) not misieading or deceptive (including by reason of falling to refer, or give
proper emphasis, to adverse circumstanoes).

(ﬁ) Opinlons !

any statemant of opinion or bailef of the Company or 3 Group Company containad in
the Offer Documents is truly snd honestly held by that person and the maker of the
statement has reasonable grounds for holding that bellef or apinion;

(@) Ceonduct

none of the Company or the Group Companies hak engaged or shall angege in
conduct that Is misleading or daceptiva or Is likely to misiead in conrection with the
Offer Documents or the Offer: and

{7  Fulure mattera

there are raasongble grounds for the making of all statements by the Company in the
Offer Dacumenta that ralate to future matters (including, without limitation, financiat
projections and forecasts).

12.2 Warranties repeated

Each of the Warranties is deemed to b repested by the Campany o the Underwriter on &
daily basis fram the Offer Date through to and Ineiuding the Clasing Date and:

(a) onthe dats on which the Offer Shares are issued and allotted following accaptance by
the Company of Valid Applications; and

(b) on ihe tdate on which the Underwriter, or parsans procured by i, subscribe for Shortfall
Shares under clause 8.2,

a3 if sach Warmranty was made on and sffective as at each of those dates.

12.3 Effect of breach

The Underwriter wilt be entitiad, but not bound, to give written notice to the Company
terminating the obligatians of the Underwriter under this Agraemant at any fime s

(a)  any breach of @ Warranty or a Materlal Advarse Evant accurs, which breach or
Material Advarae Event, in tha ragsonable opinion of the Underwritar, is or is ikely to
be, materially detrimentat to:

() the success of the Offer; or
{1y  the sub-underwriting of the Offer; or

(b) lhere i afaflure on the part of the Company to perfarm any of its material obRgations
under, or to comply with any pravision of, this Agreemert and any such performance
will or may. in the reasanable opinien of the Undarwriter, be a Material Adverse Event,
axgapt In the case of a failure to perform an obligatian that is capable of remady by the
Company and that is remedled within threa business days of notice of default baing
given by the Uinderwriter to the Campany or by the Clasing Date, if the Closing Dale is
l':sscthan three business days after the notica of default is given by the Umderwriterto  »

e Company,

in which case: | & @ .
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(c) Inis Agreement Will tarminata and bs of na effeci; and

(d) nopartyla to have any claim againat any ather party arising under or in connection with
this Agreemant,

excopt 3z axprassly provided [n clauses 134 and 13.5.

124 Trsth of Warranties

For tha purposes of clause 12.3, the Company scknowiedges that, notwithstanding any alher
arangemants:

(a) the truth of tha statements contgined in the Warrantias:
(b} the fulfiiment By the Company af all of s obiigations under this Agreement; and

{c) ful disclosure by the Company to the Undenwriter prior to tha Termination Date of any
malter or evart that:

()  does or may congtitute a breach of any such Wamanty, or
(i)  may have the affact of making any such Warranty untrue ar Inaccurate,

are essantial 0 the Undsrwriter and to each Sub-undarwritar and that the LUinderwriter would
not have entared into this Agreement (and nelther the Uingerwriter nor any Sub-undarwriter
wouid have sntered inta any Sub-underwriting agreemaent ar arrangemant in rezpect of the
Offer) if the Company had not givan this acknowledgement.

125  Notice of breach of Warranty
The Company must immadiately notify tha Underwriter an becoming aware;

(s} of the happening of any event or circumstance that does or is reasongbly likely to
cenatituta a breach of any of the Warmanties; and

{v)  of any maller or thing that is reasonably likely to have the affect of making any of the
Warranties untrug, mcamplets, inaccurats, misleading or decaptive In any respect.

13. Conditions

13.1  Conditions

Tha performance by the Underwriter of its ebligations under this Agreemant is conditional
upan;

(a) Adverss events

tgatr: nat having occurred between the dala of this Agreement and the Terminalion
ate:

(i) any svent or circumstance or serieé of avants or clrcumstancas or any matter or
ihing autside the control of the Undarwriter tnat, In the reasonable opinion of the
Underwriter. is or is ikaly to be a Material Adverse Event; or

URaswriing Agrasmen relpting (o the oreposed Stter And isue of NESI6 milion of Persetusi Profs/sncs Steret w 21%
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any breach of any Warranly other than a breach that in the reasonable apinion
of the Underwriter Is not or Is nat (kaly (o ba a Material Adveras Event, or

any fallure by the memwdﬂsWMUnﬁﬂm
wmmwtsmnmmmm&hmmlanpwcﬂd&m
Underwriter:

(A} isnotoris mtﬂkoiymbeammamdmﬂm!:m

(B) is capabie of remedy end is remedied within three buainess days after
natice of default is given by the Underariter to tha Company; o

eny evenl, circumstanca, matter or thing that, In the opinion of the Underwriter:

(A} renders untrue (as that lerm i defined in section 55 of the Securities Act),
incomplete, inacturate, misleading or daceplive any information or
statament contained in the Offer Documents; or

(8} otherwisa causes or constitutes a braach of any of the Warrandiss; or

any public announcement by or in relation fo tha Gompany, or any other publicity

{other than market or madia commentary or apinions that are In the nature of an

assassmant of the Offer and/ar the Company) In relation lo the Group (other

than announcemants approved by the Underwriter under clause g)that, inthe

léaaaomhle apinion of the Underwriter, is or is lkely to be 3 Material Adverso
vant; of

(A)  any prevention of suspension of the Offer or of the Issue or use of the
Offer Documents, the Otfer Shares or any Advertisement by order of any -
ragulatory body having jurisdiction in respect of the Offer (including,
without limitation, an order from tha Securities Commission under section
388 or section 44 of the Securities Act); or

(B) any proceadings being Initiated or thraatened for that purpose; or

(C) anyother event or cirumstance preventing the Company from issuing the
{Offer Sharas; or

(D) the withdrawal of the consant of any person who was required to give, and
had given, consent untder aection 38A or section 40 (or any othar relevant.
sectlon) of the Securities Act whera such withdrawal, in the reasonable
opinion of the Underwriter is oris Ikalyto baa Materigl Adverss Evern; or

a dectine In tha N25X 60 Index of New Zealand aquivalent to 10-per cent. or
more, measurad by referenca ta the leve! of that index as at 5.00 p.m. an the
date of this Agrasmen, which decline is maintained for a period of at least two
days or, If auch decline ocours less than two days before the Closing Date, is
malntained until the Closing Date; or

any adoption by the Reserva Bank of New Zealand of 2 policy or direction:

{A)  in respect of which there has not been a delailed announcement prior o
the date of this Agrasment; and

unaorwriing Agreament reimiing 1a the prapossd sfter and lstug of NZ336 milkan of Perpetual Profarencd Enares
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{8) that, in the opinlon of the Underwritar, is or is likaly to ha 3 Mataral
Adverse Evant; o @»
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(x) anymalerial change in New Zealgng or international financial, sconomic or
palitical conditions that, in the reaconable opinion of the Underwriter,

(A} 1= or is ikely to be a Material Advarse Event; or
(8) makes it impracticabls or [nadvisable 1o procead with the Offer; or

(x) the levying of distress of the enforcamant of & Judgment, order or security
interest (ar such judgment, ordar or securlty Interest becoming enforceatle by
the giving of notice, lapse of time or fuiliment of any condition) against any
prapeny of the Company for & sum exceeding $2,000,000; or

(x) the charging of 3 diractor, axagutive or officer of the Company with 8 crime
invoiving dishonesty (as defined in section 2(1) of the Crimes Act 1961), or any
such parson being held 1o Iuveaotedlnbfeachnfanysectionofpaﬂlunf\e
Securities Markets Act 1988 that, in the reasonable opinion of the Underwriter,
has or is likely 1o ba a Material Adverse Event; of

(e} in respect of the Cempany or any Group Company:

(A) 8 suspenslon or cessation of the primary, or all of the, business activities
of that sntltyformmtn'lnmcnnaacutmuuslnmdmthat. inthe
reasonable opinlon of the Underwriter, s or s likely to be, a Material
Advarse Event; or

(B) the raceiwership of that parson or tho appointment of a receiver, lrustee,
statutory managar, interim liquidstor, liquidator o administrator in respect
of all or a subsiantial part of its agsets; or

{C) the Inability of that person to pay Its dabls a8 they fali due, or a
zr;sumpﬂun to thet effect under sectians 287(a) lo () of the Companles
or

(D) an aasignment for the benefR of, or the entry Inta or making of any
atrangement of composition with, that porson's creditors; or

(E) the passing of any resolution, or any commencement of any proceeding.
for the liquidation or winding up of that person (whether on 8 valyntary or
Involuntary basis) which in the raasgonable opinion of the Underwriter is or
is likely to be a Material Adverse Evant; or

{(xii} an alieration :r the Campany, without tha prior wiillen approval of the
Underwritar, of the compasition of is board of directors, Its Share capital or ils
constitution which In the raasonabie opinion of the Undarwritar is or is likely to
be a Material Adverse Event;

(b)y Offer

the Offer being mada In accordance with this Agreement (including, without limitatian,
as to timing) and ali Ralevant [ aws;

(c} Change of law

thera not having besn promuigatad, introduced or announced:

& Qfg‘
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any statuts, regulation, order or other snactment; or

(0] agy‘h dir;:tlon or policy of any governmental department or atatutary or regulatory
authority,

that, in the reasonable opinion of tha Undemwriter, is or I8 ikely to be a Material
Advarse Event or has or is iikaly to neve a matsrial adverse effect on;

(i) the Company or any Group Company, o

(f) the success of the Offar of the subsundenwriting of the Offer or the abillty of the
Undarwriter to market the Offer Sharas suecessfully at the Ofter Price; or

(W) the abifity of the Company (o accept Valid Applications; of
(v} the quotation of the Offer Sharas on the NZDX; or

{(vi) the subsequent sale, transfer or dispasition of the Offer Shares thraugh the
NZDX ar ntherwiae: or .

{vi} the abiity of the Linderwriter ta parform lts material obligations under this
Agreamant; :

(d) Quetation of Cffer Sharss

()  NZXhaving granted to the Campany in respect of all the Offer Shares, on or
before the Data, the right of quotation, subject anly to completion of
aliotmant proceduras, on the NZDX; '

() thatright not having been revaked of amended; and

(i) thers not having aceurred any suspension of aterial limitation in trading in

sacurilies on the NZDX far a continuous period of more than three business
daya pricr 10 8.00 a.m. on the Terminaticn Date; ’

(e) Nobreach of laglalation

there having been no feilure by the Company of any of its directors td comply and
continue fo comply with the Companies Act ar any ather Relevant Lew required to be
complied with by the Campany, other than a failure capable of Inmediate [ T
remedy and thet !s a0 ramadied or 3 (ailure that, in tha reasonable opinion of the
Undsrwriter, s not matarial in relation to the Offer; :

{H  Certificate from Company

the Company having defivered to the Underriter an the date the Company gives the
Urdlenwritar a Shortfelt Notice, and prior to the application being made for the Offer
Sharss by the Undamwriter under ciausa 8.1, a2 certificate dated as 3t that dale
addrassed 16 the Underwriter, signec by two directors of the Company in aform
approvad by the Underwrier, certitying that: 3

(i  each ropreseniation and warranty mada by it in clause 12 18! |
{A) true, complete and accurate in all respects; and

(8) not mislesding or decaplive in any raspect;

mlmmmnlmummwmoddumdlu»cdmsnmlhnﬂnmupmhuMShwl . 1 & 24 § J
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{1y itknows of no evant or CircUMSIANCE that, if known to the Underwiiter, Is iikely to
result in @ braach of any representation or warrsnty made by it in clause 12 ar
any condition in clausa 13;

(i}y  ithas performed and camplied with i of its abligations under this Agresment
bs parformed prior to the date of the cartificats; and

(iv) each condition in clause 12 has besn fulfilied (excapt to the egttam that the
fuifiment of any of those conditions sapends on the Undenwriter forming an
opinion ar the Undarwriter has natified the Company thal it has weived any
conaition),

which cartificate is accompanied by a certificats fram tha share regisar 1o the

Company verifying the number of Offer Shares for which Vaiid Appilcations have not

been recaived;

Dectaration of war ar act of tarrorlsm

no;

(i)  deciaration or announcemant of any Infantian to commence war, hastilities or
other armed conflict; br

(i)  actof terrorism,

having occurred that In the reasonable opinlon of the Undenariter is or is likely to ba a
Material Adverss Event:

No change te Offer Documenis

1o change fo the draft form of the Offar Documents annexad ta this Agreement having
baeen ranuired by

(i)  N2ZX, tha Ministry of Cammerce or any other competent authority; or
{i) thaCompany,

whera, In the reasonable opinian af the Underwriter, that change is matarially adverse
to ar Is likaly to materially adversely affect.

(i) the Offer or the Offer Documents; or

{iv) the succass of the Offer or the sub-underwriling of the Offer or the ability of the
Linderwriter to markat the Offer Shares successfully-at the Offer Price; and

Reports, opinlons, etc.
the raceipt by tha Undenwriter af:

()  alegal opinian fram the Gompary's legal counsel in relation to the compliance aof
the Offer Docurments with all Relavant Laws (inciuding but not limited to the
Securities Acl, the Regulations, the Companies Act, iha Listing Rules and the
Fair Trading Act) and the Dus Diligents investigations; and ’Q

()  acomfort lstier from the financlal accountants to the Qffer in relation to gil
financlal and statistical data Inciudad In the Offer Documents, R

- mename Tamades Ehastumes | bwllnd
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each In a form satisfactory to the Company and ins Underwsiter {both acting
veasonably) and each expressed to be far the benefit of the Undeanariter.

13.2 Waiver of conditions
The Underwriter may:
(@) waive compliance with any of the conditiana in clause 13.1; and
(t) impose reasonable conditions on that waiver,

providas that (n order (a be valid, any such walver must ba given in wiiting by an authorised
parsan of the Underwriter.

13.3 Termination on non-fulfilment

If any of the condiliens set aut in clauss 13.1 has not been fulfiied to the reasonable
satiafaction of, or waived by, the Undenwriter by the Temination Date, the Undeswriter, by
written nalica 1o the Company, may terminete this Agrasment with immediate effect, in which
¢casa olauses 13.4 and 13.5 apply.

13.4 Payment on termination
if:
{a) this Agreement s terminated undar clsuge 12.3 or clause 13.3; or

() tgg Company, for any reasan, does not proceed, of Is unable lo proceed, with the
ar,

the Company is to pay ta the Undenwriter immediately the fees and the costs to which the
Underwriler is entitied under ciause 15.

13,5 Effact of tanmination

(@) Termination of his Agrasment for any oause 9 without prejudice to any claim (hat the
Undarwriter or ey Sub-undanwriter may have against the Company arising out of that
tarminaticn or the event, circumstance, matter ar thing giving rise lo termination.

(b)  Noiwithstanding termination of this Agreement and the payment of ail sums payabla (o
the Underariier In accordanca with clause 13.4, the provisians of clauses 18, 16, 17,
216 and 21.9 gre to survive and canlinug in full force and effact.

14, No competing offers

14.1  No competing offers

(s} The Company 2grees that, withaut the prior wnitten approval of the Underwriter [which
epproval s not o be urweasonably withheld or delayed), during the period commencing
on (he gate of this Agresment and ending on the dats that is gix manths efter tha date
of this Agresment, it will nol, cther than as may be expresaly provided Jn the Offer

Documents or thia Agresment cr as agreed in wrillng batwean tha Company and the \
Underwriter: ' '
Ungsiwriing Agranssent retating o the proposad offer And 19908 of NZSIS miliian of Perpetusl Preferonc Sfarms RD‘ 26
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(| issua, aliot, offer for sale, ar accept applications to purchasé or subsaribe, any
Dabit Securities, Equity Sacurities, Debt-Linked Securitias or Equity-Linkad

Securities in the Campany: of

(i) Issue or grant ey option that entiies the holder to aell for the issus or transfer of
any Dabt Securities, Equity Sucurities, Debi-Linked Securitisa or Equity-Linked
Securitios In the Company; or |

(i) create any debl or other cbligation that may be convertible inla, axchangeable
for or redesmable by, the issus of Debt Securtiies, Equity Securities. Debt-
Linked Securities of Equity-Linked Securities in the Campany. or

(v) otherwise enter inlo any agreament of amangament by which any pérson mey
ho entitied to Ova allotment or ransfer of any Oebi Sacurities, Equity Securilies,
DMhmmemMnMsmlmmcommw

(v} tske uny actions snalogaus to or nhaving similar effect to tha aclions above; or
(vi) announge any Intention 1o do any of the matters sat oul above.

(b} Notwithstanding clause 14.1(a), the Campany may igsus Dsebt Sepurities or Debi-
Linked Securitiss during the period sat out in clause 14,1{a) f and to the extent that
such securities are issued under, and as part of, the narmal securiisation programme
of the Company, as canducted by i aver the pariod of 12 months pregeding the dawm of
this Agragmant (the terms of that securitisation programme have been disclosed (o the
Underwriter by the Company). -

142 Resclution not to proceed

{z) ! the board of directors of tha Company resolyes not to procead with the Offer, and the
Company determines that it will undertake an affer and issue of capital bends
(Roplacomant Offar), tha Underwriter has the right of first rsfusal to act as the
undarwriter far such offer and issue (irespectiva of whether the Replacement Offer s
an oHfer of securities to the pubilc within the meaning of the Sacurities Act), ahould the
Company make the Replacemeant Offer on or before 31 December 2008.

(b}  Tne undarwriting of the Raplacement Offer, if the Undarwriter exerciges its right of first
refusal to act as underwriter of the Raptacement Offer, la 1o be on normal commercial
{erms, as negaliated in good falth betwaen the parties.

15. Costs of Offer

151 Cosis

The Company will be responsibie far, and is 1o pay ar procure the payment of, ali reasonabls
casls incurrad In cannection with the Cffer Documents and the Offer. These costs are o
include, without limitation, the payment to the Unidarwriter on damand of aff:

(28) roasonabla travel, advestising, printing, communications and other costs that it has
incurred, ar may properiy incur, In gonnection with, or for the purposes of, ihe Offer or
the Offer Documents;

(b) ressonable isgal and other costa assncisted with this Agreemant, the Offer ar the Offer
Documents, including afl such costs and axpanses incurred in connection with the sub-

undanwriting Bgreements of arrangements it entars into with the Sub-underwriters; and
{c) GST onthese costs. & C@
Usdonriing Apresment rolatitg m 1N pronaced ofer &nd IeTun of NZEIS mikkon of Parpetiuad Profarensa Eharas 27
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The Undemwritar is to saek the priar approvel of the Company before incurring 2ny large or
unwsual items of expenditure greater than NZ$2,000, in respect of any single item of

expanditure.

Fass payable on termination

On termination of thia Agreement undar clause 12.3, ciause 13.3 or clause 13.4, the
Company 1$ to pay o the Underwriter immadiately:

(a)
(b

(c}

oll casts incuired by the Undaerwriter in asccordance with clauss 16.1; and

50 per cent. of the Undarwriting Fee, if the Agreamant is larminated:

() duataine non-fulfiment of any of the condiions in ckause 13.1(a)(vil}, clause
13.4(a)(vil), clause 13.1(u)(ix), clause 13.1(aj(x), clause 13.1(a){x), clause
18.1(a){x¥), clausa 13.1(c) o clause 13.4{g): and

(i}  such nonfulfimantis dus directly to matters outsids the conirot of, and has not
otherwise been caused by any fault on the part of, the Compary; ar

the Undarwriting Fee in full, If the Agreement ia terminated for any other reason, .

if the Company has not already paid that amount to the Underwriter at the time of
teemination.

Indemnity

P.31742

16.1

16.2

Undanwriting Agrasment raleiing 10 11e prepaeed offer and Iecuo of NZSIS masion of Berpeius Preforsnce Sharas
oy Malor Trads Fiances Limiad

Indemnity

if any Indemnified Persan becomas wvalved in any action, praceading or Investigetion ansing:
aut of or in connectian with the Offer, the Inveaiment Statemant, the Prospeetus or any
Advartisement cancerning the Qffer, the Company is:

(a)

{b)

fully and effactivaly to indemnify such indemnified Person against all direct costs
{including, without limitation, all reasonabis legal coste), expenses, charges, (iabiitins
and lossas tha Indemnifisd Person may incur as a result of becoming involvad In ary
such action, procesding of nvastigation, up fo 3 meximum amount of $800,000 (plus
GST, if any), axcept to the extent that any such legal costs, expenses, charges,
iabilities and lesses to arise from the negligence. breach of abligation or bad faith of
that indemnified Persan; and

lo co-uperate with the indemnifiad Person and fo provide such heip and informatian as

the indemnified Person may reagcnably request in connacion with any such action,
proceeding of investigation and nat to take any action [n connection with any such
:;txy“' procaading of investigation that may prejudice the position of the Indsmnified

Indemnity additional to other liability

This indemnity:

(a)

is in addition to:

()  anyiiablity the Company may otharwise have; and

o:

g
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()  any other rights inat the Underwriler or any Sub-underwriter may otherwise
have;

(b) s intended o confer a panefit on each iIndemnified Person for the purposes of the
Cantracts (Privity) Act 1982 and is erforcaable at the suit of each indemnified Person;
and

{c) isfully enforceablein accorgance with its terms notwithstanding any act, mater,

omission of thing that, but for this suh-clause, woukd or may give fise to 3 defence ar
caunterclalm.

Survival of indemmity

This indemnity survives and continues in full force end affect notwithetanding the temnination
of this Agreoment. :

Goods and services tax

18.

The Campany is {0 pay:

(g) all 8T imposed at any ime In respect of any services provided to it by the
Undarwriter undar or in connection with tnis Agrasment in addition to and
contemporaneously with the paymsnt of all ather amounts required to be paid by it
ynder this Agreement; ant

(h) any interast, additional tax or penalties imposed in respect of the late assessment
andlor payment of GST {io Ine extent anty that such amounts result from any
ovarsight, errar, faliure or breach of law by the Company).

Assignment and suh-u'ndarwming

18.1

18.2

18.3

No assignment by Company

The Company must not assign or irangfer any of its rights or obligatians under this
Agreernont.

Assignment by Underwriter

The Uinderwriter is entitled, in accordance with clause 4.8, 1o ontar into sub-undenwriting
agreaments or arrangemants In respect of Its rights or ohligations under this Agresment, but
will ot atherwise assign ils rights or obligations under this Agraement. Notwithstamding any
such sub-underwriting agreements or arangaments, the Underwriter wili remain fiable for the
performance of all of its abligations under this Agreement. The Underwriter wilt immediately
advise the Company of the appaintmant of any Sub-underwriters,

Contracts (Privity) Act 1982

For the purposes of the Contracts (Privity) Act 1882, the obiigations, representations and
other matters containad In clauses 3.8, 12 and 16 are:

{a) given farthe beneft of sach Sub-underwriter, and

(b) enforcaable at the suil of aach Sub-underwrhtar. @
29 &
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19. Notices

19.1 Ferm of notice

Each notice or other communication under this Agresment is to be mada in writing, by
facsimile, paraonai delivery or by post 1o the addragsee at the facaimiis number ar addrass,
andistobamarkadforunmnuonofmapersonnrommrnldar(ifany).fmmtimatorlmo
designated for the purpose by the addressse ta the other pany. The Inltial faoslmils number,
ﬁdmmmmwmmﬁam party s set out balow its execution

19.2 Notice sffective

No communication 1§ ta ba effective until recaived. A communication wik, however, be
deaemad o be recalved by the addrasses;

{2)  inthe case of a facsimile, on the Businass Day on which it is despatched or, (]
despatchad afer 5.00pm (in the place of receipt) on a Buainess Cay or, if despatched
on a nor-Business Day, on the next Businese Day after the date of daspateh provided
in each case that thers is produced a bansmission raport by the machine from which
the facsimiia was sant which indicatas that the facsimie was sent in its entirety lo the
facsimile number of the recipient;

(b) in the case of parsonal dalivery, when dalivered; and

(¢) inthe case of 3 tatter, an the sixth Businass Day afier posting.

20. Remedias and waivers

20.1 Exercise of rights and waivers

(a) Timeis of the essence In respsct of all dales and fimes for compliance by ihe parties
with their ohiigations under this Agreament.

(b) Howaver, no fallure to exercise, and no delay in exercising, @ right of a party under this
Agreement witl operate as a waiver of that right, nor will a single or partial exercise of a
right preclude anather or further axercise of that right or the exercise of anather right.

() Nowsalver by a party of its rights undar this Agreament is effective unless it is in wriling
sigried by that parly.

20.2 Remadies cumulative

The rights of the parties under this Agresment are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights
provided by law.

21. Miscellansous

21.1 Amendments

No amendment to this Agraement is effectiva unless It ta in writing signed by the Mx ,Q
% |
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Partial invalidity
The Hlagality, invalldity or unenforceabllity gf a provision of this Agreement under any law will

not affect the lagality, valldﬂvorgrdmnbtlnyofmatprouislon under another law or the
logality. valldity or anforceablity of ancther provision.

Legisiation excluded

Any present oF futura legisiation that operates to vary an chiigation or right, power ar remedy
of a party in connection with this Agreament is excluded except 1o the exteni that Its
exciysion is prohiblied or rendered ineffective by law.

Entire agreement

This Agreemsnt and the Mandate Lettar constiuie tha antire agraament of the pariies in
respect of the matters covered by them and supsrzeds all previous agresments in respeat of
thosa matters.

Counterparts

This Agreemant may be exscuted in any rumber of countarparis (including faceimile copies)
all of which, wher taken logegher, will constitute one and the same instrument. A party may
anter into this Agreament ty exacuting ary counterpart.

Governing law
This Agreament is govarned by, and s to be construad in accordance with, New Zaaland taw.
Jurisdiction

The parfies irrevocably and unconditionally submit ta the non-exalusive jurisdiction of the
Gourls of New Zaaland in ratation ta any dispute or procesding arising out of or in connection
witn this Agreement.

Facsimlle

This Agreemsnt may be exacuted on the basis of an axchange of facsimile copies and
execution of this Agreemant by such means is vaild and sufficient axecution.

Payments

All payments 1o be made by the Company ‘o the Underwriter in accordance with this
Agresmert are:

(a) payablein New Zealand doflars; and
() tobe made:

() tothe Undenwritar's bank account, dasignated for the purpose and notified to the
Company from ime (o time;

() free and claar of any withholding o deduction, except as required by law; and

by Molor Trade Finances Limilad
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Expcution

Executed g an agream
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Addrase af Foroyth Bay Group Limited

Address Leval 6 Focuimile 04 498 1327
Faraylh B Houss
Cor Lama;w- Quay and
Jannston St
wolllﬂﬂiﬂlﬂ

Attuntian  Neil Pavigur-Smim Telophona 04 789 7464

Wetor Trada Finances Limitad by
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Angus Bradshaw

Addraas of Moter TrldI Finaneos Limiiad
Agdrags Navonal Sank Building Facsimile 034717737
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Ounadin 1
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2110 Confidentlality
Other than is provided in clauae 3.8, no parly imay disciose any informatian (which is not

giready in the public domain) concerning this Agresman| or is subjact mater other than as
raquired by faw or any regulatory body of as agread in writing.and signed by the parties.

Execution
Executed 38 an agresment.
Fov:Tn Barr Group Limited by

“ﬁ.’\éﬁf‘/‘{ [ ~Sracior

NEJL_ [avioul-SmiTe
" Pnint name Print name

Addrese of Forayth Barr Group Limited

Address Level 6 Facelmile 04 495 1327
Forayth Barr Houze
Cor Lambtion Quay and
Johnston Strest
Woeliingtan
Attentlon  Nail Paviaur-Smith Yelophons 04 799 7464
Motor Trade Finances Limited by ﬂ
Wﬂ«.\; _Chal% \ \ f\ L_\‘/
Angus Bradshaw - Roger Bonffent
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‘ gval 1
183 Princes Strest
Ounadin 8001

PO Box B85
Dunedin 9018 g
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Annexure A: Draft Offer Documents
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Motor Trade Financaes Limited

investment statement and prospectus

Offer of up to $35 miltion (with aver-subscriptions of up to $5 million) of
fully imputed Perpctual Prefarance Shares In Motor Trade Financas Limited

@ FORSYTH BARR

Lend Manager and Grganising Participant: Forsyth Barr Limited
Underwritar: Forsyth Barr Group Limited
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lmporhnt information

(The infarmstion In this saction s requirad under the Securities Act 1978.)
Investment decsions are very Important.  They often have iong-term CONSAqUENnces. Rand 3l
documents carafully. Ask questions, $eck advica befors committing yoursef.

Chaosing an investmeant .

\When declding whathar to invest, consider carefully the answers to the foliowing questions that can ba
found on the pagas noted balow! Fage
What soet of lnvestment is this? 87
Who Is invotved in providing it for me? 52
How muoch da I pay? 38
What are the chages? 59
wnat retumns will I gat? 59
wnat are my risks? 61
Can the investment ba altered? 54
How do 1 cash in my investrment? a5
Who do I contact with enguiries about my Investment? 66

Ismmanvonemwhum!canmpmmﬂhavapmmmsmmmammem 66
What other Informatian can I obtain about this levestment? 66

In addition to tha information in this document, Important infarmation cen be found In the current
registered Prospects for the Investment. You are antitiad to @ copy of that Prospectus on request.™

Chooslng an investment adviser
You have the right to raguest from sny investment advisar a writtén dgEOsure statement stuting hi% or
her exparience and gualifications to pive advice. ‘That document wWill talt yau:
. whether the adviser gives advice anly sbaut particular typss of investments;
whathar the advice is iimitad to the Investrmants offered by ane of mare particular financial
organisations; and
« whather the adviser will racsive B commision or ather henefit from advising you.
You are strongly encoursged to requast that statement. An invastmens agvisar commits an offenca if e
or she taes not provide you with B written disciosure statement within 5 working deys of your request.
You must make the request 3t the time the advice Is given or within 1 month of receiving the advice.

In addition:
e If an Investment adviser has any convicon for dishanesty or has been adjudged bankrupt, he .
or sha must il you this in writing; and
« if an Inveptment adviser recalves any maney or agsets on your bahalf, he or she must tall you
in writing the metheds emplayed for this purpose.
Te!l the adviser what the purcose of your investment 1s. This Is important because diffarent investments
are sultabla for diffenent purposes.

Combined document

This Ofer Docmient s for an Offer by Matsr Trade Finances Limited of pgrpetual Preferenca Shares with
an aggregare princlpal amaynt of $35 myiliion, with the abllity To accapt over-subiscriptons in mspect of
Perpetual Preference Shares with Bn aggrepata principal amount of up to a furthar $5 million. This Offer
Ducument s dated and prepared as at 30 May 2008.

Important notice

This Offer Dotument is 2 combinad Investment statemant and prospectus for the purncses of the

Securities Act 1978 and the Seturities Reguletions 1983. The purposs of the [nvestmant statement

section of this Offer Document is to pravide certain kay informetion that Is likaly to assist 3 prudant but

non-axpert person to decida whether or not to subscribe for Perpetual Preference Shares under the

Offer. Howevar, Investors should note thet other important Information about tha Perpetusl Frefarence

Shares and the Difer is avatiable in tha prospectus saction of this Offer Document and st tha head offica

of Motor Trada Finances Limiceo. Q,

The Offer of Perpatual Prafarence Shares contained in this Dffer Dosument 13 swhject o appraval by eagh
cluss of MTF shorcholders by ordindey resolution ot & special mesting to be hald on B June 2006,

ordinary resolution is a rasolution approved by a simple mujority of the votes of those mk‘

e
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entitied to vote and weting on the resolytion. If the orainary resolution Is not passed &t the specls!
megting the Offer will not procesd.

A capy of this Offer Document culy signed by ©r on behalf of the Direttars, and having ummad_b i
capies of the documants required by ssction 41 of the Securifias Act 1978 (inciuding the origin3l
auaWor's report and consent (atter, acknowisdgament by N2X {in accordance with Reguiatior 23(2) of
the Securities Reguiations 1963) and any material contracts) was delivered t tre Ragisuer of
Comnpanies for regisation in accordsace with section 42 of the Securities Act 1978 on the date of this
Offer Document.

Overveas investors

This Offar [s timited to within the New Zealard jurisdicrion and complies with statutory requiremants of
Naw Zsaland. Motor Trage Finances Limkted does not intand that this Offer wil ba made avaiable
outsice of New Zesiand, This Offer Docunent may not comply with stawtory requiraments outside the
New Zaaland jurlsdiction.

Pefinitions
Capitaliaed terms In this Offer Document have B spacific meaning and are gefined in the glossary on
page 75. Al references to § are (0 New Zealand doliars uniess specified otharwise.

Guarantee

None of MTF's Directors, !t subsidiaries, the Load Managar nor any of thajr respective directors, officers
or amployass, o any other person guarantess the paymant of Dividends or any other amgunts due
under the Perpetual Prafgrence Shares or the amount of retums (if any) which Invescars may recelve 38
Haiders of Perpetual Prefersnca Shares.

NZOX market fiating

Application has been made to NZX for permigsion to Hist the Perpetual Prefersnce Shares and all the
requirements of NZX reisting thereto that @n be complied with on or befora the date of tha Offar
Bocument heve besn duly complied with, However NZX accepts no responsibliity for any gratemsnt in
this Dffer Document

1) This Is the warding requived by Schedule 30 te the Securities Reguistions 1983 which cantemplages 3 sepirate
Investmant STtement and prospoctus. For this Offar tha bwo decumertc have been camoingd ang aczordingly the
prospectys avallsble on raguest 1S Kentical to this document.

U
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Perpetual Preference Shares - key
Issper:

Tssue Prica:

Maximum Principal Amount:

Term:

Initia] Dividend Ratg:™

First Dividand Payment:

First Dividend Payment Dace:
Subsequent Dividend Payment Dates:
Dividend Reset Date:

Dividend Resat Margin:®
Minimum Application:

The Offer of Perpetusl Preferanca

of MYF gharsholders by ordinary
rezoiution is 3 resolution approved by 3 simpla

Shares contained in this Offer
resolytion at a specist maeting to be
majority of tha votes of thase sharehoiders antitied to vate und

TO 44951327 P.41/42

features

Metor Trada Pnances Limited

NZ$1.00

435 miltion plus up to $5 miliion of over-subscriptions
parpetual = no fixed vademption date

9,75% anaum, Inclusive of full tation Credits,
pawbhn:amw In armwarg until m pividend
Reset Date

Payabia to original subscriber on the First Divigand
payment Date

30 Septamber 2006

b b 5 31 March, 30 Junt and 30 September -~
in @ach year and If that day Is not 3 Business Day, the
next Business Day

30 September 2007 and annuaily thareafuer

240 bagis puirts (2-40%), Including ful Imputation
Credits, above tha Benchmark Rate

$5,000 and thereafter In %1,000 Increments

Document 18 subject to approval by aach ciass
neld on 8 Juna 2008. An ordinury

voting on the resalution. If the ordinary resolution IS not passed at the specil maeting the Offer will not

procssd,
gL i MTIPS current (ntention that the Initial

any Dividend is rot promised or guarantesd. MTF raserves the fAight to Increase the

Dividand Rats be pasc as detailed anough this rats or paymant of

Initial Cividand Rate

andjor Oividend Reget Margin to such Sreater ruta 25 it might decermine and advise to the market during the

Offer periad, Any incressed rata wauld apply to all
aforted.

How to apply

Parpstual Preference Shares, ragardiass of when they ate

Instructions on how to make an eppiication are contalned In the sections of this Offer Document
entitied “application instructions” an pages 79 to 82,

Lead Manager
Farsyth Barr Limited

Offer timetable

Important dates

Opening Date of Offer:

Exchange Offer Closing Date:

Priarity Poot Clasing Date:

Aliotment Date (Priority Pool):

Closing Date of Offer:”

Aliotmant Date (Exchange Offer):
Quotation Date:

Trading will commence an Quotation Date.

Perpetual Preferance Shares will be
recalpt and acceptance of valtd applications by

* This Offer will close on the earller of 28 June 2006 or the date on which subscriptions are
recelved and accepted for the maximum aggregste principal amount of the Perpetual Preference

allotted pursusnt to the General Offer on 2 dally basis following

31 May 2006
16 June 2006
16 June 2006
19 Jung 2006
28 June 2006
30 June 2006
3 July 2008

wotor Traca Finences wmited @:’_
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Shares (including any over-subscriptions). The Exchange Qffer and Priority Pool wil close on 16
June 2006. MTF In conjunction with the Lead Manager has the right to vary the Opening Date, the

Clasing Date,

the Exchange Offer and Priority Poal Closing Oate {including The right to extand or

accelerate the Clesing Date and Fxchange Dffer and Priarity Pool Clasing Date) upon providing
written notice to N2X. This may have 2 consequantial effect on the dates listed above.

Motor Trade Financas Umitad 3
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retainad. Simiiar deferments touk place In subsequent years. In 2004 and 2005 the reported
distributions were greater than the Prafit after taxation (leading to 3 Deficlt retainad) hecauss |

of the move to manthly profit distributions. *

s

mMotor Traga Finances Umited @
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company highlights

Bstablished leading business

Established in 1670, MTF Is one of New Zealand's largest motor vehicle financiers, oparating
through over 700 transacting sharehoider ("Deaier*) outiets, in 2ll major towns and dties, from
Kaitala to Invercarghi.

MTF Is 2 co-operstive, with its shares owned by Its DealaTs.

A co-operative s a form of company which is awned and operated for the baneft of those using its
services. A key feature of all co-operatives is that thelr maln purpesa Is muwual support for
members and/or the promotion of @ apeciftc purpose aor banefit which, In the case of MTF, is dealer
finance.

MTF has ¥ wal) established brand and reputation both as a sugpller of motar vehicie finance nng as
an issusr, having tssued Capital 8onds listed on the NZDX Market to New Zealand investors since
1994 and commercial paper unger its securitisation programme since 1995,

Conalstent samings record

The MTF Graup has a consistent eamings histary, regorting a net profit- hefore Oistribution to
Dealers int every year since Incorporation tn 1970. Fer the fAnancial year ending 3¢ September
2005, nat profit avallabla for Distribution was $38.7 milion, heving grown from $32.9 million In
2001. Throyghout its history, MTP has not missed a Deater Distrthution and has always met its
obligations to investors. With this history and recent investments in tachnolagy, In the opinlon of
the Directors, the MTF Group Is wall placed to perfonm: in tha future as it has In the past.*

Unique and succesaful operation

MTF |5 incorporated under the Companies Act 1993 and the Co-operative Companies Act 1996,
with Its ordinary shares held by its Dealers. The MTF Group pravides is Dealers with economles of
scale through access to the technology, funding, legat and credit resources of 2 skilied and
experienced finance company, at the Dealer ievel.

Each Denler participates In the profits of the business in proportion to the volume of business
wrltten by that Dealer. Accordingly, each Dealer has a compelling financlal Interest In the guality
of the business writtsn and tha future success of the MTF Group.

Sound credit quality and controls

The MTE Group has a unique credit model, with credit risk assumed by Individuai Dealers for the
business they write. In addition to the primary right of recaurse to the security provided by the
vehicle, Dealars indemnify the MTF Graup agalnst any losses fram dafaults by thalr customers.
This Indemnity Inciudes the right ta seize tha shares and profits of any participating Daaler.

MTF regularly monitors the credit quality and lending limits of its Dealers. Those Dealers that do
not satisfy the relevant criteria or maintain appropriate lending standards and performance are
suspendad or have thelr facilities withdrawn permanently.

MTF has a consistent track record of managing Dealer rigk, ta the extent that Dealer losses ia tha
Jast fiva years have never exceeded 1.5% of profit distributable,

" past perforimance 13 not indcative of fyture performanca.
Motor Tragé Finances Limied B
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Divarsified credit exposura

The MTF Group's exposure to any single countergarty is limited by its geographical, Dealer and
customer diversity. The MTF Graup has over 62,000 koens spread throughout New Zealand, with
an sverage exposure of approximately $5,000. Thase loans are spread acrpss over 700 Dealers,
with tha maximum exposure to Bny Dealer capped according to Board monitored prudential
requirements, which include capikal structurs and ratigs, personal guarontess and credit
management requirements,

Establlshad and efficlent funding eapabllity

The MTF Graup's finance operations are primarily funded by way of a securitisation programme.
This programme was established in 1995 and has a facility Iimit of $500 million. The commerciai
naper issued pursuant to the programme |s rated Al+/P-1 (the ability of MTFS to meet Its financial
obligations under the commercial paper Is extremely strong/superior) by Standard & Poor's/
Moody’s and reflects the MTF Group's strong focus on eredit quality and the efficacy of its foan
administration systems, A copy of these credit ratings can be obtained from MTF on request. For
infarmation regarding the rating criterla used by these rating agencles please refer to thelr
respective wabsitas: www.standardandpoors.com and www.moodys.com. These ratings do not
appiy to the Ferpetual Preference Shares affered In this Offer Document.

MTF has committed standby credi faclities of $77 millon, provided by four appropristaly rated
benks, to ensure ongolng funding. .

Leading edge systems and processes

On 1 April 2005, the MTF Group launched MTF Direct, a web-basad loan origination system, which
enanlas the Dealer to process all new busingss eisctronically 3t the dealership. MTF Direct
provides better credit assessment, fewer errors, faster processing and ultimately better creght
aualily than traditional manual processing mathods, through access te customer, credit agency,
vehicie and security database vetification at point of sale. .

Through the MTF Direct platfarm, MTF monitors Dealer credit management on 3 dally basis and Is
able to monltar loan arigination as it happens. Together with Its best practice financlal raporting
and accounting systems, this enales the MTF Group to manage Its credit pasition and s funding
requiraments.

Focussed range of products and ssrvices

MTF's core activity Is ta provide credit products and back-office support ta Dealers. In addition,
MTE Direct provides access to third party payment protection insurance, quaranteed asset
pratection Insurance, extended warranty, and comprehensive motor vehicle insurance. These
products pravide an additional layer of credit support to the credit products soid, and provide
further income opportunities for Dealers.

Strong governance and experianced management

The Board consists of four Dealer Directors, two independent (nan-Dealer) Directors and the
Managing Director. The Board has established audit, credit, remuneration and nomination
committaes o enhance the Board's sffectiveness, while praserving overail Baard respansibility.

All funcrional areas of the MTF Group are subject to an annual risk management review, which (s
reported to the audit committee and the Board.

Moter Trade Finances Wmitad 7 F
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chairman’s letter
Dear Investor

On behaif of the Boprd of Directars of Motor Trade Finances Urmited, 1 am pleased t0 present
New Zealand residant investors with an offer to subscribe for parpetual Preference shares to be
issued by Mator Trade Finances Limited.

Gstablished In 1970, MTF has @ proud history of reliably providing fts Dealers and investors with
attractive returns. The MTF Group recantly produced a very satisfactary financial result far the
year ending 30 September 20085, with & profit of §368.7 miifion distributed to Dealers.

The praceads of this perpetual Prafgrence Share Offer will be used to reflnance the redemption of
existing Capital Bonds and to ensbia the MTF Group To continue to fnance orgenic grawth In Its
cora activity of offering motor vehicle finance.

The Perpetual Preference Shares being offered are perpatual In nature and it i intended they will
offer an intial gross Dividend return of 9.75% per annum, Inclusive of full Imputation Credits, untll
the first Dividend Reset Date on 30 September 2007, Thereafter, the new Dividend Rate will be ast
annuaily at a Dividend Resat Margin of 240 basis points, Including full Imputation Credits, ovar the
Banchmark Rata.

As part of the Offer, existing Capftal Bondholders will be offered the oppartunity to exchange up to
100% of their Capltal Bonds for Perpetual Prefarance Sheres, subjact to scaling.

The Board of Directors welcames your participation In this Offer.

Yours sincerely

foger Bonifant
Chalrman
30 mMay 2006

>

Motor Trwde Finances Limiked 8
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main terms of Ofter

thae more
The following 's 3 summary of the main terms of the Offer. Investors should refer to
detniled Information in the other sections of this Offer Document, Incluging, th: sections entitied
manswers to important duestions” and “terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares”.

Inssuar
The Igsuer of the Perpeiual preference Shares Is Motor Trade Finances Limited.

Offer amount

Perpetual Preference Shares with an sggregate principal amount of up to $35 milllon are offered
for subscription. MTF reserves the right ta accept over-subscriptions In respect ot Perpetudl
Breference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up %o 3 further §5 miliion.

The Offer Wil Include a $15 miifion Exchange Offer to axisting MYF Capital Bondholders (the
*Eychanga Offer”) whereby Capital Bandholders can apply to exchange up to 100% of the face
value of thelr Capital Bonds for Perpetua) preference Shares subject to the termms of the Exchange
Offer.

by each ¢lass of MTF shareholders by orginary resoftution 3t a special meating to be held on 8 June
2006. An ordinary resoiution s # resolution approved by a simple majority of the votes of those
shareholders entitled to vote and voting o0 the resoiutian. If the ordinary resolution 's not passed
at the special meeting the Offar wil not proceed.

Type of Instrument

Perpetual Preference Shares are parpetual securities that have no fixed term and wili ramain in
existence uniess and untll they pre redsemed for cash by MTF, are purchased by MTF and
cancelied or, in the event of a liquidation of MTF, are redeemed (either In whole or part). Perpatual
preferance Shareholders have no right to requira redemption by MTF,

perpetual Preference Shares cerry no right to vota at meetings of ordinary sharehoiders of MTR
axcept In limited circumstances and rank behind all secured and unsecured creditors of MYF but
shead of holders of other classas of shares of MTF and profit distributable to Daalers.

For fusther information on the Perpetual Preference Shares refer te the “tenms of the Perpetual
Prefarence Shares” on page 92.

Isgus Price

The Issue Price of NZ$1.00 per Pernetual Preference Share must be paid in cash in full on
applicatien under the Offer.

Existing MTF Capitai Bondholders participating In the Exchvange Offar will not be required to make 3
cash payment for their Perpetual Preference Shares {n respect of those Capital Bonds exchanged
for Perpstual Preference Shares. Payment will be effected by directing the face valya of their
existing Capltal Bonds paysbie to them by MTF on 30 June 2006 in satisfaction of the Issue Price of
the Perpetual Preference Shares under the Exchange Gffer,

Initial Dividend Rate

It Is MTF's current Intention that from the Aligtment Date of the Perpetual Preference Shares until
the first Dividend Reset Date, Dividends will be payable 2t the gross Initlal Dividend Rate of 9,75%
per annum, inclusive of full Imputation Credits, payable quarterly In arrears, MTF resarves the
right to increase the Initlal Dividend Rate to such greater rate as it might determine and advise to
the market during the Offer pariod. Any Incraased rate would apply to all Perpetual Preforence

shares, regardless of whan they are aliotted. Dividends are not pramisad or guaranteed and may
be cancelled 89 detailed on p3ge 52.

subsequent Dividend Rates

On the Dividend Reset Date, Dividends on the Parpetual Prefarence Shares will be reset at the  \ :
Oividend Reset Margin of 240 basts points (2.40%), Inclusive of full Imputation Credits, above the
Benchmark Rate. MTF reserves the right to Increase the Dividend Reset Margin ta such greater

Motar Trage Finsncas Umked 9
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rats as it might datsrmine and advise to the markat during the Offer period. Any increased rate
would apply to all Perpetual Preference Shares, regardiess of when they are pilgttad. Olvidends
are not promised or guaranteed and may be cancelled as detalled on page 52,

Dividend pavmenti on the Perpetuat Praferance Shares can be cancelled by the Board of MIF at Its
discretion, In accordance with parsgraphs 1.6 and 1.7 of the terms of the Perpetual Preference
Shares as detafied on page 52.

Exchanga Offer

MTF has reservad a pool of $15 milion Perpetual Praference Shares for existing MTF Capliat
Bondholders (43% of the aggregits principal amount of the Offer). Existing Capitai Bondholders
will be entitied to apply to exchange up to 100% of the face value of thelr Capital fionds held as at
30 June 2006 for Perpetual Preference Shares. In the event that Eppllcadons pursuant ta the
Exchange Offer exceed $15 miliion, applications seeking to exchange greater than 50% of their
Capital Bonds for Perpetusl Preferenca Shares may need to be scaled. Scaling will be at tha
discretion of MTF In assoclation with the Leed Manager. Any Capital Bonds not exchanged inte
Perpetual Preferance Shares wil! ba redeamed In cash on 30 June 2006. The closing date for the
Exchange Offar i3 16 Juns 2006.

In addition to tecelving Perpetual Preference Shares under the Exchange Offer, Capltal
Bondhalders participating 'n the Exchange Offer will recefve a cash payment on 30 June 2006
reflecting an Interest payment of 10.7% per annum for each $1,000 face value of Capltal Bonds
held, representing accrued interest on the Capital Bonds for the six manth period from 1 January
2006 up ta and incuding 30 June 2006.

Any application made under the Exchange Offer Is Irrevocable, Once an application has been made
existing Capital Bondheiders whao participate In the Exchange Offer will be unable to subsequently
seil the portion of Capital Bonds (n respect of which they have applled to éxchange for Rerpetual
preference Shares under the Exchange Offer and will not be entitied to the redemption amaunt on
the Capita) Bonds axchanged on maturity. Existing Capital Bandholders will be entitied to the final
Interast payment an all Capital Bangds in respect of the period to 30 June 2006 as detalled above.
Perpetual Preference Shares lssued pursuant to the Exchange Offer will be aliotted en 30 June
20086.

Capital Bondhelders whe wish to apply for Perpetyal Preference Shares in addition to those applied
for under the Exchange Offer will neeg to contact thelr Investment adviser and seek a firm
allocation or apply under the Public Pool.

Firm aitocation

Parpetual Preferance Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up to $15 million (43% of the
apgregate principal amount of the Offer) have been reservad for subscription by clents of NZX
Firms and invited financiat Institutions ont @ firm allocation basts. MTF reserves the right to accept
pver-subscriptians by way of firm allocation.

Priarity Pool

Perpetual Preference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up to $5 milion [14% of the
aggregate principal amount of the Offer) have bean raserved for Dealers, MTF staff, and Directors
(“Priority Poal®). Perpetuai Praference Shares fssped pursuant to the Priority Pool wiil be allotted
on 19 June 2008.

The balance of any Perpetual Preference Shares not taken up pursuant to the Priority Pool will be
reservad for aliocation at the discretion of MTF In conjunction with the Lead Manager. In the event
that applications pursuant to the Priority Pool excesd $5 million, applications will be scaled at the
discretion of MTF in assoclation with the Lead Manager.

The closing date for applications made pursuant ta the Priarity Pool Is 16 June 2006.

Public Pool

The resldual amount of the Ofer ot taken up under flrm aflocation, the Exchange Cffer or the
pricrity Poul, If any, wil be syallatile for sybscription by members of the public ("Pubiic Paal"). If
MTF exercises its right to accept over-subscriptions in respect of Parpetual Praference Shares then

Metor Trede FAnahcas Umned 10 @-
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come of &l of those over-subscriptions may aiso be avaliable far subscription by members of the
public,

Racerved sincation

IF MTF exercises its fight to accept over-subscriptions In respact of Ferpetual Preferance Shares
then some or all of those aver-subscriptions may aiso be reserved for subscription by cliants of
NZX Firms and invited financia! institutions by way of firm ajocation. As such, 100% of
over-subscriptions may ba reserved for firm allocations. The balance of any Perpetusl Preference
Shares (if any) will be avallable by way of the Fublic fool,

Use of funda

The tunds ralsed pursuaat to the Offer wifl be used in part to repay $30 mittion of Capital Bonds

being redeemed by MTF on 30 June 2006. In addition, the proceeds of the Offer will be used o
enabla the MTF Group to continue to finance organic grawth In its core activity of offering motor
vahiele finatwce.

Offer period

The Offer will be open from the Opening Date untl the Closing Dats, or such egarller date as
advised by MTF, or in the case of the Exchange Offer or Priarity Pool, until the Exchangs Qffer and
Priarity Pool Clasing Date. MTF in conjunction with the Lead Manager has the right to vary any of
these dates upon providing written notice to N2X.

Payment of Dividend

Dividends accrus on a dally basis from the Allotment Date, It is the current Intention of MTF that
the first Dividend will be payable pn 30 September 2006, hawever, as this date Is not 2 Business
Day the Dividend will be payable on the next Business Day, belng 2 October 2006, and Is payable
te the original subscriber, Irrespective of any transfer of the Perpetual Preference Shares by that
original subscriber prior to the First Dividend Payment Date. It is then proposen that subsequent
Dividends will be payable In equal quarterly Instaiments in arrears an 31 Oecamber, 31 March, 30
Jung and 30 September in each year, or iIf that day IS not @ Business Day, the next Business Day.
DWidends are not promised or guarantaed and may be cancalled at detalled on Dage 52.

Imputation

Dividends will consist of a combination of cash payments and Imputation Credits, to the maximum
extant permitted by law. Accordingly, any cash payment received wili be §7% of tha Dividend
Rate, under curcent legistatian and assuming @ corporate tax rate of 33%.

Applications

Appilcatians ta subscribe for Parpetual Preference Shares under the Offer must be for a minimum
principal amount of $5,000 and thereafter In multiples of $1,000.

Applications under Firm allocatien or Public Pool must be made on the Application Farm contalned
at the back of this Offer Document and must be lodged with the Registrar before 5:00pm on
28 June 2006 or returmed to MTF or any Primary Market Participant through which a firm allgcation
was obtalned or the Lead Manager or any other channel approvad by NZX in time for such
appilcations to be forwarded ta the Registrar by 5:00pm on 28 June 2006.

Applications to subscrive for Parpetual Preference Shares under the Priority Pool by Dealers, MTF
staff, and Directors must be lodged with the Registrar before 5:00pm 16 June 2006 or retumed to
MTF or to any Primary Market Participant or the Lead Manager or any other channel approved by
NZX in time for such applications to be forwarded to the Registrar before 5:00pm 1€ June 2006.

The aggregate principal amount of the Perpetua) Preference Shares for which application is made
must be pald in full on appiication, Cheques should be made payabla to "MYF Preference Share
Offar”, crossed "Nat Transfarable” and must not be post-dated. MTF may refuss a¥ or any part of

P.B7/36

ahy application without giving a reason.
Additional application instructions Including haw to apply can be faund on pages 79 to B2.
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Applications unsier the GExchange Offer

the
A parsonalised Red Application Form for epplying for perpetual Preferance shares under
Exchange Qffer has been prepared for each Capital Bondholaer showing the total aggregate
principul amount of Capital Bonds held as at 25 May 2006. This Red Application Form has been
sent separately to Capital Bonchepiders.

Capita) Bonghoiders wishing to apply to exchange the aggregate principat amount of their Caphtal
Bands for Perpetual Prefgrence Shares must compiete the personalised Red Application FoIm and
iodga It with the Ragistrar before 5:00pm 16 lune 2006 or retum it to MTF or any Primary Market
Participant or the Lead Manager or any other channel approved by NZX In time for such
applications to be forwarded to the Registrar before §:00pm 46 June 2006.

Existing - Capitat Bondhoiders participating In the Exchange Offer will not be required to make 2
cash payment for the portiod of Capita! Bonds exchanged into parpatual Preferents Shares.
Rather, payment will be effected by directing the face velue of their existing Capital Boruds
exchanged and payable to them WMTFonaoJumzoostcthe samwmafmexssuerﬂceof
the Perpetual Praference Shares allotted under the Bxchange Offer,

A hoider of Capital Bonds can apply to exchange up to 100% of the aggregate principal amount of
the Capital Sonds held. To the extent applicatians exceed the $15 million Perpatual Preferance
Shares reserved, applications seeking to éxthange greater vhan 50% of their Capital Bonds for
Perpetual Preferance Shares may need to be scaled. Scaling wili be at the discretion of MTF in
association with the Lead Manager. ANy Capital Bands not gxchanged into Perpetusl Preference
Shares will be redeemed In cash on 30 Juna 2006.

In the event Capital Bondholders wish to apply for Perpetual Preferance Shares outside of the
Exchange Offer they will be need to seek a firm allocation of shares from 8 NZX Firm or Invited
financial institution or apply for Perpetwal Preference Shares under the Public Poal and complete
the rejevant Application Ferm.

Atiotment

The OFer of the Perpetual Preference Shares ig subject to approval of the Offer by each glass of
MTF shareholder by ordinary resoiutian. It approval is not obrained the Offer will nat proceed.

Perpetual Preference Shares will ba allotted st the sole discretion of MTF. Perpstual Preference
Shares will be allotted pursuant to the Generd! Offer on a dally basis following receipt and
acceptance of valid applications by MTF.

Existing Capitai Bondholders particpating In the Exchange Offer will have thelr Perpetuat
prefarence Shares aliotted on 30 June 2008,

perpetual Preference Shares issued pursuant to tha Priarity Paoi wiit be allotted on 19 June 2006.

MTE will advise successful applicants of the allatment of Perpetual Preference Shares to them as
soon as possible after the Alletment Date.

Rafund

MTF reserves the right to refuse ali or any part of an apolication without giving 3 reason. 1f MTE
sccepts an apphication In part, the balance of the application maneys wiil be refunded no later than
five Busingss Days after the Allotmert Date of the Perpetusl Preference Shares to the applicant.
Any applications received after the Closing Date or Exchange Offer or Priority Pool Clesing Dates
may not be accepted. Any application money recalved for applications that ara not accepted will
be refunded to the applicant no later than flve Business Days after the Closing Date. No Interest
wiii be paid on refunds for applicatinns that are not accepted.

glthough brokarage may be payabla If perpetual Preference Shares are bought and sold in the
secondary market. Brokerage is payable by MTF to Primary Markat Participants, the Lead Manager
and other approved intermedlaries on applications that bear thelr stamp at the rate of:

Motar Trade Finances Limited 12 @-
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¢ 1.00% of the principal amount of Perpetual Preference Shares for which vaitd applications
have been recaived and accepted pursuant to the General Offar and Priarity Pool; and

«  0.50% of the principal amount of perpetual Preference Shares accepted by MTF by way of
over-subscription for which valid applications hava been recelved and accepted pursuant to
g Nrm allocation.

in addition MTF will pay the Lead Manager brokerage at the rate of 0.75% In respect of the
principal amount of all spplications received pursuant to the Bxchange Offer, from which the Lead
Manager will be responsible for paying brokerage at the rate of 0.50% te Primary Market
Participants and other approved intsrmediasies in respect of valld Exchange Offer applications that
hava been received and accepted that bear thelir stamp.

Underwritten Amount

The Offer has been underwritten by Porsyth Barr Group Limited to 2 total principal amount of $35
mitilan.

Land Manager
Forsyth Bary Limited

Motar Trade finances Limitad 13 @
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business overview

Introduction

MTF was formed in 1970 to enable selected motur vehicle dealers finance sales of motor
vehicies to the public. From & base of 12 punedin Oealers, the MTF Group fas grown to become
ane of the largest financlars of motor vehicies In New Zaaland with more than 700 Daaters, from
Kaltala to Imvercavglll.

The MTF Group, through Rs Dealer network, offers a range of finance products:
» cyedit contracts;
o finance leases; and
+ operating leases.

In addition, the MTF Group offers a range of third party Insurance products:

e payment protection insurance, for events affecting repayment, Such as Iliness,
radundancy or death;

+ guaranteed asset protaction, for the shortfall between the fnsurad valug and tha
cutstanding hoan;

v axtended warrenty; and
s comprehensive motor vehicle insurance.

MTE is Incorporated under the Companies Act 1993 and the Co-operative Companies Act 1996,
with its shares held by its Dealers. Oparations are conducted on & co-uperative basis with sefected
maotor vehicle dealers becoming shareholders of MTF, upon approval for access to MYT facilities.
‘The MTF Group accepts finance recelvables entersd Ints by Dealers with thelr customers and
retulns the net profit earned from these financial recalvables to the respective Dealers, by way of
manthly profic Distribution.

MYE amploys a totai of 55 peapla, 45 of whom support the Daalar netwark from the head office in
Dunedin and 10 who provide Dealer suppoit throughout New Zealand,

Punding
The principal source of funding Is a securitisation programme set up in 1933

MTF has ser up 3 special purpase company, MTF Securities Limitad (*MTFS") ivhosa sole purpose 8
to purchase qualifying finance recelvables from MTF. Upon purchase, MTF transfars all Its rights to
MTFS, Including recourse to the Individual Dealer.

The securitisation grogramme provides faciiittes far MTFS ta borrow up to an agreed Imit
(currently set at $600 millian) on the 8uro commarcial paper ("ECP") market. Registerad banks
pravide MTFS with standby iiquidity facilittes which guarantee funding should & nat be possible to
roll over the ECP at maturity.

The ECP Issued through the securitisation programme Is rated Al+/P-1 (the ablfity of MTFS t©
meet its financial obligations under the commerclal paper is excremely strong/supeniary by
standard & Poor's/Moody’s. Unsecured funding i1s pravided to MTFS by MTF In support of the cre it
enhancement of the securitisation programme. The ECP holders assume the cradit risk on He

halance of securltised receivables. These ratings do not 2pply ta the Perpetusl Preference ﬂareﬁ

Mator Trade Finances Limited 14
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The securitisation programme permits MTFS to apply the subordinated kan by MTF to fund losses
it might Incur on any of its purchased seeuritisud receivables. MTF's exposure to any bad debts
incurred by MTFS is limited ta the subordinated ioan Imvestad.

To ba ellgibls for securitisation, recetvables must arise from finance recelvables that are, inter alja:

a) credlt contracts, operating ieases or finance leases in relation to vehicie assels on 3
form approved for acceptance by MTFS;

b) for 3 tarm less than 60 months and a payoff amaunt greater than $1,000; and

c)  registered at the Persandl Praperty Securitias Ragistar ("PPSR”).

Further detalls on the securitisation programme are set cut an page 31 of thig Offer Documant.

Additional funding is avaliable to MTF, in the form of committed standby credit fadiities of
$77 million, provided by four appropriately rated banks, to ensure ongoing funding of
nom~sacuritised finance recaivables.

Non-securitised finance receivables currently comprise:

» Mnahce raceivebles which hava yet to qualify or that are awaiting the sala process to
MTFS; and

¢ finance racaivabies which are excluded from the eligibility criteria.

The committed standby credit facilitles comprise bank loans secured under the folowing
arrangemems:

o $63 million of committad standby credit faclities are secured by a cumposite debentura
dated 17 may 2001 in favour of Bank of New 2ealsnd over the agsats of MTF and MTF
Leasing Umited (MTFL). The security Is alsa ovar the MTF subordinated loan to MTFS but
nat over tha underlylng assets of MTPS. There is a security sharing arrangement between
MTE, Bank of New Zealand, Weatpac Banking Corporation and ANZ National Bank.

» $34 million of committed standby credit facliities are securad by 3 first ranking fixed
charge over the future interest cash flows from the Instalments outstanding on the
securttised recelvebles.

The committed standby credit faciities, which have Intarest maturities up to 30 days, have
facility maturities between May 2007 and March 2008.

Recoursa under finance cantracts

In the event of any default by the borrewer under 8 MTF Group contract, the MTF Graup has
availebia a5 security the vehicle or goads subject to the contract and 3 right of action against the
defaulting borrewer and any guarantor(s).

The MTF Group requires sach Oealer ta indamnify the MTF Group against any default by 3
borrower from that Dealer. This indemnity Includes the right to forfelt the MTF shares and profits
of any Dealer in the event that the Desler falls to meet its obligations under the terms of the
recourse arrangement, Dealers’ profits accumulats and are pald out manthly, two menths In
arvears.

Credit quality . A
By way of its web-based arigination system, MTF Direct, the MTF Group enabies Dealers to ass
o )

the credit of each finance applicant on a loan by {oan basls, at point of sale. This system has be
developed by the MTF Group based on its 35 years of succassful motor vehicle financing.

Mgtor Trade Finences Limised 18
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In addition to the cradit quality of finance applicants, MTF closely monitors the credit quality,
lending Umits, performance and finencis! position of each Dealer to ensure the quality of the
business written meets minimum standards and the Dealer 15 capable of indemnlifying the MTF
Group against any potential lossas. Thase Dealers that are unable or unwilling to meet tha MTF
Group credit and/or Indemnity criteria have their facfiitles with the MTF Group cancefiad.

At the date of this Offer Dacument, al! credit measures remaln wall within target, 2 reflection of
the Dealer sslection process and the ongoing quaiity of the MTF Group credit management,

Credit managomant
The MTF Group provides a3 complete credit managament service to the Desler, through IS

web-based originztion and management platform, MTF Direct. Afl intemai and statutorily required
noticas are generated and malled by MTF and Dualers gra provided with rasl tme Bccess
customaer amears Wormation. Whilst @ach Dealer has responsibllity to meet MTF coliection
standards, MTF manitors arradrs on a dally basis and provides technical and fegal support to
Daaiars throughout the arrears &ycie.

‘five credit status of each Dealer ledger of loans is assessed dally by MTF and profits are withheld if
that status moves beyond agresd prudential leveis. Whera prudentlal levels are not restored
within agreed time frames, the faciity is suspended or withdrawn,

Because all customer losses are for the account of the Deater, the credit risk assumed by MTF is fo
the individual Dealer and 13 capacity to maeet any customer shonfall. From the year ended
30 September 2001 until the ¢ate of this Offar Document, losses due to Dealer fallure have nat
excesded $480,000.

Cradit risk

The credit risk on securltised recelvables is imited to the unsecuret funding provided by MTF In
support of tha credit enhancemant of the secyritisation programme to MTFS which ag at 33 March
2008 stood at $29,476,087. The balance of the credit risk on the securitiserd recuivabies is
assumed by the holders of the ECP, pursuant to the securitisation programme. MTFS is
hankruptry remote, which from a legal perspective, {imits MTF's maximum credit risk, with respect
to sseuritised receivatles, to the amount of the subordinated foan provided to MTFE.

Non-securitised receivables comprise amounts owing by customers of Dealers and are secured by
a specific charge over gach vehicle or goods. Dealers Indemnify MTF for any losses from defaults
by their customers. This IndemnRy includes the right to seize the shares and profits of any Dealer.
MTF regularly monitors the credit quality and tending limits of its Dealers.

The exposure of the underlying finance receivables Is mitigatad by the limited exposurs to larger
customers relative to the total asset base and the high number of Individuai contracts which
comprise the finance recelvables,

Limits on exposures with counterparties have been set and approved by the trutees for the ECP
holders and are monitored on a regular basis. The MTF Group limits concentration risk with
counterpartles and monitars this risk continuously.

Leading edge systems and procesces

On 1 April 2005, the MTF Group iaunched MTF Direct, a wab-based foan erigination Systam, which
enables tha Dealer to process sll new business electronically at the dealershlp, MTF Diract
proviges bemer credit assessment, fewer errors, faster processing and uigmately better cradit
quality, than traditional manual processing methoeds, through access to customar, credit agency,
vehicle and security database verification st point of sale. Q

Through thie MTF Direct platform, I;ITF monitors Dealer cradit managament on a dally basis and Is
able to monitor loan ofigination as It happens. Together with its hest practice financial reporting

Motor Tade Finanees Limisd 18 @
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and atcounting systems, this enables the MTF Group to manage its credit position and funaing
reguirements.

Through #s websita, MTF provides Dealers with online access to the reparts required ©
syccessfully manage individual customer credit exposure.

Tha MTF Graup hes been 3n early adopter of iwading edge technoiogy in the Nnance Sector,

Risk management

The Board is responsibie for the MTF Group's system of interna! control. The Board reguiarly
monitars the operational and rinancial aspacts of the MTF Group's activities and, tnrough the audit
committae, considers the recommendations and agvice of external auditors.

An annual cyce of internal risk raviews 8 performed, covering treasury, financs, eredit and
information technology,

‘The Board ensures that recommendations arising from external or internal audits are investigated
angd, whare considersd necessary, suftable action Is taken to ensure that the MTF Group has an
appropriate enviranment In place 1o manage the risks identified.

The Board mquires that management investigates ways of enhancing tisk management strategies,
including appropriata segregatian of duties and the empioyment and training of sultably qualified
and experienced personnel.

An asset llabltity cammittee consisting of the Managing Directar, Generst Manager - Treasury,
Financlal Controller and Managor - Credit, meets regularly to eonsider batance sheet risk and
management, within the framework of Board aparoved credit and teeasury management policy.

Liguidity management

Uquidity 's managed primarlly through access o the securltisstion programme by which
receivables are sald o MTFS, Within the securitisation programme, ravolving standby credit
facilities exist with appropriately rated banks to pravide ongoing funding te repay ECP on maturity
shauld further paper not be able to be issued.

The MTF Group manages non-securitised assets and fatlitties to ensura maturities allow an
adequate margin betwean requirements to fund non-cecuritised assets and access to funding.

MTE sets a credit tmit for each Daalar, which represents the faciiity it makes available in tarms of
recalvahbles financed. Credit limfts are based on critarla such 8s the assessed quality of recelvables
Intreduced by the Dealer and the Dealer’s assessed financlal positian,

The securitisation programma has 2 facliity Umit of 5500 milion and is subject to credit rating by
Standard & Peor's and Moody's. Gther then the facility available to sell finance recelvables
pursyant to the securitisation programme, MTF has access o committed credit faciiities of $77
miflion.

Commercial paper issued through the securitisation programme is rated Al+/P-3 (the abliity of
MTFS to meet its financiat obligations under tha commercial paper Is extremely strong/superier) by
Standard & Poar's/Moosy’s; a reflection of the quality of paper written by Deaters and the
contiriving focus on credit quality. These ratings do not apply to the Perpetual Preference Shares.

Trading prospects and outiook

The MTF Group has succeeded bacause it takes a long run, conservative apgroach to metor vehicle
lending. Annual asset growth is targeted at 5-10%, gepanding on economic condicigns and the
health of the motor vehicle markat,

Market opportunities exist for motor vehicle receivables written by brokers, who do not sell the \
vehicle and the MTF Group has been trialing this business with selected brokers over the last two

Momr Trade Pnences Umima 17 ﬁ
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years. Decause the landing rules remain the same, axperience ta date suggests that broker
business delivers cradit quality thet matches that of Dealer generated business. Any expansion in
this area will be clasely monitorad.

Product Gpportunities extst In rigk management options that enhance the credit quality of finance
recelvables. MTF has sold third party risk managament products successfufiy for a number of
years and hag coliected a large amount of data on risk and proftabiiky.  Currently under
consideration is a payment walver, for an aadittonal fee, that would be triggered In the event of
ilinass, redundancy, bankruptcy ar desth. Actuarial advice suggests that the risk is manageable
and profitable. The benefits 10 MTF and Its Deslers would be additonal ingome and lower risk. No
decigion wii ba made on this product untfl the Board is satisfied that all prudential, legal and
statutory risks and requirements are claarly urdarsteod and capable of management.

MTF anticlpates some softening in consumer spending, In the 2007 financlal yaar, driven by
Increasing inflation and higher oll prices. This may have the sifect of dampening the demand for
new and used motor vehicies and cansequently motor vehide finance. Notwithstanding, for the six
months te 31 March 2008, new loan sales, asset growth and credit quality indicators suggest that
the levels of profitablity racardad In respect of the 30 September 2008 finandial year will continue
for the full year to 30 September 2006.
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Directors and management

Directors

Rager A Bonifant, MAgSC, MSS, CNZM (Chatrman]
Ashburtan

Roger Bonifant was appointed to the Board in 1981, by BNZ Finance Umited, a then substantial
provider of MTF funding. In 1934, he was appointad as tha Maotor Trade Assaciation ("MTA")
tepresentative. He was reappointed as a Dirsctor by sharaholders in March 2004, at which time ha
was elected Chalrman. Rager was anpolnted an Independent Director by the Board in February
2006. He is one of two independent Directors.

Roger redred as Managing Director of BNZ fFinance Limited in 1995 and is now a full tme company
directar,

Roger s Chalrmen of Ashburton Cantracting Limited, Rawlinsons Limited 8nd Deputy Chalrman of
Timaru District Holdings Umited. His directorships Inciude Barriwll Chertsey Irrigation Limited,
Hobsonvilie Land Company Limited, Loan and Bullding Society, Lynn River Limited, Rural Equites
Limitad and W Pinckney Limited. He ls aiso & director of MTF Limited and MTF Leasing Limited,

Angus R Bradshaw, BCA, ACA, F Fin, FNZIM {Managing Director)
Dunedin

Angus Bradshaw joined MTF bs General Manager in Degember 1997 and was appointed 2s a
Director In Apri} 1998, Priar to joining MTF, Angus held a number of senlor banking roles at The
Rural Bank and The National ank of New Zealand. He Is a director of MTF Securities timitad, MTF
Leasing Limited, MTF Limited and Wickiiffe Limited.

Warwick N Cashmoars
Auckland

Warwick Cashrmore 's Managing Director of Cashmaore Motors (Hemiiton) Limited, 8 usad vehicle
dealership and MTF sharehoider, and has been Involved in the motor trade for over 35 years. He
i$ a director of Waikiwl Holdings Limited. Wanwlek I8 ona of four Dealer Directors.

Warwick was national president of the Mator Vehicle Dezlars Enstitute from 1991 to 1952 and was
first elected to the Board In 1992.

Grasmie D Gihbons, BCom, CA
Lower Mult

Graeme Glbbons is Chief Executive Gfficer of The Colantal Motar Company Limited ("CMCT), a
public listed company. CMC 15 the parent company of a number of Ford deslerships throughout
New Zealand that have been shareholders in MTF since the earty 1980's.

Grasme has been a Director since 1990, originally as a nominee of the MTA and elected by
shareholders since 1996. Graeme fs one of four Dealer Directors and ls chalrman of the credit
committee,

Grasme Is a director of The Colontal Motor Company Limited and Its subsidiaries.

-
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Stephen 3 Higgs, BCom, FCA
Dunexin

Stephen Higga was appointed by the 8oard a8 an Independent Director on 1 May 2006, Stephen IS
one of two Independent Directars. Stephen (s a founding partner of Paison Higas Chartered
Accountants, with offices in Dunedin and Christchwech,

Stephen is Chairman of Mt Difficuity Wines Umiteq, Charactar Animation Technologies Umited and
CAY IP Umited. He Is a director of Citibus LUimited 8nd Cumberiand Property Group Umited. Hels
also a Dirgetor of MTF Uimited ang MTF Leasing Limited. Stephen fs company secretary of
Combined Rurat Traders Scclety Limited and lecturas In taxation at the University of Otago.

Lawrange § Saunders
8lenhelm

Lawrance Saunders joined the Board (n 1991 as an sppolntes of the Motor Vehicle Dealers
Instityte, He was elected by sharehoiders as a Dealer Diractor In March 2005, Lawrance is ane of
four Denler Directors.

Lawrance was Managing Oirector of Mayfield Motars Uimited In Blenhelm for 38 years to 2003,
Lawrance Is a director of Mayfleld Motors Limited and Homeaway Rentais Uimited,

enneth J cummlnﬁs
Nosgiel

Kan Cummings was elected by shareheldars as a Director in March 2004. Ken Is one of four Dealer
Directors,

Ken holds a number of major franchises through his dealerships in Neison, Christchurch, Dunedin
and Invercarglll and has been invoived In the motor trede since 1973, Ken s a director of
Southern Motor Group Limited, Southern Mator Haoidings Wmited, Cheistchurch Motor Group
Limited, Southern Automotive Limited, Southland Honda Limited, Park Lane Finance Lmited and
Christchyrch 4WD Limited.

The Directors can be contacted at the afdress of the registared office of MTF, which (s set out in
the Directory or page B6.

Dutiny of Directors
The Boprd carriss out its responsibiities aceording ta the following principles:

the number of nor-executive Directors will be no fewer than five, and ro greater than six;

2 Directar may not simuitaneousty hald the positions of Managing Director and Chalr;

the Directors meet reguiarly thraughout the financial year; and

all avallstie Information relating to items to be discussed at @ meeting of the Board is
provided to each Director prior to the meeting.

- &« & =w

The primary responsihilities of the Directors include:

warking with management o create shareholder value;

setting the long-term goals of MTF and the strategic plans to achieve those goais;
sppraving budgets for the financlai parformanca of the MTF Group, and monitoring results;
mn:naglng risic by ensuring that the MTF Group has appropriate systems of intermnal co

3

. ensuring greparation of the annual end half-yearly Ananclal statemeants.

As mt the date of delivery of this Offer Dacument for registration, the Board consisted of four
Daaler Diréctors, two indepangdent Directors and the Managing Director.

Motar Trade Fnences Limited 20 @
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Commitieas are used to enhance the Board’s effectiveness, white preserving overall Board
responsidlity. Committees are assigned terms of refarence by the Soard for the roles they
petform, and aré reguird to raport to the Board on thelr deliberations, together with any decisions
requiring Board ratificatian.

The Board continually reviaws the roles, m=mbership and effectiveness of the committees. The
Board has the following committees; audlt, remuneration, credit and nominations. Gther
cammittees may be formed for specific purposes and disbanded as required.

Aundits Stephen Higgs (Chalt), Roger Bonifant, Kenneth Cummings
The audlt committee provides 2 forum for communication between tha Board and the extemal
auditor. The commitiee reviews:

« annuat and ha-yearly financial statements prior to thelr approval by the Board;
giectiveness of management information systems and systems of intarnal control; and

Tnis commitiee met twice during the year ended 30 September 2005.

Remunarations Roger Bonifant (Cheir), Gruemo Ghbbans
The remuneration committed reviews the remunsration packages of Directors and the Managing
Dicactor, annually, The commitiee met once during the year ended 30 September 2005.

credit: Graeme Glbbans (Chair), Roger Sontfant, Warwick Cashmore, Lawrance Saunders
The credlt committee reviews credit risks, recammends credit policy and approves certaln cradit
imits. Tha committee met four times dusing the year ended 30 September 2005, In addition to
regular approval of large eXposures.

Nominatians: The committes, consisting of the full Board, is convened when 2 Board vacancy
occurs. The committes was not vequired to meet during the year ended 30 September 2005.

P.17-36
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Managament

Angus R Bradshaw, BCA, ACA, P Fin, FNZIMN (Managing Plrector)

Angus Bradshaw jolned MTF as General Manager (n Decamber 1997 and was wgpolated as a
Dirsctor in Aprit 1996, Pricr to joining MTF, Angus held 3 number of senlor banking roles at The
Rural Bank and The National Bank of New Zealand. He Is 8 director of MTF Securtties Limited, MTF
Leasing Limited, MTF Limitad and Wiciiiffe Umited.

Treusury

Danief Clarkson, BCam, DipGrad, SA Fin

Danie! Clarksan began his carser with MTF In 1995, He was appointed Fmanciat Controlier In 1899,
Yreasurer in 2000 and Chief Financial Officer/Company Secratsry In 2003. Daniel was appointed
General Manager - Treasury/Company Secretary In 2004. Danlel Is a member of the Institute of
Chantereg Accountants.

Credit

Ruszall Wallcar, MBA, BCam, ACA, CMA

Russell was appointec Manager - Credit In 1982. His axperienca Covars chartered accounting,
development banking and finance,

Finance

Glan Todd, BCom, A Pin

Glan joined MTF In 1993 as Financlal Accountant and was appointed Pinancial Controller In Mpy
2003. Glen is a member of the Institute of Charterad Accountants.

Information technology

Junnat Magbool, BFA, ASA

Jannat started her career at ING Bank In Sydney In 1997, She joined MTF In 2001 and was
appointed Chief Infarmation Officer In 2005.

Sales

EBrent Dunshea

Brent joined MTF as General Manager - Sales In 2002. Prior 10 Joining MTF, Brenk heid senior
positions with a number of leading finance companles,

Dealer support
Simon Hapkine
Simon {oined MTF in 2001. He was appointad Manager - Dealer Support In 2008.

P.18-358
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historical financial information

This saction of the Offer Document contains historical financial nformation In refaton to the MTE
Group including MTF, the issuer of Perpetual Preference Shares.

The Nhstorical Information should ba read togsther with the “business overview” an page 14, the
risk factors set put in the sectfon *What are my risks?* and ather information contained In this
Qffar Document,

Summary of financial statements

A summary of the recent financial perfocmance of the MTF Group Is preseniad pelow for the five
consecutive periods ending 30 Saptember 2003,

The historical Information is extracted from audited financiat statements of the MTF Group far the
pariads ended 30 September 2001, 30 September 2002, 30 September 2003, 30 September 2004

and 30 Septamber 2008,
CTTTRcEE ks i T TN
AR . SR SO S . MDD
Fimancla] psrformance
Tolal npamting reveryns B7,624 80,073 74,180 43,697 45,560
Interset paid 38,172 34,882 32,681 4,287 4,735
Profit bafore taxation 38,7680 38,312 33,642 22 32,918
Taxation cherge {benefit) a4 174 {42) 113 (53)
Prafit after taxation 38,696 38,138 33,684 31,109 a2.9m
Dividends paid ang provided - - - . -
Olvidand cents par sharna - - - - .
Profit (Deficit) retained (5,448) (5.229) 1904  (1,173) 12918
Finanein! position
Totaf assstn 580423 653156 518375 78230 | 764B4
Total tanglble assets 570,858 552,834 518,800 78,727 75.723
Total inbiiitias 568,297 535,363 497,186 58,819 54,081
Tatal sharshalders’ equily 11,424 16,783 22220 20411 21,803
Net tangibla agsat backing her
Papauial Prefersnca Share unit - - - . .

« During the year anded 30 September 2003, the group consoiidated MTF Securities Ltd
(MTFS). This Is required under Flnaacial Reporting Standard 37 (FRS-37): Consolidating
Investments In Subsidlarles, which applles to general purposs financial reports covering
pestads ending on or after 31 Decamber 2002. Accordingly, the 2002 and 2001 figures
exclude the effect of consolidating MTFS as a subsidiary and therefore slso exciude the
securitised receivables as an asget snd related funding as a liablifty. Otherwise, the
accounting policies set cut under the heading “Statement of Accounting Policles” on
pages 27 to 31 of this Offer Document have baen consistantly appiled for all financial
periads presented.

» In preparing the 2005 financial statemerts set ocut on pages 25 to 48, certain minor
reclassification changes were made to the 2004 comparstive figures. Accordingly, minor
differences arisa hetween the figures prasented In the 2004 financial performance and
pasition as set out above and comparative figures Included In the 2005 fingnclal stataments |
an pages 25 to 48.

+ Pursuant to Section B{3)(a){ix) of the First Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983 the
figures above do not Include any amounts derived using the equity mathad of accounting.

Mator Trade Finances Limited 23 %
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The disciosure of distributions on a cents per share bagls |s a requirement of Saction
8(3)(a){x!") of the First Schedule to the regulations and is not relevant In tha contaxt of
distriixitions made by MTF to Its shareholders.

The net tangibie asset backing for the Issua of $38 milflon, plus up to $S miilion of ovier-
subscriptions, Of Perpetual Preference Shares, measured on the assumption that ail
securities Mad besn aliotted prior to 30 September 2005, would ba $1.24 per share.

The profits aler taxation are distributed each year to the MTF Devlers. Over the five year
pariod of the Summary of Financial Statements the Profit {Defidit) retained, 25 presented,
Huctuates principaily due to the iming of tha distributions relative to when the profit afver
taxation was reported. In 2001 (when distributians were mate six muonthiy) 8 Financlal
Reporting Standard change maant that a large portian of the distribution relating to the
2001 year was dafarred untll 2002. Yhe effect was a slanificant portion of the 2001 Profit
was retained, Similar deferments toak piace in subsequent years. In 2004 and 2005 the
reparted distributions were greater than the Profit after taxation (leading to a Derct
ratained) because of the move to manthly profit distributions.

P.28-35
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year ended 30 september 2005
’ P
e
§000 $000 $000 $000
{ntarant invome
Securttised recelmbles 3 75914 72288 66,870 €5,188
Non-saciftised recalvables 3 4,204 4,842 4,234 49042
I 18 1,800 1,378 - ol
Pepitineres B e T
Fonding costs
Intorest 4 MAT2 34,852 8218 4,449
Securiisation funding cests 12 - - 23,025 2179
Capita} bond issue expense smoriised 23 84 62 84 62
Other 400 355 400 358
39.555 35.05 o8, 727 26,800
Net Interast income 42386 43,530 42,386 43,530
Fees 32 6,502 1,509 6.562 1,509
Nat intarwst income snd fess 47968 45,039 47,068 039
Bxpanas
Staff 4658 4,187 4,655 4,187
Conynunication and procassing 162 1,863 1,622 1,963
Dapraciation 1,456 1213 1,456 1219
Adrninigtration 1,238 1,311 1,836 1,311
5 8,968 8,644 8,969 8,644
“Profit Before bad debis snd provisions 35,950 38,306 35,099 36.35
Bad debts and gpecific provisians 8 4] {75 b)) (75)
{Senaral and contingent debt provisions 8 220 168 158
Profit baforo txxallon 780 4 38,780 3§31z
7 84

ezt evense
Profit taxation

84 174 174
$30,808 $36.138 138
P

statement of movemesnts in equity

Sharehninars' equity at start of yaar
Profit after taation

Sharehaldarg' contributions

Shores redsamed

18,704
35,888
517
{438)

Distiulon p sharsnoiders
Sharshol aquiRy at ond of year

%44.144! (41,387)

$18,794

22,220
36,138
442
(838)

18,784 22,220
38,606 38,138

817 44z
439 (836}

CXYTRCE )
1,428 316,794
N

P.21-36
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statament of financial pasition
30 september 2008

an

_5000 $000 $000 $000
Funds smployed
Share caplts 8 aaTr e,637 8877 8,697
Ratained samings 1.116 1,131 1,116 1,131
W 14 28 0,028 3431 9,025
equity 1 18, 424 18,
Liabllitlas
Bank overdra® 387 (104} 428 (66)
Accounts paysble and gociued expanyse 13 4,004 4,018 4,860 K R:Y )
Approved diwbisution due to sharshalkiars 1d 3,125 . 2128 .
Pravision for Rxstion asz 2 as2 (r4)
Advence from MTFS 12 . . 483,752 450,704
Short-tarm loans - secured 10 38,700 30,400 38,700 30,400
_Eum commeygial paper - secuned n ﬁm%___?ﬂmm 478,944 - -
7 5112 7 4

Employmant of funds

Caih In rettricted bank accounta 18 28,807 28,243 -
Accounta rocslvihila 338 1814 111 138
Figorpian advances 15 2,149 2,765 2,140 2,765
Securitised receivablas i8 408,108 485,583 498,198 485,583
Non-Securitisad racsivablas 7 45,1688 45,142 27.581 29538
Amounte owing by subsidianiad 20 - - 17,214 5210
Progadty, glant and ggu!glant 21 4,201 295 4,201 291

70859 528 §35.1

Dwfomed taxation 22 418 148 801 882
Intanglble assat 23 148 78 146 6
m’”‘ T sﬂn.ﬁ-l —REES.OS1  POSUAT1 'ﬁ_ﬁl‘r

For and an behaif of the board

O/ iguas

Angus Bradshaw
Managing Director

11 November 2005

(Zﬂﬁ“’"\n—.’

Roger Banlfant
Chairman

¥
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note 1: statement of acoovating policias

These financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the Companies Act 1993 and the
Financial Reporting Act 1893, Tha financial statements are for Motor Trade Finances Ltd (MTF) and ks

trading subsidiaries.
(a) Basls for preparation

‘The historicat cost methad has been followed. The reporting currency is Naw Zealand dollars (NZD).
(b} Specific accoumting policles

The fallowing pérticutar accounting policias which significantly affect the rmeasurement and
reparting of results, cash flows and financlai position have been appiled:

)

(i

un

comsoiidation of subsidlaries

‘The consolidated financial statements Inciude those of the parant campany and all antities
controlied by MTF pursuant to FRS-37. Consolldating Investments in Subsidiaries, accounted
for using the pyrchase methad. All inter-antity transactions, balances and unrealu_ml profits
or lossas on transactions betwesn group entities have been eliminated on consolidation,

Sscuritisation of recelvables

MTF funds a major portion of its business by the sale of financa recelvables to MTF Secyrities
Ltd (MTFS), a special puricse company sstablished solely for the purpose of purchasing
finshce racelvables from MTF and funding the same by access to International credit markets
supportad by credit ratings tssued by Standard & Poor’s and by Moody's Investors Service.

uUnder the securitisation programme a substantial part of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by MTF. MTF has the ablilty to control the contractual rights that comprise the
financial assets transferred to MTFS.

MTF racognises transactlons with MTFS as fingnce transactions; that Is, the expenditure
related to the securitisation programma is recognised as a cost of funding and the securitised
ascets and funding from MTFS are recagnised respectively as assets and Uabilities In the MTF
parant Statement of Financial Posician.

Valuation of assets
Securitised finance recelvables

Comprised of financa recelvables and finance leases and vatued at estimated realisable value.
They have been recorded as the total of instalments due less the unaearned interast on the
agreements and provisions for doubtful debts. Known losses are written off or provided for in
the period In which they become evident.

Nonssecuritised finance racelvables

Comprised of finance recelvables and finance leases and valued at pstimated realisable value.
They have been recorded as the totai of fnstaiments dua less the unearned interest on the
agreements and provisions for doubtful debts. Known logses are written off or provided for in
the periad in which they bacetme evident.

Finance receivebles ~ sonditionsl purchase agreements

Valued at estimated realisable velue. They have been recorded as the total of Instalm,
due less the unearned !nterest on the agresments and provisions far doubtful debts. wn
losses are written off or provided for in the pertod In which they becoma evident.

Finance leases

Comprised of vehicles on leasa which are valyed at estimated realisable value. They have
been racorded a5 the total of instaiments due less the unearned Interest on the agresments

Motar Trado Finances Limited 27
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notes to financlal statements

30 September 2006

and provisions for doubtful debts. The lease vehicles are accountad for under the finance
maethad as finance lasses. Known losses are written off ar provided for (n the period in which
they become avident. '

Floorplan advances

Valued st estimated realisabla value. Known lagses sre written off or provided for in the pariod In
which they become evident.

Impaired assets and pravisions

Impaireg assets are principally comprised of non-accrual assets. Such assets are classifled as
managad dealers.

Non-accrual assats comprise non-securitised receivabies whare Individual contracts are in
arrsars and the company Is either unable o obtain, ar anticipates future difficuities In
obtaining, recourse from the dealer.

The graup generally does nat hald or recognise restructured assets or other asssts including
raal estate assets acquired through the enfarcement of security. The aroup does hold past
due assets where contracts are In arrears for 90 days or more and the dealer has not been
placed In the managed dealer categary.

Specific provision for nan-accrual assets Is determined with respect to gach managed dealer,
after 2ssessing recoverabie contract instaiments, security in the vehicles and recoveries from
dealers under recourse arrangamants.

Bad and doubtful debts

A general provision is malntained for bad dabts which ara inherent in the receivabiles but have
not besn specifically Identified and pravided for. The level of general provision is determined
having regard to asset quality and growih, econamic condtions, and ather genera! risk
factors. Al bad debts are written off against the provisien in the period In which they are
classified as liracoverable.

The amount necessary to bring the pravisions to their assessed levels, after net write offs and
recoveries, Is charged to the Statemant of Financial Performance.

All recelvatiles are subject ta continuous management review.
Property; plant and equipment
Valuad at eost lass aceumuiated depreciation.
Other investments
Valued at cost lass pravigion for any impalrmant,
(v) Recogaition of Income
Securitised finance recelvables

The intarest on finance agreements accspted by the group during the perlod, adjusted for the
unearned interest at the start and end of the perlod. is caiculated on the actuarial basis.

Non-securitised finance recalvabies

The intergst on finance agraements accepted by the group during the period, adjusted for the
unearned Interest at the start and end of the periad, Is calculated on the actuarial basls,

Finance [aases

Recognised oh an actuarial basls over the term of the lease. \y\ o

Mowor Trade Finances ummea 28 (AR
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nates to financial statements

20 Septamber 2006
Floarplan recéivables
Recognised monthly, caleulated on the actual level of raceivabies outstanding during the
month.

Impaired assels

Impalred assets primarily comprisa non-accrunl assets of managed dealers. When a dealer 18
classified as. managed, income continues to be recognised in tha Statement of Financiai
Performance ofs 3 contract by contract basis to the extent that (nstaiments are ascegsed As
racoverabie from the customer or the dealer via recourse arrangemaents.

Foos

Fea income, and assoclatad expense, IS recognised In the Statement of Financial Performance
in the period the fea Is charged to the receivable.

(v) Secinitication funding cost

The cost of securitisation is recognised s incurred. This cost is represented by the interest
cost (In the form of discount expense) on euro commercial paper (ECP), denominated in
united States doliars (USD), Issued to fund the securitisation programme, the nst cost of
Interest rate swap and forelgn exchange contracts to hedge the funding activities with the
cash flows from securitised receivables, and the direct cost of running the securitisation
programme. '

{vl) Depreciation
Plant and equipment are depreciated on a stralght-line basis:
Hardware « 3 years
Softwara - 3 and § years
Qffica equipment, fixturas & fittings - 5 yaars
Mator vahicles - 5 years
(vil) Intangible asset

On 19 December 2000 MTF issued 410,000,000 in perpetual capital bonds, BExpenditure
assoclated with this issue Is amortised on a stralght-line basis In the Statement of Financlal
Performance over five yaars ending 31 Decamber 2005. On 6 Dacsmber 2004 MTF Issued
45,000,000 in perpetual capital hands. Expenditure associated with this issue is amortised on
a straight-ine basis in the Statement of Financial Performance over flve years ending
31 December 2009,

(vii}Recognition of financial Instrumaints

The group enters into various financlal Instrurments with off-balance shaet risk for the primary
purpase of reducing exposure (o fluctuations In Interest rates and farelgn exchange rates.
Thess derivative financial Instruments censisting of interest rate swep agreements and foreign
exchange contracts are primarily used to hedge the cash fiows with the assaclated assets and
{abilities in the securitisation programme. While these fAnancial Instruments are subject to risk
that market rates may changs subsequant to acquisitien, such changes are generally offset by
opposite effects on tha items being hedged.

For interest rats swep agreements entered Into in cannection with the management of

interest rate exposure, the differantial to be paid or raceived is recognised as a net iftarest
rate swap cost aver the ife of the agrsemant.

From time to time the company enters into financlal instruments with off-balandg, shee sk
for the purposes of hedging exposure to fluctuations In Interest rates relati )

Motar Trade Finences Limneed
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30 September 2006

securitised funding. The diffarential to ba paid on these interest rate swap contradts i
charged as 2 component of Interest or expense as swap contract cash settemants are made.

All other financial Instruments are recogniged on balance sheet, with the excaption of
contractual commitrnents in respect of aperating leases.

(Ix] Taxation

The estimated taxation lability In respect ot the profit for the yeer has bean determined after
allowing for any permanent differences. Deferred taxation is calculatad using the Nabliity
method applted on a partial basis and represents mainly tha timing differences arising from
income on finance leases.

The general pravision for doubtfut debts recognises bad dabts Inherent in the loan pertfolio,
but which have not been specifically \dentifiad, Directors have determined that as the tming
of the evantual utiisaton cannot be predicte, future income tax benafits associated with the
general provision shauld not be recognised as they may not crystallise In the future.

With the exception of non-member income, and certain timing differences on member incame,
na taxation is incurred by the group.

In refation to mamber income, MTF operates 23 A co-operative and transactions ara confined
ta sharsholders. In accordance with the provisions of Part HF of the Income Tex Act 2004,
the company is permitted 2 deduction for distribution of profit payable to shareholders within
six months of balsnce date. Distributed prafit is assessable (n full to transacting sharehaiders.

(x) Statement af Cash Flows

Tha Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using the direct approach, modified by the
netting of certain items.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash reflects the balance of cash and liquld assets used In the day to day management of the
antity. ’

Netting of cash liows

Certain cash flows have been netted to provide more meaningful disclosure. Short-tarm loan
cash flows resutt from the day to day cash managemsnt of the antity and invaiva the rapid
turnover of financial Instruments or arrangements not exceeding three months, The turnover
of these cash fiows has been nettad.

"[nvesting activities" are those activities Involving the acguisition of and proceeds from the
sale of Investments and other non-current assets.

Financing activities” are those activities relating to changes In squity and debt cepital
structure and those activities relating to the cost of servicing the equity capital.

gperating activities” includes finance Income which comprises gross interest and net income
cash flows received during the period from securitised and non-securitised recelvables and
other transactions that are not investing or financing activities.

{x{) Ferelgnh eurrancy transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencles sre translated into the reporting currency
using the exchange rate In effect at the trangaction date.

Monetary Itams raceivable or payabla in a forelgn currency, other than those resulting fram
short-term transactions coverad by forward exchenge contracts, are trensiated pblance
date at the closing rate. For transactions coverad by shart-term forward exchange ontracts
the rates specified in thase contracts are used as the pasis for measuring ang, repo the!

transaction.
motor Trade Finan umg
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30 September 2006

Exchange differences on foreign currency balances are racognised in the Statement of
Financlal Performance.

(c) Changesin sccoumiing pelicies
Thece are no materal changes In accounting oolicies.
(d) Comparative information
Certaln eomparative figures have been reclasified to ba consistent with current period presentation.

note 2: securilisation programme

MTF Is party to a securitisation programme with MTFS and othar parties, incuding Commonwaealth Bank of
Australia {CBA). The principal components of the pragramme are:

() Under a loan purchase desd between MTF and MTFS, a revolving loan purchase facility is provided
by MTFS to MTF. Under the contract with the dealer MTP Is given 2 legal agsignment by way of
martgage over the dealer's rights under the contract and the underlying motor vehicle, Upon

securitisation of these assets MTF trangfers afl s rights, including recourse to the individua!
dealers, to MTFS.

() MTFS Is a speclal purpose company whase sole purpuse is to purchase mator vehicle and ather
related finance receivables from MTF, MTES Is constituted for the specific purpose of purchasing
the finance receivable agresments {securitised recaivables) In the form of tanches of recaivables

from MTF on a weekiy basls. :

() MTF (s contracted to administer the securitised receivables in sccordance with an administration
agresment, CBA Is contracted to manage the affairs, including the Hahllity and treasury activitias, of
MTFS.

(iv}  MTFS Is nominally capitalised, ravenue neutrat and bankruptcy remote. The shareholders of MTFS
are a discretionary trust, MTFS Moldings 1id on pahaif of certain charities (89%) and the Trustee as
trustee for the baneficlaries under a Securlty Trust Deed (1%). MTFS has three directars, one each

appointed by MTF and CBA, and an independent director.

(v} MTRS’s constitution restricts the activities of MTFS and these can only be changed with the congant
of all shareholders,

(v})  Credit enhancement and liguidity support are provided by appropriately rated banks and MTF. MTF
provides credit enhancernent support in the form of a subordinated loan representing saller hold-
backs, being amaunts held back by MTFS on the purchase of finance receivables.

(vii) At the date of sale, subjact to tha eradit ennancement support, MTF receives the principal portion of
the finance receivables. The interest instaimeats due to be paid on the finance recelvables jess the
ralavant fixed interest discount payable (MTF5 funding costs) represent the purchase price bafance

payable ts MTF on the purchase of the finance recelvables.

{vili) The purchase price balance of each ican Is paid to MTF progressively when each instaiment Is paid
to MTPS. If MTFS is not gaid, MTF Is not pald.

{ix) To be sligible for sacuritisation the rezelvables must arise from finance receivables that are, Inter
atla:

a) hire purchase agreements, chattel securlty agreements, credit contracts, or fimdnice | i
relatian to vehicle assets on a form approved for acceptance by MTFS;
b far a tarm léss than 60 manths and 8 payoff amount graater than $1,000;
¢} registered at the Parsonal Pruperty Securlties Ragistar (PPSR). \
Meror Trads Fing WW1
- .
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(x}

()

(xit)

P.28-36

Interest rate swap agraements ara enterad Inta with the lssuance af the ECP raquired to fund each

Individuat tranche of securitised recaivables, Under these agreements the quantum and tenar

of the

money borrowed from the Issuanca of ECP is exactly matched In both valus and tlmlqg to the
aggregate cash flows due to MTTS. The interest cost of borrowing is fixed for the effective life of
aach tranche of securitised recelvables and ls fxed for each securitised recalvable agreemant that
constitutes the trenche, In thiS manner the interest rate risk assoclated with funding fixed race

recelvables with shart-term, variable rate ECP Is eliminated.

Foreign exchange forward agresmants are entered Into with the issuance of the ECP required to
fund each Individual tranche of securitised recelvahies, In this manner the forelgn exchange risk
associated with funding NZD denominated recelvables with USD denaminated ECP is efiminated.

The securitisation programme provides facilities for MTFS to borrow an agreed limit, currently set at
NZ0600,000,000 on the ECP market. Registered banks provide MTFS with standby liquidity
facilites. Thess standby Hquidity facilities guarantee funging should it not be possible to roll over

tha ECP a2t maturity.

(xiify MTF Is required to lend funds on a continulng basls to MTFS by way of a subordinated loan fn
support of the credit enhancement of the securitisetion progremme. The quantum of the
subordinated debt required eguates to 5.66% (2004: 5.67%) of the net finance recejvabies due to
MTFS. The amount of the subordinated loen at 30 September 2005 was %29,609,000 (2004:
$28,647,000).The loan made by MTF fo MTFS In this manner Is subordinated to all other

borrowings of MTFS,

{xiv} During the year ended 30 September 2008 MTF soid $422,604,000 (2004: $432,516,000) of
securitised recelvablas to MYFS., Thesa recelvables are recognised in the MTF Statement of

{xv)

Financial Position and no surplus ot deficit s recognised as 2 result of thesae sales.

The securitisacion programme permits MTFS to apply the subordinated loan to fund losses

incur oh any of lts purchased securitised receivables. MTF exposure to any bad debts Incu

MTES i§ limited to the subordinated loan Invested.

tt might
rred by

The subordinated loan referred to In (W), () and (xv) is represented by the following In the

Parent Statement of Financlal Positlon:

+
2004

: 3000 $000
Secunitised receivables - {nma 16) 404,198

add back general provision for doubthd detts 2,857 23%7
legs adverze from MTFS 463,752 701
37, 49
{ess iming diffarances on colisctan, recognition and pass through of Incoms
Jom MTFS o MTF . 8,802
o MT

W

Metor Trade Financas t@ a2
: ..
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group parsnd
2006 2004 2008 - 2004
_gooo sooo  soco . 5000
note 3. finance income
From secinitisad racalvables
Inarest marnad- sacyyaed roRivabies 1591878 & £5,188
- 5310 268 GOBATO 865,
Fram nor-eacuritided woaivabies |
ntavest samad- inance agresments 3817 4208 3BT 436
Fioarplan advances 340 447 us M7
Non-member income —

Finaric ncomg inchadsa (ncoms from:

88 200 68 200
“FiTh S8 Shiw s

Non-impaired sggets 80030 76805 708N £9.808
Impairad asgsls 54 125 54 125
Nem-member Incoms 1] 2 -] 200
$m,152 sn.?'."ta‘o $7TLTHY 570430
— ——————
nota 4: interast
Perpstunl capltal bonds 3,062 2,418 3,082 2415
Short-tanm loans 1.808 1.752 1,898 1,752
Eurn commearncisl papsr 32,945 25,495 - -
Not inlarest rate swap eufiow(infiow) {1417} 1.737 - -
Flaorplan 238 282 298 282
- - $35172 34,882 $52180  FAd48
note 5: expense
inciudes:
Autiitor = stetulory audi 106 119 a8 75
- pther audit sarvices &1 63 &1
- compllance 108 84 108 . B4
Depreciation - hardware 478 233 478 | 233
- soRware 843 657 a3 - 6597
- offlce equipment, fidures & fttings 5 % 51 226
- mator vehicles a4 87 84 97
Diractors’ fass 208 106 206 196
fantal and loaee 02 210 202 270
note 6: bad debt provisions
Specifiz provision
Opening balance - 7 - 7
Bad dabta recovared 1 80 1 80
Tramtar from ganeral provislan - 150 - 150
Bad debls writtan off . {162} - {162)
o Statemant of Financial | {1} {75) (1) {75}
Cbllﬂ balance . - . -
B3y dabty recoversd
Non-mpaired sssets . .
lrnpalred RESEMS » man deal 1 -]
$t $80

; .&S

Motor Trade Mnances Limited 33
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Charge (release) to Ststemont of Financial Parformance
Nonmpaired assals - - - -
. {81) o8 &) 67
Ganorel Provision
Opmlng balance 2.872 2.884 21372 2.8“
Charge (reloasa) ta Statement of Fnanciel Parformance {1.024) 158  (1.024) 158
Tran § on - 150 = 150
Contingent dsbt provision
QOpaning Balance - - - -
of Financiel 1 . 1.244 :
Closing balance 264 - $1.244 -
Thia note shauld be reed in canjunction with the aceounting pnllnynnha ana doubtiul debts.
Refar nots 1(b){Al),
note 7: taxation
Prafit bators axation 30,780 36,312 38,780 38,312
Fermanent diffarencas
~ Profit gigtitxntable (38,712)  (38.112) (38712) (3€.112)
- O¥urdharences ta7 187 J
F -5 7 255 527
o — mm— ‘
Toxation @ 33% B4 174 g4 174
Compricad of.
- current taxetion 354 (18) a3 4
- defsimay tuxation {270) 160 319 131
Chama to Statement of Finangial Peformancs $84 174 584 $17d
note 8: share capital
A arginary sharag;
8,726,000 sharas of $t1 issued 8,726 6,076 8,726 aa78
270,000 sharae surfendered (270) (800) (270) {€00)
£30,000 shares aligtted 530 450 530 450
6,986,000 sharss of $1 issusd 6,986 8,726 8506 8,726
uncalled capial 34 288 47 58
Peld up capitsl A sharas g._?:aa 8,428 8,639 g.428
B oalnary gharey:
500 shares of 51 fully paid {redeamed in 2005) . 1 - 1
C onfinary shamsg
2,083,560 of $0.10 fully paid 208 188 208 188
57,280 gharas surrendered {8) {13) {8) (13)
349,838 shores alicted 36 33 a8 33
2,376,121 of $8.10 fully pald

Tola) issusd and pald up capital

238 208 238 20
$6,077 .83 877 $8.837

The comgany |5 registered under tha Co-operativa Companies Act 1996 and each share has a nominal
value. The A ordinary shares are held by motor vehicie dedlers who meat MTF requirements for

participation. These shares confer the right to ane vote per share and as @ transacting

sharghaider the

right to share In all profits arlsing from trading operations. The shares confer the right to payment (n full

of the nominal value of each A share upon a fiquidation. Each transacting sharehoider i
10,000 A shares, Shares can be redeemed by transacting sharehciders In
pursuant to the constitution.

%‘g

guired to hod

terms of fertain criteria \.

Umted 34
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The 500 B shares were heid by the Mtor Trade Association (Inc), These shares conferred the right to one
vota per share but they had no rights to dividends nor ta share In the distribution of surplus assets of the
company upan a liquidation. The B shares were surranderad in August 2005.

“he C shares are held by wransacting sharehaiders who have glected to participate In the C share schema.
The non-veting C shares confer the right to dividends authorised by the Board and the right to share
exclusively in the distribution of surplus assets of the company upon 8 flquidation after the A gshareholders
have received payment in full for the nominal value of their A shares.

note 9; perpetual capital bonds

The capital bonds are unsecured, subordineted, interest bearing perpetial deht securities and are fisted an
the New Zealand Stock Exchangs. The interest rate is reset annually on 30 June at & margin of 4.50%
above tha then one-year govemmant stock yleld. Untll 30 June 2005 the Intgrest rate was 10.60% p.a.
and for the year snding 30 June 2006 the interest rate Is 10.70% p.a. The honds are subordinated to ail
other creditors except share capftal, deposits and retained eamings (Incuding distributions due to
participating shareholders). The bonds Carry no right of redemption by the hoider. MTF may redeem all o
part of the principal amount of the bonds outstanding at 30 June gach year.

note 10: short-term loans (secured}

Short-term 'nans comprise bank loans secured under the foliowing arrangements:

o $23,700,000 (2004: $17,400,000) is sacured by @ composite debanture dated 17 May 2001 in favour
ot Bank of New Zealand over the assets of MTF and MTF Leasing Limited (MTFL). The securfty IS also
ovar the MTF subordinatad loan (refer note 2) % MTFS but not over the underlying assets of MTFS.
There Is a security sharing arrangement between MTF, Bank of New Zealand, Westpac Banking
Carporation and ANZ Natlonal Bank.

» $13,000,000 (2004: $13,000,000) 1 secured by 3 first ranking fixed charge over the future interast
cash fiows from the instaiments outstanding on the securitised raceivables, )

The short-term loans, which have interest maturities up to 90 days, have faclity maturities between
30 Decamber 2005 and 17 May 2006. At 30 Septamber 2005 the interest rate was 7.26% {2004: 6.64%).

note 11: euro commercial paper (secured)

ECP denominated In USD with maturity dates betwaen 7 and 28 days from balance date has been Issued at
an effective NZD discount rate of 7.02% p.a. (2004 6.49%).

New notes are lssuad at the maturity date of each nota for pariods of up to 90 days.

Borrowings are secured by a registered first charge over tha assets of MTFS pursuant to the MTFS Security
Trust Deed. The assets of MTF are not available as security to support the ECP, '

note 12; advance from MIFS

The advance fram MTFS represants the funding providad by the securitisation pragramme to MTP. This
advance is represented, in the financial statements of MTFS, by porrawings In the form of ECP,
denominated In USD, Tha ECP Is In tum supportad, within the securitisation pragremme, by credit
enhancaments and iiquidity support from appropritely rated banks.

The ECP currently has maturity dates between 7 and 28 days and new paper is issued at mirurity for
periods of up to 90 days. In the event new ECP canngt be issued the credit enhancamepts a liquidity
support will be utllised to fund tha remainger of the term of the finance receivables within . X

-
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The maturity profile of the advance from MTFS matches the maturity profile of the securitised recaivables
within MTFS,

The intersst on the advance from MTPS s represented by the securitisation funding costs, At :-llf
September 2005 the securitisation funding costs rupresented an effective Intarast rate of 5.04% (2004:
5.08%) on the advanca from MTFS.

u -—m#
_ﬁl%n'j" 2064 006 2004
Sgoe §000 I — . X
aole 13: accounis poyable and accrued expense
Trada creditars 872 898 1,120 BRY
Stndry creditarg & gerudis 2,915 2,167 2,710 2,148
Employes enitiomanis 1,007 3 23

019 o_____ $3.97%

note 14: distribution due to shareholders

Prafit wis distinuted quarterdy up ynul 1 Decmmbar 2004, Since 31 Decambaer 2004, proflt has besn disuibytad
manthly ® pericipating dealars. Diaiributons sre applisd, whera applicable, o reat Isdemnifies dos from oasiers or
0 pay amounts dus on shares. ‘Tha baignes of tha cistibutien 15 payable In cash.

On 329 Septsmber 2005, ths bosrd spproved the payment of the Augusl 2005 mnnmlsy profit disuibution of
$3,125.000. Ths diawibution was paidiepplied to padicipating charehoiders on 31 Octaber 2005,

noie 15: floorplan advances

Grogp advances 2.388 3.081 2,308 3.061
Ganars| proviaion for d 1 deits 39 306 239 306
32,1 £2,768 s3940 $2,

Floarplan advancas are sscured by way of flaating dabanlura end/or morigage and are raceivable within 12 months.
note 16: securitised receivables

Financs racaivables
Gross receivabies 503,907 454,934 503.807 484 334
Unaamad Interast (78,673) (76.878) (78,675) (T8.578)
General provision for doubiful dehits 2,857} (2,387) a5 2.38
Not flnence raceivatios i%.?.rs 25002 4&"1&\"‘_“'22,57 41‘5‘.9%
Recelvable wiihin 12 menths 214,736 189,114 214,736 188,114
Recolvavis beyond 12 months 207,830 226,87 207.8 78
— 3422875 $476.99: 993 $428,575 15,892
Flaance lebses
Grogs ricelvables ar.254 80,118 a7.254 80,115
Unsgmed intareat 111.335! {10.524) {11.831); {10.524)
Nﬂ@u_ﬂ lassns 7 2859 8,533, 89,591
Rucealvadle within 12 months 31,428 30.653 31,436 30.853
Recelvabis gmnﬂ 13 moenths 44,187 38,738 44.187. 38,730
;-rgm'—""“‘"sm.su T t'ss"'_lm
Summary '
Finance racelvabios 423,676 415,002 422.678 415,902
Finstce leasds 75623 &5 581 75 591
499,188 $485.503 $488.188 $455,683

motor Trade Finances Limies 36
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ml .
2008 2004 ﬁ 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000

note 17: nom-securitited receivables

Gmres recelvablos 870 r XY, | 334070 I 4T

Ungamedintmest (6,123) (7.752) (6,123} (7.752}

& L DR LT
hint finaricn T8 2,538 1 29,538
Recoivabio witin 12 months 11550 12,007 11.550 12.007

Recshabl beyond 12 marte. mem_ usn e oS
e 2 Y]

Groag recelvablas a£,7% 0,658 - .
_PM {3,124) (1,084) . -
france leeses 17815 5,604 - -
L R
Receivable within 12 months 7,180 2018 - -
Bocetvabin boyend 12 montre o 3,509 : -
!17.“ 95.“ - -
Finance recsivables Z7,551 29,5938 27551 29,538
Finance latas 17,5615 5.804 - -
g&i sas‘w $2T.551 528,538

note 18: cash in MTFS bank accounts

Payments received from customers with respect to securitised recelvabies are receipted into bank accounts
maintained within the securitisation programme snd are credited against the applicable securitised
receivable account monthly in accordance with the tranche accounting cycle. The cash in these bank
accounts Is a restricted cash asset as the cash may anly be applied, Initially, to repay ECP borrowings
within tha securitisation programme.

Interest income of $1,890,000 (2004: $1,379,000) was earned on cash deposits within the securitisation
programma.

nofe 19: gsset guality disclosures

Tha group provides for doubtful debts as discussed in Note 1(b)(MIl). When management determines that
recovery of a recelvable is doubtful, the principal amount and accrued interest: are written down to
estimated net realisable value. Interest and charges are no longer taken to profit when their recovery is
cons|derad to be unitkely.

The Incluslon of past due loans in the table below does not necessarily Indicate that such receivables ara
doubtful.
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notes to financial statements
30 September 2008

e B IR
$000 ___ $000

$000 $000

Nawr-accnis] aessts - managed donlers

Receivablas net of unearmad interaat - cpaning belance 282 N3 202 313
Nat movemant In non-sccrual raceivabies 1,367 {31) 1387 31)
Raceivablas net of unesmed interest - closing balsnce 1.879 282 1,879 282
Spedific pruvisions (nota 8) - - . -
Balances due to managad dealsrs avaltabla for offsst {1,678) {262) (1.879) (262)
Net — - - » -
Past diio asssts

Raceivables net of uneomed Intanest - apenhg balence 586 620 852 434
Net movement in past dus receivatiies (182) _(54) {27} [82)
Recalvablss net of unsarmed intarsat - closing balgnrce are 868 325 352
Specific provisions (nots 8) s . - -
Net 314 668 a2 382
TYotal impaired asuatls

Recsivabiss nel of unstimed (nterest 2,053 848 2,004 834
Specific provislons and balanicas aveliabls for affast (1678 _ _ (282) {1,879) (282)

note 20: investment in subsidiaries

Nams of entity Princlpal activily  Interest held by parent
— 2005 _ 2004
MTF Loscing Ltd Laasing 160% 100%
MTF Securtios Ltd Sacurifisation . -

Each subsiglary has 9 balanca dals of 30 Seplombar.
MYFS is @ controliad anfity of MTF and ls consclidated Into MTF (note 2),

Amount owing by subsidiaries:
group, _parent
2005 2004 2008 2004

$000 $000 $000 S000
MTF Lassing LW - - 17214 8,240 -

Mpor Trade Hunm@:;
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D
GCosl Ascurniaiad Nl book
depreciation valug

000 300 $000

note 21: property, plant and eguipment

2008
Herdware 1,784 {(amn 4
Saftware 5512 (3,076) 2436
Office equipment, fixturss A fttings 709 {348) 365
Moot vohicies 362 J‘s—,gg-—--——-" i
8,208 X 3723
Capial work n progress 478 - 478
778 §75) ]
2004 :
Mardware 1,150 (890) 260
Softwars 4217 {2,.233) 1,984
Cffics aquipment, fixturas & fitings 486 (280} 208
Motur vehicias aos 45 251
6,250 .558) 2.701
Lapil werk o progreas 214 - 214
— §8,473 (39,559) $2,015
roup arent
flg§ 2004 2& 2004
$000 $000 3000 3000

note 22: deferred taxation
QCpening balance 148 338 582 713

Cul differances (note 7} 270 (1840} 319 131
c"lf-ﬂlmmwamm L $410 146 §901 €82

note 23: intangible asses
Capitnl bond lssue and funding faciity sxpense

QOpaning balance 76 138 76 138
Capitefised during the pariod 184 ” 154 -
Amortised 8 pariod 1!!1 {a2 (64) {
Closing Gco $548 T"% §$146 %

Motor Trade Finances Limited 39
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note 24 related porty transactions

All relsted party Tansactions have taken place ot am's length.

Directors G D Glbbons, L S Ssunders, W N Cazhmere and K J Cummings ara diractors of companies with sharehaldings
in MTF that participate in tha proflt of the company on the same hasis as all other transacting shercholders. Profit

distributsd to these companies Is as follows;

2008 2004

000 5000

G D Gihdans 399 agms

L S Ssunders o1 80

W N Cashmors 7 . zzi
KJ c_umn_tlm 1221 )

$4,800 $4,98¢

The Mansging Dirsctar A R Sradehaw s 2 directer of MTFS, Transaclions and balances with MTFS are as follows:

Loans sold lo MTFS {442,805) (432,516)
Seouriisation funding costs charped by 23,025 21,734
MYFS

Advanca from MTFS (463,752) (450,701)

A R Bradshaw is & direclor of Wickiiffa L. MTF racelved director's fees of $17,000 (2004: $14,000). MTF purchasea
goods fram Wickiffa Lyl under normal trade terms. Puwchases tosiled $123,000 {2004: $186.000), with §8,000
sutstanding st 30 Ssptember 2005 {2004: 314,000).

Moter Trage nmne@mu 40
&>

TOTAL P.36
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meivaueslsmndbyMahddersofmeECPmummunamm:ﬁNmmmAsmoutln note 2,
mmmhmmnmmwwmmummmmm:m
m.IlthMTF'smewnﬂmﬂmmhmﬂwmmhMMﬁmmwmd
loan provided to MTFS, :

Inanmlmofmmsmhwsbackmmlmdmwlmm.MRh not fegally required to
do se. Whilst he securitisafion progremme is opereting, MTF group and parent credil risk, in relatien © the securitised
reoeivables, is equal to the cenying vaiue of these assals, $408,198,000 (2004: $485,683,000}. The exposure of the
underlying securitised receivables is also mitigatad by the limited expoaUre 10 larger customers relative 10 the totel 85561
base and the high number of indlvicual contracts which comprisa the gecuritisad receivables.

charge over sach vehicle, Participating dealers Indemnify eny laszas from dafaults Dy their customers.  This indemnity
Includes the dght to ssize tha shares and profits of any participating dssler. MTF reguiardy monitars the credit quality and
lurding Hmits of its deuler shareholders.

Countamerty cradit dsk exiets io the mmmmammmtm«mmmr«m hadping of
Intmrest mte risk sid sxchangs rala risk within the securlitsation programms.

group . paret

2008 2004 2005 2004

5000 8080 8000 $000
Farward exchange rete contracts 403,559 476,944 - -
interest rata swaps 530,629 512,013 - -

Limits on exposures with counterparfies hava basn sel end appravad by the Trustess for the ECP hoiders and are
monitored on a ragular basts. MTF fimits concantration risk with countstparties nd monitors this risk continususty.

Concentration of gredit rlak

in mlation W the racourse aTEngements with dealsr sharsholders, the group has a concentration of credit risk %o the
Naw Zaaland molar vahiels Industy for financa racelvables and finance leases adminisiened.,

The position is mitigated by the imitad exposure to larger custumers refative to the ol asset base, tha high number of
individual contracts which comprise the non-securitised receivables administered and the risk assumed by the holders of
the ECP on the sectirilised receivables.

At 30- September 2005 gross sacurftised end non-securitisad racelvables end floorplan advances ware §648,159,000
(group) (2004: $822,278,000) and $827,418,000 (parsn) (2004; $815,581.000).

The graup's conceninations of credit risk to individual countamparties, inchuding customers, dealers under their recourse
amangemert and fingncial tnstiutions, that are equal ko or gragtar than 10% of sharshoiders’ equity ara:

_group parant

2005 2004 2008 2004

Soocy $000 $000 $000
10% - 18% 1 2 1 2
180% - 159% . i - 1
180% - 188% - 1 - 1
200% - 208% 1 . 3 !
280% - 289% ) 1 . 1

4.
(WA
Matey Trade Finances Wimied 42
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Cancentration of funding risk

MTF doss not have any concentration of funding risk othar than to MTFS for the future sale of finance racelvables which
mymnlnmmnwmwnsm-hmmmaﬂmﬂmmmmwmmm. At 30
Septamber 2005, MTF compiles with aif covenants of the Securitisation programme.

interest vate risk

a) Securitisation programme funding

To hadge the fixed rata income rom securlisad repelvablas the group has entered into interost rate swsps 1o convert the
ficaling rate inturest lishility on ECP into fixad intenest cost,

Exposure Lo sarly termination of the Interast rete swaps is the liabliy of MTF. Aclual losses incurrad on early termination
of 8 lozn agresment ars able 10 be pasesd to the condional purehaser as part of the setiismant process.

group parent
2008 2004 2005 2004
§000 $000 $000 $000
Intarast rate sweps 830,628 512,013 . -

ECP denaminated tn USD has maiurily dates betwsen 7 and 28 days from balance dale and has been issued at effective
NZD rates of 7.02% {2004: 8.49%) p.a. Naw notes ara lssued at the maturity date of each nota for pertods of up 1o 80

days.

b} Other funding

Interast rate fisk is managed by generally matching maturities on the nan-securiised funding faciities with maturities on
tha nan-8acuritized racelvables. The intarast ralss on the company's finance facilities are set out In nates 9, 10 and 12.

Manegsmaent monitors tha fevel of interast rales on en ongoing biagls, and fram time to time, will lock in fixed rates on the
next figafing reset via swap contracts whan they consider (at interast ralss may fise. At 30 September 2005 tha bank
evendralt and short-term loans had Interest rate maturitlas of lacs than S0 days.

Bank ovardraft and short-term loans are rensgotiated at market rales upon maturity. The interest rate on the capital bonds
i raest annually on 30 June at a margia of 4.50% abovs the one-yeer Inlerpalated governmant stock yield.

o) Financiel aseels

tnisrest rates appliceble i financa recelvables (securitsed and non-sscusitisad) am fixed for the term of the receivable
conyacts. The maturity profile (recaivable within 12 monthe and beyond 12 months) of tha financa receivables (securiised
and non-securitised) is shown in notes 15 and 17, The welghted avarage Intevast vais 8amad on finan¢e recelvables
{sacuritsed and nonesecurdtised) at 30 Saptomber 2005 was 14.02% (2004: 14.313%).

Floorplen advancas have a maturity profile of less than 12 months.  The Interest rate maturities applicabls to floomlan
ardvancas ere less than 30 daye. The weighted average interest rate eamed on finafplan advancss at 30 September 2005
was t1.77% (2004: 12.53%).

Cash at bank and cash in restricted bank accounts ame at call with interast rate maturities of lass (han 30 days. The
waighled averaga Interast rate applicable to cash balances at 30 Septamber 2005 was 6.75% (2004: 6.25%).

Foreign currancy risk
Foreign exchange exposures on ECP borrowlngs are fufly hedgad by forward exchange contiacts.
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nates to financial stataments
30 Saptembar 2008
Uguidiy risk

Liguidhty risk is men wmﬁvmmhmbmmmmmmwmmmmusmmmhm.
Whthin the smﬁmmmIMnmm&dﬂmmstmlew rated banks 1o ensure
ongolng funding 1o rapay ECP an maturity shouki further paper not ba able to be Issued.

mmwanmmlmemwnqummhmmm batwaen
raguirements ta fund non-securitised assets and access 1o funding.

The group sets & cradit mit for each dealer which represents tha facility it mokes svaliabie in tarms of reosivabies
fingnced, Cradit mits are based on oritera such a6 the sssassed quality of recsivabies introduced by the degler and the

dealer’s assessed financial position.
The group manages the aggregata credit Iimit estebiished for all dealers against the funding linas aveiiable.

The secudtisaton programma has a faciity limit of NZD800,000,000 and is subject ta gredit rating by Standard & Poor's
and Moody's Investors Service. Other then the factifty avellabia to seli finance racelvabies pursusnt to the securitisation
programme, the group has aocass to committad cradit faciiitas of N21Y76,000,000.

Falr value of financial instrumaents

The fsir valus of financial instnments has been detanmined by market prices or by discounting future contractual cash
flows by the market rata at balance dats In respect of aach instrument. Financlel sssals and liablites are intended to be
heid to maturity, and unrealised falr value gains of lo$505 are not axpected fo be realised,

group parent
2008 2006 2004 2004 2005 2005 2004 2008
5000 8000 $00Q $000 $000 0

Comying Felr  Gamyng Far _ Canying Falr  Camying Felr

amount wafua amaunt value emount velud amaunt valua
Asssts
Cash In ragtricad bank
accounily 28,807 29,807 28243 26,243 - - - .
Fioomian advances 2149 2149 2,755 2,758 2,149 2143 2,758 2.755
Sscuritised recelvahias 498,138 500361 465583 4p4085  40819B 300,369 485,583 484,055
Non-setuitised recelvablas 45,168 45,801 35,142 36,285 27,561 27,693 28,538 31,401
Liablilow
Overdraft fociity .74 aer (104) (104) 423 478 {66) (55)
Pempetua) capital bonds 30,000 30,650 25,000 26,588 30,000 30,830 25,000 26,588
Short term loans 38,700 26,700 30,400 30,400 35,700 38,700 30,400 30,400
Euro commercial paper 403558 40BX91 476,944 467239 - - - -
Hon-recognissd financial instruments
Forward foroign sxchangs
contracts 483,559 50392 478,944 {8.705) - - . -
Imgrost rate sweps 530,629 784 512013 prr] - - - -

In relstion fo tha non-recagnisad financlal Ingtrumants the falr value reprasants the unrealised gain or {loss).

Note 29: significant events afier balance date

Cn 11 November 2005, the Board approvad the payment of the September 2008 monthly profit distributicn of
$3,670,000. The distribution will be paid/applied e participating sharehoiders on 30 Novernber 2005.

Note 30: segment information

The group operates predemitantly in one Industry, pravisian of finance facllities, and In ona geograph I
focation, New Zealand.
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notes to financial statemants
30 Septamber 2006

Note 31: transition to international financial reporting standards

In Decamber 2002, the New Zealand Accounting Standards Review Board announced that New Zealand
equivalents to International Finsnclal Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) wouid apply to all New Zealand
raporting entities for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Janyary 2007, with the option of early
adoptian for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, MTF intends to adopt from 1 October 2007.
Accondingly, the adaption of NZ IFRS wiil be first reflected In the company's haif-year report for the six
month period ended 31 March 2008.

MTF will manage the transition to NZ IMRS beginning with an analysis of the key impacts. MTF has begun
evaluating the company’s existing accounting policies and the potantial Impacts of adopting NZ IFRS, to
ensurs the transition accurs within the required timeframaes and the company (s In a pasition to cakculate
its apening balance sheet effective 1 October 2006.

In the first year of compliance, entities are required to rastate comparativa financial statemants to reflect the
new standards. The majority of adjustments requiced on trangition to NZ IFRS will be to reserves.

Whilst the Implementation of NZ IFRS nas no lmpact on MTF's underlying economic strangth, risk management
practices or cash flows, It may resuit In key, material differences In the financiel statements. Key differences In
accounting policles that are expected from adopting N2 IFRS Include the recognition of derivative finandal
instruments, the calculation of deferred tax, the calculation of provisions, the recognition of fee Income, and the
classification of co-cperative share capital. At this staga the Impact on the financlal statements, had they been
prapared using NZ IFRS, has not been determined or quantified.

During the transition profect, where the financlal impact of N2 IFRS can be rellably estimated and will have a
materlal impact, disclosure will be made in subsequent financial reports. The actual impact of adopting N2 IFRS
may vary fram the Information presented and this varlation may be materlai.

Nole 32; 1otal income group parant
2005 2004 2005 m
$000 $000 3000 2000
Interast frant securioed racaivables 75,048 72288 85,878 05,183
Intarest from nan-seciritsed roceivablies 4,20 4,942 4,254 4,942
Deposkt nigrasn 1,880 1378 - -
Fass 5,562 1,500 5,582 1,5
Tatal incame $i7.824 $80,478 ST m‘%.

W
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notes to financial statements
30 September 2006
statemont of cash flows
yoar onded 30 september 2005
SEOUp _parent
2005 2004 2005 2008
$000 6000 __ $000 S000.
Cash fiows from aperating acttvitles
Cash was provided from:
Finance incomo 83,853 78,782 TA2 63,652
Dihar income 17 120 17 120
Indgrest meome fram 1,378 - -
é:% 78,281 7{ 782
Cash was goplisd 0!
Funding cosis 30,488 34,778 AL 4508
Sacuriization casle N - 23357 21,788
Operming pogeses 2623 ool 753, B0
48,991 42,795 3431
Net cash flows from operatng activities N0 as.ab8 n.88 5480
Cash llows from investing activitiss
Cash was provided from:
Finpnaa recahabla instalmants 367,201 420.660 321,882 381,298
Proogacs recaivad from reslisatlon of investmant - 20 - 20
Sain of proprory. pisr and squipmant I - S S E— 1
387,333 421,018 32, 381,355
Cash was applied k:
Flnanca recehvable sdvances 3689.3680 452,856 325,911 362,31
Purchuass of proparly, plent and oqulpmant 2,193 1,142 248 1,142
Psyment of finsnce sass 112 - 15 -
391,866 453 Q08 328.8. 393473
et cash fiows from Investing activities 333 {32,082) (6.202) {12,118)
Cosh flows from finaRcing activites
Cash was provided from:
Short-lerm ioans - nat 6,300 - 6300 .
[ezun of caplial bonds 5,000 - 5.000 -
Euro commevcial paper - net 16,615 47,200 B -
Agvance from MIFS . - %1 45,769
27818 ﬂéln 3] 45,768
Cathwas applled to:
Repay shire eapital and dealomship deposits 34 432 M 432
Shori-term (wens « net - 7.700 - 7.700
goue costs 154 “ 154 .
Loans to gubsidiariss - - 18,083 20,883
Profit distributed {9 sharenalders 38,170 40,368 39,170 40,388
38,356 48,500 §7.421 £§9,383
Net cawh fiows from financing sotivitles (11,443} {1,210) @30 (23,845)
Net Incresee (decrosas) in cash 3,094 1274 (a83) (267
Add cash on hard d!Mgﬁ poriad 28.346 ar2
Caah on hand &t end of period $29,440 328,348 M [{:L]
Rapragonted by:
= LS S
Cush RCOULINS 14 28243 - -
A40
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nates to financial statemants
30 Saptembaer 2006
statement of cash flows
yoar ondad 30 september 2005
Broup pajpet
2008 2004 2008 2004
_§000- $000 3000 3000
Muﬂv of group profit Hter taxation to net cash flows
frem operating activitian
Repariad group profit after {ation 38,808 38,138 34,688 25,134
Non-cash liams
- ATBATS feas capitalisad (1,981) (4.484) {1.881) {1.464)
~lo8a on sale of propadty, plant and squipmant 5 73 5 73
- degraciglion 1,458 1,213 1,458 1,213
- gmortesd sxpanso B4 62 84 a2
= pad deptalprovisions - 0wt 218 83 20 e
84T 36,105 38,478 38,105
Mavemants In other ftams
Dafared taxation {270) 180 (319) 134
Provision for taNation 354 (14} as4 (14)
Arcounts paysble & accruad expenses 876 (491) 20 (300)
Acoours recejvables (147} 183 27 _34
812 (132) 782 "

Movamant in working capital items claseified
as | ifias.
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appendix to flnancisl statements

Additionsl diuinum porsuant to Securities Regulstions:

Liquidity table
G-8 6-12 12-24 24-80 Over 80
monhs monthe monhe monns months
$000 3000 000 3000 $000
Mapstery essats
Floarpisn advanest AL
Secutitsad mcohabiog 126858 120,316 145,801 105.22%
Nomrgucurifend mcoivabiss .02y 8,703 11,028 15408
m:ﬂ gﬁm
165,028 32,88 168,820 121,699 -
L _
Monetary Iisbiikies
Approved distiwicon dus 1o ahatehokisr 3126
Shut-ean pens (securod) 38.700
Bum commarcial gaper (caczired) W 550
Parpatual capiel bonda 96,000
Othor lubilties
Qf tho monatary assets recoivablo:

* Q.09% have Mpeywants In exceas of 3 months In armmans: and
= $.96Y is camd by thy compeny's 8 largact dabinry.

The Eurg commarclal paper is refinanced monthly pursuant (o faciities avafiable under the Securitisaion Progemma. Euro
commercial paper of $345,000.000 USD (2004; $311,500,000 USD) was converted to NZD using an average fawand rate of
£990 {2004 .8531).

Update to subsaquent events

MTF has announced its Intention to nedeem the permpstual capital bonde on 30 Juns 2008. The parpatml capital bonds will be
refinancsd npon edemption by Perpatual Preferonce Sheras issusd pursunnt to a prospectus dated 30 Msy 2006.
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Deloitte. o
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_ New Zealand

30 May 2006 P o6t ) 74 a8
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The Directors

Motor Trade Finances Limited

PO Box 885

DUNEDIN .

Dear Divectors

AUDITORS® REPORT FOR INCLUSION IN PROSPECTUS

As auditors of Motor Trade Finances Iimited (the ‘Company’) and subsidiaries (the “Group')
we have prepared this report pursnant to clauge 42 of the First Schedule of the Securities
Regulations 1983 for inclusion in a prospactus to be dated 30 May 2006 for the issue of fully
imputed Pexpetual Preference Shares in Motor Trade Finances Limited.

Wo have audited the financial statements of the Company and Group set out at pages 25 to 48.
The financial statements provide information about the past financial performance and cash
flows of the Company and Group for the year ended 30 September 2005 and its financial
position as at that date. This information is stated in accordance with the accounting policies
set out an pages 27 to 31.

We report on the sutnmary of financial statements of the Group set out on pages 23 to 24,
The summary of financial statements has heey taken from the audited financial staternents for
the financial years ended 30 September 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001].

Board of Directors’ Responsibilities

The board of directors (the ‘directors') are responsible for the preparation of:

(a) the financial statements as required by clangas 23 to 38 of ths First Schedule of the
Securities Regulations 1983, thax comply with the regulations; and subject to the
regulations comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and
give a true and fair view of the state of affsirs of the Group as at 30 Scptember 2005 and
its financial performance and cash flows for the financial year ended on that date; and

() the summary of financial statexnents of the Group for the financial years ended 30
September 20035, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001, as required by clanses 8(2) and 8(3) of
the First Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983; and

(c) the financial statements which give a tme and fair view of the financial posifion of
Mator Trade Finances Limited, the parent company of the Group, as at 30 September
2005 and ity finansial performance and cash fows for the year ended on that date which

are provided by the directors for investors’ infonmation. \
A mamber of k j
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Deloitte.

Auditors’ Responsibilities

Group ag 2t 30 September 2005 and for the year ended on that date, prepared
resented by the directors, and repart our opinion in accordance with clause
Elt:t Schedule of ths Securities Regulations 1983; and

(b) report in accordance with clause 42(1)(g) of the Firet Schedule of the Seourit]

It is our responsibility o
(a) indegendant opinion on the financial statements of the Company F;he

2(1} of the

Reg\ﬂanons 1983 on the amounis included in tha summary of financial staterpenta for
the financial years ended 30 Ssptember 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001 prisented by

the diractors.

This report has been prepared fbr inclusion in the pwmsfnrtthmpoaenf

requirements of clause 42 of the Firet Schedule of the Sacm'men Regulations 1983,

We

disclaim any sssumptions of responsibility for reliance on this raport or the amounis included

in the financial statements or the summary financial statemnents, {or any purpose o

et than

that for which they were prepared. In addition, we taks no responsibility for, nor do we report

on, any paxt of the prospectus not specifically mentioned in this report.
Baais of Opinion on the Flaaucial Statements -

An audit of the financial statements, for the year ended 30 September 2005, inclu
examining, on a test basis, evidence relsvant to the amounts and disclosures in the
statements. It also includes assessing:

»  the significant estimates and judgements made by the Board of Directors in
preparation of the financial statements; and

- whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company and Group
circumstances, consistently applisd and adequately disclosed.

and performed our audit so as to abtain all the information and cxphnahcm which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to obtain reaspnak

asaurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatements, whether cansed

by fraud or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
presentation of information in the financial statements.

Basis of Opinion an the Summary of Finaueial Sttements

the summary of financial statements on pages 23 and 24 of this progpectus, p .

clanses 8(2) and 8(3) of the Firat Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1983, ba e been
correctly taken from the audited financial statements of the Gronp for the financial years
ended 30 September 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001 as modified by the changgs in
accounting palicies described st page 23. For a better understanding of the finanejal position

and results of the Group's operations for the financial period the summary financig
infarmation should be read in conjunction with the related snnual financial state;

Other thar in our capacity as auditor and provision of tax and other assurance advice, we have
no relationship with or interests in Motor Trade Finances Limited or any of its sulpsidiarics.

P.89-28
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terma of the Perpetual Preferance Shares
The terms of the Perpstual Prafarence Shace Issue ara set out helow.

1. Parpetual Preference Shares
1.1 ODWidend

The Perpetunl Prefergnca Shares carry tha right to 2 Dividend, payabie In accardance with
paragraph 1.4 in priority to other Distributions, in respect of aach Dividend Perfod squal to
the Dividend Amount for that Dividend Pariod.

1.2 Dividend to be Fully Emputad

All Dividend Amounts shalt be fully Imputed. The only consequenca of, or remedy for, 2
Dividend not being Fully !Imputed shall be the payment of an amount referred to In
paragraph 1.3. The Imputation Credits will be sourced from the tax pald on the pre-tax
profits reguired to be retained ta pay the Dividends on the Parpatual Praferance Shares.

1.3 Imputation credit shartfatl

If all or any part of a Dividend Amount is not Fuily Imputed MYF shall pay to each Holder
an ameunt equal to the shartfall In Imputation Credits of which Holders would otherwise
have had the benefit. The amount payable under this paragraph 1.3:

(a) is due on the Dlvidand Payment Date of the Olvidend Amount and, to the extent
paid, substitutes far or replaces the corresponding obligetion of MTF under
paragraph 1.2; and

(b) shall be regarded as a variation In the rate at which Dividends are calculatsd.

To the extent that a Dividend is not Fuily Imputad, resident withholding tax will be required
ta be deducted at the rate of 33% unless Holders have provided a certificate of exemption,
Non-resident withholding tax ("NRWT™) wil! be reguirad to be deducted from Dividends paid
to residents of foreign countries. The rata of NRWT Is 15% to the extent the Dividend ls
Fully Imputed or if the Holder Is resident In a country with which New Zealand has a
Double Taxation Agreement; otharwise it wiil be 30%.

14 Dividend Payment Date

If a Dividend is pald in respact of any Dividend Period, It shall be paild on the Dividend
Payment Date on which that Dividend Period ends.

1.5 Dividends to have priority

Utvidends shall rank for payment In priority to the rghts in respect of dividends or other
Distributions of all holders of other classes of shares of MTF.

1.6 Canceilstion of Dividends

Subject to paragraph 1.7, the Diractors may, by notice semt ta Holders not Iater than five
Business Days aftar the end of a Dividend Perlod (“Dividend Cancellation Notice*), cancal
the payment of Dividends In raspact of that Dividend Period and all subsequent Dividend
Periods, until such time as the Board gives a Dividend Resumption Notice.

1.7 Reasons for cancaliation
The Board may give a Dividend Cancellation Notice If:

(a) the Board Is satisfled on reasanable grounds that, Immediately after making the
payment, MTF would or could become insaivent, breach any covenant in relation to
Its bank debt, or braach any other legal obligation: or

Motar Trage Finanzes Limite
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1.6

1.9

i.10

.11

112

1.13

1.14

(b} the Board has for any other reason datermined In Its sole discretion that & Dividend,
or Dividends ganerally, shouid not be pald.

Dividend Resumption Notlce

If the Board has glvan a Dividend Canceilation Notice, the Board may ot any time
thersafter send notice to Holders to the effect that Dividends shouid again be paid. 1f such
a notice is given, Dividends shall again be payable as fram and Inciuding the first Dividend
Period commending aftar the giving of that notice, untess and untll a furthar Dividend
Cancellation Notice Is glven,

Effect of cancellation

If a Dividend Cancallstion Notice Is given, any abllgation of MTF to pay, and any right of
Holders tn recelve, the Divkiends referred to In paragraph 1.1 shall be cancelled absolutely.
Dividends on the Perpetuat Preforgnce Shares are not cumulative.

Suspansion parfod

If a Dividand Canceilation Notics Is given, then for the pertod from the date of that
Dividend Cancallation Notice untll MYF has paid the next fuil Dividend payment, MTF shall
rat make any Distribution, Including profit distributable to Dealers, other than payment of
Dividends.

Righta In a liquidation

Each Holder shall have the right in a lquidation of MTF to payment, in priority to the
holders of other classes of shares of MTF, and profit distributable to Dealers, of the: Issue
Price of the Parpetual Preference Shares held by that Hoider and (subject ta paragraph
1.6) Oividends payable on those Perpatual Preference Shares at the date of
commencement of liquidation calculated on a dally basis from the end of the most recant
Dividend Period to the date of commencement of liquidation.

Perpetual Prefarence Shares wiil rank equally In all respects and withaut preference among
themealves, but bahind the claims of all secured and unsecured creditors of MTF.

Voting

Holders shall hava no right to receive notice of, or vote at meetings of shareholders of MTF,
other than meetings pertaining to the amendment of the terms of the Perpetual Preference
Shares.

Tranater
A Holder may transfer any Perpetua! Preference Share:

(a} under a system of transfer appraved under section 7 of the Securities Transfer Act
1991 which Is applicable to MTF; and

(b} by an instrument of transfer which compllas with the Canstitutian.

Syatems of transfer

A Perpatual Preferance Shara which Is disposed of in a transaction which complies with the
requirements of a system of transfer authorised under paragraph 1.13(a) may be
transferred in accardance with the requirements of that system. Where an instrument of
transfer executed by a transferor putside New 2ealand wauld havae complied with ¢
provigions of the Securities Transfer Act 1991, If it had been executed In New Zealand,|jt
may nevertheless be registered by MTF If it Is axecuted in a manner scceptable to MTE pr
the Reglstrar.

P.11-28
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1.15

1.16

1.8

119
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Instrument raguiraments

An instrument of transfer of Perpetual Preference Shares to which the provisions of
paragraph 1.13 are nat applicable shall:

(a) beinany common form or any ather form approved by MTP or the Registrar; and
(b) be signed or axecutad by or on behalf of the transferor.
Dalivery of instrument

An instrument transfarring Perpatual Prefarence Shares must be dellvered to MTF or to the
Registrar, together with such evidence (if any) as MTF or the Registrar reasonably requires
to prove the title of the transferor to, or right of the transferor to transfer, the Perpetual
Preference Shares. :

Refusal to register

Subject to section 84 of the Act (which imposes certam procedural requirements on a
Board), the Board may refuse to register a transfer of any Perpetus) Preference Share if:

{a) MTF has a llen an the Perpetual Preference Share;

(b) the transferor falls to produce such evidence as MTF ar the Reqistrar reasonably
requires to prove tha titie of tha transferor to, or right of the transferor to transfer,
the Perpetual Preference Share; ar -

{¢) registration of the transfer, together with registration of anv further transfer or
transtars then held by MTF and awalting registration, would resuit In less than 5,000
Perpetual Preference Shares held [n the name of the transferee,

provided that the Board resclves to exercise its power under this paragraph within
30 8usiness Days after receipt of the retevant trangfer and notice of the resalution Is sent
to the transferor and to the transferee within five Business Days of the resolution being
passed by the Board.

Tramsferor $o ramain Holder until vegistration

A transferor of a Perpetual Praference Share is deemed to remain the Holder of the
Perpetuzl Preference Share untll the nhame of the transferea is entered In the ragister in
respect of the share,

MTF ta rataln instruments
If MTF registers an instrument of transfar it shall retain the Instrument.

Compuisory redemption

Subject to paragraph 1.24, MTF may redeem or repurchase Perpetual Preference Shares by
giving a Redemption Natice to all HMoiders requiring Holders to transfar thelr Perpetual
Preference Shares to MTF. A Redemption Notice shall take effect, and the Redemption
Price shall be paid, on the day specified In the Redesmption Notice, being not less than
30 days, afcer the date on which the notice s glven. Perpatual Preferenca Shareholders
have ng right to require redemptian by MTF.

Timing of & Redemption Notice
A Redemption Natice may anly be given:
(8) two years or more after ¢he Closing Date; or

{b) &t any sartter Ume If there hay occurred any change In law, Including any law
relating to taxation,’ or In the Interpretatian or appiication thereof by any Court or
govarnmental authority, or In any directive, regulatiaon, request or requirement of 3
regulatory authority or other governmental agency, including a ehange to financial

P.12/28
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reporting standards, which materially adversely affects the value of the Perpetual
Prefgrance Shores to MTF.

1.22 §iTect of Rademption Netice
If MTF gives 8 Redemption Notice then:

(3} each Holder shall be desmad, on the day on which MTF pays to that Hoidar the
Redemption Price, to transfer thet Hoider's Perpetus! Preference Shares to MTF, and
MTF shall on that day enter the name of MTF on the Register as the Holder of thoss
Perpetual Preference Shares; and

(b) each Holder shall be deemed to have authorised MTF to act cn behaif of that Holder
in respact of the trangfer of that Hoidar's Perpatual Prefarence Sheres to MTF, and
to sign any documant necesgary to effect or record that transfer.

123 Partial redamptian

MTF may give a Redamption Notice In respect of a specified proportion of the Perpetual
Preference Shares held by each Holder In accordance with paragraph 1.21. If MTF does so,
paragraphs 1.20 to 1.22 shall apply madified so as to refer to that proportion of each
Holder's Perpetual Preference Shares. MTF may give notice of the nature refarred to In this
paragraph an mare than éne occaslan,

1.24 Anlity to hold as treasury stoek

Wharg MTF repurchases Perpatual Preference Shares in sccordance with paragraph 1.20, or
acquires Perpetyal Preferance Shares an-market in accerdance with the provisions of the
Act, MTF may hold those Parpetual Preferanca Shares as treasury stock purstant to Its
Canstitution.

Pursuant to sectlon 67A(1)(c) of the Act, the number of shares acquired, when aggragated
with shares in the same class hald by MTF at tha time ¢f purchase, must not exceed 5% of
the shares of that class previously Issued by MTF {excluding any shares In that class which
have praviously been cancelied). MTF may subsequently cancei or reissue shares heid 2s
wreasury stock.

Pursuant o sactlon 67B of the Act if a company halds a share In itself, MTF shall not:
(a) exarcise any voting rights attached to that share; or
(b) make or recelve any Distribution authorised or payable In respect of that sharas.

1.25 Amendment

The rights, privileges, limitations and conditions attaching to the Perpetual Preference
Shares may be amended with the approvat of:

(a) the 8ocard; and
(&} aspecial resolution of Molders,

A meeting of Holders for the purposes referred to In paragraph (b) may be convened by
the Board.

1.26 Conduct of mestings

A meeting of Holders to consider a resolution of the nature referred to in paragraph 1.25
shall be convanad and heid in accordance with the first schedule to the Act and clause 15
of the Constitution. At any such meeting:

{3) where voting Is by show aof hands or by voice every Holder present in person or
representative has oné vota; and @
Meror Trada Finances LUmiced $
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(h) on a poll every Holder present in person or by representative has one vote In
respect of each Perpetual Preferenca Share held by that Hoider.

1.27 Deductions

MTF may make from Dividends any deduction or withholding on account of tax or on any
other acgount which MTF Is required by law to make.

1,28 Supplementary Dividend
If MTF at any time:

(3) pays a Dividend (as dafined In section LE 2(1) of the Tax Act and In section OB 1 of
that Act for the purposes of Part LE of that Act) to a Molder who (s not resident in
New Zealand for fax purposes at that time; and

(b) MTF attaches an Imputation Credit to such Dividend pursuant to sectlon ME 6 of the
Tax ‘dc

then MTF may pay a single supplementary Dividend (as defined {n section OB 1 of the Tax
Act) to thet person.

1,29 Method of payment

A Dividend payable In cash may be paid In such manner as the Board thinks fit to the
entitled shareholders or, In the cage of joint shareholders, to the sharsholder named first in
the registar, or to such other person and In such manner 3s the shareholder or joint
shareholders may In writing direct. Any one of two or more foint shareholders may give a
recelpt for any payment in respect of the shares held ty them a5 foint shareholders,

1.30 Notices
All notices shall be served and issued pursuant to the provisions of the Constitution of MTF.
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answers to important quastions

What sort of investmeant is this?

MTF is offering for subscription Perpetual Preference Shares with an aggregste principal amount of
up to $35 milllon. MTF reserves the right to accept over-subscriptions In respect of Permpetual
Preference Shares with an aggregate principal amount of up to a further $5 million.

The Offer of Perpetual Praference Shares contatned in this Offar Documant IS subject to appnoval
by each ciass of MYF shareholders by ordinary resoiution at & special mesting o bs held on 8
June 2008. An ordinary resclution Is & resolution approved by a simple majority of the votes of
those sharshoidars entitied to vote and voting on the resolution, If the ordinary resohstion is not
pasted at the speciai meeting the Offer wiil not proceed.

Dividend: The Perpetual Preference Shares carry the right to a Dlvidend payable quartarly in
arrears. The aggregate of cash Dividends paid, and Imputeation Cradits, and/or withhoiding tax
deductions wiil equal the Dividend Rate, MTF has the right to cancel the paymant of a Dividend or
Dividends at Its discretion. Such Dividend payments are not cumulative. Whiist Dividends are
cancelled, MTF will not pay any Distribution on s ordinary shares or any instrument which ranks
In subordination to tha Perpetual Preference Shares including profit distributable ta Dealers.

The Perpetual Preference Shares do nat benefit from any cepitat growth in the ordinary shares of
MTF and Perpetual Preference Sharehalders will not participate In any dividend payable on those
shares, or In any bonus Issue, rights Issue or other Distribution made in respect of these shares.

Parpetual: The Perpetuai Preference Shares have no fixed term and will remain In existence
uniess and until they are redeemed or repurchaesed for cash and cancefied (uniess held as
traasury stock In accordance with paragraph 1.24 of the terms of the Perpatual Preference
Shares) or MTF goes into llquidation. Perpetual Preference Shareholders have no right to require

redemption by MTF,

Rights in liquidation: The Perpetual Preference Shares rank behind all secured and unsecured
creditors of MTF but ahead of holders of othar classes of sharss of MTF and prafit distributatle to
Dealers. In a liguidation of MYF, a Nolder of Parpetual Preference Shares will be entitied to
receive, in priority to the rights of other shareholders of MTF, the Issue Price of the Perpetual
Preferance Shares held by that Hoider and Dividends payabie on those Perpetual Preference
Sharas at the time of commencemant of liquidation, but will not be entitied to participate further
In the assets of MTF. The Perpetual Preference Shares wlll rank equatly in al respects snd without
preferarice among themssives, but behind the claims of alt secured and unsecured creditors of
MTF.

Yoting: The Perpstual Preference Shares have no voting rights other than the right to attend and
vate at meetings of Perpetual Preference Shareholders,

Campulsory redemption: MTF has the Hight to repurchasa or redeem all or part of the Perpetual
Preference Shares at the explration of 30 days' notice In cartain circumstances as detailed in
paragraphs 1.20 and 1,23 of the terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares.

The above is a simplifiad and general description of some of the rights and obfigations of Holders
of Parpatual Preference Shares. The full terms of the Perpstual Prefarence Shares are gser out on
page 52,

Who is involved In providing it for me?

Motor Trade Finances Umited (registered number 148074) Is the Issuer of the Perpetual
Praference Shares. MTF was Incorporated in New 2ealand on 24 July 1970 under the Companies
Act 1955 and was reregistered ta become a company under the Comoanies Act 1993 an
3 February 1997. MTF Is a co-opsrative company for the purpoges of the Co-operative Companies
Ack 1896 with In excess of 700 mator vehicle deulers as sharehoider Dealers. MTF can be
contacted st its registered office, which Is located at 193 Princas Street, Ounedin.

Motor Trade Finences Limited
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MTF wes formed in 1970 to enatle selected motor vehicle dealers to finance sules of motor
vehicles to the public. Since that time, the MTF Group has grown to become one of the largest
financiers of motor vehicies in New Zealand, administering advances to in excess of €2,000

borrowers. !

From its inception, MTF has concentrated primarly on motor vehicie finance. Operations are
conducted on @ co-operative basis with selacted deaters becoming shareholders of MTF upan
approval for access to MYF's faciiiies, MTF accepts fAinance agreements entered into by Oealers
with thelr customers and distributes the net profit emmed from these financial activides to the
respective Dealers by way of morthly profit Distribution. The principal source of funds for the
financing of finance agreements Is by securitisation.

For a more extensive overview of MTF’s business, see the section of this Offar Documant entitied
*business overview”.

How much do I pay?

The Issue Price of each Perpetusi Preference Share Is $1.00, which must be pald in full by
applicants at the tima of application. Cheques shouid be made payable to “MTF Fraferanca Share
Offer”, crossed "Not Transferable® and must not be post-dated. Applications to subscribe for
Perpetval Preferance Shares must be for 3 minimum principal amount of §5,000 and thereaftar in

multipies of $1,000.

Existing MTF Capital Bondhalders participating in the Exchange Offer wiil not be raquired to make
a cash paymant for the portion of Capital Bonds exchanged into Perpetual Preference Shaves.
Payment will be effectad by directing the face value of thelr existing Capital Bonds exchanged and
payable to them by MTF on 30 June 2006 to the satisfaction of the Issu@ Price of the Perpetual
Preference Shares allotted under the Exchange Offer. '

Generst Offer and Priority Pool applications must be made on the Appiication Forn contained at
the back of this Offer Document while applications made pursuant to the Exchange Qffer must be
made an the personalised Red Application Farm sent separotely to Capital Bondhalgers.
Applications must be iadged with the Registrar, or returned to MTF, or the Lepd Manager (at the
following addresses) or any Primary Market Participant through which a firm aliogation was
obtained, or any other channel approved by N2X, in time for such applications to be forwarded to
tha Registrar by 5:00pm on 28 June 2008, or 16 Juna 2006 In the case of the applications made
under the Prierity Poal or the Exchange Offer.

The Registrar The Lead Manager Motor Trade Finances Limited
Link Market Services Forsyth Barr Limited 193 Princes Street
138 Tancred Street Lavet §, Forsyth Barr House PO Box 8BS
AD Box 384 Cnr Lambton Quay and Dunedin
Ashburtan Johnston Street
PO Box 5260
welington

MTF reserves the right to vary the Opening Date, the Closing Date, and the Exchange Offer and
Prierity Pool Closing Dates, on glving notice to NZX, and to refuse all or any pat of any
applicatian without providing a reason.

perpetual Preference Sharas wiil be allotted at MTF's sole discration. MTF wil! advise successful
applicants of the ailotment of Perpatual Preference Shares as soon as possibte after the Allotment
Data.

Parpetual Preference Shares allotted In accordance with this Offer may be subject to scaling at
MTF’s discration,

Further Infarmation an how to apply for Perpetual Preference Sharas 13 set out In the section qa
this Offer Document entitied "application Instructions - General Offer and Priority Pool® and
“application instructions — Exchange Offer”.

Motor Trage Finances Umited 50
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There is na cooling off period in respact of the Perpatual Preference Shares fn which an applicant
for the Perpetual Preference Shares may cancel the application for Perpetual Praference Shares,

Applications made under the Exchange Offer are irrevocable.

What are the charges?

Subscribers of Perpetual Preference Shares ara not required to pay any charges to MTF, the
Registrar or any other person In relation to the Offer, ather than the Issue Price of $3.00 for sach
Parpstual Preference Share allotted to them or, In the case of the Exchange Offer, by diracling the
face vatue of their existing Capkal Bonds exchanged and payabie to them by MTF on 30 Juna
2006 to the setisfaction of the Jsvue Price of the Perpetual Preference Shares allotted under the
Exchanga Offer.

Any fees or expenses payabim to the Registrar and all the expenses of the Offer are to be pald by
MTF.

Details of the fees and expenses Incurred In raspect of the Offer and payable by MTF ara sat out
In the section of this Offer Document entitied “statutory Information®, Those expenses are
qstimated ko be approximately $980,000, based on the Offer amount of $35 million.

o brokerage is payable by any subscriber for Perpetual Preference Shares under the Offer,
although brokerage may be payable If Perpetual Preference Shares are bought and soid In the
secondary market.

Brokerage Is payable by MTF to Primary Market Participants, the Lsdd Mansger and other
approved Intermediaries on applications that bear their stamp at the rate of:

. 1.00% of the principal amount of Perpetuel Preference Shares for which valld applications
have bean raceived and acceptad pursuant to the General Offer and Priority Pool; and

. 0.50% of the principal amaunt of Perpetual Preference Shares accepted by MTF by way of
aver-subscription for which valld applications have been recalved and accepted pursuant to
a firm allocation,

In addition, MTF wiil pay the Lead Manager brokerage at the rata of 0.75% in respect of the
principal amount of ali applications received pursuant ta the Exchange Offer, from which the Lead
Manager will be responsible for paying brokerage at the rate of 0.50% to Primary Market
Participants and other approved Intermediaries on valld appfications that have been received and
accepted that bear thelr stamp.

What returns will I get?

The information set out In this section should be read in confunction with the Information set out
in the section of this Offer Dacument entitied “What are my risks?". Certaln events couid reduce
or sliminate the returns intended to be derived from holding the Perpetual Preference Shares.

The returns to Perpetuzt Preference Shargholders are In the form of Dividend payments, if any, on
the Perpetual Preferance Shares held.

The key factors that will determine the returns to Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares are:

v tha Otvidend Rate paid;

» the performance by MTF of Its obligations as the issuer of the Perpatual Prefarence Shares
Including whather Dividends are paid on the Dividend Payment Dates;

e if Perpetual Preference Shareholders choose to sell their Perpetual Prefarence Shares, the
effect of market Interest rates and other factors on thae price at which Perpehual Preference
Shares may be sold; and

= gach Perpetual Preference Shareholder’s individual circumstances for tax purposes. ®
Mokor Trade Finances Limited &
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Dividend Rate

The entity legally lable ta pay Dividends on the Perpetual Praference Shares to Perpetoal
Preference Shareholiders s Motor Trade Rnances Uimited.

It Is the currant Intention of MTF that, from the Allotment Date of the Perpstual Preference Shates
until the first Dividend Reset Date, Dividends will be payable at the Initial Dividend Rate of 9.75%
per annum, inclusive of full Imputation Credits, payable quartarly in arrears.

On each Dividend Reset Date, Dividends will be reset and payabls at the Dividend Reset Margin of
240 basis points, inclusive of fuli Imputation Credits, above the Benchmark Rate.

MTF reserves the right to Increase the Initial Dividend Rate and Dividend Reset Margin i¢ such
greater rate as It might determine and advise % the market during the Offer peried. Any
increased rate wilt apply to all Parpetual Preference Shaves, regardiess of when they are aliotted.

The first Dividend Payment Date wiil be 30 September 2006, however, 26 this date 1s not a
Business Day the Divigend will be payable on the next Susiness Day baing 2 October 2006 to the
original subscriber of the Perpetual Preference Sharas, irraspective of any transfer of the
rerpetual Preference Shares by that original subscriber prior to the first Dividend Payment Date,
on the daily rate basis from the Allotment Date.

Subsequent Dividend payments wif! bd made quarterly In arreers on each Dividend Payment Date
thereafter (being each 31 December, 31 March, 30 June anu 30 September) to registered
Parpetual Preference Shareholdars on the record date for determining entitiement to Dividend
payments. Except for the first Dividend due on 30 Septeinber 2006, Dividends wil be pald in four
equal amounts per year on the dates referred to above with the pariod between Oividend
Payment Dates deemed to be exactly one quarter of one year.

MTF I5 entitied to cancel payments of Olvidends If:

» the Board Is satisfied on reasonable grounds that, as a result of making the paymant, MTF
wauid or cauld become Insolvent, breach any covenant In relation to its bank debt or breach
any other {egal obligation; or

¢ the Board has for any other reasan determined, in Its discretion, that a Dividend, or Dividemds
genarally, should pot be paid.

As 3 rasult of MTFs abllity to cancel payments of Dividends, no Dividend Is promised or
guaranteed. Dividends that arg cancelled are not cumulative. Whiist Dividends are cancelled MTF
wiil not pay any Distribution on shares or any instruments which rank subordinated to the
Perpetual Preferance Shares, including profit distributable to Dealers,

MTF may make from any Dividends any reduction or withholding en account of tax or on any
other acoount which MTF 15 required by law to make.

Sale of Perpetual Preference Shares

Perpatual Praference Shareholders are entitiad 1o, and, In certain clrcumstances, can be required
to (se= "terms of the Perpetual Prefarence Shares"), sell thelr Perpetual Preference Shares ot any
time subjeck to applicable securkies 1aws and ragulations. For further information, see the section
of this Offer Document entitled "How da 1 cash In my investment?”.

Taxation
Gencral

The following statements are of a general naturs, The stataments are based on New Zegland tax
iegisiation and Imerpretations of tax lsgistation current at the date of this Offer Document. The
statsments ara not Intended to deal with all relevant considerations or posaible cases, No other
taxation considerations are discussed. Prospactive liwastors, including existing MTF Capltal
Bondholders who participate 'n the Exchgnge Offer, should seek thelr own advice in relation to

thaeir personal taxatan position.
Moter Trade Financss Limited @
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New Zealand residant sharcholders

MTE will assuma that Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares are New Zealand tax residents,
untess it s satisfled to the contrary, and will act sccordingly. Any lHablitty for taxation Is the
respansibllity of the Holder of Perpetual Preference Shares.

Dividends distributed to residents

Under New Zealand's dividend imputation system, corporate tax pald by a New Zealand tax
resident company gives rise to tax credits (known as Imputation Credits), which can be attached
to Oividends pald by MTF to its shareholders. Imputatien Credits can be used by sharsholders to
offset thelr-own persanal income tax llability.

Dividends pald by MTF under the Offer will consist of 3 combinition of cash payments and
Imputation Credits. ANl Oividends pald undar this Offer by MTF will be Fully Imputed. In the

event MTF has insufficient Imputation Credits avallable it will pay an amount equal to the shortfall
in Imputation Cradits of which Helders would otherwise have had the benaft.

Dividends paid to New Zeafand tax rasident sharsholders are ordinprily subject to resident
withholding tax. As MTF intends to fully impute all Dividends, na rasicent withhoiding tax will be
deducted. To the axtent that a Dividend is not Fully Imputed, resident withholding tak will be
required to be deducted at the rate of 33% unless Hoiders have provided a certificate of

exempion,

Guarantee

Nanie of MTF’s Directors, the Lead Manager, any of their raspective officers or employees, ner any
other person guarantees the Perpetual Preference Shares or the returns that Perpetual Praferance
Shareholders may receive as Holders of Perpetual Prefarance $hares.

wWhat are my risks?

The principal risks for Perpetual Preference Sharehalders in the perpetual Preference Shares are
that:

¢ they may not recelve timaly, or any, Dividend payments an the Perpetunl Preference Shares;
or

« they may be unable to recoup thelr origina! Investment amount.

This could happen for a number of reasons, Including if:
s MTF cancels Dividend payments for any reason (for more Informetion see the section of this
Offer Document entitlad *What returns will I get?*);

e the price at which Perpetual Preference Shargholders ara avie to sel their Ferpetual
Preference Shares is less than the price thay have pald for tham due to interest rate
movements, supply and demand, the market or for ather reasons;

» Perpetual Preference Sharehalders are unable to sell thelr Perpetual Prefarence Shares at ail
due to laek of demand; or

« MTF becomes Insolvent, or otherwise unabla to pay Dividends due on, or other amounts In
respect of, the Perpetual Preference Shares.

Spacific risks relating to the Offer

The Perpetuat Preference Shares are parpetual, and have no fixed term. The only way in which a
Holder of Perpetual Preference Shares can crystaliise that HMolder's investment Is to seill the
Perpetual Prafarance Shares. The price a Holder oktalns wilt depend on the market for Perpetual
Preferenice Shares, at the time of sale.

There Is no guarantee that a liquld market will develop for the Perpetual Preference Shares.

A Holder of Perpstual Preference Shares may sefl that Holder's Perpetual Preference Shares fiyr
less than the Issu@ Price. In the avent of a llquidation of MTF, where there were Insufficient fu

ML Trade anm Lirnited .
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to repay the Perpetual Prafarence Sharss, It Is reasanably pessible that the Holder wauld recelve
less than the Issue Price.

Dividends payable In respect of the Perpetual Praference Shares may be cancalled at the
diseretion of the Boaard.

No Perpatual Preference Shareholder will be flable to pay any further amounts 1O MTF or any other
person in respect of thelr Perpetual Prefersmcs Shares if MTF becomes insolvent.

In the wvent of a liquidation of MTF, the clalms of any secured and unsecured creditors of MTE
(nciuding, without limitation, faciiities with Commonweaith Bank of Australla, Bank of
Naw Zealand, ANZ Nationsl Bank and Westpac Banking Corporation, iegal and IRD expenses)
would rank ahead of the clalims of Molders of Perpatual Preference Shares. This means that no
payment will be made to Perpetual Praference Shareholders until ali other dabts of MTF In this
regard are pald in Rull,

Once all dabts of MTF awing to sacured and unsecured craditors have been paid, MTT I8 required
to pay Perpetual Preference Sharshoiders the lssue Price of the Perpetual Prefgrance Shares heid
by each Hoider and, subject to paragraph 1.6 of tha terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares,
Dividends payable on thasa Perpetual Prefarence Shares as at the dats of commencement of
liguidation. The clalms of Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares will rank equally amongst
themselves. The Perpatual Preference Shares rank ahead of other sharaholders of MTF and profit
distributable to Dealers.

MTE keoy risks
Joturest rate risk

Interest rate risk (s the risk that market Interest rates will change and Impact on MTF's financlal
results by affecting the Interest margin between Interest earning assets and Interest bearing
llatilities. MYF monltors market interest rates on a daily basis and regularly reviews Interest rate
exposure. Management aims to imit interest rate risk by censtantly monitoring the Interest rete
maturity profiles of finance barrowings and finance recelvables.

Credit risk

Given that the MTF Group's cors business is providing landing faclities to customers, thera Is a
credit risk assoclated with customers not meeting their cbligations under such lending faciitles.
These actlvities have an element of rigk associated with counterparties either not meeting their
obilgations, or transactions deteriorating in credit quallty to the extent that the Iikelthood of
default Increases. In the event of default, the financial performance of the MTF-Greup could be
adversely impacted. Credit risk associated with debtors' advances is limited due to the large
number of individual contracts heid and the geographic distribution of loans throughout
New Zmaiand.

Loans are managed within established credit policiles. The MTF Group has formal provisioning
policies that are monitored and reviewed by both management and the Board. The credit
committee reviews cradit risks, racommends credit policy and approves centain credit limits, The
committee met four times during the year ended 30 September 2005, in addition to regular
approval of large exposures,

In addition to the credit quality of finance applicants, the MTF Group requires each Dealer to
indemnify the MTF Group against any default by a borrower from that Dealer. This Indemnity
includes the right to forfelt the shares and profits of the Daaler In the event that the Dealer falls
to meet the ohligations under the terms of the recourss arrangement. Dealers’ profits accumulate
and are paid put two monthly In arrears. Pre-acceptance examinations and ¢ngoing reviews are
conductad in relation to each Deaier's suitabliity to utllise the MTF Group's finance facliitias.

MTF closely manitors the credit quality, lending limits, performance and financlal position f
Daalers to ensure the quality of the businass writtan Is up to standard and the Dealer I capa

of Indemnifying the MTF Group agalnst any potentlal iooses. Daalers who are unabia or unwilli

to meet MTF credit and/or gqulty criterla have their facilitles with the MTF Group cancelled. |

Mator Trade Finances Limited
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Concantration of crodit risk

In relation to the recourse arrangements with Dealers, the MTF Group has 3 concentration of
cradit risk to the New Zesland mator vehicde industry for finance recaivables and finance leases
ddministered.

Concantration is mitigated by the geagraphical distribution of customers throughout New Zealand,
lmited exposure to larger customers relative to the total asset bese, the high number of
Individual contracts which comprise non-securiticed recaivables administared and the risk
assumed by the holders of the ECF on securitised receivables. The average stze of a MTF Group
ioan I approximately $9,000 and, excluding an exposure to Honda New Zealand Limited which as
at 30 April 2006 accounted far approximatsly 8.9% of outstanding recelvables, the MTF Group's
exposure to any Individual customer is low, with the next largest customer accounting for
appraximately D.4% of outstanding receivables.

Lass of key parmannel

MTF hellaves it has assembied a high quality Board of Directors and management team. MTF has
spent considerable time and effort in bringing together ndividuals who have the gidlis, experience
and abillty to work tagather effectively to achieve superior results. In the normal course of
business, MTF faces the risk of the loss of one or more of those individuals for a varlety of
reasons.

The risk Is mitigated by the depth of sxperience of the Board of Directars and management team,
and by having a team structura within MTF ta reduce exposure tq any Individual.

Feonomic downturn

The MTF Group Is exposed to the risk of an econamic downturn affecting customers’ abllity or
willingness to borraw funds from the MTF Group and also the abliity of thoss that have borrowed
funds from the MTF Group to sarvice their ioan obiigattons. An sconomic downturn may adversely
impact upen the abliity of certain borrawers of funds from the MTF Group to realise certain assers
from which to repay those loans. An economic downtum may have 2 negative Impact on MTFS'
cradit rating which may edversaly affect MTF's abllity to utillse cost eMiclent funding provided by
MTES' securitisation programme.

MTF snticipates some softening In consumer spending, In the 2007 financial year, driven by
increasing infiation and higher ofl prices, This mey heve the effact of dampening the demand for
new and used motor vehicles and consenuently motor vehicle finance. Notwithstanding, for the
shx months to 31 March 2006, new Joan sales, asset growth, and credit quality indicatars suggest
that the levels of profitabllity racorded In respect of the 30 September 2003 financial year will
continue for the full year to 30 Saptember 2006.

Liguidity risk and Yunding risk
Uquidity risk arises If the MTF Group Is unable to ganamte or obtaln sufficient funds at 3
ressanable price ta meet iks daily financlal commitments. The MTF Group’s financlal performance
may then be adversely impacted.,

Uquidity Is managed primarlly through access to the securitisation programme by which
recalvabies are sold to MTFS. WIthin the securitisation programme, révoiving standby credic
facilities exist with apprapriately rated banks ta ansure cnpring funding to repay ECP on maturity
should further commercial paper nat be abls to be Issued.

MTF manages non-securitised assets and liablities to ansure maturities allow an adequate margin
betwesn requiremants to fund non-securitised assets and access to funding.

Currency risk
The MTF Group |5 potentially exposed to tha risk that any.matarlal depraciation in the value of the

New Zealand dollar may increase the prices of new and second hand cars, causing a fall in the

damand for vehicles and a corresponding fall In tha demand for motor vehicle finance, '

The MTF Group’s Yorelgn exchange exposurss on ECP borrowing are fully hedged by forwar

exchange contraces. .

Moter Trada Finences Umiteg %:
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Operstional riek

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect lass resulting from external events or inadequate
or falled Internal processes, people and systems, Inciuding fraud, caused by any factor other than
cregit, liquidity or market risk.

The Board is responsible for MTFe systam of intemal ecantrol. The Board reguiarty monttars the
operationa) and financial aspects of the MTF Group's activitles and, through the audit committea,
congiders the recommendations and advice of extamal audhors,

An annual cycle of internal rigk raviews is poﬂbrrned, covering the treasury, finance, information
technology and credit functions,

‘The Board ensures that recommendations arising from external audits or intamal rsk reviews are
investigated and, whare considared necessary, suitabla action is taken to gngure that the MTF
Group has an appropriate environment In place to manage the risks ldentified.

The Board requires that management invastigates ways of enhancing risk management
strategles, inciuding appropriate segregation of duties and the employment and training of
suitably qualified and experianced parsonnel.

Other oparationsl and event risks

Demand for the MTF Group’s products and services Is partially dependent upon the perfarmance
" of the New Zeaiand and world economies, Reduced or negative growth In these scenomies, or
raduced demand for financlal products and services, could have a material adverse affect on tha
financial results of the MTF Group.

Campatition In tha finance Industry

The MTF Group faces competition from bioth existing financial service providers and new antrants.
Dealers and customers are able to cheose framn a large number of praviders In al of the areas of
financlal servicas provided by the MTF Group. Risks that may affect the MTF Group's ability to
obtain new and retain existing Daalers and customers, theraby affecting the profitabliity of tha
MTF Group, include, but ara not limired to, the ralative position of the MTF Group against ity
competitors In the:

+ pricing and performance of products and services;

+ convenience and ease of access to praducts and services;

» level and efficdency of servica provided; and

« abllity to develop new products and service to meet the changing needs of customers.

The MTF Group Is committed t providing superfor customer servica to new and existing Dealers,
and customers, and |5 a recognised leader In this area.

Legal and regulatory environment

While the legal and regulatory framework govemning finance companies in Naw Zeatand s falrly
well establlshed, It is subject to change from time to time. Any such change has the potentiat to
adversely impact on the MTF Group's financlal performanca.

While the MT® Group takes steps to miigate the above risks, these risks cannot be eliminated,
Can the Investment be altered?

The full terms of the Offar are s8¢ out In this Offer Docyument. Those terms and the terms and.
conditions on which appiicants may apply for the Perpetual Preference Shares may be aitgred by
an amendment ta this Offer Document, Detalls of any such amendment must be flied with the
Companies Offlca.

The Offer of Perpetual Preference Shares contalned in this Offer Dacument Is subject to approval|

by each class of MTF shareholders by ordinary resolition at a special mesting to be held on 8
June 2006. An ordinary resolution I$ a resolution approved by a simple majority of the votes o

F.22/728
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thasa sharsholders antitied £o vate and voting on the resolution. If the ordinary resolution Is not
passed at the special meeting the Offer will not proceed.

The rights attached to the Perpetual Preference Shares are governed by the Constitution and by
tha tarms of issue specifiss In this Ofer Document. Any amendment to the terms which affect
the rights attaching to the Perpetual Preferencs Shares require the approval of the Board, and 'the
approval by the Haolders by way of a spacial respiution. Amendment of the Constitution requires
approval of the ordinary shareholders of MTF, by way of a Special Resolution.

Dividends may be cancelled as detailed on page 52.
How de X ¢ash in my invastment?

Parpetual Praference Sharehoiders are entitied to sell or transfer their Perpetual Preferance
Shares at any time subfact to MTF's Constitution, applicable securitles laws and regulations. The
Perpetuai Preference Shargholders have limited rights of repayment and redemption.

Perpetual Preference Sharehoiders may sell their Perpetual Preferance Shares at any time prior to
redamption provided 3 buyer tan be found, No chargas are payable to MTF on such sale. MTF
may redéem or repurchase the Perpetual Preference Shares in certain circumstances. For further
information see the *Compulsory redemption® section under the "terms of Perpetual Preference

Shares" on page 54,

Application has been made to NZX for permissian to list the Perpetuai Prefarance Shares and all
the requiraments of NZX relating thersto that can be compiied with on or befora the date of the
Offer Document have been duly complied with, However, NZX accepts no responsibility for any
statement In this Offer Oecument.

If permission Is granted by N2X to list the Perpetual Preference Shares, and on the basis that they
remain listed, MTF belleves there will b an established markat for the Perpetual Preferance
Shares on completian of the Offer. At the date of this Oifer, In MTFs apinfon, there is no
established market for the Perpetuat Praference Sharas.

The Perpetual Preference Shares are expected to be quoted on the NZDX Market shortly after the
Closing Date of the Offar. If you wish to sell your Perpetual Preference Shares ygu should tontact
yaur usual Primary Market Participant.

Perpetual Preference Shares may be transferred using a trensfsr document In the form preseribed
by or ctherwise approved by MTF or by any method ta transfer securities which Is not contrary to
any law and which may be In aceordance with the NZSX and NZDX Listing Rules.

MTF may refuse to register a transfer which would resuit in less than 5,000 Perpetual Preference
Shares being held or If MTF has a llen on the Perpetual Preference Shares or the transferor has
falled to prodiuce such evidence as MTF or the Reglstrar reasonably requires.

MTF has the ability to purchese and hold Parpetual Preference Shares as treasury stock which
may subsequently he cancelied or reissued subject to the 5% limit outiined on page 55. Sales of
Perpetual Preferenca Shares may be subject to brokerage charges.

Applicants should not attempt to seil Parpetudl Preference Shares untll they know whether, and, If
50, how many, Perpatual Preferenice Shares have been allotted to them. None of the MTF Group,
the Lead Manager or any of their raspective officers and employees or any othar person accepts
any llability or responsitliity should any applicant for Perpetual Preference Shares attempt to seli
or otherwise deal with Perpetual Preference Shares befors recalving a statement recording the
number of Perpetual Praference Shares allotted to that applicant.

The amount a Perpetual Preference Shareholder raceives from the sale of Perpetual Preference
Shures may ditfer from what was pald for them. Thisg Is because changes In market Interast rates
after the date of purchase can affect their value. For Instance, If market Intergst rates risa (fall)
the value of the Perpetuat Prefergnce Shares can fall (rise). The proximiy of the selling da

the next Oividend Payment Date or Dividend Reset Date can also affect the value of the Perpexyal
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Preference Shares, MTE will not compensate Parpetual Preference Shareholders for any loss they
may Incur if they sell their Ferpetual Preference Shares.

MTF may make from Dividends any deduction aor withholding on account of tax or on any other
account which MTF 1s requirsd by law to make.

Who do I contact with enguiries about my Invastment?
Any enquiries about Perpetual Preference Shares should be diracted to:

The Ragistrar Motor Trade Finances Umited
Link Market Services Artn: Dantel Clarkson
138 Tancrad Street Genera) Manager - Treasury
PO Bax 364 PO Box 885
Ashburton 193 Princes Street
Dunedin
Telephone: 0800 377 388
Facsimile: 03 308 1311 Telephone: 03 474 6386
Email: info@inkmarketservices.cam Facsimile; 03 471 7737
Email: delarkson@mif.co.nz

Website: www. mtf.co.nz

Is there anyone ta whom I can complain H I have problems with the
investmant?

Any complaints about Parpetual Preferance Shares can be directed to:

Maotor Trogde Finances Limited
Awen: Danlel Clarkseh
General Manager - Treasury
PO Box 885

153 Princas Street

Dunedin

Telephone: 03 474 6386
Fagsimlle: 03 471 7737

Emall: delarkson@mtf.co.nz
Wabsite: voww.mtf.co.nz

Thers Is no ombudsman for this type of Investment and therefare complalints about the Parpetual
Preference Shares are aot 2ble to e made to an ombudsman.

What other information can I obtain about this investment?

Other Information abaut Parpetual Preference Shares and MTF Is contained or referred ta in this
Offer Dacument and In the MTF Group’s most racent financial statements.

You may obtaln copies of this Offer Document, the MTF Group's most recent financial statements
and other documents of, or relating to, MTF (Including MTF's Constitution) without charge during
normal business hours at MTF's registered office at 193 Frinces Street, Ounedin. These
documants are also filed on a public ragister with the Companles Office, Ministry of Ecanamic
Development. They are avallable for inspaction on the Companfes Office website at
www,companies.govt.nz. Where relevant documents are not avaliable an the website, a request
for the documents can be made by ¢sntacting the Companies Office Contact Centre on 0508 268
726. A prescribed fee may be payable.

AX any tme untl the Closing Date, you can aiss obtaln coples of this Offer Document without
charge on request in writing, or by teiephone, from the Lead Mangger or the Reglistrar.

perpetual Preference Shareholders wilt be sent annually a capy of the MTF Group’s annual repoft.

Moror Trade Finances Lmited 66
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On regoest nformation
You may receive copies of:

this Offer Document;
the most racent annual report of the MTF Group;

the most recently published financisl stataments of the MTF Group (together with ail
documents that are required to be registared with those financial statements);

tha Constitution of MYVF;

any other Information that may be reguested under regulation 23A of the Securltes
Regulatians 1983 or the NZSX and NZDX Listing Rules; and

cradit ratings reports on the ECP fstued by MTFS;

at any Ume fre= of charga, by contacting Moter Trade Finances Limited by email mif@mtf.co.n2 or
by cafling on 03 477 0530 or at the abave addrass.

MTF will Issue annusl and half vearly reports to Perpetual prefarence Sharehoiders at the same
time as annual and haif yearly reports are issued to ordinary shareholders of MTF,

e
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statutory information

The following additional information s inciuded in accordance with the requirements of the First
schedule to the Securities Reguiations 1981,

1

‘e issuer of the Perpetual Preference Shares Is Mator Trade Finances Limited, which has
Its registered offica at 183 Princes street Dunedin,

A description of tha Perpatual Prefarence Shares, incuding the maxitnym amount being
offered and menﬂcatohapaldformPeMdFreferemeshlres,umnutlnme
section af this Offer Document entitied "main terms of the Offar” on page 9.

Name and addrass of offaror

Motor Trade Finances Umited
PO Box 885 .
193 Princes Straet

Dunedin

www.mtf.co.ne

The Offer by MTF of Parpetual praference Shares Is an agaregate principal amourt of
535 million, with the abllity to accept oversubscriptions with an aggregaie priacipal
amount of up to a further $5 mittion.

petalls of incorporation of sauer

Mator Trade Finances Limited was incorporated on 24 luly 1970 under the Companles Act
1955 and was registered to become @ company under the Companies Act 1993 on
3 Fehruary 1697. Its ragistered number is 148074. MTF was registered on 3 February
1997 as 3 co-operative company for the purpasas of the Co-operative Comparies Act
1986,

The public file relating to the incorparation and raglstration of MTF can be viawad an the
Companies Office website www.companies.govt.nz.  Where relevant documents gre not
avalisble on the websits, 3 request for the documents can be made by contacting the
Companies Office Contact Centre on 0508 286 726. A prescribed fee may be payable.

Principal subsidiarien of Issusr

MTFL and MTFS are the only subsidiaries with total tangible assets exceeding 5% of the
amount of total tanglble assets of the MTF Groun. The proportion of the tssued capital held
by members of MTF in MTFL Is 100%. MTES is not wholly owned by MTF butls a subsidiary
by virtue of the financial reporting standards.

Diroctorste and advisers

The namas, technical or professtonal qualifications (I any), and place of residence of each
Director of MTF 15 set aut in the section of this Qffer Document antitied *Directors and
management” on page 19. The address at which each Director can be contacred tc, for the
purposes of this Offer Document, the registered office of MTF, which Is sst out in the
Direttory oh page 86 of this Offer Document,

Noa Director has been adjudged hankrupt during the five years preceding the date of this
Offer Document.

Angus Bradshaw, a Directar of MTF, is algo an employee holding the position of Managing
Divecter.

The names of MTF's auditor, Registrar, sharebrokers and solicitors whe have been inv
in the preparation of this Offer Document ars set out in the Directory on page 86 of thl
Offer Document, .

Moter Trade Financas Limied 1]
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The Offer |s being undarwritten by Forsyth Barr Group Limited. The undarwriter's address
is set out ln the Directory on page 86 of this Offer Document.

5A  Restrictions on Directors’ powers

The principal madificatians, exceptions or firitations on the powers of the Board impased
by the Act and MTF's Canstitution are thet the Board may not cause MTF to:

(a) 'ssue, buy back or redeem shares, except in the dreumstances permittad by the Act
and MYF's Constitution;

(b} enter into 8 major transaction, as defined in the Act, oF aiter shareholders’ rights,
excapt In the crcumstances parmitind by the Act and MTFs Canstitution.

The Act contains a number of other provisions that could have the effect, in certain
circumstances, of imposing modifications, exceptions or limitations on the powers of the
Board. Thesa provisions apply to any company registered under the Ast,

] Substantial equity security holtars of Issuer
As all shareholders In MTF hold an equai 10,000 shares as at the date of dellvery of this
Offer Document for registyation, It s ot appropriate to detall the 1D targest holdings of
equity securities in MTE.
No sharsholder of MTF or any other persan undertakes any labity in respect of the
Perpetual Prefarence Shares being offered.

7 Description of activities of the lesulng greup

Ouring the five vears preceding the data of this Offer Document, the MTF Group’s principal
activities comprised providing motar vehicle finance.  Further information about the
activities of the MTF Group is sst out in the section of this Offer pocument entitiad
shusinass averview"” on page 14.

The only principal fixed assets held by members of the MTF Group are motor vehicles
ownad and l=ased to customers (n the ordinary course of its business by MTFL.
] Summaery of financisl statements

Financlal statements, In summary form, for the MTF Group in respect of each of the five
consecutive accounting periods ended 30 Septembar 2005 are set out In the section of this
Offer Dacument entitied "five year financial summary ~ MTF Group® On pages 4 and 23,

The Information contained in the summary of financial stataments for the five consecutive
accounting periods ended 30 September 2005 has deen taken from the audited financai
stataments of the MTF Group for each accounting periad. The auditor's report was not
quatified In any respect.

5 prospects and farecasts

A statement as to the trading praspects (Including a dascrigtion of all special trade factors
and risks) of the MTF Group are sot out under the heading *Trading prospects and outiook”
in the section of this Offer Document gntitied “business overview" on page 14 and under
the heading "What are my risks?® on page 61.

10 Provisions relating to tnitial flotatlans
This Is not the first offer of eguity securities of MTF to the public.

11 Acquisition of business or subsidiary

No business, subsidiary or body corporate has baen acquireg or formed in the two ye
preceding the date of delivery of this Offer Document for reglstration.

12  Securities paid up otherwise than n cash

Since the date of Incorporation of MTF, the MYF Group has not aliotted any equity oF
participatary securities as fully or partly paid up otherwise than in cash.

Motor Tragis Finances Umied B% .
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Options ta subscribe for sacurities af issulng group

There are no aptions to subscribe for securities of the MTF Group that have heen granted
tourareproposadtnbegruuedtonnyonebvu'mmwwuuewemup.

Appointment and ratirement of Diractors

In accerdance with MTF's Constitution, there must not be jess than five Directors or mora
than six Directors on tha Board at any one tme. A Managing Director may de eppointad In
addtion to the maxdmum number of Directors permittad an the Board. Ordinary
shargholders may change the minimum and/or the maximum number of Directors by
ordinary resaiution.

Pursyant to clause 16.2 of tha Constitution, the Board has the power to appoint two
Directors and the Managing Olrector. The remainder of the 8card Is to be appointad by
ordinary resnlution passed by Dealers who ase holders of class A shares. The Constitution
permits any of the following parsons to be appointed by holders of class A shares:

» a Diractor of a Dealer;
. a current retaller of MTF;

. a trustee of a trust that awns ar halds the majority of the voting shares in a current
retatier of MTEF; .

. 2 haldar of the majority of the voting shares in a current rtaller of MTF; and
v a senlor executive of 2 current retatler af MTF,

‘The Board may appoint 2 persan to be a Director ta fill 2 casual vacancy in respect of the
Diractors appointed by holders of ¢lass A sharas pravided that person qualifiea under the
above criterla. Any person appainted to fill a casual vacancy IS required to retire at the
naxt annual meeting of MTF and shall be ellalhle for raappointment.

Any Oirector or Managing Diractor appointed by the gpard may be removed from office by
resolution of the Board (provided that the Director or Managing Diractor in question may
riot vote on such rasolution), ar by an ordinary resclution of the hoiders of class A Shares,
Any Director appointed by the holders of class A Shares may bs removed by ordinary
resolution of those sharehoiders.

rhe office of Director 1s deamed ta be automatically vacated when a person holding office
wumne 70. The vacation of office is ggemed to apply from the next annual meeting following
that age being attalned. ‘

All Directors appointed by the Board pursuant to the terms of the Constitution have the
right to vote an the election of other Directors of MTF.

Rager Bonifant and Stephan Miggs have been appointed as Independent Directars by the
Board under clause 16.2(a)(l) of the Constitution.

Directors’ Interasts

Directors are not entitied to remuneration from MTF other than by way of Directors' fees.

There are no cantracts or other provisions relating to retirement benefits or compensation
for loss of office for Directors.

No material transactions have bean entered into at any time In the five years preceding tha
date of dellvery of this Offar Document for registration between MTF and any of the
persons named In clause 15(4) of tha First Schedule to the Securities Regulations 1983.

pP.28-28

Promaters’ intorests
There ls ne promotar of the securities being offered.
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Matarial contracts

The following mavarial contracts have besn entered Into during the twa years preceding the
date of dallvery of this Offer Document for ragistration: _

. Underwriting Agreement dated 30 May 2006 between MTF and Forsyth Barr Group
Limited.

» Third Supplemental Deed dated 30 November 2004, betwesn MTF and Trustees
Executors Limited (the Trustee).

Pending procaedings
There are no legal proceedings or arbitrations pending at the date of delivery of this Offer
Document for registration that may have a material adverse effect on the MTF Group.

Praliminary and issus expenses

Issue expenses, including underwriting fees, brokarege, Issue management fees, lagal and
sccounting fees, printing, advertising, distribution and other costs Incurred by MTF In
making the Offer are estimated to be $980,000, based on an issue size of $35 miltlon.

This estimate Includes:

(a) brokerage payable to Primary Market Participants, the Lead Manager and other
appraved financial intermediaries at the rate of 1.00% of tha principal amount of
perpetual Prefarence Shares In respect of vaild applications received and accepted
pursuant to tha General Offer and the Priority Poo) which bear their stamp;

(b) brokerage payable to the Lead Manager In respect of all appitcations made pursuant
to the Exchange Offer at the rate of 0.75% aut of which the Lead Manager wili pay
brokerage at the rata of 0.50% to Primary Market Participants and other approved
financial Intermediaries in respect of valld Exchange Offer applications recelved and
accepted which bear their stamp;

(<) in retation to any over-subscriptions accepted by MTF, brokeraga payable to Primary
Markat Participants, the Lead Manager and other approved financial intermediaries
at the rate of 0.50% pursuant to valid firm applications recelved and accepted which
bear thelr stamp;

(d) a lead management fee payable to the Lead Manager at the rate of 0.50% of the
principa! amount of Perpetual Praference Shares atiotted under the Offar; and

(&) an underwriting fee of 1.00% on the Underwrltten Amount payabfe to Forsyth Bam
Group Limited.

Rastrictions on the MTF Group

The terms of the Parpetual Preference Shares provide that if Dividends on the Perpetual
Prefsrence Shares are cancelled MTF ghall not make any Distribution t¢ ordinary
sharehaldare Including profit distrinutable to MTF Oealers, from the date that the Dividends
on the Perpetual Praference Sharas are canceiled untii MTF has paid the next full Dividend
payment.

MTFS has sntered into 8 securitisation programme with MTF and other parties. Under a
loan purchase deed hetweon MTF and MTFS dated 25 September 1995 (Loan Purchase
Deed), MTFS purchases qualifying finance receivables from MTF. As a speclal purpose
company set up to acglire, hold and administer such ieans under the securitisation
programme, MTFS 15 only permitted to barrow funds In accordanca with, and as
contamplated by, the transactlon documents relating to the securitisation programme
(Transaction Documents) and Is restricted from borrewing funds for any other purpese. ~Jt
is also restricted in certain circumstances (as described below) from making any payme

ar distributions to shareholders by way of return of pald up capitat or dividends.

Motor Trade Finances Limiteg 71
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By way of @ security trust deed entered into between MTFS and Trustees Executors Limited
(the Trustee) on 27 September 1995 (Security Trust Deed), MTFS has expressly
covenanted that it will not:

(8) incur any other Indebtedness except as permiited under or comtemplated by any
Transaction Documant;

(b) give any guarantee In respect of the obligations of any cther persorn;

{¢) create or attempt to create any charge or Secunty intarast over sny part of its
present and future property (except where permitted by any Transaction Document); or

{d) as long as any maneys secured by the Security Trust Daed remaln outstanding, vary
its Issued or pald up share capital or make any payments or distributions to sharsholders
by way of return of pald up capital or dividends, unless the Trustee has glven s prior
congant.

By way of a debenture trust deed entered Into hetwesn MTF and the Bank of New Zealand
on 17 Mey 2001, MTF agreed to comply with certaln financlal and other covenants, In
consideration for & cradit facliity from debenture hokiers. The financlal covenants provide
that MTF will ensure that on the last day of each financial quarter:

(a) total adfusted capital funds will not be less than 15% of adjusted total tangible
assets; and

(b)  EBIT will not ba less than 1.5 times Interest and financing costs.

MTF have exprassly covenanted in the debenture trust deed that they will not make 3
Distribution, without the consent of Bank of New Zealand, where to do so would result In 3
breach of these financlal covenants. In addition, MTF Is restrictad from berrowing If to do
5o would result In a braach of the shove financlal covenants.

There are no other restrictions an the MYF Group's abllity to borraw.

21  Other terms of Offer and securitias
There are no other terms of the Offer, or the Perpetual Preference Shares, which are not
set out elsewhere In this Offer Document other than these:
{(a) implled by \aw; or
{b) which are set out In a decument that has been registered with a public offidal, Is

avaliakis for public Inspection and is refarred to In this Offer Document.,

22-38 Financial statements
The Rnancial statements of the MTF Group required by clauses 22 to 38 of the First
Schedule of the Securitles Regulations 1983 are set out In the ssction of this Offer
Document entitied “historical financlal informatian®,

39 Piaces of Inspection of dacuments

40

MTF’s Constitution and, where reievant, any material contract may be viewed on the
Campanlgs OMce website at www.companigs.govt.nz for a nomingl fee, or free of charge
at the registered office of MTF, as detalled In tha Diractory on page 86, during narmal
business hours. Where relevant documents are not avallable on the Companies Office
website a request for the documents can be made by contacting the Companies Office
Contact Centre on 0508 266 726. A prescribed fee may be payable.

GOther matarfal matters

NZX Regulation has ruled that the Perpatuel Praterance Shares are debt securities as that
torm s defined In the NZSX and NZ2DX Listing Rules.

The Offer of Perpetual Preference Shares contained in this Offer Document Is subject to

approval by eack clagss of MTF shareholders by ordinary resolutfon at a speclal meeting to -
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be held on B Juns 2006. An ordindry resalution Is @ resolution approved by a simple
majerity of the votes of those shareholdars entitied to vote and voting on the resolution. 1f
the ordinary resalution is not passed at the spacial meeting the Offer will not prozeed.

There are no other material matters relating to the Offer, other than matters disciosed
alsewhera in this Dffer Oocument and In contracts entered into In the ordinary course of
pusiness of the MTF Group.

41 Direttors’ statament

The Directars, after due Inquiry by them In relation to the period hetween 30 september
2008 and the date of delivery of this Offer Document for registration, are of the opinfon
that no crcumstances have arisen that materially agversely affect:

(a) the trading or profitablity of the MTF Group;
(b)  the value of the MTF Group’s assets; of
(c)  the ability of the MTF Group to pay its Jlabfiities due within the next 12 months.

42 Audher's report

The suditor's report required by dlause 36 of the First Schadule of the Securitias
Regulations 1983 Is set out on page 49.

This Offer Decumant has been signed by each Director of MTF (by thelr agent authorised in
writing, Angus R Bragshaw) and MTF by:

W\j\

Angus R Bradshaw

Mator Yrade Finances Limited 73
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index for Securities Regulations 1883

For tha purpases of Regulation 5(6) of the Securities Regulations 1983, the matters required to be
stated or contained in this Offer Document by virtue of the First Schedule to the Securities

Regulations 1983 are:
Matter Page No.
1. Main terms of Offer g, 88
2. Name and addvess of offeror 68
Detalls of incorporation of Issuer e2
4. principal subsidiaries of issuer &8
L} Directorate and advisers 18, €8, 86
SA. Restrictions on Director's powers 68
gubstantial equity security holders of issuer 69
Deseription of activities of Issuing group 14, 63
8. Summary of financlal statements 4,23, 69
9. Prospects and forecasts 17,61, 69
ia. Pravistons ralating to Initial florations 69
11. Acquigition of business or subsidiary 69
12 Securities pald up ctherwisa than in cash 69
13. Options to subscribe for securities of issuing group 70
i4. Appeintment and retirement of Directors 70
15. Directors' Interasts 70
16. Promoters' interests 70
17. Material contracs ' 71
18, Pending proceedings 71
19, preliminary and issus expenses n
20. Restrictions on the MTF Group 7
2%, QOther terms of Offer and securities 72
22,-38. Financiel statements 25-48, 72
30. places of Inspection of documents 72,86
40. Other material matters 72
41. Directors' statament 73

motor Trege Finances Uimicad T4

42. Auditor's report 49, 73’ ®
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glossary
Act means Companies Act 1993

Auounentmtemmpeetofaperpmtvrefemnasmu. means the date on which the
application for that Perpetual Preference Share Is alictted under this Offer Dacument;

Application Farm means the appiication form contained (n this Offer Document;

Benchmark Rate on any day means the rate per annum expressed on & percentage yield basls,
and rounded up to the nearest two dedimal piaces, which ig:

(a) the average of the bid and offared swap rata displayed at or about 11am on that day on
page FISSWAP (or any suctessor page) of the Reuters monitor screen for an (nterest rate
swap with a one yeyr term; or

(6] It a rate Is unable to ba detarmined In pecardance with paragraph (a), or If MTF forms the
view that the rate sa determinad is not an accurste refiection of market rates, the average
of the bIS and offered swap rates quoted by three registerad banks in New 2s2land at or
about 11am an that day for an Interast rate swap with a one year wrm;

Boegrd maans the board of Directors of MTF;

Susiness Day means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a statutory public hollday In
Wallington, New 2ealand;

Capital Bond weans a capital bond issued by MTF;
Capital SBondhoicar means a hoider of Capital Bonds;

Clasing Date means 28 June 2006 or the date m'whlch subscriptions are receivaed and accepted
for the maximum 2ggregate principal amaunt of the Perperual Prefarence Shares (Including any
over-subscriptions) or such other date ag MTF determines;

Canstitution means the canstitution of MTF;

Deaaler means transacting shareholder;

Directors means the directors of MTF;

Directory means the dirgctory set ouk In the saction of this Offer Document entitied "Directory”;

Distribution has tha meaning set out In section 2(1) of the Act and includes any profit
distributahia to Dealers;

Dividerd means any dlvidend on the Perpetual Preference &hares payable pursuant to
paragraph 1.1 of the terms of the Perpatual Prefarence Shares;

Dividend Amount In respect of a Dividend Perigd means a sum in respect of =ach Perpetual
Preferenca Share caiculated in Sccordance with the following formula:
Issue Price xw

Where:
Dividend Kete Is;

(3) In respect of sach Dividend Perlod cammencing after 30 September 2007, the Benchmark
Rata on the Relevant Reset Date plus the Dividend Resat Margin;

{b) In raspect of each Dividend Period ending an or before 30 september 2007, 9.75%. MTF
reservas the right to Increase the Inltial Dividend Rate to such greater rate a5 it mig
determine and advise to the market during the Offer period. Any Incrzased rate woy
apply ta oll Ferpatual Preference Shares, regardiess of whan they are alloted,

P.B5-24
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provided that the Dividend Amount in respect of the first Dividend Perlod snali be an amount
calculoted in accordanca with the following formula:

Y
91.25

Xx

where:
X js an amaunt calculated in accordance with the first formula set out In this definition.

¥ is the petiod In days from and including the Allotment Date to put excluding 30 September
2006.

The Dividend amounts so calcuiated are Inclusive of Imputation CradRs.

Dividend Cancelfation Notice mgans 3 notice given by the Board pursuant o paragragh 1.6 of the
arms of the Perpetual Preference Shares;

Dividend Payment Dare means 31 December, 31 March, 30 June and 30 September In each year
and if that day is not 2 Business Oay, the next Business Day;

Dividend Period means each period commencing on and including 3 Dividend Payment Date and
ending on bt excluding the next Dividend Payment Date, ar, In respect of the first Dividend
Period, the period fram and including the Allotment Date to but exciuding 30 September 2006;

Oividend Rate means, in respect of tha period untll the first Dividend Reset Date, 9.75%, and in
respect of the periad after the first Dividend Reset Date, the Benchmark Rate on the Relevant
Raset Dates plus the Dividend Reset Margin;

Dividend Reset Dates means 30 September 2007 and 30 Saptember annually thersafter;

Dividend Resel Margin means 240 pasis points, Incluging full imputation Cradits above the
panchmark Rate;

Dividend Resumption Notice magns a notice glven pursuant to paragraph 1.8 of the terms of the
perpetual Preference Shaves;

EBIT maans aarnings before intarast ang tax. E6IT Is an Indicator of a company's financtal
performance calculated as revenue less eXPENSES excluding \nterest and tax;

£CP means commercial paper issued on the 8uro commercial paper market pursuant ta the MTFS
sacuritisation programme;

Exchange Offer means the $15 milllon exchange offer being made to existing MTF Capital
gondhokiers as set out in this Offer Document;

Exchange Offer Closing Date means 16 June 2008 or such cther date 85 MTF determines;

First Dividend Payment Date means 30 September 2006, or if not @ Business Day, the next
Business Day;

Fuily Imputed means in relation to 2 Olidend, that Imputation Credits are validly attached to the
Dividend, so that the imputaticn ratio of the Dividend s the maximum mputation ratio permitted
by law;

Ganeral Offer means the offer belng mada to clients of NZX firms and Invited financial institutions
hy way of firm allcation and the Public Pogl;

Hoider In respect of a Perpetual Praference Share means 2 person whose nama is entered in the

Reglster as the holder for the time being of that Perpetual Preference Share;
Initial Dividend Rata maars the, gross Oividend rate of 9.75% per annum payeble fram th
Allatment Data of the Perpetual Preferance Shares yntit the Rrst Dividend Reset Date Inclusive

full imputation Credits, payabla quarterly in arraars;

Motor Trass financks mited 76 @
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Imputation Credit means an mputation credit as defined In section OB 1 of the Tax Act,
Issue Price means $1.00 In respect of each Perpetual Preference Share;
Lewd Manager masns Forsyth Barr 13mited;

Minimum Holding means a holding of a parcel of perpetual Preference Shares with 3 face valul of
ssrm;

MTH means Motor Trade Finances Umited;

MTF Group means Motor Trade Finances Limitad and any wholly ewned subsidiary together with
MTF Securities Limited, which i5 a subsidiary for accounting purposes only;

MTFS means MTF Securities Limited;

MTEL means MTF Leasing Umited;

AZX means the New Zealand Exchange;

Cffar means the offer of Perpetual Preference Shares under this Offer Document;

Offer Document means this combined investment statamant and prospactus dated 30 May 2006;
Opening Date means 31 May 2008;

Organising Participant means Forgyth Barr Limited;

Pespetual Prefarance Sharehelders maans the Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares;

Perpetual Preference Shares means tha Farpetusl preference ShBres offered for subscription
undar the Offer Document;

Primary Market Participant hag the meaning given to it In the NZX Participant Rules;

Priority Pool means the pool of &5 milifon Perpetual preferance Shares reserved for Dealers, MTF
staff, and Directers;

Public Paol means those Perpetual Prefarence Shares avaltable Yor subseription By members of the
public (if any), at MTF's absolute discration;

Priority Paol Cinsing Date means 16 June 2006 or such other date as MTF determines;

Red Application Form means the persanalised red application form sent separately to MTF Capital
gsandholders upon whick an applicadon w subscribe for Perpetual Prefarence Shares under the
Exchange Offer must be made;

Redemption Notice is a notice igsued In accordance with paragraph 1.20 of the terms of the
Perpetual Preferance Shares;

Redemptian Price in respect of sach Perpatual Preference Share at any date means.the agaragats
of;

(a) the Issue Price; and

(b) subject to paragraph 1.6 of the terms of the Perpetual prefarence Shares, Dividends
payable on that Perpetual prafarance Share as at that date caleulated on a dally basls from
the and of the most recent Dividend Perlod to that date;

Register means tha register kept by MTF of the Perpetuzl Referance Shares;

Registrar means Link Market Services an agent appainted by MTF to keap the Registar of
Perpetual Preference Shares;

Relavant Reset Date means In respect of & Dividend Periad, If that Dividend Period begins op @ b
Regst Date, that Reset Date, and If that Dividend Pertad does not begin on a Reset Date,/the '
Reset Date Immediately praceding that Dividend Pariod; !
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Reset Oate means 30 September 20?7 and each 30 September (or the next Business pay)
thareafter;

Special Resplution means a resoiution agproved Uvamajorltvof'fs% of the votes of those
shareholders entitied to vote and voting on the guestion;

Tax Act means the Income Tex Act 2004;
Underwrittan Amount means £35 million;
$ or NZ§ maans New Zeaiand dolars.

Wheare thara |5 3 referance 10 3 gate In this Offer Document, and that dote Is not 2 pusiness Day,
the reference shall be demad to be to the n@xXt day which is a Business Day.

Motor Trade Finances Umites 78 w
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application Instructions: General Offer and Priority Pool

Incark dotatis

Insert full name(s), addrass and telephane numbers. Applications must be in the name(s) of
natural parsong, companies oF other lagel entities, up to @ maximum of three names per
application, At least one full given name and surmame Is required for aach natural person.
Appiicattons in the nam@ of @ minor, fund, estate, business, firm or pastnership, club or ather
unincorporated body cannot be accapted. In those Cases, applications must be made In the
ndividuat name(s) of the persons(s) who I8 (are) the legal guardian(s), trustee(s), proprietor(s),

partner(s), or office bearar(s) (as appropeiate).

Trsart the principal amount of parpetust Preference Shares you wish to apply for. The application
must be for 3 minimum of $5,000 and thereafter in multiples of $1,000.

Insert your IRR number.

If you have been allocated 8 holder number by the Replstrar or have been allocatad 3 Common

Shareholder Number {"CSN"), please provide.

IF you are applying pursuant to tha Priority Pool, tick the appropriata box to Indicate your

eligibliity.

Signing

Read the Application Form and this Offer Document carefully and sign and date the form. It must
be signed by the appileant{s) personally, or by twe directors of a company, or one girgeror if there
s anly one director, or by an attormney. I¢ your Appiicaton Form (s signad by an attorrey, the
pawar of attorney document IS not required to be lodged, but the sttomsy must campiete the
certificate below. Joint applicants must each sign the Appilcation Form. :

Payment

Payment of the appiication amount In full must accompany the Application Form. Payment must
be In New Zealand dollars and for immediate valus, Cheques must be drawn on a registernd

New Zesland bank.

Chegues must ba made out In favour of "MTF Preference
and must not be post-dated.

Clasing datee

Share Offer”, crossed “Not Transterable”

General Offer: Appiication Farms must be recelved by the Registrar by 5:00pm on 28 Jung 2005
or MTF or any Primary Market Participant through which 3 frm allocation was obtained or the
Lsad Manager or any other channel approved by NZX in time to be forwarded to the Registrar by

2E June 2006.

Priarity Paal: Application Forms must be recalved by the Registrar by $:00pm on 16 June 2006 or -
MTF ar any Primary Market Participant or the Laead Manager or any other channel approved by
NZX in time to be forwarded to the Ragistrar by 16 June 2006,

Deltvary
Applications eannot be reveked ar withdrawn,

Applcation Forms and your payment may be mailed or delivered to the Reglstrar, or MTF, or to

or any other channel approved by NZX In time to be forwarded ta the Reglstrar by the applicgple

any Primary Markat Participant ehrough which 3 firm aliocation was obteined, or the Lead Mana K Q\

motar Tryda Minanced Limited 79 @
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data. MTF (s not cbliged o accept appilcations which are recaived by the Raglstrar after the
Closing Date or the Priarity Pool Closing Date.

Unk Markat Sarvices

138 Tancred Strest

PO Box 384 Ashhurton

Telsphone: 0800 377 388

Facsimie: 03 3081311

Emali: info@iinkmarketsarvices.com

[ L
ey
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application instructions: Exchange Offer

Hoiders of Capital Bonds who wish to axchangea up 10 100% of the aggregate principal amount of
their holding of Capitat Bands lnta an equivalent amount of parpetuai Prefarence Shares should
follow the instructions below. .

Each holder of Capital Bonds will raceive & prrsonalised Red Applicatien Form separste from this
Offar Document which shows their nama and the aggregate principal amount of Capitai Bonds
neld by them. You should check that the details contained in the parsanalised Red Appilcation
form are corvect and amend Where necassary. Yhis Red Application Form con only be used by the
exact legal entity which holds the Capital Bonds for up to the maximum specified in this Red
Application Form.

A holder of Capital Bonds can appiy to exchange up to 100% of the agoregate princlpa! smount of
the Copital Bends held. To the extent applications excesd tha §$13 rmliion Perpatudl Prefgrence
Shares resarved, applications seaking to axchenge graster than 50% of their Capitat Bonds for
Perpetual Prefarence Shares many need to be scaled. Scaling wiil be at the discration of MTF In
association with the Lead Manager. Any Capital 8onds not exchangad !rto Perpetyal Preference
Shares will be redeamad in cash on 30 June 2006.

Any holder of Caplital Bonds who wishes to apply for Perpetual Prefarence Shares with an
aggregate principal amount which Is greater thun the aggregata principal amount of Capital Bonds
baing exchanged by that holder must complete and lodge a separate Appilcation Form for those
additional Pemetual Prefarence Shares (see "application \nstructions: General Offer and Priority
Papl® an page 79 of the Offer Document).

Holders of Capital Bonds should be aware that those who alect to exchange all, or part, of their
holding for new Perpatual Preference Shares under the Exchange Offer will not de disadvantaged
by electng to do so, as those hoiders will continue to recaive interest at a rate of 10.7% per
annum appiicable to the CapRkal Bonds untll 30 June 2006 {belng the redemption dawe applicable
to the Capital Bands), at which time the Initial Dividend Rate on the Perpetual Preference Sharas
aliotted under the Exchange Offer will apply.

Once an application has been made to exchange some or all of & holder's Capitai Bonds undar the
Exchange Offgr, the Capital Bands to which the application refates wil be unable to be transferrod
to another party.

For further information regarding the Bxchange Offer please refer o the “main terms of the
Offer” on page 9.

Insart detalls

fnsert the aggregate principal amount of Capital Boads to be exchanged Into Perpetual Preference
Shares in the relevant box on the personalisad Red Apglication Form.

An application for Perpetual Preference Shares must be for a principal amoeunt of a minimum of .
§5,000 and in muitiples of 1,000 thereafter.

Insart your address and other detalls.
Insert your Common Shareholder Number (C5N) and your IRD aumaer.

If you hoid a current Resident Withholding Tax Exemption Certificate, tick the relevant bax and
attach a copy of tha cartficete,

Select the payment method by which you wish to receive Oividand paymants in relation to the

Perpatual Preference Shares,
1f you selact payment to your bank account, tick the apprapriata box and insert the bank ach
into which you wish Dividend payiments to be depasited. !
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If you select payment to Cash Management Account, tick the appropiate box, insert the name of
the NZX Firm where your Cash Management Acoount s held and provide your Cash Management
Client Account Number.

Signing

Read tha Red Appiication Form and this Offer Document carefully and sign and date the form. 1t
must be signad by the spplicant(s) personally, or by two directers of 2 Company, or one director if
there ig only one directar, or by an attorney. If your Red Appilcation Form IS gigned by an
attorney, the power of attomey document Is not required to be iodged, but the sttormey must
complete the certificate below. Jolnt applicants must sach sign the Red Application Form.

Payment
No payment is required under the Exchange Offer.

Closing dates

Appiication Forms pursuant to the Exchanga Qffer must be recalved by the Registrar by 5:00pm
on 16 June 2008 or MYF or any Primary Markast Participant or the Lead Manager or any other
channel approved by N2Xin time to be forwarded to the Reglstrar by 16 June 2006.

Dalivary
Applications cannot be revoked or withdrawn,

Red Application Forms may be malled or dellvered ta the Registrar, or MTF, or any Primary Market
Participant, or the Lead Manager or any other channe! approved by NZX In time to be forwarded
to the Registrar by 16 June 2006. MTF Is not obiigad to accept appilcations which are recelved by
the Registrar after the Exchange Offer Closing Date.

Link Market Services

PO Box 384 Ashburtan

138 Tancred Strest

Ashburton

Talephone: 0800 377 389

Pacsimlle: 03 208 1311

Emall: Info@iinkmarketservices.com
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BROKER'S STAMP
Motor Trade Finances Limited
Applicaﬂon Form: General Offer and Priority EROKER'S CODE

2606,
Aopiication 1Ssuad with the combined Prospactys and and Invemment Satement (*Offer Document”) ronarad 36 X 30 May
mawmm%mMUmmrm Maose wctach your chegul to thic ummmawﬂnw.er“ﬂﬂd:‘ﬁ
PmBry Mevket FaUCIBATE througl wiich a firm alligation was oboained, or the Laad mumymum-&a.nvdg‘
'ormuhllw-ruﬂbﬂummwzlmmnmmdmlﬂcuppluﬂmwuummw cite of appllcafans
made pursuant to the Priadty Faol.

1. Appieeat(s) to chmpiete; block leitore pllees

——Noase ermar pprs(e) ) ) (ictudng of Bt canes)
IRD Mymbrer

Tez  i1mgal Fires Nama(s) Legel Femity Nome

| Carporate Name
.1 1 you hold @ current Rasiden Wihhoiding Tax ixempcen Certfeate, plenss Tck this bo And aibach a copy of the eertificate.
] 7 vou wish to receivn annuat and Intarim regorts by emat oply plebse Tk this bo and provide your aMAH acaress below.

rastat Address (Inctuding past cods)
Ph~name: { )
P-Work: { ]
Postrude: | emasi centsaran:
L!rgu hava 3 SN number, plogas Insart [ herst j

4. Applicatipn - important ot Translerabie”

v Chiques should be made payable to "MYF Preferance Bhare Ofar* and crossed "Not Transferabis”.

v mmumﬂvwmummmmm“mmmgmor?ﬂeﬂwmmeunanmvrmnﬂm
mmmultsdumlnn.

Pﬂnelpal amsunt of rmmﬂ mrmm shuu anpllu ﬁm ﬂun Muamd fort 8

1.  Mvidend peymant instruction uptiane (pleass campiets anly ons gption)
Option 3 Faymant ts iy neminated bank secount

D optiey 2t Saymant 19 my Cash Managament Account with an NIX Firm
For optien 1, my nominsted bank atcount ls:
Actepnt ems{s}:

gank drench Agoount Number

LLTTT s snuN EEEEEES NN

The sceeunt noiinatad above will be usad for Al payments of Dividends snd princlgal whan they becoma pavakle.

__For antion 3, vha dutafls of £ [Mansgenant A¢ ure s foflaws:
Nums of NZX Plrne whiaro Cagh Managemant Account Held:

cagh nluum‘_ni Citant Actount Number: ] I I 1 1 1 [

. Vrigrity Byt
m Flanan tick the bex If you sres

A MTF sta¥ member or Biractar.
[T 1 wiaase crter your Dasier number in tha box ff you are 3 MTF Sasler.
T $§

If veu Bre one or bot of tho tbove, your applicatian will be Included In the regerved alineation for the Priority m
here applications under the Priprty Poo) excesd §F millon appications wi) ba subjact to scaling.
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5 Signxtorels} of apgikant(s)
mmﬂlﬂNwmmwmmmwmmumnIMMumwmw

e e oy 0 o . ot o s Sk of s Mo oo Sobore e
Slonasurs of psslicant, o —
Satatica st Anslicants_ ot
Stsalurs of Asapoank -

¥
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Apmwmmwudmmmmm

.  Complate datdils.

v Jnsart your full namels), IRD Aumber(s), address(es), telaphone numbar(s) and emali sddress{as} {optional).

» WMIHMWMMS)dWMRMBﬂW::::M-M oy —
. polications m.mmmmmuwmm pr other neorparoted canol

:r-lus thay ?&‘m in me mavidusl nnmais) of the person(s) who 5 (are) the iegal guardian(s), prustee(s), proprietor(s},
partner(s) o bitice besrer(s) (oS snprogrieta).

i you wuawmmmmmmmmmmwwm.naMamumm

. mmmwmwﬂmum-m-m:mmmuss,m;ndmmmumdn.cun

smmmummmwmmmummmmwmwmmm praference Shars.
:fpuuhﬁpwﬂhwmkimm wmmmmmnmm.mwwmmwmm
paymants to be sepasited.

palect mwmmmmt.uummmw.mmm-mmummnrmmmwmh

mmrmuhwmmwm Management Ciang Account Number.

. lfyounmmwmumhmmvodmmudemmmwwmmwmm

2. Sguing

. muwm:amavmdw(mnmmm-

v mummuwwmmmnmmm.wwmmofamnwwmmtrd\mumwm

directar or under company seal, or by An MTOMEY.

£ the Application Form [5 signed by an attomay, 3h ﬂw«mmﬂmummmﬂnmﬂmmm« to be

todged with the Application Form; howevar, tha sitarmdy must compieta the cartificats of non-revocation Belaw.

g mnmmmmumummm

v Paymant

. nwm:ofmrﬂmmummmnml musT sccomplny the Applicstion Form.

» Payment miny be made n n-uzeumwmm:wmmmamm on 9 New Zediang bank,

. wwunamlswwmmma-mwamusmn,ﬂoawwmmmmmummhy
bank cheque or such methed of paymant 3greed 35 acteptable ta the Luad Manager-

. Civeques myst be made out In fevour of "MTF Preferenca Share CNar, and crasead “Not Transterabia®.

4. Clostwy dinse

. ammua:clssaunpmonzalumznuu.ormﬁrﬂnorwmaamlwmmmne.

» Priority Fooi Clgsing Dite (s 5:00pm on Ls.lunum.wwﬁewuﬂlmmasmmvmuemm.

5  Oallvery

. Appliescions cannoc e revaked or witharawi.

. Agplication Farms may e mallsd or dativered to the Registrar, or MTF or 8y Frimdry Market participant through which b firm
allocation was otxained, or the Lead MEnager OF &ny other orsniel approved by N2X In time for then o be mailed to the Regletrer
wmammwmmmmmwnuuu.

. MYE may Fefuse to SEZADT Bpphcations i receives after the Closing Dmts or the Priarity Pacl Clasing Date or any other apmiication k
receives at I glacresion, MTE wil refugé T d2cept Bppileationa for tass than tha mirimum amount.

I/¥e pgres That the Information Lwe have disclased in thig form may be used by MTF and the Lead Munyger for the purposes of
processing this appiicetion and sending mejus Infarmatian rakiting to the Perpriual Preference Shares.

1/We Bgree that MTF end the Lead Manager may disciuse this Informatian to third pardes, anly when such disclosurs Is netessary for e
above purpases, Ir requested, [fws will be provided with detaita oF suah (hind parties.

Trie Ipformatkin received from ma/us whl b heig securety by MTF, the Lead Manager. J{We may request access ta the nformatian, gnd
Uwa may alse reqyest that It be corracted.

It signed under Power &f Attomey, tho abromay berety cartifies that no notice or Infasmation has besn received of revozation by death or
otherwige of that pawer. L/We gertlly that, whers Information 5 provided by me/us in Wi form sbeut another parsan, § amfwe arx
authorised by Such person to disclose the information o you ano giva aytharisatien.

In the £mse of jolnt nppilcations, the joie epplicoms agree that, uniess ctherwisc axpressly indicared In this Appitcation Form, the
Ferputual Praference Shares will be heid jontly 35 jaing tanants.

Cortificate of nen-revocation of power of attarasy
Compiste this section If youl sre acting on vehalf of Samieone 10T wharn you hola Power of ATomey.

1, {Name of Attarney)

of {Addrass ano Dctupation of Attomey)
Haraby cartity

1. That e Atturney of under 8 desd dnted

given to ma by him/her/MTF, Gay Month Year

2. TharIhave exacuted thwe application for Porpetual Preferencs Shares an the face hareaf a3 Atomey under the sald Pawar af Azomey
and pursuant o the powers hereby conferrd on ma.

3 ‘rnl: ot the aptz neres! T hava nok recoivad any notice of information of the revacation of the sald Power of Attorney by death of

IS 1K

L\
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Directors
Roger A Bonifant, MAgSe, MSc, CNZM (Chalrman)

Angus R Bradshaw, BCA, ACA, £ Pins, ENZIM
{Managing Director)

Warwlek N Cashmore

Graema D Gibbons, BCom, CA
Stephen 1 Higgs, 8Com, FCA
Lawrance 3 Saunders

Kenneth J Cummings

Registered Office of MTF
193 Prineas Street

PO Box 865

Bunedin

telephana: 03 477 0530
emall: mtf@mtf.co.m

Registrar

Link Marikat Services

138 Tancred Street

PO Box 384

Ashburton

telephone: 0800 377 368
facsimlle: 03 308 1311

Laga! Advisers ta tha Offer
Phiflips Fox

Tower Building

7th Floor

50-64 Customhouse Quay
PQ Box 2791

Waellington

TO B44951327

Lead Managar

Forsyth Sarr Uimited

forsyth Barr House

Level 6

Cnr Lambton Quay & Johnston Street
PO pox 5266

Wellington

telephone: 0B0O 367 277

facsimile: 04 499 7456

Undarwriter

Farsyth Barr Group Limited

Forsyth Barr House

Level 6

Cnr Lambton Quay & Johnston Street
RO Box 5286

Wellington

telephone: 0800 367 277

facgimiie: 04 499 7466

Auditor
Delaltte

Otago Mause
431 Moray Place
PO Box 1245
Dunedin
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BROKER'S STAMP
Mator Trade Finances Limited
Application Form: Exchange Offer
taraumucuplnllnmmmlmm BROKER'S CODE

This Rad Application Farm smmmmmm:wmmimnnmmmﬂmﬂuumm
2006 issued by Motor Trade Fnances Limitsd ("NTF).

MMMNmmmmuMumrmmwmmw preference Shares isgued by MYVF ag
describad Rarthar bitlow.,

Form & £a Do used mmduﬁwnnnhuurmwmuwimdwummﬁ
1’:"3&7‘: nuumwzﬁ"gm:nn«&zwwmmerummmmonulmdﬂnwumm
mdmmamhbmmummpmmﬂvmtﬂmnmmmmm.

cations undar tha Sxchange Giter must be recaived by th st by 5:00pm, 16 Juns 2006, wlmumtnnmmw
:lﬂlm:uu mmm'm&u%dm#’mmmwmmwnmdemun
exchange Ca Bonda for Parpatual Preference Shares.

!fhduuorapmmuswlmwmmmmmmms”mmnmmmmmmmo«mm
Noitders Madt cOMpUce 3 separsce Application Form.

¥or furtirer darss seg "maln cerms of tha Ofer” on aﬂuﬂdmmmum\tmamumuﬂuwmufm. For instructions an how
tw compleie and mmmammmm'amMmmmm-nmemll of the Offer Dacumant.

1. Bandhelser qeeails

Hondhpider samet

Bordngider mamber:

Agpregate privelpal amount of Capitat Gonds held:

2. Applicant dowmily - inporcant - applicancs & campletd;

Togsl amoutt of Capital Bends to be exchanged for Perpetua! Preference Shares:
»  MTF eay refusa to scCEpt pplications K rocaives after S:00pm on e Bycrange Offer Cloging Date or any cther appilation at ks

distretian.
e MTF may scale appications at (s diseratian.
Postal Addrass {inchuding post cede)

Bh-Home: ()
m-work: ()

Fostoode; Embii:

Pieyse Inset yeur IRD numbers

[T] o veuhalaa cument Resident Withhatoing Tax Exampkion Certieate, piease tck this box and attach a copy of the cardfice.
[T} 1 vou wish to receive 3nnuat and interim ragorts by emall aniy, piease Uk tnls box and provioe your emall sddress beiow,

l Ir yau have 2 CSN number, piassa Insert it hare: J

3.  Divisend payment instructan spdens (please complata enly ang eptien):

Qption It Paymant to wry nominated hank accaunt
Optlon 1t Payment to my Cash Management Acoount with sn NZX Flrm
Far sption 1, my neiwinated hank Nooaount I
Accaunt Name{sy
Rank Branch Accognt Number Sulfie

N TN

The account rominated svove will be ured for alf paymants of Rividends and principat Whan they bacome payshie.

For aptisn 2, tha detalis of my Cath Management Account are g Tollowgs
Nama of NIEX Flrm whers Cash Menagoment Account Held:

()
Mﬂllll-'lﬂlcnlﬂlenmntﬂuﬂ\hﬂ 1 L l _[ J l [ ‘[ IZ l Fa

4. Slgasturs(s) of appiicanc(c) -
I/We hove repd the OfYer Dozument and herely 2phly for the Perpeounl Praferance Shargs unter the Exchanga Offer A g2t 6T
subject to the temw and condltiuns of tha OFer Document as Issued by MTF and on the ravarge of thic farm.  I/We agree to gooept
mvistments gx appliad foF ar any lessar IMount that may be lssued & ma, 1/wie herehy ivevecaoly @ppalnt MTF as my/our attorney
for the purpowes of compieting all documentation necessary to be comoleted on my/jour behdif ta ¢lve #Ract & my/our applieation for
Purpetut Prefarence Shires unaer this Offer, Plaase read the back of this Red Application Farm Safore slgning.

Slanaaure of Apslicant., —RRRlE

)
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MOYOR TRADE FINANCES LIWITED

Application instructions: Exchange Qiter

1. Complets dochlia.

. neider of Capial Bonds has receivad & wmmmmwrmmmm
mwwmmmw mdnl‘omm-laphlmmuwmm. You should chack that the
saumkﬂhmnumwwmmmnw-mmmm

. MMWMMMMMWNM!MMWMWMMWWM
maxhmum specifiag in this Red mrem&mmm.rmmdmnﬂw\uooum
miatch exackly the name of the h HWMWWMWPWQWWMtu
Im

. mummmpﬂumﬂmmemwmamelmmtmmm
tha releVaRE bak oh tha poesenalisny And Applisation Form.

. mamwmmmsmmmnamuw\dpdmwamwnmuﬁ-mwm
muitiptins af $1,000 Derasner.

. #mm:wuﬂwWTuwmmmmmmmmuMMama
tha certificate.

. ﬁmmmmwmmmmmnmmmwommuhmwmw
Preferenca Sharss.

- B’vwmmmumaaukm.uwww“mmmuamwlmuﬁmw
wizh Dividand payments to be depositad.

rmmpnmmmmmmmammem«wmrm
weherz your Cash Mansgement ACcount is held and provida your Csh Management Chient Atsount Humber.
Signing

femn the Rid AJRIICAtSN Farm carefully 3nd Sign 2 date the form.
mmwuﬂmwmwms)nmw,nrwmuummumwumckmmm
Is gy ore director ar URAer COMRany [a1, OF DY AN aTIOMEY.

. Ifmmammmmlﬂumwnmrnw.nnmlm«mﬂnuwﬂuernmm-rﬂ
Rnzehey 16 not required £ be loaged with the Red Aoplication formi Rawever, the aZzrmey must complete the
certfcnie of nan-revoation bajow.

Jgint 3ppIicAnts MWSE £ACH BigA the Red Apniicenon Form.

Paymoent

No payment is required urider th Exchange Offar,

Clasing data

MIMB" oftar Closing Dato 15 5:00pm on 15 June 2008, or such eamiar ar tater date &6 the laxuer may

‘.F

',".ﬂ“

Dalivary

Applitations cannet be ravoied or witihkraws,

Rexs Appiication Forma may e maked or delivared I the Registrar, or MTF, or any Prita Markat Paricipant, of

the Lead MEnager Gr 3ny other channel approved by 42X ln Uime for tham to Be recaived by the Ragistrar by the

Exchange Offer Clasing Onte.

. mrmmmanmuwwminmmuﬂmamrmmwmdnsmymtswamuﬂswamm
ft recmives ot ks ciscration, MTT will refuse to secapt Bpplieations for lass than tha rinlmum ameunt,

. MTF may scaie Appcations &t its algcretian,

..F

Ploase rond this befars elgning

LWe apply t0 exchunge the aqgregata princigal 3mourt of Capital Bands shown above itd he equivalent value of

P uuu“;xmhn::mnnmewmammmmmnucmmmnmmdmdmnayzuMcncmu
App " ‘

[/We acimawledge chat [/we whi Aot recgive gay redarmption maneys In raspect of the Capieal Bands but will Infead

receive an eguivalent amaunt f Perpetual Praference Shares.

1/We acinawlgdge that Sws will recetve 2 cash payment reflecting a fimal Interest paymarnt of 10.7% per annum far

aach $1,000 Ffaca value of Capital Bangs heid, representing accyues interest on the Capitai Bandg for the periad from

1 Janusey Up to (and Induding) 30 Jure 2006.

UWe agree to be bound by the grovisioas of this Offer Dacu/ment ated 30 May 2006.

:.Me an: resd ang uNOAREOad this Oer Document. 1/We racsives bnis Red Applitation Form togather with that

1/We agres tnat the Information Ijwa have dissiosed In o form sy be used by MTF or RE related companies ang the
Lead Manager for the purposes of processing this applicatfon and sending mafus Information retating to the Perpetust

UWe agroe DT NYF and the Lead Manager may diseiose this nfarmation © thita parcias, anly when such disciosura i
necegsary for The sbove purposes. 1f requestnd, Uwe will be pmviged with details of such third partes.,

The information razeivad from majug will bu hald seeuraly by MTF, the Lesd Managor. 1/Wa may request Juoess to the
nformaBaon, and I/wR Inay si£0 NEGuATT thac (t be corrected.

It sigried under Power of Aﬂnmwi the sttarmey hereby coartifies thatk na notice or information has Deen received of
ravocation By desth or oEharwise of Enat powRr, 1w césly that, where Information i provided by met/us In this form
sbout stother pevsan, 1 8m/we are authurissd by such persan to distiose the Inftrfmation 5 you and to give

in the case of jolt agplications, the jaint applicants agree thal, uniess ctnarwisa exprisoly indicatsd In this Red
Applieatien Form, the Perpstal Praferesfce Sharsy will be haltd jolntly 3¢ Joint tanbnts.

Lertificate of non-rovocaiion of powpr of errorney

Compiete Wis section If you Bre acting on benaif of somsons for whom you hol) Powar of Attarney.
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MOTOR TRADE PINANCES LIMITED

1, wang {Rame of Amamay)

of . (Adcrass snd Dcoupation of ACormy)
Hensdy cptsy

1, Thetns Attermey of under » dead deted '

Bivan ta me by NimfharficTF, Cay Month Year

2. THAUE have executed tne spofication for Parpetull Preferance Snares v the fica Nareof is Attarnay under the Shid
Fower of Attornay and purguant to thet pawers hredy conlisrid on me.

3. Thar ax ow date hereof I nave not rateived shy notce of information of tire revocation of the &aig Phwer of
agtormey by desth ar stherwse,

Signed v

Oay Morth Yo¥r

SIBNARUIN . . ctar s steecrmrerezcstny rosdacs cons180n st mmsmssttass s
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Owref 0400768 mmﬁ_

i-gi e
29 May 2008 Fae 404 4

Adulalde

The Directons )
Moator Trade Fimancas Limited ]
183 Princas Streat
T B
DUNEDIN o Oty
Salicitors’ opinion

Logal complianca oplition for the public offering of Perpetual Praference
Shares in Motor Trade Finaiyeas Limitad

We have besn retained by Danie! Clarksor of Motor Trade Finances Limited (WTT), (o adviss
on applicabls New Zesland gtatutary and regulatory raquiremants in raspect of the propased
offer of perpetual prefarence ehares (Prafarenca Sharas) to be made by MYF on or abaut 31
May 2008 (Offer).

This repart end our difnion Ie.given an the tents wod edeumptiond get autin thizrpant.
The Offer and the cambinad prospactis and inveatmant statemant aliached (Offor
Docymsnt] sre eudjsct fo cartain lawa In Now 2eglant, inchuding the Securities Act 1878,
Companias Act 1883, Fair Trading Act 1988 and tha Congymer Guamntess Act 1883, In
addition, the Offerls aubjscttothe Listiag Rules of Now Zsntand Exchanpgelimitad {REX),
and Mataf Tride Flnarices Liiled's conetmden.

Opirlsn

Campiiance of Offer Ddeument

Nathing ha; coma 10 aur attention that causee us to ballove, and wa do nat believe, that:

. the Offar Domnert cusafaihs & misterisl stAtaiiint thist |4 faisk, misigading or
daceptive, or g Hkeiy o mislead prdaceive Investors;

. thare ks @ meataial omisslen fiom the Offer Dooument; or

. the isaue of tha-Offer Document wil nanstitute condust which is misieading or
deceptive, or Is ikely to misivad or decaive,

115415970 L. 040078 CTTT1
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"y —

Adequacy of Due Difigehge Procsss

In- our apinion, e procinises and prokadises nutived in s Dus: Didgenne Planning
Memorandim datad 15 May 2068 ateciad (I Diflgencd Pisnniig Wamorandum) ire
mwhmﬁmmnmmmmammmn

in aur opinion, the Dua Dligence Flanning Memorandum contalng processes and procedures
which, if folowing by MTF ang the MTF Due Difgencs Commities, can provida ressonable
grounds for MTT to satisly [toeif that ressanalle grounds exist to belleve that ststerments mads
in ths Offer Document are not unue:

GQualifications and sssiimplions
The opinlons given in this report sre givan eubjlact to tha folikwing quallfications:

. We hiava not bean eekid o roviaw any documents aa part of the dua difigence or
verification processes, and actept no reaporisivliity and express no opinfon in
raapact of the adequacy of the-due diligance and verificaion procasses conductad
by the MTF Dus Diligance Commities excapt ag set aut shove,

. The due dilipanca process Wil he conductad ty'the MTF Due Diliganoe Committes
in evcordamee Witl e Due. Dilpence: Plirining Meénwrsidum.

o . Thei Do Giligenice Plasning Rl hs b ool by e STF Soan.
. Adue diffjariceqpsikiviieiu b coniasd.

. A matters muterfal tostve: Offer Boginanib bisve b Yully distinabe 1.us and sie
fully.and comedlly dissiqnes i the Differ Doaumpht, T ptitielsr wilout imialor,
detafls of all maferia| rigks and the secyritisation arangemeangs.

. We are not cartifying ag:tothe accuracy of any nioimation which wa @ve not in-a
position o veify, orhave not besn requestad o verily (aithough notting bae. come
tes. il afténtion it sugifiesti-ariy Such isformatint fa-neomagt].

. You are saticfiad thet ell statameits of fait are carfact and thet-all atclaments-of
opinien are reasonably held, In paricular and without limitatian, the stabsrnet thet
despite the & icipatet sofloning I Surisumenspending lrdicalory sirggest that te
Suein-of pofitabiity recordied Wy regpectal fie MTF 4D Saplember 2005 flencil
your et Contobas tha Nill fuar 1880 Septatibisr A008.

. We hro-not coltifiing aito 0ng sdmplibrics of any financial, ecoounting or taxalion.
information set aut i the Offer Docisrient énd hote thet Doloitte will:bé pioviding
separate slgw oft i salation o fhest atdas:and fos providot siue dilgenca

 asxistance W ihis mysnd:

» o etoamancerwith wiar advica, e MY Grmug

Peraries Repdaiions 13835 redodee ilolor Tnﬂ"pﬂmm Ltmthd mrlaﬁim
Limilted And Metor Trada:Firance Sequriise-Limitsd A TES),

TSI DAOITES BT BN 'Y Q_&

¢ ———— L r— b = s Ve SR i re—————
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. Az we have nat avied an the securisalion svargéments we have nol atvissd oh
the Offer Document diaciosurss regalding thees armangements. We cordim your
advice that such isciovures am correct, ‘
. We have not provided edvics a3 to e sfructure or appropriataness of the Offer of
Profarsnce Shares and accerdingly are not carifidng as to the structure of the Offar.
. An ordinary resolution of the haidare-of ardinary shares is not requirad & amend the

righty, privileges, imkatione and conditions attaching 10 the Prafefence Sharas In
addiian to the raquiremants alraady disticeed in the Offer Doctimeht.

v 1n ascaedancs wWith your ativice, o ghis kiss gny. #ght 1o retain or reserva.rstums to
subsoribarsg.

. Al roaticians prrany marnbet of e MTF Grovg (ecivsive ot MTFS) 1o meke a
distrinuion o to barw, thef resut fram any king Sivan, or confract or deed
antered ime by MTF or any of ils subsidiarias, am cormaclly disciased in the Offer
dacament.

. Mayne Wetharolt bk proddad text kit respedct af ths mctricions on MIFS {o.maké &
distributfori ar to. bistow, tha el bum &y undertaking given, Or comimet or doad
eritared into by MTP or ariy of its subsidiaries, and will ba ptoviding seperste sign off
i respect of such disciosim.

. The Offar Dacument has heen approvad by the Raglstrar of Companias and Farsyth
Barr Limitad.

. The Offer is 8Ubject tn'apprivalky sech claga of MTF sherehisideira by ordinary
resojotion 5t b cpecisl iveatliig 1084 feid obi B Jone 2008, If tha.andinary resolution.
Is not paasad at'te spachsl mdelingfe Offer will ot procaed.

‘ Wa oonfira your sdvica that &ll sfarencea o MYF and the MTF Graup ara
approprite i thy oantoxt:they sppear,

. All reshiclians an MTF are disaiogad i the Offer Daqurent with no further
Testuitiins Wnuled ds a rasul &f ekividby-shedif faciities:cir othar findndal
rfangaments.

. All terme of e Prafarehs Shiares drs tisciosed.

. Arroriginel audRar's ragort that complies with v Secufitizs RegulaBons 1983 whl be
#tthehipd and theroriginal jetler 6F tonsent required £y the Reégulstions wil
wpcompany the Offer Dacument when defverisd for ragistration..

. * & copy uhall wisderta) contracts will accompany the Offor Document when dolivered
to the Regisirar of Companiesfor egistation,

. MTF will compiy sith the terms of the ruling granted by N2Xon B Apri 2008, We:
canfinm thail we hiavia not been Invaivad fn obtaining the ruling fom NZX-and carfirm <
- 0
115413079\ Q400768 CTTAY. }
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™

Esting recquirements.

. Forayth Berr Lisfiind-Nas obtained N2 sppioviil 1o Yhe form of Offer Document
aftached.

. Mmmwm_mm.mWMdmaw
Documant dre cored.

’ mmmmmmmwmmmimwmm Offer
Document.

. mWﬁmhmﬂMMWumﬁﬂummm
HSondhoiders separately.

. No amendments:will be made. ¥ the foro ol the Offer Doctment eftachad 1o this
report.

. Tochenge wmw;mmﬂmnwmhﬂm ceriificats-and {he date
of iaiue af i Ziimign} -

« * Thisaginion fsatricth Riviiio 15 Wi mablars BUSES 1 Tandlip comect il s i date.
»” mepnbﬁmmaamwﬂemammmmmmwufm

e Yirws oF ény-éthet Joriedictfon.

. the Offer Ciocumeei wi ot be dhsiibuted unll MT bos ompleted 2 certficats that
complies with Regulation 17 sithe Spcurttes Regulatinng 1983

. A final Dus Dlligince Commilttae voeefing must be held priatio the alioment of tha

Proferance Shares to ansure thetthe Ofler Dooument camaing accuBte, and that no
additional averts or procoedinge hEve accufvad that may anerit.

. The Dug Diligande Corinities willadvish us immédieitely of any material clungs
affecting any mitterinciuded In tha Ofer Document, and whether dny significant
néw matter has ansea. i addiion, wes will bs adgvised if any MTF passon becomes
wware that there ig'amatedial stigtgment in tha Gibwr Docxipent thet i false or
mislending, o there Is a raterial ortission from the Offar Ducdmant.

Rafisnce on this apinidD.
Agert Eioui fin aidreasae: oritiilie Urgorwimss, Fotsyth ; Bir LUtitdeid, this dpinioninsy Rat 4B

reilest upon: by any other peraim. ro CEN R Keoupied, rapratisted, drintidisd id any public
documant except with aur spedficwritten sppral.

115419878 \ 40073 YCTTOT
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CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION OF
PROSPECTUS

(Under Section 42(5) of the Securities Act 1978)

MOTOR TRADE FINANCES LIMITED
148074

This is to certify that a Prospectus, for MOTOR TRADE FINANCES LIMITED, dated the
30th day of May 2006 was registered on the 30th day of May 2006.

el A

Neville Harris
Registrar of Companies
Dated this 31st day of May 2006




